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= 5- YEAR SUMMARY

« hFERE

Earnings per share
attributable to owners
of the Company (HKS$)

Basic

Diluted

Turnover (HK$'000)

Profit attributable to owners
of the Company (HK$'000)

Dividend per share (HK$)

Consolidated statement
of financial position
(HK$'000)

Non-current assets

Current assets

Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Total assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank and other borrowings

Attributable operational
generation capacity (MW)

Eastern China

Central China

Southern China

Northern China

Northeastern China

Southwestern China

Northwestern China

Total

Clean and renewable energy

2017 2016 2015 2014
KAREEAZ

SREF(BT)

HA 0.83 0.97 1.62 2.10 1.94
s 0.83 0.97 1.61 2.10 1.93
EEB(THET) yIICLORPEN 73,311,677 66,212,590 71,435,875 70,680,628
KATEEA 4,623,323 7,708,373 10,025,241 9,214,858
FEFE(FRET)

BREE(ER) m 0.875 0.875 0.85 0.78
BHPBERAR

(F#xm)

ERBEE WEWYINLEN 193,276,019 176,225,781 182,252,640 192,813,529
MEEE LICLERY/S 27,696,451 23,885,688 25,833,239 32,834,552
EnBaE AL UVE 72,623,180 73,885,120 64,681,383 83,799,696
mEasE ALY RIER 67,607,410 51,661,486 59,665,153 56,056,017
AREHEBA ORELEEIN 75,213,819 69,020,906 70,917,575 70,794,403
FEh i

BEE y YRRV 220,972,470 200,111,469 208,085,879 225,648,081
BeMReEEY e EEl| 5,381,686 4,347,022 7,273,945 8,285,135
ROTKEMEE CIRFAREVA 100,922,869 91,463,402 88,517,336 100,432,860
EERDERRE

(kE)

e 12,358 12,565 12,421 12,383
#Eh 9,838 9,554 9,373 8,902
Eicyea) 6,583 6,674 7,037 4,945
i 3,706 3,706 3,706 3,166
®it 1,751 1,722 1,622 1,453
il 1,171 1,702 368 280
[ihls 671 261 205 201
et 37,438 36,077 36,184 34,731 31,331
BERABAERER 6,263 5,119 4,611 3,910
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5- YEAR SUMMARY
hFERE

Basic earnings per share
attributable to owners

of the Company
FARBEAEAZERELER
(HK$ %)

A
25

2.0 4

2.10

15/ 1.94 4
1.62
1.0
4
0.5 0.97

0.83

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 ¢

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
AATREEAEGEER
(HK$million B&B7T)

A
80,000
¢ 4 & B
70,794) 70,918
49021 70,135
60,000
40,000

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 «

Turnover
(HK$million B&7BT)

A
80,000
4 76,940
€0.000 74 451171436 4 7331
66,213
40,000
20,000

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 ¢

Net generation volume of
operating power plants
BEREREEE

(thousand MWh FJKELBF)

A
200,000
4 < ‘ 195,358
190511
184,980 185,993
179718
150,000
100,000

<

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 ¢

Profit attributable to owners
of the Company

AATEE AEGERE
(HK$million B &/E L)

12,000
10,000 <

8,000 < 10,025
9,215

6,000 7,708

4,000 {

4,623
2,000 3,950

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 ¢

Attributable operational
generation capacity
(MW JKEL)

40,000

35,000 p <4 4 31&

36,184 36,077
30,000 4 34,731
31,331
25,000
20,000
15,000
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 ¢
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China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited (the “Company” or “CR Power”)
is a fast-growing energy company which invests, develops, operates and manages
coal-fired power plants, wind farms, photovoltaic power projects, hydro-electric
projects and other clean and renewable energy projects in the more affluent regions
or regions with abundant coal resources in China.

As at 31 December 2018, CR Power had 38 coal-fired power plants, 83 wind farms, 20
photovoltaic power plants, 2 hydroelectric plants and 2 gas-fired plant in commercial
operation. The total attributable operational generation capacity of the Company
was 37,438MW, with 33.3% of our capacity located in Eastern China, 28.1% located
in Central China, 18.2% located in Southern China, 10.1% located in Northern China,
5.1% located in Northeastern China, 3.2% located in Southwestern China and 1.9%
located in Northwestern China. Attributable operational generation capacity in wind,
gas-fired, hydro-electric and photovoltaic power totalled 7,623MW, accounting for
approximately 20.4% of its total attributable operational generation capacity.

FEFHENEREGIRAT(TARAT IS #HEBID )R —EREERNERAD - TEETERE
e R EIREENERE « B3  EENEENMIREER « BES « SHAEER « K03
BRIREMERIROIBEREIRIEE -

MRIB-/\F+"H=1+—H ' EEBOENEE 38 EINRZEEM « 83 EEEFIZ « 20 EESEA

SEEERR ~ 2 FE7KIISEE A0 2 FEEMASR BRI - AT Bt EERnEWE SR 37,438 KR -

Hh33.3% I ASERIME - 28.1% (UM ERIE - 18.2% IS EraHE - 10.1% R E

e (& - 5.1% IR ERALHE » 3.2% U R PO Ea il EPATR 1.9% (AR PO AL I (& - [

MR IKERNABEESERDEWBSESHT7,623 )R  HBESED
Kika284120.4% -
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Coal-fired
Power

HE

Wind power,hydropower, photovoltaic
power, gas-fired power
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@31 December 2018, total attributable
operational generation capacity of the Company is

R-ZB-—N\F+=-A=+—8"
FRANETELEREBRBEES

installed capacity of clean and
renewable energy is
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power plants
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COAL-FIRED 1,000MW
1,000 JKEL#RMRIR 32 B RR

SERVICE AREAS
AR5 [62 dk

CRH

EHEE

62.9|4%

( CR POWER 2 8 &

o CANGNAN HAIFENG HEZHOU o HUBEI (PHASE Il) o TONGSHAN
B st B I — 8 L

COAL-FIRED 600MW

600 IR FLAR MR IE 38 BRR

o CHANGSHU FUYANG JIAOZUO LONGYUAN o NANJING THERMAL e YANGZHOU NO.2
B 25 FEIERRR R HBMNE=

e CHANGZHOU GUIZHOU LIUZHI LIYUJIANG B o SHOUYANGSHAN o ZHENJIANG 630
BN BN i EL $AT630

o DENGFENG (PHASE Il HEZE
BEEHTH S >

> b«

COAL-FIRED 300MW _

300 K LARHNA B T
BOHAI XINQU DENGKOU HENGXING o LIYUJIANG A o TANGSHAN FENGRUN
sl s (=L fRAITA EleE

o CANGZHOU GUANGZHOU THERMAL HUAXIN o NANJING BANQIAQ o WENZHOU TELLURIDE
B BMNEE = ARG RN R

o CAOFEIDIAN GUCHENG HUBEI o NANJING CHEMICAL INDUSTRY ' XUZHOU
) ELid ibld PARK (PHASE Il R

* DENGFENG HENGFENG LIANYUAN AR TR * YICHANG
B fare HER o PANJIN i=i=}

iR

COAL-FIRED 200MW AND BELOW

200 JKELHR B A T MR IR 2 B AR

o LUOYANG e NANJING CHEMICAL SHENHAI THERMAL o YIXING o ZHENJIANG 140
el INDUSTRIAL PARK ThERE HE $EIT140

mR{tIE

CLEAN AND RENEWABLE ENERGY

BRERIUBLERR

o BAOJI WIND HAIYUAN WIND MULAN WEICHANG WIND o WULANCHABU WIND * HAIFENG PHOTOVOLTAIC
EHRAT BREAE ANEESEE SHRMEE @R

o BAYINXILE WIND HUANXIAN WIND NANTONG WIND o WULIAN WIND PHASE | « HEISHUIPHOTOVOLTAIC
EEHHRAE RERE FiBAE hiERE—H BIKHK

o BEIPIAO WIND HUI'AN WIND NEIHUANG WIND o WULIAN WIND PHASE Il * HEZHOU PHOTOVOLTAIC
EZERE BLRE NEREE FEEE 5 B SR

o BIYANG WIND HUILAI WIND NONG'AN WIND o XINFENG WIND o HUAI'AN PHOTOVOLTAIC
WIHEE HRRAE BLZRE YRS MR

o CHAONAN WIND JIANHE WIND PENGLAI DALIUHANG WIND o XINYI WIND e HUAIBEI PHOTOVOLTAIC
R EE S REE ERATEE EERE FEIE SR

o CHENGDE WEICHANG WIND JIANPING WIND PENGLAI DAXINDIAN WIND e XINZHOU WIND o HUOSHAN PHOTOVOLTAIC
REESRE BTRE ERAN¥ERE DA S E LYk

o CHENGDE WIND JIAMUSI WIND QINGDAO WIND PHASE | o XUWEN WIND . JIANGZI PHOTOVOLTAIC
EAEEE EAREAE EERE— RERESE

o DACHAIDAN WIND JINING WIND QINGDAO WIND PHASE I o YANGJIANG WIND . LANXIAN PHOTOVOLTAIC
AEERE EERE FERE=! ZIRE =051V

o DATONG GUANGLING WIND JINPING WIND QUESHAN WIND o YANGJIANG WIND PHASE |l e« MIDU PHOTOVOLTAIC
AREERE SRFEE fLEE [5/ L% —HA DES AV

o DATONG WIND JINZHOU WIND RIZHAO WIND o YANSHI WIND * SUQIAN PHOTOVOLTAIC
K[FIEE 2RI EE ARREE (ERDEE TBBHIK

o DATONG YANGGAO WIND JUXIAN WIND PHASE | RONGXIAN WIND o YANTAI PENGLAI WIND e TAILAI PHOTOVOLTAIC
ARBG=RSE EFmEE— BGREE IHAEHRE ZRSAR

o DE'AN WIND JOXIAN WIND PHASE I RUICHANG WIND o YANTAI WIND e TIANZHEN PHOTOVOLTAIC
ELZEE EFEE_—H HERE JHERE REFIK

o DONGYING WIND LIANZHOU WIND SHANTOU HAQJIANG WIND o YICHENG WIND  XINRONG PHOTOVOLTAIC
HERE ENEAE SRR RE HIBRAE BTN

o FEIXIAN WIND LINFEN WIND SHANTOU WIND o ZAOYANG BAILU WIND  YINGDE PHOTOVOLTAIC
BREE GARE JLSERE E5RERS AR

o FUJIN WIND LINGHAI WIND SUIXIAN TIANHEKOU WIND o ZAOYANG WIND o ZHAQTONG PHOTOVOLTAIC
EREAE EERE BESA IR O R Ei5RE AR IK

o FUXIN WIND LINWU WIND SUIZHOU FENGMING WIND o ZHONGYANG WIND o HONGHE HYDRO
EXEE SREE BE )N BLIS B FI5EE LAKE

o FUXIN WIND PHASE Il LINYI WIND SUIZHOU WIND e ZOUCHENG WIND e YAZUIHE HYDRO
EIEE —H BTRE FENRE RS WA KE

o GANZHOU NANKANG WIND LIPING WIND WEIHAI HUANCUI WIND o ANDA PHOTOVOLTAIC e BELING THERMAL
EMNERERASE RERE BSRERAE ZESR EFERE

o GUANGSHUI WIND LONGYAN WIND WEIHAI WIND o CANGNAN PHOTOVOLTAIC o SHANGHAI GAS
EKEE EERE BERE BRRR labisyi=

o GUAZHOU WIND LUFENG WIND WUGANG WIND o CAOFEIDIAN PHOTOVOLTAIC
TUNEE L EE EHRE Biemyik

o GUXIAN WIND MANZHOULI WIND WULANCHABU BAYIN WIND . DELINGHA PHOTOVOLTAIC
HEEE wNERE SHEMEERE mola ¥

o HAIYANG WIND MANZHOULI WIND PHASE Il WULANCHABU HONGMUWIND »  FUQING PHOTOVOLTAIC
EIERE N ERE L EEEMAKRE =N Bad
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SERVICE AREAS
AR5 [62 ik

PROVINCE/CITY/ EFFECTIVE ATTRIBUTABLE
AUTONOMOUS INSTALLED EQUITY INSTALLED
REGION CAPACITY (MW) INTEREST CAPACITY (MW)
B/ M/ BRE POWER PLANTS 4 HEARE(KE) ENER RREMBIBCKR)

Jiangsu Changshu 1,950.0 100.0% 1,950.0
. = Nanjing Thermal 1,200.0 100.0% 1,200.0
IEAE Tongshan 2,000.0 59.9% 1,197.2
Zhenjiang 1,540.0 42.5% 654.5

Nanjing Chemical Industry Park 710.0 90.0% 639.0

Yangzhou No. 2 1,260.0 45.0% 567.0

Xuzhou 1,280.0 42.7% 545.9

Nanjing Bangiao 660.0 79.0% 521.4

Huaxin 660.0 72.0% 475.2

Changzhou 1,260.0 25.0% 315.0

Yixing HE 120.0 55.0% 66.0

Nantong Wind BAERE 65.5 100.0% 65.5

Sugian Photovoltaic BEHIK 20.4 100.0% 20.4

Huai’an Photovoltaic LA 10.0 100.0% 10.0

Guangdong Haifeng Y 2,000.0 100.0% 2,000.0
. Liyujiang B BT B 1,300.0 100.0% 1,300.0
BRE Guangzhou Thermal e 600.0 100.0% 600.0
Liyujiang A BT A 600.0 60.0% 360.0

Lianzhou Wind ENEE 190.0 100.0% 190.0

Chaonan Wind e E 145.9 100.0% 145.9

Huilai Wind HREAE 133.5 100.0% 133.5

Xuwen Wind “EEAE 100.0 100.0% 100.0

Yangjiang Wind IRE 89.8 100.0% 89.8

Lufeng Wind LR E 66.0 100.0% 66.0

Xinfeng Wind MEEE 50.0 100.0% 50.0

Yangjiang Wind Phase I [zpan -t 45.5 100.0% 45.5

Xinyi Wind FERAE 39.0 100.0% 39.0

Shantou Wind S EAE E 29.3 100.0% 293

Shantou Haojiang Wind WA FTEE 18.0 100.0% 18.0

Yingde Photovoltaic REHR 29.2 100.0% 29.2

Haifeng Photovoltaic BERRK 4.0 100.0% 4.0

Henan Dengfeng B 1,840.0 75.0% 1,380.0
e Jiaozuo Longyuan EVEREIR 1,320.0 100.0% 1,320.0
A Shouyangshan = 1,200.0 85.0% 1,020.0
Gucheng =k 600.0 100.0% 600.0

Luoyang 555 100.0 51.0% 51.0

Neihuang Wind NERE 326.0 100.0% 326.0

Biyang Wind WEEE 167.0 100.0% 167.0

Yanshi Wind ERDEE 30.0 100.0% 30.0

Wugang Wind SZiHRAE 28.0 100.0% 28.0

Queshan Wind ILRE 26.0 100.0% 26.0

Hebei Bohai Xinqu R 700.0 100.0% 700.0
e Cangzhou BN 660.0 95.0% 627.0
ALE Caofeidian B 600.0 90.0% 540.0
Tangshan Fengrun ELgE 700.0 60.0% 420.0

Hengfeng e 600.0 25.0% 150.0

Hengxing =k 600.0 25.0% 150.0

Chengde Weichang Wind FEESEE 198.0 100.0% 198.0

Mulan Weichang Wind ABEZEE 75.0 100.0% 75.0

Chengde Wind AERE 48.0 100.0% 48.0

Caofeidian Photovoltaic EiRaRAR 11.4 95.0% 10.9

Liaoning Panjin 23 700.0 100.0% 700.0
PN Shenhai Thermal LIEEE 600.0 54.1% 324.7
BEY Beipiao Wind RS 198.1 100.0% 198.1
Fuxin Wind EXEE 99.0 100.0% 99.0

Jianping Wind ZERE 99.0 100.0% 99.0

Fuxin Wind Phase I BHEE 5 97.5 100.0% 97.5

Linghai Wind ZEREE 90.0 100.0% 90.0

Jinzhou Wind $RINEE 48.0 100.0% 48.0

Heze b3 1,200.0 90.0% 1,080.0

Sha':dong Dongying Wind REEE 100.0 100.0% 100.0
IRE Haiyang Wind EI5EE 100.0 100.0% 100.0
Feixian Wind BHREE 80.0 100.0% 80.0

Linyi Wind FRTRE 78.0 100.0% 78.0

Juxian Wind Phase | EZEE—H 50.0 100.0% 50.0

Jiixian Wind Phase Il EZEE_H 50.0 100.0% 50.0

Wulian Wind Phase | hiERE—H 50.0 100.0% 50.0

Wulian Wind Phase |I hEEE 5 50.0 100.0% 50.0

Penglai Daliuhang Wind BHRAIITEE 49.8 100.0% 49.8

Penglai Daxindian Wind BRAEEREE 49.8 100.0% 49.8

Qingdao Wind Phase | 55EE—H 49.8 100.0% 49.8

Qingdao Wind Phase Il 55EE_H 50.0 100.0% 50.0

Weihai Huancui Wind BEREEE 49.8 100.0% 49.8

Weihai Wind BLEEE 49.8 100.0% 49.8

Jining Wind BERE 49.5 100.0% 49.5

Rizhao Wind HEREE 48.6 100.0% 48.6

Yantai Wind HEES 48.0 95.0% 45.6

Yantai Penglai Wind HaERRE 46.6 95.0% 44.3

Zoucheng Wind B EE 44.0 100.0% 44.0

Huoshan Photovoltaic B 17.5 100.0% 17.5

Annual Report 2018 3R | 7



SERVICE AREAS

AR5 [62 dk

PROVINCE/CITY/ EFFECTIVE ATTRIBUTABLE
AUTONOMOUS INSTALLED EQUITY INSTALLED
REGION CAPACITY (MW) INTEREST CAPACITY (MW)
&/ M/ BRE POWER PLANTS ER HEARE(KR) EXNEE ERERBECKR)
Inner Mongolia Dengkou ®o 600.0 75.0% 450.0
Autonomous Bayinxile Wind 99.0 100.0% 99.0
Region Manzhouli Wind 49.5 100.0% 49.5
e AT Manzhouli Wind Phase I 49.5 100.0% 49.5
RAETEAR :
= /R B2 Wulanchabu Wind L 49.5 100.0% 49.5
Wulanchabu Bayin Wind EWEmEZAE 495 100.0% 495
Waulanchabu Hongmu Wind SWEMIKEE 495 100.0% 495
Hubei Hubei bl 2,600.0 100.0% 2,600.0
4L 4 Yichang =8 700.0 100.0% 700.0
WiE Suixian Tianhekou Wind BT OEE 2205 100.0% 2205
Yicheng Wind HHEERE 150.0 100.0% 150.0
Zaoyang Wind EIFEE 129.5 100.0% 129.5
Guangshui Wind BEKREE 110.0 100.0% 110.0
Suizhou Fengming Wind BE )1 BLIS B E 76.5 100.0% 76.5
Suizhou Wind BE N L E 49.8 100.0% 49.8
Zaoyang Bailu Wind EFOERSE 20.0 70.0% 14.0
Guangxi Autonomous Region Hezhou :,a:d\H _ 2,000.0 66.0% 1,320.0
EEAAE Rongxian Wind BHRAE 86.0 100.0% 86.0
/H Hezhou Photovoltaic MR 6.0 100.0% 6.0
Anhui Fuyang £S5 1,280.0 55.0% 704.0
ZEBE Huaibei Photovoltaic LR 5.9 100.0% 5.9
Hunan Lianyuan R 600.0 100.0% 600.0
HEE Linwu Wind SR EE 68.0 100.0% 68.0
Zhejian Cangnan B 2,000.0 55.0% 1,100.0
3 j, 9 Wenzhou Telluride JBIN R BEE 600.0 40.0% 240.0
LA
’ Cangnan Photovoltaic BN 121 55.5% 6.6
Yunnan Honghe Hydro ZLEPKE 210.0 70.0% 147.0
=gy Heishui Photovoltaic ERFAR 30.0 75.0% 225
= Midu Photovoltaic B AR 20.3 100.0% 20.3
Zhaotong Photovoltaic [z DIV 20.1 100.0% 20.1
Sichuan
m i Yazuihe Hydro BE K E 260.0 51.0% 132.6
Gansu Guazhou Wind TUNEE 201.0 100.0% 201.0
HEE Huanxian Wind RERE 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Beijing Cit _
jl_’,?lﬁj_g y Beijing Thermal tRAT 150.0 51.0% 76.5
Heilongijian Fujin Wind EREE 50.0 100.0% 50.0
aEif” 9 Jiamusi Wind EARYEE 435 100.0% 435
RETHE Anda Photovoltaic TESIK 120.0 100.0% 120.0
Tailai Photovoltaic TSR 20.0 100.0% 20.0
Shanxi Datong Wind KARE 198.0 100.0% 198.0
. Xinzhou Wind N EE 120.0 100.0% 120.0
ITig )
Zhongyang Wind 5 EE 120.0 100.0% 120.0
Datong Guangling Wind AAEBERE 100.0 100.0% 100.0
Datong Yanggao Wind AAEG= RS 99.0 100.0% 99.0
Linfen Wind R RE 99.0 100.0% 99.0
Guxian Wind HERE 19.5 100.0% 19.5
Xinrong Photovoltaic HESHAK 50.0 100.0% 50.0
Tianzhen Photovoltaic KSR 20.0 100.0% 20.0
Lanxian Photovoltaic =8 %AV 30.0 51.0% 15.3
Guizhou Guizhou Liuzhi B 1,320.0 49.0% 646.8
M Liping Wind RIEAE 144.0 100.0% 144.0
BME Jianhe Wind SRS 40.5 100.0% 40.5
Jinping Wind BRERE 22.0 100.0% 22.0
ping
Ningxia Autonomous Region
ﬁaggaw _ 9 Haiyuan Wind BREE 300.0 100.0% 300.0
= V=)=
Jiangxi Ganzhou Nankang Wind BN EERE 64.0 100.0% 64.0
TEE De'an Wind EZmE 48.0 100.0% 48.0
AN} Ruichang Wind HERE 30.0 100.0% 30.0
Tibet Autonomous Region ) ) ) N
FAHELE Jiangzi Photovoltaic THAAR 20.2 100.0% 20.2
Qinghai Dachaidan Wind REERE 50.0 100.0% 50.0
584 Delingha Photovoltaic ESmRNR 20.0 100.0% 20.0
Shaanxi .
BEEE Baoji Wind EERE 100.0 100.0% 100.0
Shanghai Cit .
J:?ﬁ_ﬂg y Shanghai Gas FERR 2.4 100.0% 2.4
Jilin ) ) PR
EHE Nong'an Wind BZRAE 20.0 100.0% 20.0
Fujian Longyan Wind HERME 48.0 100.0% 48.0
9y
Ees Hui'an Wind BREE 26.0 30.0% 7.8
Fuging Photovoltaic msHIR 13.5 70.0% 9.5

8 | China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. ¥ EERERADT




= CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
« RIS
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Dear Shareholders:
ZUBRER -

On behalf of the Board, | present the results
of CR Power for the year ended 31 December
2018.

BENRESEEMERENEE_S—/\F
T A=1+—BLEFEZFE -

While the Chinese power industry is facing imminent challenges,
opportunities also arise. In 2018, CR Power actively responded to
changes caused by power reform and industrial transformation,
accelerated the development of renewable energy, disposed of
inefficient assets, and actively promoted business innovation and
transformation.

PERFORMANCE RESULTS

In 2018, the Company’s newly commissioned generation capacity
of wind and photovoltaic power projects reached 1,187MW
and 173MW, respectively. Development, construction and grid-
connection capacity of wind power have hit a record-high. In
the past three years, the compound annual growth rate of newly
commissioned wind power generation capacity for CR Power
ranked among the top in the Chinese power industry.

MEENTELRRRROLE - B0
B - BEN—F - EFHENEGEY
ERRFEPMEXZE S HRNE(L - INEE
RAUBLERER BERREE BEHED
EERIFER

FERR

2018 * RAIMILER FEM 1,187 K
o #R173 K - REME - ERMAMIL
PAREHEES TS - BE=F ' BEH
REREFEAEREREFRRHE NITER
Bl o

Annual Report 2018 4 |

9



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FREIRS

As at the end of 2018, the mix of clean and renewable energy
further increased, accounting for 20.4% of our total attributable
operational generation capacity.

To focus our resources in developing our power segment, improve
asset quality and capital structure, and tackle industry challenges,
the Company disposed of its coal assets in Shanxi to third parties
as well as its parent company during the year, thoroughly exiting
the coal mining business in Shanxi. Despite the one-off loss
incurred from the coal asset disposal, the Company retrieved
a large sum of cash, optimized its asset structure and relieved
some of its financial and management resources, supporting the
Company’s transformational development.

In 2018, CR Power’s revenue was HK$76.94 billion; net profit
attributable to owners of the Company was HK$3.95 billion; basic
earnings per share was HK$0.83.

10 | China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. ZHEERERAD

HE2018F K FEANABERERE
it — 2 FH o BRI E
20.4% o

RETERFIBRRENRE  BAERE
Bx NEEXER EYHTERE F
AARME=7T RERARHE TR
MR EE - BB T IWWARRER - BE
B EEHER R T —RIEEK - BERF
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=
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T BREAREFA0.83ETT °
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREIRS

Power Generation Business

We have tightened our control over the construction and
commissioning of coal-fired power plants, accelerated the
development of renewable energy, and increased the proportion
of clean energy in our power generation mix.

As at the end of 2018, our business covered 28 provinces,
autonomous regions and municipalities in China, with an
attributable operational generation capacity of 37,438MW,
including 29,815MW of coal-fired generation units, accounting
for 79.6%; 7,623MW of wind, hydro, photovoltaic and gas-
fired power, accounting for 20.4%, representing an increase of 3
percentage points as compared with the end of 2017.

In order to further accelerate the development of wind power,
we have been expanding through greenfield developments,
partnerships and development under a renewable investment
fund. We have also taken a series of actions in terms of internal
management, in order to encourage each region to accelerate the
development and investment of wind power projects based on
local conditions.

At the same time, through continuous advancement, 7 regions
have realized centralized operation and maintenance of renewable
energy, and 96.1% of the wind turbines have been included
in the centralized monitoring system. The per capita capacity
increased to 6.7 MW per person and operational maintenance
costs decreased by 8% compared to last year.
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In 2018, China’s total power consumption growth reached 8.5%,
but at the same time, certain relatively developed provinces
in Eastern and Southern China adopted stricter power control
measures for coal-fired power plants. Our coal-fired power
plants have been actively reducing its coal consumption through
technical upgrades and operational adjustments, carrying out
heat supply reform by setting power generation based on
heating demand, participating in peak-loading, and actively
conducting sludge and other waste combustion treatments, and
actively participating in direct power supply to maximize power
generation volume. In 2018, the average full-load equivalent
utilization hours of CR Power’s subsidiary coal-fired power plants
which were operational for the full year of 2018 was 4,976
hours, a slight increase from the previous year, and exceeding
the national average utilization hours for thermal power plants by
615 hours.

We have been seriously combing through our portfolio of assets
by accelerating the disposal of inefficient assets, optimizing
our shareholding structure, formulating asset disposal plans
to retrieve capital, hence improving the overall quality of the
Company's assets and laying a foundation for our long-term
market competitiveness.

Power retail and comprehensive energy services

As at the end of 2018, CR Power had set up 25 provincial
power retail companies across China, achieving full nation-wide
coverage. The Company sold approximately 70.25 billion kWh
of electricity through bilateral long-term agreements and on-
grid competitive bidding. Leveraging on the diversified businesses
of our parent company, CRH, we provided power retail services
in collaboration with 57 companies in 14 business sectors
under CRH, and completed direct power supply of 3.78 billion
kWh, representing 5.3% of the Company’s direct power supply
volume. Meanwhile, we have entered into strategic cooperation
agreements with other enterprises, such as Foxconn, TCL, Country
Garden and the Hyatt Group.

To promote the development of our power retail business, CR
Power launched its Power Retail Cloud Platform at the end of
2018 to streamline the entire power retail process, including
marketing, customers, trading, risk control and statistical analysis.
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In terms of comprehensive energy services, we are actively
promoting the development of distributed energy, incremental
distribution networks, and smart energy comprehensive services;
we have successfully obtained 8 national level incremental
distribution network pilot projects, including the incremental
distribution network project at Hezhou Circular Economy
Industrial Park which officially launched its power distribution
business. The Fuyao Group commenced the operation of its
smart energy platform in December 2018, providing practical
solutions for energy management and benchmarking of Fuyao
Group’s 4 float glass plants and 11 automotive glass plants, as
well as helping enterprises to conduct energy analysis from the
source through quantitative statistics of energy consumption,
which greatly improves the efficiency of energy management and
control for these corporations.

ACCRUED SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Environment: We invested RMB1.52 billion in environmental
protection last year into areas such as energy conservation of
coal-fired units and environmental innovations and upgrades,
resulting in improvement in the key indexes of energy
consumption and emissions over the year. The Company's
subsidiary coal-fired power plants recorded an average coal
consumption rate for power generation of 299.54 g/kWh, down
by 1.2% year-on-year from 303.16 g/kWh in 2017. In 2018, our
coal-fired generation units recorded emission rates of sulphur
dioxide, nitrogen oxide and particulates of 0.08g/kWh, 0.13g/
kWh and 0.01g/kWh respectively, representing a decrease in
emission rates of sulphur dioxide and nitrogen oxides of 20% and
23.5% respectively compared to that of last year.
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We have been actively researching on urban waste and sludge
combustion as well as biomass coupling generation. A total of
14 power plants have implemented sludge, industrial waste and
agricultural and forestry waste disposal treatment, most of which
utilizes coal-fired coupling generation. In addition, we have
actively closed off and revamped coal mines to effectively improve
the local environment conditions.

Safety for production: We invested RMB312 million on safety
measures in 2018, including safety-enhancing equipment for
workers, improvement of work sites safety, addressing major
safety hazards and developing advanced technology for safe
production. As a result, we achieved secure and stable power
production and operation throughout the year. During the year,
the number of incidents resulted in injuries and deaths declined
by 80% compared to last year, the best record in past 8 years.

Giving back to society: Over the years, CR Power has been
devoted to social welfare in an effort to facilitate robust regional
economic and community developments. In 2018, through
engaging in poverty relief, education, elderly care, environmental
protection, regional infrastructure development, voluntary services
and CRH’s establishment of Hope Towns in impoverished regions
in China, we contributed a total donation of approximately
RMB6.07 million to the society. We have also endeavored
to create job opportunities, and recruited 1,639 additional
employees in 2018, including 489 fresh university graduates.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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To help the nation in its drive of eradicating poverty and fulfill
our responsibility as a central state-owned enterprise, we explore
ways of linking the development of wind power to local poverty
relief. With arrangements like channeling investment income
from government-participated wind power projects to poverty
alleviation work, regional economic and community developments
can benefit from the growth of enterprises. Apart from increasing
the income of poor villagers and promote local employment,
wind farms can also solve the problem of power shortage faced
by villagers in mountainous areas, at the same time raising
the proportion of clean energy of the Company. In 2018, the
Company'’s subsidiary Lianzhou Wind Power in Guangdong helped
830 poverty stricken families; Zaoyang Bailu Wind Power in Hubei
sponsored 54 poverty-stricken villages; while Lanxian PV power
station in Shanxi lifted 1,200 local poor families out of poverty.

Open communication: We have always attached great
importance to communication with our stakeholders, and
enhanced mutual trust through events like special conferences,
reports, websites, WeChat official accounts, hotlines and email
and open days.

In July 2018, we held a press conference in Shenzhen to present
our sustainability report to the public, sharing our achievement
in key performance indicators including corporate governance,
production and operation, energy conservation and emission
reduction, innovation transformation, asset optimization, charity
works, employee care and other aspects. Responsibility practice
cases and work updates were presented at such conference. More
than 10 domestic and foreign media representatives attended
the meeting and were invited to become social responsibility
observers of CR Power.

In September 2018, we organized the Clean Energy Open
Month Campaign on “Green Development and Better Life”, 36
subsidiaries of the Company participated and held open house
events. A total of 1,735 stakeholders from all walks of life
including community residents, teachers, students, environment
protection volunteers, customers, business partners, government
and media were invited to visit our premises, grasping on-the-
spot understanding of CR Power’s efforts to develop renewable
energy such as wind power, power retail and comprehensive
energy services in response to supply-side reform, supporting
cities by developing innovative waste disposal project. Our power
plants held nearly 100 open house activities throughout the year
and took the initiative to accept the supervision from all walks of
life.
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OUTLOOK FOR 2019

As China continues to strengthen protection for ecological
environment and pushes to promote pollution control, ultra-
high voltage transmission lines and inter-regional power grids
are being commissioned in large scale, strict controls are in place
over the utilization hours of thermal power plants in Central
and Eastern China along the more developed coastal areas, and
increasingly more cross-regional imports of clean energy. The
new energy sector is facing reduction of tariff subsidies for wind
and photovoltaic power generation, grid parity and increased
competition for obtaining permits for new projects. Meanwhile,
as power reform continues to advance, the opening up of power
generation continues to create intense market competition and
challenges for power companies.

We target to accelerate the commissioning of wind power
projects. At present, the Company holds a number of wind
power projects that have been officially approved by the
state. The Company will allocate its resources, adjust its
internal management measures and increase its efforts toward
accelerating the construction of wind power projects, and
strive to create a record-high of newly commissioned wind
power projects within the year. The target is to complete the
commissioning of all approved wind power projects before the
official implementation of grid parity.

16 | China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. ZHEERERAD

=

NFERE

BEE B T E oR £ REIRIR IR - K1 fe

#ERRE  URESEMBEREMAR
BEPRE  PRE{BWERHR0EEE
R NEMANE - MARINERE
RBACKAERBE - #aLIR MR

BRI FELIS BRHEERNERSER
@A [ EBNEFANRETERA  BRA

mt - BEIHEUAIINNEEE bﬂL%‘HiAﬂ]
TSN - MigHFE—FME - EHE
%ﬁﬁnu%buﬁd&mﬂfﬂ °

B IMERREREREE - BRIARIEAR
—HEEEEREXZENRAEEE - A
ABABSER - ARAIFEES NAR
2 2AOMRREEENFAIER  hF

STFRERERBRTENS  NFEER
FHXSIAFELHEBER R ETKEZ
HEREIE B MIREETT ©



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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With continued improvement of national inter-regional
transmission capacity and rapid advancement of power equipment
technology, we plan to seize this opportunity in regards to the
development of renewable energy. Besides our traditional regions,
we will actively develop wind and solar resources in Northern,
Northeastern and Northwestern China to take advantage of the
ultra-high voltage transmission lines and off shore wind resources,
continuously increasing the Company’s mix of clean energy.

Three thermal power plants in Northern China are expected to
be commissioned during the year. The three plants enjoy high
operating efficiency and advanced emission standards. The
commissioning of these plants will further reduce the average coal
consumption and emissions of thermal power in Northern China,
and contribute to the improvement of the local environment.

We will actively push the development of our power retail
and comprehensive energy service business, focus on power
distribution, power sales and energy efficiency management,
and multi-energy complementary power generation based on
market demand. Supported by informatization, digitization and
intelligence, we will continue to expand our customer base, foster
long-term cooperation and strategic cooperation, extend the
value chain and increase the Company’s efficiency.

Over the years, CR Power proactively coped with severe market
situations, persisted in strategic leadership, seized opportunities
and kept abreast with the newest trends. We are progressing
steadily toward our goal.

2019 is the 70th anniversary of the founding of the PRC. As we
stand on this threshold of a historical period and a new stage
of development, we are faced with both new challenges and
new opportunities. We look forward to continuing to work hand
in hand with all stakeholders in facilitating innovations and
changes, attain extraordinary achievements that will leave us with
no regrets, let's make our contribution to another prosperous
century for China Resources!

Li Ru Ge
Chairman of the Board

22 March 2019
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DIRECTORS' PROFILE 54T .

Mr. Li Ru Ge
L EESE

\
I Mr. Li Ru Ge, aged 55, is the Chairman of the Board and a Non-

executive Director of the Company. Mr. Li joined CRH in December

2017 and is the chief financial officer of the China Resources Group.

Prior to that, Mr. Li served as the chief financial officer of the State

Grid Corporation of China from November 2007 to December 2017.

Mr. Li has rich experience in the power industry as he served as general

manager of power plant, fuel procurement company and held many senior

~‘-/ management positions in Shandong Province Power Group Company and

China Guodian Corporation. Mr. Li also served as the vice chairman of Huaxia Bank

Co., Limited from September 2007 to December 2018. Mr. Li is an executive director of the council of China

Association of Chief Financial Officers and is a director of the council of the Accounting Society of China.

Mr. Li holds a Master in Business Administration degree from Nankai University and is a senior accountant in
China.
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Mr. Ge Changxin
\  BE¥%E

| Mr. Ge Changxin, aged 61, is the Vice Chairman of the Board of
| Directors, Executive Director, Senior Vice President of the Company.

He served as the Deputy General Manager of the Coal-fired Power
| 3 Generation Division, Head of the Office of the Board and Head of the

b\ /./ Strategic Development Department of the Company from November 2014
to April 2016. He served as the Deputy General Manager of the Coal-fired

- v Power Generation Division and General Manager of. the South lChina Branch in
. May 2012. He was the General Manager of South China Branch in January 2011
and the General Manager of Guangzhou China Resources Thermal Power Co., Ltd. (B

HEVEABRAR]) from December 2007, and successively served as the Assistant General Manager and Deputy

General Manager of China Resources Power Hubei Co., Ltd. EEHEE It BR A F]) from August 2002 to
November 2007.

~N

Prior to joining the Company, he used to work in Huaibei Guo'an Electric Power Co., Ltd. Mr. Ge holds a
Master in Business Administration degree from Huazhong University of Science and Technology (“HUST").
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Mr. Hu Min
\ S E

Mr. Hu Min, aged 54, is an Executive Director and President of
the Company. From February 2014 to April 2016, he served as a
deputy director of Strategy and Management Department in CRH
and the head of Lean Management Office. From May 2012 to
February 2014, he served as the Vice General Manager of Thermal
Power Division and General Manager of Jiangsu Branch Company.
From May 2010 to May 2012, he worked as an Assistant President
of the Company and a General Manager of Jiangsu Branch Company.
From June 2009 to February 2014, he worked as a Vice Technical Director
and General Manager of Operations Department of the Company. Before joining CRH, he took the roles
consecutively as a general manager of Guangdong Shajiao C Thermal Power Plant, a general manager of
Guangdong Yuehua Power Generation Company Limited, an associate chief engineer of Guangdong Energy
Group Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Guangdong Yudean Group Limited) and the head of its Strategy &
Development Department.

Mr. Hu holds a Bachelor’s degree in Thermal Power Engineering as well as a Master's degree in Engineering
Thermal Physics, both from Chongging University. He obtained his Doctorate Degree in Engineering Thermal
Physics from Zhejiang University. Moreover, he was enrolled in the Guangdong Senior Management Talent
Program and studied in University of Massachusetts Boston. He is also entitled as a Professor-level Senior Engineer.
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Ms. Wang Xiao Bin
\  EMMEzL

\
| Ms. Wang Xiao Bin, aged 51, is an Executive Director, Chief Financial

| Officer and Company Secretary of the Company. Prior to joining the

i Company in July 2003, Ms. Wang was a director of corporate finance
/ of ING Investment Banking, responsible for execution of capital
markets and merger and acquisition transactions in the Asia Pacific
region. She worked for PriceWaterhouse in Australia in the audit and

2 ) business advisory division for five years before joining ING Barings. Ms.
~ _‘_/ Wang is also an independent non-executive director of WorleyParsons Limited,

a company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange.

Ms. Wang is a member of the Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants and holds a graduate
diploma in Applied Finance and Investment from the Securities Institute of Australia and a Bachelor’s degree in
Commerce from Murdoch University in Australia.
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Mr. Chen Ying
\ Bk

\1 Mr. Chen Ying, aged 48, was appointed as a Non-executive Director

| of the Company in June 2012. In May 2012, he was appointed as a

I non-executive director of China Resources Cement Holdings Limited

f ("CR Cement”) and China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited

("CR Beer”) (formerly known as China Resources Enterprise Limited),

/./ and he was appointed as a non-executive director of China Resources

Gas Group Limited (“CR Gas"”) and China Resources Land Limited (“CR

~ _‘_/ ol Land”) in June 2012. These are fellow subsidiaries of the Company and the

shares of these companies are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited ("HKEx"”). He has been the chief strategy officer of CRH since July 2013 and the general

manager of Strategy Management Department of CRH since October 2011. Mr. Chen used to be a non-

executive director of China Vanke Co., Ltd. from March 2013 to June 2017. He used to be a director of China

Resources Double-crane Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“CR Doublecrane”), which is listed on the Shanghai Stock

Exchange, from May 2012 to December 2015, and used to be a director of China Resources Sanjiu Medical &

Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. ("CR Sanjiu”), which is listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, from June 2012 to
December 2015.

~N

Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor’s degree of Architectural Management from the Tsinghua University, China in 1993
and a Master’s degree of Business Administration from University of Oxford, the United Kingdom, in 2007. Mr.
Chen joined CRH in 1993.
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Mr. Wang Yan
\ EEx%E

| Mr. Wang Yan, aged 47, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
| of the Company in August 2014. Mr. Wang joined China Resources
 Company Limited (“CRCL") (formerly known as China Resources
National Corporation) in July 1994. Mr. Wang was appointed as a
director of China Resources Gas Limited in November 2005. He was a
/./ deputy general manager of China Resources Gas (Holdings) Limited from
September 2007 to April 2012. He was a deputy general manager of the
~ _‘_/ o Internal Audit Department of CRH from April 2012 to January 2016 and was
appointed as a general manager in February 2016. He was appointed as a non-
executive director of CR Land, CR Cement and CR Gas, all of which are listed on the Main Board of the HKEX,
in August 2014. He was also appointed as a non-executive director of China Resources Medical Holdings
Company Limited (formerly known as China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Limited) (listed on the
Main Board of the HKEx) in November 2016. Mr. Wang was a non-executive director of CR Beer from August
2014 to April 2016.

N

Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor's degree in Economics from the Finance and Accounting Department, Capital
University of Economics and Business, a Master of Business Administration Degree from the University of South
Australia and is a qualified PRC Certified Accountant.
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Mr. Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung
\ Rk

| Mr. Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung, aged 77, was appointed as an

| Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in December

I 2006. Mr. Ma is a founder and former director of AMA CPA Limited

/ (formerly known as Andrew Ma DFK (CPA) Limited). He is presently

a director of Mayee Management Limited and also a director of

several other private companies. Mr. Ma has more than 40 years’

B experience in the fields of accounting, auditing and finance. He received

~ _‘_/ ol his Bachelor’s degree in Economics from The London School of Economics

and Political Science (University of London) in England. Mr. Ma is a fellow member

of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.

In addition to his directorship in the Company, Mr. Ma is also an independent non-executive director of a
number of companies listed on the HKEx, including Asia Financial Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 00662), C.P.
Pokphand Co. Ltd. (Stock Code: 00043), Chong Hing Bank Limited (Stock Code: 01111), Asiaray Media Group
Limited (Stock Code: 01993) and C-MER Eye Care Holdings Limitied (Stock Code: 03309). Mr. Ma was an
independent non-executive director of Southwest Securities International Securities Limited (formerly known
as Tanrich Financial Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 00812), a company listed on the HKEx, from April 2005 to
January 2015.
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Ms. Elsie Leung Oi-sie
\  RESaL

| Ms. Elsie Leung Oi-sie, aged 79, was appointed as an Independent

| Non-executive Director of the Company in April 2010. Ms. Leung was

I the first secretary for Justice of the Hong Kong Special Administrative

/ Region, as well as a member of the Executive Council of Hong Kong

from July 1997 to October 2005. Ms. Leung was admitted as a solicitor

/./ of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong in 1968. She was a partner of P. H

Sin & Co., a Hong Kong law firm, which amalgamated with the law firm

~ _‘_/ od lu, Lai & Li Solicitors & Notaries in 1993; she was a senior partner with lu, Lai

& Li Solicitors & Notaries from 1993 to 1997. At the end of 2006, she resumed

practice at lu, Lai & Li Solicitors & Notaries. Ms. Leung also serves as an independent non-executive director on

the boards of United Company Rusal Plc, listed on the Main Board of the HKEx, China Life Insurance Company

Limited which is listed on the Main Boards of the HKEx, New York Stock Exchange and Shanghai Stock

Exchange and Petro China Company Limited listed on the New York Stock Exchange, HKEx and Shanghai Stock
Exchange.

N

Ms. Leung served as a member of several government boards and committees, including the Independent
Police Complaints Council, Equal Opportunities Commission, Social Welfare Advisory Committee and Inland
Revenue Board of Review. Ms. Leung was appointed as a delegate of the People’s Congress of Guangdong
Province in 1989. In 1993, she was appointed as a delegate of the 8th National People’s Congress and in
1994 as well as a Hong Kong Affairs Advisor. She had been the Deputy Director of the Hong Kong Basic Law
Committee of the Standing Committee of the National People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of China
between 2006 and 2018.

Apart from being a solicitor of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong, Ms. Leung was qualified as a solicitor in
England and Wales and obtained a Master of Law degree from the University of Hong Kong in 1998.

Ms. Leung was appointed a Justice of the Peace in 1982 and was awarded the Grand Bauhinia Medal in 2002.
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Dr. Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung
\  BReEt

\
,  Dr. Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung, aged 67, was appointed as an

| Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in April 2010.
i Dr. Ch'ien is the chairman and independent non-executive director of
/‘ Hang Seng Bank Limited. Dr. Ch'ien also serves as an independent non-
executive director on the boards of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
/./ Corporation Limited (“HSBC"), Swiss Re Limited and Swiss Re Asia Pte.
Ltd. Dr. Ch'ien was non-executive chairman of MTR Corporation Limited

~ _’_/ od from July 2003 to December 2015.

N

In public service, Dr. Ch'ien is an honorary president and past chairman of the Federation of
Hong Kong Industries. From January 2013 to March 2018, Dr. Ch'ien was a member of the Economic Development
Commission of the Government of the Hong Kong SAR. From January 2008 to January 2018, he was a member
of the Standing Committee of the Tianjin Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference. From 1992 to 1997, Dr. Ch’ien was a member of the Executive Council of Hong Kong, then under
British administration. He was appointed a member of the Executive Council of the Hong Kong SAR on 1 July
1997 and served until June 2002. He was a Hong Kong member of the APEC Business Advisory Council from 2004
to 2009. He was chairman of the Hong Kong/European Union Business Cooperation Committee from 2005 to
January 2012. Dr. Ch’ien was previously chairman of the Advisory Committee on Corruption of the Independent
Commission Against Corruption, the Hong Kong/Japan Business Cooperation Committee, the Industry and
Technology Development Council and the Hong Kong Industrial Technology Centre Corporation Ltd.

Dr. Ch'ien received a Doctoral degree in Economics from the University of Pennsylvania in 1978 and was a Trustee
of the University from 2006 to 2016. Dr. Ch'ien was appointed a Justice of the Peace in 1993 and a Commander in
the Most Excellent Order of the British Empire in 1994. In 1999, he was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star Medal. In
August 2008, Dr. Ch'ien was conferred the honour of Chevalier de I'Ordre du Mérite Agricole of France.
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Mr. Jack So Chak Kwong
\ BBk

\  Mr. Jack So Chak Kwong, aged 74, was appointed as an Independent
|  Non-executive Director of the Company in June 2014. Mr. So
I assumed the chairmanship of the Airport Authority Hong Kong in
/ June 2015. He began his career with the Hong Kong Government and
joined the private sector in 1978, having held various senior positions
in stockbroking, banking and property development. He served as an
executive director of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council from
~ _‘_/ ol 1985 to 1992 and its chairman from 2007 to 2015. He was chairman and
chief executive of the MTR Corporation Limited from 1995 to 2003 and deputy

chairman and group managing director of PCCW Limited from 2003 to 2007.

N

Mr. So is also an independent non-executive director of AIA Group Ltd. and is also a senior advisor to Credit
Suisse, Greater China. He was an independent director of HSBC from 2000 to 2007 and Cathay Pacific Airways
Limited from 2002 to 2015.

Mr. So is the vice chairman of the Hong Kong Philharmonic Society. He served as chairman of the Hong
Kong Film Development Council from 2007 to 2013. Mr. So was a member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference from 2008 to 2018 and was an international business advisor to the Mayor of Beijing.

A Justice of the Peace, Mr. So was awarded the Golden Bauhinia Star and Grand Bauhinia Medal by the Hong
Kong SAR Government in 2011 and 2017 respectively. He received an Honorary Doctorate in Social Science
from the University of Hong Kong in 2011.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE S#REIEZERE) N

Mr. Jiang Lihui
EFEEE

\
I Mr. Jiang Lihui, aged 56, is a Senior Vice President of the Company.

From June 2014 to April 2016, he served as a Senior Vice President

of the Company and Chairman of China Resources Coal (Group)

Co., Ltd. From April 2012 to June 2014, he served as a Senior Vice

President of the Company and a General Manager of Coal Business

/./ Unit. From July 2010 to May 2012, he served as a Deputy General

‘ Manager of China Resources New Energy, an Assistant President of the

Company and a General Manager of Hydropower Business Department. From

July 2009 to March 2011, he served as a Deputy Chief Technical Officer of the

Company. From July 2002 to January 2010, he served as a Deputy General Manager of China Resources Power

Hubei Co., Ltd, a General Manager of Xuzhou Huaxin Power Generation Co., Ltd and a General Manager of

China Resources Hezhou Co., Ltd. From April 1995 to July 2002, he served as a Deputy Chief Engineer and an

Assistant General Manager of China Resources (Xuzhou) Electric Power Co., Ltd. Mr. Jiang holds a Bachelor’s

degree in Electric Automatization from Heilongjiang University of Science and Technology, a Master’'s degree

in Business Administration from HUST and a Master's degree in Business Administration from China Europe
International Business School (“CEIBS”). He also holds the title of Senior Engineer.
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Mr. Zhu Guolin
\  REIRRSEE

| Mr. Zhu Guolin, aged 59, is a Senior Vice President and Finance
‘ | Director of the Company. From May 2012 to April 2016, he served
X . I as a Vice President and Finance Director of the Company; from
- f July 2009 to May 2012, he served as the Deputy Finance Director
and General Manager of the Finance Department of the Company;
from November 2005 to July 2009, he served as a Finance Director of
). Guangzhou China Resources Thermal Power Co., Ltd.; from February 2004
O _‘_/ to November 2005, he served as a deputy general manager of the Corporate
Development Department of CRH, and a director and deputy general manager of
China Resources Development and Investment Co., Ltd.; from November 2001 to February 2004, he served as
the party committee member and vice director of the Department of Foreign Trade and Economic Cooperation
of Yunnan Province; from September 2000 to November 2001, he served as a director and general manager of
China Resources Conic Company Limited; from August 1997 to September 2000, he served as a director and
an assistant general manager of Hong Kong Kang Mao Company Limited (&8 REZEABR/AF]), and was
also a director and general manager of Hong Kong Kang Mao Finance Limited (E&EZ AR A A]); from
July 1985 to August 1997, he was an official of the Foreign Trade and Finance Division under the Finance and
Accounting Department of the Ministry of Foreign Economic Relations and Trade of the PRC (FEI&KZ YT <2 H
HNEBATEER), the Financial Manager of Great Wall Trade Center, Dubai, United Arab Emirates (P B 2§68 7 R4
B S5 0B E6), a deputy director of the State-owned Assets Management Division under the Department of
Foreign Economic Coordination of the Ministry of Foreign Economic Relations and Trade of the PRC (B ¥f5h
KE I E T RE A EEEEE), and a director of the Division of Integrated System Management under the
Planning and Finance Department of the Ministry of Foreign Economic Relations and Trade (¥f4MEE ZB51871 A
LRASIERR). Mr. Zhu holds a Master’'s degree in Business Administration from the University of International
Business and Economics.
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Mr. Zhou Jianbo
\  EslgEE

\

L Mr. Zhou Jianbo, aged 45, is the Senior Vice President of the

[ Company. From August 2015 to January 2018, he served as
the deputy director of the Discipline Inspection and Supervision
Department of CRH, as well as the deputy general manager of China
Resources Vanguard Company Limited (“CR Vanguard”); from January

b\‘ - /./ to October 2018, he served as the senior deputy director of the Discipline
... i o Inspection and Supervision Department of CRH, and the senior deputy
~ N .
"/ general manager of CR Vanguard. Mr. Zhou holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Law
from Jiangnan University.
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Mr. Wang Gaogiang
\  Emmss

L Mr. Wang Gaogiang, aged 49, is a Vice President of the Company.
| From January 2012 to October 2018, he served as a Vice President
and Chief Audit Executive of the Company. From August 2002 to
January 2012, he served as a senior manager and deputy chief officer
of the Audit and Supervision Department of CRH; from August 1992
to February 2000, he served as a manager of the Finance Department
k of CRCL; from March 2000 to July 2002, he served as a manager of the
B ~‘—/ Audit Department of China Resources Logistics Co. Limited (“CR Logistics”).
Mr. Wang has been engaged in financial accounting, internal audit and risk
management for over 20 years and has extensive experience in corporate finance, internal audit, internal
control, risk management and corporate governance. Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor's degree in Economics
from Guangdong University of Foreign Studies, and has obtained the International Certified Internal Auditor
qualification and the PRC Accountant qualification.
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Mr. Ding Yuankui
TEERE

Mr. Ding Yuankui, aged 44, is a Vice President of the Company. From
April 2012 to August 2017, he served as a Vice President and the
Chief Human Resources Officer of the Company. From April 2008
to April 2012, he served as the deputy chief human resources officer
and chief human resources officer of CR Cement. Prior to joining China
Resources, Mr. Ding worked at Mercer and Dong Feng Nissan and was
- responsible for human resources consulting and management. Mr. Ding
i -.—/ graduated from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law in 1996 and from
the School of Economics and Management of Tsinghua University in 2003, with a
Master’s degree in International Business Administration.
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Mr. Zhao Houchang
\  HEEEE

\

L Mr. Zhao Houchang, aged 53, is a Vice President of the Company.
| From May 2012 to April 2016, he served as a Vice General Manager
and Chief Technical Officer of the Thermal Power Division of the
Company; from July 2010 to May 2012, he served as an Executive
Vice President and Chief Technical Officer of the Company; from
August 2009 to July 2010, he served as the Chief Technical Officer and a
General Manager of the Construction Division of the Company; from 2003
i -.—/ to 2009, he served as a General Manager of China Resources Power Henan
Shouyangshan Co., Ltd.; from 2002 to 2003, he served as a Vice General Manager
of China Resources Power (Changshu) Co., Ltd.; and from 1994 to 2002, he successively served as a Deputy
Head of the Engineering Department, Deputy Chief Engineer, Assistant General Manager and Vice General

Manager of China Resources (Xuzhou) Electric Power Co., Ltd. Mr. Zhao holds an MBA degree from CEIBS.
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Mr. Wang Lin
EMEE

\
Mr. Wang Lin, aged 52, is a Vice President of the Company. From
I May 2012 to June 2016, he served as a Vice General Manager of
the Thermal Power Division of the Company; from June 2010 to May
2012, he served as a Vice General Manager of the Jiangsu Branch
of the Company; from March 2009 to June 2010, he served as a Vice
General Manager of the Shanxi Branch of the Company; from July 2005
to March 2009, he served as a Deputy General Manager of China Resources
Power (Jiangsu) Investment Company Limited; from June 2003 to March
2009, he served as the Chief Representative of the Company in Eastern China;
from July 1996 to June 2003, he served as the Chief Representative of Nanjing Office of China Resources
(Xuzhou) Electric Power Co., Ltd.; and from 1982 to July 1996, he worked in Fengxian Fuel Company and
Xuzhou Fuel Corporation in Jiangsu successively. Mr. Wang holds an MBA degree from the School of Business
Administration of Nanjing University.
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Mr. Hou Yongjie
\ AL

L Mr. Hou Yongjie, aged 50, is a Vice President of the Company.
| From May 2016 to August 2017, he was the General Manager of
the Central and Western Region of the Company; from May 2012 to
/‘ May 2016, he was the General Manager of the the Thermal Power
Division of Henan Branch; from January 2011 to May 2012, he was
the Deputy General Manager of the Henan Branch; from September
2010 to January 2011, he served as the Deputy General Manager of Henan
i ~‘—/ Branch and the General Manager of Dengfeng Project as well as the General
Manager of Luore Project; from September 2009 to September 2010, he served
as the General Manager of Shouyangshan Project and the General Manager of Luore project; from October
2004 to September 2009, he successively served as the Deputy General Manager and the General Manager of
Luore Project; from April 2003 to October 2004, he successively served as the Assistant General Manager of
the Production Preparation Division of Dengfeng Project, the General Manager of the Production Preparation
Division, Head of the Power Generation Department, and the Assistant Technical Director. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Hou worked at the Gansu Jingyuan Power Plant.
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Mr. Zhang Gang
\ SR A

\

L Mr. Zhang Gang, aged 42, is a Vice President and General Legal
|  Counsel of the Company. From March 2013 to July 2018, he served
as an Assistant President and General Legal Counsel of the Company.
From February 2009 to March 2013, Mr. Zhang served as the chief
legal director in the Legal Affairs Department at CRH. From April 2004
to September 2009, Mr. Zhang practiced law at Huaxia Assets, Special
Assets Department of CRH and Investment of CRH; and from July 2000
to March 2004, he served successively as the assistant manager of the Legal
Affairs Department at CR Logistics, the assistant personnel officer for the Director
of the Southern China Region, and the assistant general manager of China Resources Courier. Mr. Zhang holds

a Bachelor’s degree in Law from Northwestern University of Politics & Law.
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Mr. Xu Hongbo
\  FPREA

Mr. Xu Hongbo, aged 42, is an Assistant President of the Company and the
General Manager of the Strategic Development Division. From October 2014

: to June 2017, he successively served as a qualified director and assistant

f director of the Supervision Department of CRH. From August 2011 to

/./ October 2014, he successively served as a Senior Manager, Chief Analyst and
A

ssistant Director of the Strategic Development Department of the Company.

o g From May 2004 to July 2011, he successively served as a Qualified Engineer and

~.'/ Senior Manager of China Resources Power (Changshu) Co., Ltd. and Jiangsu Branch of

the Company. Prior to joining the Company, he worked for Yangcheng International Power

Generation Co., Ltd. Mr. Xu holds a Bachelor of Engineering degree in Thermal Engineering from Wuhan University

of Hydraulic and Electric Engineering and a Master of Engineering degree in Electrical Engineering from Tsinghua
University. He also holds the title of Senior Engineer.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present the
Annual Report and the audited financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group principally engages in investing, developing, operating
and managing power plants and coal mine projects in China.
The activities of its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
are set out in Notes 51, 10 and 11 to the financial statements,
respectively.

GROUP PROFIT

The consolidated income statement is set out on page 148 and
shows the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2018.
A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during the
year and the material factors underlying its results and financial
position are provided in the Management's Discussion and
Analysis on pages 61 to 94 of this Annual Report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) is set out in
the sections headed “5-Year Summary”, “Chairman’s Statement”
and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” from pages 2 to
3, pages 9 to 17, and pages 61 to 94 respectively of this Annual
Report and other parts of this report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include, but
are not limited to, operational risks, policy risks, industry risks,
market risks, business risks and financial risks.

Please refer to the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 9 to 17
of this Annual Report for a discussion of the operational, policy,
market and business challenges and uncertainties facing the
Group; “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” on pages 92 to
93 of this Annual Report for a discussion on foreign exchange
rate risk facing the Group; and “Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements” on pages 201 to 221 of this Annual Report
for details of the financial risks facing the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group adheres to environmental sustainability throughout its
business operations. As a responsible corporation, and in line with
the energy and environmental protection strategies of the Chinese
Government, the Group strives to ensure minimal environmental
impacts by committing to conservation of resources, promoting
the development of clean and renewable energy projects and
improving on emission control.

Please refer to the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 9 to 17 of
this Annual Report for a discussion of the Group’s development
in promoting Environmental, Health & Safety (EHS) awareness.

In addition, more details regarding the Group’s performance by
reference to environmental and social-related key performance
indicators and policies, as well as compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which have a significant impact on the Company,
will be provided in the Sustainable Development Report to be
published by the Company pursuant to the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” as set out in Appendix
27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and will be available on the
Company’s website at www.cr-power.com.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Board places emphasis on the Group's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. Updates
on applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the
attention of relevant employees and operation units from time
to time. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
has complied in all material respects with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the operations of
the Group, including the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
the Listing Rules.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

The Group believes that employees are important assets and
their contribution and support are valued at all times. The Group
places importance on the career development of its employees
and organised trainings for employees to facilitate their career
development. In order to promote the work-life balance of the
employees, the Group created a competitive, yet united and
pleasant working environment to encourage improvement and
personal value to enhance their sense of belonging.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Company believes that maintaining good relationships with
stakeholders including customers and suppliers is one of the key
contributors to the Group’s success. The Group has established
stable long-term relationships with a number of customers and
suppliers, and takes active steps to maintain good cooperative
relationships with its customers and suppliers and to strengthen
communication with them.
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DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of HK$0.125 per share of the Company
(“Share”) was paid on 26 October 2018.

The Board resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.203 per Share for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on Friday, 5 July 2019, subject to the approval of
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (the “AGM") to be held on Tuesday, 25 June 2019. The
proposed dividend will be paid on Friday, 26 July 2019 following
approval at the AGM of the Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in Note 6 to
the financial statements.

SHARES ISSUED

Details of the movement in the shares issued by the Company
during the year are set out in Note 22 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company amounted to HK$17,080,310,000
as at 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$21,107,720,000). Movements in
the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 150 to
151 of this Annual Report and Note 50(a) to the financial statements,
respectively.
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BORROWINGS

The total borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2018
amounted to HK$96,675,137,000 (2017: HK$100,922,869,000).
Particulars of borrowings are set out in Note 31 to the financial
statements.

BONDS AND NOTES ISSUED

The Group issued corporate bonds and notes with fixed rates
with face value amounting to RMB12,285,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$14,020,748,000) (2017: RMB16,285,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$19,481,746,000)) as at 31 December 2018, details of which
are set out in Note 31 to the financial statements. Such corporate
bonds and notes were issued in order to meet the Group’'s
general funding requirement, including financing of capital
expenditure and refinancing of debts.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group has accrued HK$121 million for
charitable donations, among which RMB6,066,900 was paid out.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year of 2018 and as at
22 March 2019 are as follows:

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Li Ru Ge (Chairman, appointed on 5 March 2018)
Mr. Chen Ying

Mr. Wang Yan

Executive Directors:

Ms. Zhou Junging (resigned from her role as the Chairman
and Executive Director on 5 March 2018)
Mr. Ge Changxin (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Hu Min (President)
Ms. Wang Xiao Bin  (Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary)
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Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung
Ms. Elsie Leung Oi-sie

Dr. Raymond Ch’ien Kuo Fung
Mr. Jack So Chak Kwong

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors had a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
terminable by the employing company within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

Pursuant to Article 120 of the Company's Articles of Association,
Dr. Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung, Ms. Elsie Leung Oi-sie, Mr.
Wang Yan and Mr. Chen Ying, who are longest in office, shall
retire from office by rotation at the AGM and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors in regard to their
independence to the Company and considers that each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors is independent to the
Company.

As at the date of this report, among the Independent Non-
executive Directors, Mr. Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung was the only
one who has served more than 9 years.

Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this report
are set out on pages 18 to 27 of this Annual Report.

The Executive Directors are entitled to salaries and discretionary
bonuses determined by the Board at its absolute discretion having
regard to the Group's performance and the prevailing market
conditions. The Independent Non-executive Directors are entitled
to director’s fees authorised by shareholders and approved by the
Board by reference to the prevailing market conditions. Details
of Directors’ remuneration are provided under Note 52 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The name of persons who have served on the board of the
subsidiaries of the Company during the year and up to 22 March
2019 is available on the Company’s website at www.cr-power.com.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Group regards the President, the Chief Financial Officer,
Senior Vice Presidents, Vice Presidents and Assistant Presidents of
the Company as members of the senior management team.

The emoluments of the members of the senior management team
who are not Executive Directors are provided in the Corporate
Governance Report on page 116 of this Annual Report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that every
Director shall be indemnified out of the funds of the Company
against all liability incurred by him or her as such Director in
defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which
judgement is given in his or her favour, or in which he or she is
acquitted.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities and
costs associated with defending any proceedings which may be
brought against the Directors of the Company.

MEDIUM TO LONG-TERM PERFORMANCE
EVALUATION INCENTIVE PLAN

As an incentive to retain and motivate the employees, on 25 April
2008 (the “Adoption Date”), the Board resolved to adopt the
“Medium to Long-term Performance Evaluation Incentive Plan”
(the “Plan”) and the Company appointed BOCI-Prudential Trustee
Limited as trustee to this Plan. The Plan was effective for 10 years
and was terminated on 24 April 2018.

Upon termination of the Plan, in 2018, the Company sold 31,319,230
Shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange through the trustee.
The net proceeds amounted to HK$469,969,737, all of which were
transferred to the Company’s account and none were distributed to
staff. As at 31 December 2018, the trustee did not hold any of the
Shares (2017: 31,319,230 Shares).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interest
or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571, Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO")) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code"”), or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein:

(A) The Company

Details of Shares held by the Directors as at 31 December
2018 are as follows:

EENESERS

BRTIXHHESEIN  R_ZE—N\FE+_A
—+—B WEBEBEHARAETBITHA
g RARQBIREEMBEEEZE(GRES
BIZE 571 ZEH M EEED([EFH K
E&BI])E XV EBRRE ) MR - HER
MR EEBEE T AESSIOAR - MAR
BESNIAEERIEXVIEETRNESHH
K ETMBEITAEZETEFR HIIZEST
AI(MZESFR D Mg AR a KRBT » 3k
AREE SR BEIRGISE 352 GF L AZ
IEET M B RC i -

bl

~
N

O B

(A) &RAFE]
R-Z—N\&E+-A=+—0 &=
BANBRHEENT

Percentage of
the total issued

Number of shares of
issued ordinary the Company
shares held Long/short HARAT
Name of Director Capacity BEC®T position BEITRA
E=nE 54 HEBERHAE BR/ KRR BAL
Wang Xiao Bin Beneficial Owner 3,664,560 Long 0.076%
I EnEEA A
Wang Yan Beneficial Owner 44,000 Long 0.001%
TE EREAA e
Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung Beneficial Owner 30,167 Long 0.001%
BERE ESEAA ay=)
Interest of Spouse 4,000 Long 0.000%
fe B o=y
Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung Beneficial Owner 400,000 Long 0.008%
5 RR R EREAA e
Interest of Spouse 100,000 Long 0.002%
foiBHEs oy
Ge Changxin Beneficial Owner 4,828 Long 0.000%
BR BEHEAA A
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(B) China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited (B) #FHMEEERAMR QA ([FHE

(“CR Beer") B 1)
CR Beer is an associated corporation of the Company (as 20180 5N F M EBE (RE
defined under the SFO). Details of shares in CR Beer held by BHEMAEGRMFARTE) EFN=
the Directors as at 31 December 2018 are as follows: E-N\F+ZA=+—HFBEEHE
BERMA BT -
Percentage
of the total
Number of issued shares
issued ordinary of CR Beer
shares held Long/short hEBRE
Name of Director Capacity BEE®RT position 2RITRA
EENR 5% EBREE He/ #e Bo
Wang Yan Beneficial Owner 167,999 Long 0.005%
FE EnEAA e}
(C) China Resources Gas Group Limited (“CR Gas") (CQ) =EHEMKRERERQB(Z=EMR
g1
CR Gas is an associated corporation of the Company (as EHMR AR R EEEE (R
defined under the SFO). Details of shares in CR Gas held by BHELKHAEGROFATE) - ESFRZ
the Directors as at 31 December 2018 are as follows: T \F+A=1+T—BHBEIN
RRMFBEAT :
Percentage
of the total
Number of issued shares
issued ordinary of CR Gas
shares held Long/short HEBRR
Name of Director Capacity BEERT position BEITRA
EEns 5% EBREE He/ RE Bot
Ge Changxin Beneficial Owner 200 Long 0.000%
B EmEAA i

Annual Report 2018 &4R | 43



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEHRE
(D) China Resources Land Limited (“CR Land") (D) HEHEBEMBRAT(EHEM )
CR Land is an associated corporation of the Company (as EHEMDAQGMMEEEBE(RE
defined under the SFO). Details of shares in CR Land held by BENMHAEKRAFATE) EFHN=
the Directors as at 31 December 2018 are as follows: T \F+A=T—HBHBERE
IR EFIFAT
Percentage
of the total
Number of issued shares
issued ordinary of CR Land
shares held Long/short HERHE M
Name of Director Capacity BEE®T position 2RITRA
EEnA 5% EBEREE BRe KA Btk
Chen Ying Beneficial Owner 500,000 Long 0.007%
PR & EnEA A e
(E) China Resources Cement Holdings Limited (“CR (E) FEHARZERARD A (FEHK
Cement”) fel)
CR Cement is an associated corporation of the Company (as EHACR A A B WM E B (R
defined under the SFO). Details of shares in CR Cement held BHELBAEBROFAAE) - EERZ
by the Directors as at 31 December 2018 are as follows: T-N\F+ZA=+T—BFEFEHK
TR EFIFAT
Percentage
of the total
Number of issued shares
issued ordinary of CR Cement
shares held Long/short HEEAKR
Name of Director Capacity BEE®T position 2RITRA
EEpR 5% EBREE "R/ KRR Btk
Chen Ying Beneficial Owner 230,000 Long 0.003%
3 EnEBA e}
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(F) China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited (“CR (F) EHEEEBARLE([FEHE

Pharmaceutical”) #])
CR Pharmaceutical is an associated corporation of the =BT AR RINEEEE (R
Company (as defined under the SFO). Details of shares in BELBEGROIMATE) - EFNZ
CR Pharmaceutical held by the Directors as at 31 December T-N\FTA=+T—HSEEHR
2018 are as follows: BEROHFBET :
Percentage
of the total
issued shares
Number of of CR
issued ordinary Pharmaceutical
shares held Long/short M
Name of Director Capacity BEEE®RT position 2RITRA
EENR 5% EBREE HR/ KRR Btk
Wang Yan Interest of Spouse 2,000 Long 0.000%
FE [ e}
ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO ESEERDNESNLHE

ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT SECURITIES

During the year, neither had the Company, the Company's HF R @ NAFKERARKEMNBRRFR
holding company nor their subsidiaries entered into any ZANFEMELXMEITEMLZH  BEAR
arrangement to enable the Directors or the senior management of FIEESREREENEEEABBEER
the Company or their associates to acquire benefits by means of N2 B EAJABHHEE D K ETFEFH
the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities of, the Company or &Rz @ MERNES LS RERE -
any associated corporation and none of the Directors and senior S EMMEB R+ /\GA THFL - BEEEM
management, or their spouse and children under the age of 18, REARRFEFMEF » NUENREE
had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or {T{FZ5#EF) o

had exercised any such right during the year.
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TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
which the Company or its subsidiaries, parent company or fellow
subsidiaries were a party and in which a Director or his or her
connected entities had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or during the year.

In addition, saved for the Equity Transfer Agreement entered
between China Resources Coal Holdings Company Limited (Z£)H
EEERARART) (“CR Coal”) and CRH on 23 November 2018,
pursuant to which CR Coal has agreed to sell to CRH the entire
equity interest of AACI SAADEC (HK) Holdings Limited (“AACI
HK"), there was no any other contract of significance between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and its controlling
shareholder (or any of its subsidiaries) and there was no contract
of significance for the provision of services to the Company
or its subsidiaries by its controlling shareholder (or any of its
subsidiaries) subsisting during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, no equity-linked
agreements were entered by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors R TNXFHEEN  R-_ZE—N\F+A
were not aware of any other persons (other than a Director =+—H ' E2FUTTMBTAMEAMAL
or chief executive, whose interests are disclosed in the section (ZEESHTETHA BRI - MIFIEIHEZ
headed “Directors’ Interests in Securities” above) who had an R EX[EZENBHFER]—HEHE)R
interest or short position in the Shares or underlying shares of the AR AIA MM SABREI D IER BIEE S &
Company as required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be  HiE &5 336 1578 & 7c A RZ 6P il &9 4
recorded referred to therein: WmIORE

Approximate
percentage of the
issued shares

of the Company

as at
Number of 31 December 2018
issued ordinary R=Z-N\%F
shares held  Long/short +t=-RA=+—H
Name of shareholder Note Capacity BFENSRT position {EARAQTEBRITRHG
BRREB Mz &6 EEREE Her %R BAED
CRH (Power) Limited 1 Beneficial owner 3,027,003,337 Long 62.93%
EnBEAA e
CRH 1 Interest in a controlled 3,027,905,337 Long 62.94%
EHEE corporation HE
R—RXEENER
CRC Bluesky Limited 1 Interest in a controlled 3,027,905,337 Long 62.94%
corporation weE
R—REZEEEN#ER
China Resources Co., Limited* 1 Interest in a controlled  3,027,905,337 Long 62.94%
("CRC") corporation TgeE
EEROERAA R—REEEE RS
(MZERkM5 1)
CRCL 1 Interest in a controlled  3,027,905,337 Long 62.94%
B £ corporation HE

R—FK X EE S
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Note: 1. CRH (Power) Limited is a subsidiary of CRH, which is a 100% subsidiary of
CRC Bluesky Limited, which is in turn owned as to 100% by CRC, which
is in turn held as to 100% by CRCL. Each of CRH, CRCL, CRC and CRC
Bluesky Limited is deemed by virtue of Part XV of the SFO to have the same
interests in 3,027,003,337 Shares as those of CRH (Power) Limited. CRH,
through another wholly-owned subsidiary, is interested in 902,000 Shares
of the Company. Accordingly, each of CRCL, CRC and CRC Bluesky Limited
is deemed by virtue of Part XV of the SFO to have the same interests in the
902,000 Shares as those of CRH.

* For translation purposes only

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group conducted certain transactions with
connected persons which constituted continuing connected
transactions or connected transactions for the Group under
the Listing Rules. Details of those connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions which are subject to the
reporting requirements under Rule 14A.71 of the Listing Rules are
summarised below.
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Connected Transactions

(1)

On 17 August 2018, CR Coal and CRH entered into the
Equity Transfer Framework Agreement, pursuant to which,
CR Coal agrees to sell the entire shareholding of AACI HK
held by it to CRH or its designated wholly-owned subsidiary,
with consideration to be determined based on the valuation
issued by an independent third party valuer. AACI HK holds
51% equity interest of Shanxi China Resources Daning
Energy Co., Ltd. (“CR Daning”). CR Coal and CRH agreed
to jointly appoint a PRC qualified appraisal institution
recognised by both parties to issue an independent valuation
report of AACI HK as at 30 June 2018, based on which
the parties will determine the transaction consideration
after arm’s length negotiations. On 23 November 2018,
CR Coal entered into the Equity Transfer Agreement with
AACI SAADEC Holdings Limited (the “Purchaser”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CRH, pursuant to which CR Coal has
agreed to sell, and the Purchaser has agreed to purchase,
the entire equity interest of AACI HK for a consideration
of approximately RMB3,485.7 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,926.6 million). Subsequently, the
Company has convened and held the Extraordinary General
Meeting on 17 December 2018. The transaction was duly
approved with approximately 100% of the votes casted
in favour of the resolution. At the time of the transaction
CRH is the controlling shareholder of the Company, CRH
and its subsidiaries are therefore a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Details of these connected
transactions are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 19 August 2018 and 23 November 2018.

BAE

X5

RZZE—NENA+LH - #THEEE
EREBREBREE RIELR HE
£

EHREBABYFE=HHEEEAE
BEER AEFEERAEBFEER
HiEETHWE2EFARAHEAAC HK
100% M # - AACI HK$: & 1L 78 #
BAERRERAR(TEBRE])
51% A&t - EHEEHEHEER
E OERAESHAREINFREIEA
AERFTEHEE B AEAAC HKR
2018F 6 A0 MBI HERSE
BIEEER KEFRATEERE
EXSHGHEHB - R_T—\FE+—A
—+=A - EEFELREREENS
EMEB AT - AACI SAADEL Holdings
Limited ((BEH ) BB RIEE E I HE
Bt EEEXERELE  KEA
2 R B8 E AACI HK 100% M -
REHAEANRY3 48578 8 (4
LHR#43,9266B8EBL) c Hig -
AKRABRIR-_ZE—NF+-_A++tHA
FARBITIRREENIAE - REZR S
HESL100% ZEERMEERNE
B EREERRSERAARRTIE
AERREE - mARIE ETAR RN - EEEE
FETFTRAALARFTNBEAL - Z
ZHEIFNFBIRARTRE
—NFENATNABM_E—N\F+—
AZ+=ZR%EHRE -
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(2)

On 31 March 2018, Shouzheng Tendering (Hong Kong)
Company Limited (“Shouzheng”) entered into the Share
Transfer Agreement with CRC to dispose of its 100%
shareholding interest in Shouzheng Tendering Company
Limited (SFIEHRZER A A]) for an initial consideration
of RMB15,181,200 (approximately HK$18,823,500) (the
“Disposal”). The total consideration has been arrived at after
arm’s length negotiations between CRC and the Company
based on the independent valuation report prepared by
Vocation (Beijing) International Asset Valuation Co., Ltd..
The Company recorded a gain of RMB737,000 from the
Disposal. The Board intends to apply the proceeds from the
Disposal as working capital. At the time of the transaction
CRC is the controlling shareholder of the Company and thus
a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Details of these connected transactions are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 3 April 2018.
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On 1 February 2018, (1) Shenzhen China Resources Power
Investment Company Limited* (RIITHEEREGRAA)
(“CRP Investment (Shenzhen)”) entered into the Limited
Partnership Agreement with Hanwei Runneng Equity
Investment (Shantou) Company Limited* (&8 se AL ER
ZCWEE) BB AE) (“"Hanwei Runneng”), Guoxin Guorun
(Hangzhou) Investment Management Company Limited*
(B BE(MINIEEEEARAF) (“Guoxin Guorun”),
China Resources Power Project Service Co., Ltd.* (¥EH
BNHTRERKABRAF) ("CRP Project Service”), China
Resources Venture Capital (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.* (ZEH
wEAIZECFRYNERAT) (“CR Venture Capital”) and the
other limited partners in relation to the establishment of
Guangdong Run Chuang New Energy Shares Investment
Fund Partnership (Limited Partnership)* (& EAI#F6ER
BEREERSAEBEX(ERAR)) (the "Fund”); (2) CRP
Investment (Shenzhen), Shenzhen China Resources Capital
Equity Investment Company Limited* (GF3IIITHE & AR 4
®EBRAR]) (formerly known as Shenzhen Hanwei Huaji
Equity Investment Company Limited* CFIIIT % &L EEEK
EREAFR DA ("CRH Capital”)) and the Fund entered
into the Industry Consultancy Agreement in relation to
the provision of industry consulting service to the Fund
by CRP Investment (Shenzhen); and (3) China Resources
Power Investment Company Limited* (FEBEEHNREBRL
7)) ("CRP Investment”) and the Fund entered into the Right
of First Refusal Agreement, pursuant to which the Fund
agreed to grant a right of first refusal to CRP Investment
or any of its affiliates on transfer of any of its interests in
a project company invested by the Fund. The duration of
the Fund shall be five years commencing from the date
of the incorporation of the Fund, which may be extended
pursuant to the terms of the Limited Partnership Agreement,
but in any event, the duration of the Fund shall not be
more than seven years. The Fund is principally engaged in
equity investment and industry investment, approved by the
relevant government authorities. Pursuant to the Limited
Partnership Agreement, the size of the Fund will be no
more than RMB3.0 billion. Any profit generated shall be
distributed to every Superior Limited Partner on the 21t day
of June and December of each day of calendar year during
the term of the Fund. As at the time of transaction, CRH
is interested in 62.94% of the total issued share capital of
the Company and is a controlling shareholder. Each of CRH
Capital and Hanwei Runneng is a subsidiary of CRH and is an
associate of CRH. Under the Listing Rules, CRH Capital and
Hanwei Runneng are connected persons of the Company.
Details of these connected transactions are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 1 February 2018.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

(1)

On 20 December 2018, the Company entered into the
Property Lease Framework Agreement 2018 with CRH for
a term of two years from 1 January 2019 to 31 December
2020. Pursuant to the Property Lease Framework Agreement
2018, the Group may lease certain properties (including
buildings and land) and purchase relevant management
services in relation to some of the properties from CRH
and its associates. The proposed annual caps for the
transactions contemplated under the Property Lease
Framework Agreement 2018 for each of the years ending 31
December 2019 and 2020 and RMB70 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$84 million) and RMB85 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$102 million). At the time of the
transaction, CRH is interested in approximately 62.94%
of the interest of the Company and is the controlling
shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, CRH is a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Details of the continuing connected transaction are set out
in the announcement of the Company dated 20 December
2018.

On 21 December 2016, the Company and CR Cement
entered into the Power Supply Framework Agreement,
pursuant to which the Company shall supply electricity to
CR Cement, its subsidiaries or associates, including but not
limited to through direct power supply and agency power
supply, for a term of one year from 1 January 2017 to 31
December 2017. At the time of the transaction, CRH, which
was interested in approximately 62.98% of the equity of the
Company, is the controlling shareholder of the Company. CR
Cement is an associate of CRH and therefore a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Details of
the continuing connected transaction are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 21 December 2016. On 1
November 2017, the Company and CR Cement entered into
a new Power Supply Framework Agreement for a term of
three years from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020. At
the time of the transaction, CRH, which was interested in
approximately 62.94% of the equity of the Company, is the
controlling shareholder of the Company. CR Cement is an
associate of CRH and therefore a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Details of the continuing
connected transaction are set out in the Company's
announcement dated 1 November 2017. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, the transaction amounts with
CR Cement, its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
are HK$271.6 million in respect of the retail power agency
services provided and power supply of the Group.
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3)

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company
dated 22 November 2010, 19 December 2013 and 18
December 2015, respectively in relation to, among other
things, the entering of the Strategic Cooperation Agreement.
The Company has entered into another new strategic
cooperation agreement (“CR Bank Strategic Cooperation
Agreement 2018") with CR Bank on 24 December 2018
whereby new annual caps were revised taking into account
of the Group’s liquidity, business needs and the expected
level of services to be received from CR Bank under the CR
Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2018. The term of
the CR Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2018 is 3
years commencing from 1 January 2019 to 31 December
2021. Under the CR Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement
2018, CR Bank provides deposit services bearing the same
interest and on the same terms and conditions as would
apply to a similar deposit made by any other customer
of the bank, which rates assessed with reference to the
rates published by the People’s Bank of China. CR Bank
also provides commercial banking services, including credit
services (such as commercial loans, bill acceptance and
discount services and account receivable factoring services),
settlement services, agency services (such as entrustment
loan, insurance and custodian services), cash management
services, financial advisory services, and other financial
services as agreed by the parties. These services will be
provided on normal commercial terms and such service fees
shall not be higher than the net discounted fees offered to
other preferred customers of CR Bank. The maximum daily
deposit cap, inclusive of interest payable, and the maximum
daily cap of financial services and products to be provided
by CR Bank to the Group during the term of the CR Bank
Strategic Cooperation Agreement 2015 are HK$2.4 billion
and HK$1.2 billion respectively. For the period between 1
January 2018 and 31 December 2018, the maximum daily
deposit amount was approximately HK$1.2 billion. Details
of the continuing connected transaction are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 24 December 2018.
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In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that save for these transactions, other continuing
connected transactions of the Company conducted during
the year ended 31 December 2018, were exempted from
shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and that the
above continuing connected transactions:

(i) have been entered into in the ordinary and usual course of
the Company’s business;

(i) have been entered into on normal commercial terms or
better; and

(iii) have been entered into on terms that are fair and reasonable
for and in the interest of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole, and in accordance with the terms of the
agreements governing such transactions.

Based on work performed, PricewaterhouseCoopers, the
Company’s independent auditor, has confirmed in a letter to the
Board to the effect that the above transactions:

(a) have received the approval of the Board,

(b) are in accordance with the pricing policies of the Company
if the transactions involve provision of goods or services by
the Company;

(c) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing the transactions; and

(d) have not exceeded the caps.

Save for the following transactions, none of the related party
transactions contained in Note 47 to the financial statements falls
under the definition of “connected transactions” or “continuing
connected transactions” within the meaning of the Listing Rules:

(1) The two trademark licence agreements dated 17 October
2003 entered into between the Company and CRCL and
CRH respectively, under which the Company was granted
irrevocable, royalty free and non-exclusive licences to use
certain trademarks and the rights to sub-license the same
to any member of the Group in consideration of nominal
amount of HK$1 each.
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(2)

Significant transactions with related parties during the year:

Name of related company

BEARER

China Resources Leasing Co., Ltd.

ERHEEERAA

Taiyuan China Resources Coal Co., Ltd.

AREERZBRAR

China Resources Energy Services Co., Ltd.

ERRERRBBRAR

CR Bank
= 8RTT

CRH
ESEERL)

CRC
EREMH

Certain subsidiaries of CRH
EHEBNETHBAR

Certain joint ventures of CR Cement

ERNENETRERE

Certain associates of CR Cement

ERNENETHEDRR

Relationship
B&

Fellow subsidiary
BELENS!
Associate
B

Fellow subsidiary

EES NG

Fellow subsidiary

BES) PG

Intermediate holding
company
R A
Intermediate holding
company
R AR
Fellow subsidiaries

EES-ING

Joint ventures of
fellow subsidiaries
RZAMBRAZ
BETE
Associates of
fellow subsidiaries
EEL1ENG 4

BrE b

(2) FREABTNEARS :

2018

—E-N\E
Nature of transactions HK$'000
REME TERT
Providing maintenance service 485
RHAEERE
Interest income 124,235
FEHA
Sales of coal 1,078
HE R IK
Purchase of coal 20,299
BEER
Providing agency service fee 25
RERERBE
Contract environment 33,930

management fee, contract
energy management fee
and exclusive operation fee
BRREERER SR
ERERAREITEEER
Interest expense 20
MEEM
Interest income 4,248
MEWA
Interest expense 17,091

FERR

Disposal of a subsidiary 18,894
HERBERA

Supply of direct power 148

BHE

Providing retail power 14,247
agency services

RUTEE HRERSE

Purchase of limestone powder 109

BEOKAK

Rental expense 8,927

Heg&H

Providing retail power 659

agency services
RUTEE HRERS

Providing retail power 453

agency services
RETEBHRERS
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2018
—E-N\F
Name of related company Relationship Nature of transactions HK$’000
BEARNER B& RHIHE FHT
Center Subsidiaries of CR Land Fellow Subsidiaries Rental expense 31,979
EEEMNETHERR EES)=VN=] He&HA
Transportation fee 35
RBE
Guangzhou Runxin Energy Joint venture Sales of heat 58,038
Development Co.,Ltd. BEPE HE Bae
EMBFRAZEERAR Maintenance expenses 11
HEEM
Sales of by-products 2,257
HE BIEm
Providing agency service fee 246
REREREE
Jiangsu Zhenjiang Power Associate Sales of electricity 51,079
Generator Co., Ltd. TS HESE
TEFFHIEERRAOA Sales of coal 300,468
HE B K
Providing agency service fee 26,781
RUERIEREE
Purchase of fuel 81
BEME
Interest expense 2,719
FEER
Providing maintenance service 11,337
ROt ERY
China Resources (Xuzhou) Associate Sales of coal 29,961
Electric Power Co., Ltd. BERE HE B IK
FMNEEENERAA Sales of electricity 88,863
HEE N
Providing agency service fee 20,927
RUERIBIRE E
Interest expense 2,179
FEER
Providing maintenance service 31,392
Rt 4 E RS
Sales of materials 39,272
HEWE
Nanjing Yanjiang Heating Associate Sales of heat 90,648
Power Co.,Ltd. BEhE HE AR
MR IRNERAR Service income 2,548
ARG 4 A
Rental income 168
MelA
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2018
—E-N\F
Name of related company Relationship Nature of transactions HK$'000
MEATEH B& RHME FH
Resources J Energy Investment Ltd. Joint venture Sales of coal 759,441
AR RRERRLA BEME HER K
Providing maintenance service 14,092
R E RS
Service income 27,655
FRESUA
Interest expense 3,361
MEEM
Purchase of fuel 242,202
BEME
Sales of electricity 969
HEE
Providing agency service fee 650
RUERIERGE
Tianjin Zhonghai CR Marine Joint venture Purchase of coal transportation 109,481
R GE BEbHE service
R B K ) PR S
CR Power Northeast Power Joint venture Providing agency service fee 172
Engineering Co.,Ltd. BETE REREREE
EHRIENTIRERDA Maintenance expense 148,821
HEER
Interest expense 370
MEER
Purchase of materials 2,313
BEVH
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(3) Compensation to the Company’s key management forms
part of the “Key Management Compensation” described in
note 47(b) to the Consolidated Financial Statements. These
are continuing connected transactions exempted from the
connected transaction requirements under Rule 14A.76 or
14A.95 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
prescribed in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the
connected transactions and continuing connected transactions
entered into by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2018.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers together
accounted for 21.20% of the Group’s total purchases during
the year. The five largest suppliers are HEHEEEGR QA
(Shenhua Trading Group Co., Ltd.) (5.96%), LL7E®ZIRIF6ER G
R AR AT (Shanxi Lu’An Environmental Energy Development
Co., Ltd.) (4.45%), Datong Coal Mine Group Co., Ltd. (4.18%),
PR R S E BB AR A A (China Coal Sales and Transportation
Company Limited) and its subsidiaries (3.61%) and Shaanxi Coal
Selling and Transportation (Group) Corporation (3.00%).

Sales to the Group's five largest customers together accounted for
59.56% of the Group's total turnover during the year. The five
largest customers are BI48 L& & & /172 7 (Jiangsu Electric Power
Company) (17.41%) (formerly known as JT#& E 1727 (Jiangsu
Electric Power Company)), ERE4A 7 (Guangdong Power Grid
Company) (13.45%), B4 @& E A7 (Henan Electric Power
Company) (11.13%) (formerly known as ;A& & )27 (Henan
Provincial Power Company)), BI#49H1t4&E A5 (Hubei Electric
Power Company) (10.24%) (formerly known as #it&E QA
(Hubei Provincial Electric Power Company)) and B#Mdt& & H A
Al (Hebei Electric Power Company) (7.33%) (formerly known as
A4t & E /172 ) (Hebei Electric Power Corporation)).

At no time during the year did a Director, a close associate
of a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued shares) have any interest in any of the Group’s
five largest suppliers or customers.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in “the Medium to Long-term Performance
Evaluation Incentive Plan” as disclosed in this Annual Report, the
Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem
any listed securities of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2018.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has applied all of the principles of the Corporate
Governance Code (the”Code”) continued in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules and complied with the code provisions of the
Code. The Company also adopted most of the recommended best
practices in the said Code.

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices of the Company is
set out in Corporate Governance Report on page 95 to 135 of
this Annual Report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS (“MODEL CODE")

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of
all Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

The financial statements have been reviewed by the Audit and
Risk Committee. In 2018, three of the four Audit and Risk
Committee members are Independent Non-executive Directors,
with the Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee having
appropriate professional qualifications and experience in financial
matters.
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AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018 was audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming AGM of the
Company to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditors
of the Company.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the
date of this Annual Report, there is sufficient public float of not
less than 25% of the Company's issued shares as required under
the Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board
China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited

Li Ru Ge
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

« BEEWmRM

BUSINESS REVIEW FOR 2018

The Group is engaged in the development, construction and
operation of power plants, including large-scale efficient coal-
fired generation units, wind farms, hydro-electric plants, gas-
fired power plants and photovoltaic power projects as well as
construction and operation of coal mines.

In 2018, due to slow capacity growth in thermal power
generation and higher demand for electricity, the average
utilisation hours for thermal generation units in China increased
by 152 hours or 3.6% year-on-year to 4,361 hours. In addition
to the power plants of the Group being large-scale efficient
generation units, the Group also adopts internal management
measures, enabling the Group to outperform every year. The
average full-load equivalent utilisation hours of the subsidiary
coal-fired power plants of the Group which were operational
for the full year of 2018 reached 4,976 hours, representing an
increase of 0.2% as compared to 4,964 hours in 2017, and
exceeding the national average utilisation hours for thermal
power plants by 615 hours.

In 2018, the average utilisation hours for wind power generation
units in China reached 2,095 hours. Wind farms of the Group are
mainly located in regions with low curtailment including eastern,
central and southern China. The average full-load equivalent
utilisation hours of our wind farms which were operational for
the full year of 2018 reached 2,314 hours, exceeding the national
average level for wind power generation units by 219 hours.
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Generating capacity

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’'s total attributable
operational generation capacity was 37,438MW, of which,
attributable operational generation capacity of the Group's coal-
fired power plants amounted to 29,815MW, accounting for
79.6%, and wind, hydro, photovoltaic and gas-fired capacity
together accounting for 20.4%, representing an increase of 3.0
percentage points from the end of 2017.

During the year, the Group accelerated the development and
construction of clean renewable energy. During the year, the
generation capacity of newly commissioned wind and photovoltaic
power projects reached 1,187MW and 173MW respectively.
At the end of 2018, the Group’s attributable operational
wind power generation capacity reached 6,816MW and wind
power capacity under construction was 2,864MW,; attributable
operational photovoltaic generation capacity reached 448MW and
photovoltaic capacity under construction was 8MW, attributable
operational hydro-electric generation capacity reached 280MW
and hydro-electric capacity under construction was 107MW.

During the year, the Group did not commission any new coal-
fired power units.
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Gross and net generation volume

The total gross generation volume and the total net generation
volume of the Group’s subsidiary power plants amounted to
166,342,161MWh and 157,018,636MWh respectively in 2018,
both representing an increase of 2.3% as compared to 2017,
excluding the gross generation volume and the net generation
volume of CR Liuzhi Power Plant, which was reclassified as an
associate in December 2017.

In 2018, the total net generation volume of subsidiary power
plants that participated in direct power supply (including bilateral
long-term agreements and on-grid competitive bidding) amounted
to 70,246,030MWh. The average tariff (exclusive of tax) of the
direct power supply volumes was at a discount of approximately
9.7% as compared with the average approved on-grid tariff,
which was lower than that for 2017.

Fuel costs

In 2018, due to the policy of reducing overcapacity in the coal
industry, improvement in macro-economic growth and impact of
restrictions on coal imports, the domestic coal prices remained
at high levels throughout the year. Average unit fuel cost of the
Group’s subsidiary coal-fired power plants was RMB220.5/MWh,
representing a year-on-year increase of 3.1%. Average unit cost
of standard coal was RMB729.1/tonne, representing an increase
of 4.0% as compared to 2017.

In 2018, the average net generation standard coal consumption
rate of the Group’s subsidiary coal-fired power plants was
299.54g/kWh, representing a decrease of 3.62g/kWh or 1.2%
from 303.16g/kWh in 2017.

Environmental expenses

In 2018, the total amount of environmental expenses incurred
by the Group’s subsidiary coal-fired power plants was RMB113
million, representing an increase of 6.8% as compared to 2017,
which was mainly due to the change in the levy rates of some
regions after the tax-for-fee reform.

As at the end of 2018, 24,643MW of two coal-fired units of the
Group completed the installation for ultra-low emission reduction,
accounting for approximately 98% of the attributable operational
generation capacity of our subsidiary coal-fired power plants,
further reducing the emission of sulfur dioxide, nitrogen oxide
and particulates.
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Coal mine operations

In 2018, the subsidiary and associate coal mines of the Group
produced a total of approximately 15.11 million tonnes of coal
(aggregation of each mine’s production volume), representing an
increase of 0.6% as compared to 2017, of which, 13.02 million
tonnes and 2.09 million tonnes of coal were produced by the
subsidiary coal mines and the associate coal mines, respectively.

During the year, the Group transferred to Guoyuan Company,
the equity interest in China Resources Coal and the four coal
companies under China Resources Coal, namely Ruihua Energy,
CR Liansheng, CR Shanxi and CR Taiyuan, and the Group also
transferred its equity interest in CR Daning to CR Holdings
thereby withdrawing from its entire coal operations in Shanxi.

Capital expenditure

In 2018, the cash capital expenditure of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$17.56 billion, of which, HK$9.68 billion was
used in the construction of wind farms, photovoltaic power plants
and hydro-electric plants, HK$1.61 billion was used in upgrading
the operating coal-fired power units for ultra-low emission
reduction, safety and energy-saving and heat supply technology,
approximately HK$5.24 billion was used in the construction of
coal-fired power units, approximately HK$1.04 billion was used in
the upgrade and construction of coal mines.

PROSPECTS FOR 2019 AND THE FUTURE

The power consumption in China in 2019 is expected to maintain
a low to medium growth rate, with an overall ample power
supply nationwide and more excessive supply in some regions.

In 2019, total volume of eliminated overcapacity of coal is
expected to be reduced and advanced production capacity will be
released into the market to ensure sufficient supply of coal. The
growth in demand for coal will be affected by energy structure
adjustments therefore is expected to slow down. Supply and
demand of coal is transitioning from a period of tightness to a
more balanced environment, as such, coal prices are expected to
come down.
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The Group expects to commission an attributable operational
generation of 1,857MW of coal-fired and gas-fired power
generation units including: 1x1,000MW ultra-supercritical
generation unit in Caofeidian (Phase Il), Hebei, 51% owned by
the Group; 1x350MW heat and power co-generation unit in
Yundong, Hebei, 90% owned by the Group; 2x660MW ultra-
supercritical coal-fired power generation units of Wujianfang in
Inner Mongolia, 70% owned by the Group; and 108MW gas-
distributed engergy project in Changzhou, Jiangsu, 100% owned
by the Group.

The Chinese Government has established the policy of on-grid
tariff reduction to achieve grid-parity for wind power by 2020.
In 2019, the Group will focus on continuing to accelerate the
development and construction of wind power projects, with the
aim of completing its major construction projects by the end
of 2021. The Group targets to grow its clean energy business,
primarily in wind power, to reach approximately 28% of its total
attributable operational generation capacity by 2020.

As the Chinese power industry is under reform and will continue
to upgrade, the Group will actively monitor the market and
seek for development opportunities arising from the gradual
liberalisation of the power retail business and new power
distribution networks, and focus on the development of its power
retail business and integrated energy services such as energy
efficiency services and energy storage.

The cash capital expenditure of the Group for 2019 is expected
to be approximately HK$19.0 billion, including approximately
HK$13.7 billion for the construction of wind farms, photovoltaic
power plants and hydro-electric power plants; approximately
HK$1.3 billion for technical upgrades such as energy saving and
efficiency improvement of coal-fired power units; approximately
HK$3.0 billion for the construction of coal-fired power units;
and approximately HK$1.0 billion for the transformation and
construction of coal mines. The Group will control the pace of
its capital expenditure based on macro-economic conditions of
China, in particular domestic demand and supply of electricity,
government policies for energy and related industries and the
Group's strategies, and make prompt and necessary adjustments
based on external market conditions and general policies of the
government.
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OPERATING RESULTS WS K

Our audited operating results for the years ended 31 December # E2018F 12 A31HIFFE MK EFEX
2018 are as follows: REEBT -

Consolidated Income Statement &R

HZ2018F 12831 ALEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FETT
Turnover EET 76,940,125 73,311,677
Operating expenses SN
Fuels B EERERLE)]  (38,071,827)
Repairs and maintenance HIE U (2,039,174) (1,848,321)
Depreciation and amortisation 7 & B 5 GEEPIEEEN  (10,507,422)
Employee benefit expenses EBRMAX (6,068,230) (5,177,763)
Consumables IR (1,136,328) (1,032,152)
Impairment losses VEREREEN (962,004) (850,665)
Tax and surcharge i & KB a0 (1,385,656) (1,163,242)
Others EAb (3,993,848) (4,163,098)
Total operating expenses HEEC N (AubiT0kr))  (62,814,490)
Other income HE A 2,613,340 2,335,498
Net loss on disposal of certain subsidiaries  HEEERED HLET
in coal mining segment RIE=EPNGI) S bR (2,121,569) —
Other gains/(losses) - net HFE,(Bk) —F58 91,441 (352,687)
Operating profit &R 11,348,285 12,479,998
Finance costs B & A (4,314,685) (3,991,498)
Share of results of associates JE(HEE A DS 223,638 136,448
Share of results of joint ventures A EDEES 53,937 (104,558)
Profit before income tax BR At B A 7,311,175 8,520,390
Income tax expenses FIsti & A (2,286,302) (2,901,686)
Profit for the year FERFE 5,024,873 5,618,704
Profit for the year attributable to: FANEEBER
Owners of the Company ZA/NCIEZ =N 3,950,435 4,623,323
Non-controlling interests FEPE MR 1,074,438 995,381
5,024,873 5,618,704
Earnings per share attributable to owners FRNREBRARBHEAZ
of the Company for the year BRx &
— Basic — &R (GUODEEV-PA (HK$)0.978 7T
— Diluted —#E (GLONEEN-F (HK$)0.97%87T
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BHFEEBAR

HZEZ2018F 12831 ALEE

Profit for the year

F AR

Other comprehensive income:
Items that may be reclassified to
profit or loss
Currency translation differences
Share of other comprehensive income of
investments accounted for using the
equity method
Release to profit or loss in relation to
disposal of subsidiaries
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets, net of tax
ltems that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
Changes in fair value of FVOCI, net of tax

Hi 2 EEA -
Al EFT 7 R E 1B e R A

b =5
FE(G R e AR B E W
Hitp#r e Wan

BN B A 7S iEas

AHHESREENR
EBEZ3(FR)
TREEFT D HEE R s A H

WAR B2 8 EBFHA
Hiphr A Was 2 MEE
AR EELD(FiE)

Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax

FREMEEBRARRE(HRR)

Total comprehensive income for the year, FABREEBRALRE
net of tax

Attributable to: HER
Owners of the Company ZA/NCIE Z N
Non-controlling interests FEPES) MR

Total comprehensive income for the year FAZEWALRLLE

==

2018
—F-N\F
HK$000
FEx
5,024,873

(4,578,808)

(206,700)

(818,797)

(5,295,661)
(270,788)
(1,171,366)

900,578

(270,788)
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HK$'000
FHET

5,618,704

5,750,623

190,355
(2,549)

(33,642)

5,904,787
11,523,491
10,299,555

1,223,936

11,523,491
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EHEERER
20185128318

Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2018

2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
FAET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - B REE LIPS 152,334,653
Prepaid lease payments FENHEENIA 3,437,135 3,537,380
Mining rights RrEE CELREN 15,301,970
Exploration and resources rights BIRERE 216,025 162,310
Long term receivables and prepayment R HAE I &% R BATE N BRIE
for non-current assets 11,521,984 5,093,455
Investments in associates Nl = 0L 9,480,198 8,747,317
Investments in joint ventures RE & hENER 3,678,437 3,660,368
Loans to a joint venture company me & tEEN — 41,590
Amounts due from a joint venture company W& &b EFIR = 142,566
Goodwill S 1,287,142 1,626,560
Deferred income tax assets BEPISTHEE 882,182 946,782
Financial assets at fair value through WAREBEFEEZEFA
other comprehensive income (FVOCI) HEMiralammemERE 1,877,311 —
Available-for-sale investments At ERE — 1,516,177
Loans to an FVOCI investee company MAAAEBEFER
BEGT AR AR
BRI E N RIS R 126,331 —
Loans to an available-for-sale A A] B BRIk & A A
investee company B3 — 149,937
Loans to non-controlling shareholders of FIME A RIFEE SRR B K
a subsidiary 14,266 14,954

AP LHEER 193,276,019

Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 3,295,536 3,205,152
Trade receivables, other receivables and FEMBRFR - HMh R U FRIE K&

prepayments SCENE/CE WALERCEIE 16,006,853
Loans to associates M EE N 33,137 1,158,256
Loans to joint ventures mEEtEEN 45,652 255,889

Loans to an FVOCI investee company MAAAEBEFEBEEEH)

T AHAMARS WA

WIRE R EER 306,631 —

Loans to an available-for-sale A A] B MR & A A
investee company B — 303,893

Loans to non-controlling shareholders ) BT /8 A R FE R I 1 AR R
of a subsidiary =g N 36,521 —
Amounts due from associates JFE WA BSE i 1> 2 5K 32,637 466,885
Amounts due from joint ventures JBUA & EFRIA 42,473 25,006
Amounts due from other related companies  JEUH th#8iE A &) 18 66,063 2,649
Pledged and restricted bank deposits B IR R Z R EIR1T1F 5K 214,281 890,182
Cash and cash equivalents RERFASEEYD 7,977,153 5,381,686
29,949,074 27,696,451
Total assets REE LW FERIGAE 220,972,470
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EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EERAE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company A R#EA AFE(LERS

Share capital
Other reserves
Retained earnings

(RN
H b
TREE A

Non-controlling interests

TR a

Total equity BRER

LIABILITIES =N

Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Borrowings BE
Contract liabilities aRAaE
Deferred income tax liabilities BEEMSHARE
Deferred income EEWA
Retirement and other long-term FEFH R K H Ath = HA

employee benefit obligations 8 TRABA
Current liabilities REBEE

Trade payables, other payables
and accruals
Contract liabilities
Amounts due to associates
Amounts due to joint ventures
Amounts due to other related companies

FERTIRFR ~ HAbREATRUIR
K EsH &

aRAE

AR e ]

FEf & EREFIA

FE T EL (b BEE 1~ R FRIA

Income tax payable FERFT1SBIIR
Borrowings g

Total liabilities wes

Total equity and liabilities wmERREE

22,316,710
9,078,976
38,739,628

70,135,314
7,149,297

77,284,611

69,210,171
531,755
778,517
779,275

56,729

71,356,447

28,253,761

1,128,165
1,370,208
648,770
292,310
423,929
27,464,966

59,582,109

130,938,556

208,223,167
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2017
—T—+tF
HK$'000
TAET

22,341,736
13,618,598
39,253,485

75,213,819
5,528,061

80,741,880

68,761,886

2,576,356
1,060,334

224,604

72,623,180

32,181,836

629,919
317,077
1,440,535
877,060
32,160,983

67,607,410
140,230,590

220,972,470
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EHBEERER
HZE2018F 12831 ALEE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
T )\F a2
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAETT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETEELNRERE
Profit before income tax B P15 554 BT A 7,311,175 8,520,390
Adjustments for: FEE -
Depreciation for property, Y% - BB MRRENITE
plant and equipment 10,665,813 10,015,238
Amortisation of mining rights PRURHE B 4 8 388,425 396,292
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments AN EE IR 98,676 95,892
Impairment charges on property, M - E RZREREZS
plant and equipment 434,496 728,239
Impairment charges/(reversal) on TR HRERIBERE,
prepaid lease payments CRE#E) 86,165 (2,112)
Impairment charges on mining rights ERAEME R (B 2 &) 100,658 99,808
Impairment charges on goodwill EEYEAEE 298,100 —
Impairment (reversal)/charges on inventories FERECRERRD ) EHE (10,369) 28,984

Provision for/(reversal of) impairment BERREERE, O ERE)
of doubtful accounts 52,954 (4,254)

Exchange (gains)/losses B3, (Wzs), 18Kk (60,880) 193,456
Interest expenses FERX 4,314,685 3,991,498
Interest income R B2 UA (414,113) (310,854)
Share of results of associates RGBS P EEE (223,638) (136,448)
Share of results of joint ventures EhEaREEA (53,937) 104,558
Dividends received from BRI B ERERE
available-for-sale investments (189,572)
Dividends received from FVOCI BWARAREEFER
FE)FT AEMERE WA
TRIEERE (212,993) —
Net losses on disposal of property, HEME - HERZEN
plant and equipment BB 5 74,281 363,925
Net gains on disposal of prepaid HERNHEERBEN Y
lease payments FER (YAPL)] —
Net losses/(gains) on disposal HEWBAREE,
of subsidiaries (Yezs) #58 2,019,094 (143,965)
Net losses on disposal of other HEEMERITEEEFE
equity investments 133,065
Changes in working capital: LEESEE
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE(gmn), R (465,077) 135,281
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables, FEUNBR TR « H b U IE &
other receivables and prepayments A RIER LD, (1) 1,273,153 (1,852,116)
Decrease in trade payables, other payables JEfTRFR - EAth FEATRIE K
and accruals EETERR D (4,814,258) (840,489)
(Decrease)/increase in retirement and other JEEHRIK N EMmREE TEF
long-term employee benefit obligations BRA (R A>) /38 0 (167,875) 52,962
Income tax paid B FTEH (PREINLP)) (2,817,758)
NET CASH INFLOWS FROM RETEREEN
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BRERAFHE 18,096,764 ERRERTZIPL
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CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Dividends received from associates

Dividends received from available-for-sale
investments

Dividend received from FVOCI

Interest received

Decrease in term deposits

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment,
prepaid lease payments, mining rights and
exploration and resources rights

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment and prepaid
lease payments

Net proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries

Loans repaid by/(loans to) associates

Loans repaid by/(loans to) joint ventures
(Loans to)/loans repaid by other related parties

Additional investment made into FVOCI

REFHELENRERE
BB L RES
EWAIHEERERE

531,507

BEWARREBEFEAEZS
FEAEMERS Wt
TREERE

B2 UH B

TE BT OB

BEWE - WEMEE -
BEAHEEE
RIBHE M B REN R

HEWE  BE - REM

212,673
307,825
37,996

(16,884,456)

MR ERBEMNATERIE
337,031
HEKMB ARSI FRE 8,371,942
BETEEEER
(MEETEER) 143,161
BEDEEEERS
(MEETLEER) 113,000

(s BERE 7T E50),
H b BgHE 5 (EE &
FAARREEFELZS
FEAEMAR S Wt

(39,880)

TRIEEMNBEIMEE (851)
Capital contributions into associates MEtE TR (725,228)
Capital contributions into joint ventures mE&atEFE (100,548)
Cash outflow on acquisition of interest e B B B8 A R 2 Y
in a subsidiary Wemb FEE (4,923)
Government grants related to assets B = ME 9 BT /A 111,074
NET CASH OUTFLOWS FROM REBHEEMN
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RERHFHE (7.589,677)
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2017
—T—+tF
HK$'000
TAET
908,581
218,593

212,399
82,229

(15,527,187)

239,401

445,824

(654,872)

(118,507)

19,919

(530,382)
(61,494)

44,987

(14,720,509)
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CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from new bank borrowings
Repayment of bank borrowings
Redemption of corporate bonds and notes
Proceeds from issuance of shares upon
exercise of options
Proceeds from disposal of shares held for
Share Award Scheme
Proceeds from disposal of interests
in a subsidiary without loss of control
Capital contributions to acquisition of
additional interest in a subsidiary
Capital contributions from non-controlling
interests
Advances from associates
Advances from/(repayment of advances to)
joint ventures
Repayment of advances to other
related companies
(Repayment of advances to)/advances
from an intermediate holding company
Advances from/(repayment of advances to)
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries

Interest paid
Dividends paid to owners of the Company
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders

MEETHELENRERE

MERITEE
BERITEE

BLORRESFMER
BT {0 R B BT TR D

PTG 5IR

5 R RS BIBTS IR 15 R0

P1SFRIA

aef=—{iRpEEPNCIL 5
(R BRI IR 4 ) PRS0
B Y 2 )3 SRR
REat > TR FR
FEEBIME S A

Ba kBN
PANF T
A E1E

({83

m]rrﬁ

—~~

R H M RRRE
REER),/

i3
FNH

(EEPREIEK

%:&FA/
EEEPERN)

GIE-TN

mh R R AR X B EA R

Pl 88 2 B RO IR A

HX%:&E’A/

(BEMBARR
FEFERR AR R EATR)

ERFE

BIRTAAEHER ARE
EATHE A A FEIE R AR R

of subsidiaries B E

NET CASH OUTFLOWS FROM METHELANBEESRHEERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND HEeERBESEEYIEINFEE
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHNRERBEEEEY
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EXCHANGE (LOSSES)/GAINS ER(EX) W

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERBAERBEEEEY

AT THE END OF THE YEAR
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56,192,679
(50,617,562)
(4,516,360)

469,970

650,068

(1,042)

1,008,653
289,949

394,042
(455,411)
(812,104)

13,599
(4,757,071)

(4,184,668)

(1,119,931)

(7,445,189)

3,061,898

5,381,686
(466,431)

7,977,153

2017
—T—tF
HK$'000
TAET

38,788,104
(32,909,672)

33,954

55,184

497,611
107,090

(517,812)
(34,718)
800,102
(5,052)
(4,090,291)
(4,185,088)

(1,770,857)

(3,231,445)

610,066

4,347,022
424,598

5,381,686
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Overview

Net Profit for 2018 amounted to approximately HK$3,950 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 14.6% from 2017.

Basis of preparation of financial statements and principal
accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of FVOCl/available-for-sale investments which are carried at fair
value.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. In addition, the financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622, the Laws of Hong Kong).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had net current liabilities
of approximately HK$29,633 million. The Board is of the opinion
that, taking into account the available banking credit facilities
undrawn by the Group as well as the current operating conditions
of the Group, the Group has sufficient working capital to meet its
current needs (at least for the next 12 months from the balance
sheet date). Therefore, these financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

Es
BE

2018 % FII;E #4939.50 B T » #2017
FRIEH14.6% °

MBHRRNEREERTESTTHR

BHPBHMRIRBEL KL RS - L3
RonBEFEAEFH T ARMEE KE
MEeMEE /FIHEERECARFEE
SRR ) M E A T E I ERT -

B HRREBRERTESHMASRMANE
BB REERE - L - BHRERE
BERBARIMERRARES LMMA
(TEMRADRBEEPE22EFTER
FEDIRT AR E BB IR -

KEBR2018F12A31BEERDE
BEFEA29633EB L - EFERE
48 EIR IS A B) A MR 1T IR S A & AR
M AEBEERHEEESEMNERA
(BB RBRBAEZELRK12EA)
MEZ - Al PEBREABEBELEE
HERE o
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Changes in accounting standards and disclosures

Except as described below, the accounting policies applied
are consistent with those accounting policies as described and
applied in the annual financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017.

(@) New and amended standards, effective for financial
years beginning on or after 1 January 2018:

e  HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

e HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

e Amendment to HKFRS 2 “Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions”

e  Amendment to HKFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts”

e Amendment to HKFRS 1 “First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards”

e Amendment to HKAS 28 “Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures”

e Amendment to HKAS 40 “Transfer of Investment Property”

e HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 22 “Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration”

The Group used modified retrospective approach while adopting

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 with all impact adjusted to the opening
balance sheet without restating comparative information.

N4

N4
YN

N

FHEENZBREE

Br NPT E SN - FTERAR 2 EIBUR BB
HE2017FE 1283 BT FEFENFEER
SRR N FE B 5T IR

(@) FTRZLIETER  R2018F181
Bl 2 BRIBMBI BUEREER
s AU MEERFIORI&mMIT A

s EHAMBKMEEUFISHITFEHN
Yk |

s EHEMBMEERNE2HUEFTAN)
(AR XAV R S D 8 MG & |

\

s BABYUBME
[RER G 4]

HERIEA4FRUEFTA)

s FHEMBRMEERFEIRUEITAN)
[BREFME BB E L ]

. E%A?PEW%ZSﬁ( ERIARRE

REFERERAELE

o BEGHEAFEIAORUBITRNIRE
YES

s AAMBHEEBZEGE 2254
B RBNRE]

AEBERNBEVHRELERNFEIHRLE
MR EERIE 15RFEBELEY
% BIAREEFNEERBRARE
3 8 5 51 L BB
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The impact from the adoption of HKFRS 9 is summarised below:

(1)

Classification and measurement - Available-for-sale
investments of the Group are reclassified as financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

Impairment on financial assets — Impairment provisions of
HK$316,105,000 for other receivables are made through the
opening retained earnings;

The impact from adoption of HKFRS 15 is summarised below:

(1

Classification and measurement — Advances received from
customers are reclassified from “Trade payables, Other
payables and Accruals” to “Contract Liabilities”

New and amended standards that have been issued but
not effective for financial year beginning on 1 January
2018 and have not been adopted early by the Group

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 “Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture”

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group expects to recognise
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities on 1 January 2019.
The Group’s financial performance is not expected to be
materially impacted by the adoption of HKFRS 16. Further
update of the impact will be provided in the interim report
for the six months ending 30 June 2019.

HKFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts”

Amendment to HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 23 “Uncertainty over
Income Tax Treatments”

RNE BB ISR
m -

R 9 SRR B

(1) HEREHE - AEEOTLMERE
EH S PR AMIE B BB
ARfEA RS RERE

) eRMEERE -—EMEKRZIERN
316,105,000 8 TR ERE B BT
TURBEBMEEL

R B BT BERELERFE 1S ER
g

(1) NBRFTE-KREETFPONBEKFIEATS
TR RRSR - B b & A BB M e &t
ERIEHDBERIAREAE] -

REEERRERMN2018F1A1
ARFABNIBFECHEMEERE
AR R AERT 22 R

s AAYUBMEEAFI0HELELS
AHERE28(EATA)REFRAE
BEbRAAEEELHANEEHRSE
HEEBR

s FABYBHEERF 1655 HE ]

REEFEFHNR —FE-NF—H—H
ERERAREEMMERE - YEFE
R EERE16RNRMAIAH T
SHUBRRELEATE - ABY
ERE2019F P HRETE TR

E':Eo

s BREMBHEEAF1IRIREBA
#7]

s AX(ERMHHERBEZES)RE
235 (ERTA) [ RSBl 2 1) T e
EE ]
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Turnover represents revenue received and receivable arising on
sales of electricity, coal and heat supply, net of value-added tax,
during the year.

EXRRDIBER

LERBEFANBEEES - BR MMM
B WA e i) 0 (R ERIB E TR IR) -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAETT
Sales of electricity BENHE AFOOEWENN 64,013,900
Of which: Sales of power generated from Hep: NEREEHE
thermal power plants 56,886,301 56,532,142
Sales of power generated from AIEAREREBHE
renewable energy 9,114,929 7,481,758
Heat supply Hae e 4,808,207 3,763,647
Sales of coal BRI H & 6,130,688 5,534,130
76,940,125 73,311,677

The Group’'s turnover for 2018 was HK$76,940 million,
representing a 4.9% increase from HK$73,312 million in 2017,
mainly attributable to (1) a year-on-year increase of 25.4% in the
sales of electricity from subsidiary renewable power plants, (2) a
year-on-year increase of 24.2% in the sales of heat supply, and
(3) a year-on-year increase of 12.7% in the selling price of coal.

The Group was mainly engaged in three business segments -
thermal power (inclusive of coal-fired and gas-fired power plants),
renewable energy (inclusive of wind farms, hydro-electric and
photovoltaic power projects) and coal mining in 2018.

1%

2018F * AL B M & ¥ % £769.401%
BT 201757331218 # T £ Tt
49% FEZERHARN)MNBIBERRSE
MEBERLL FF25.4%  QEHER
L EH242% 0 RQ3)EREEBIKFRL
EFH12.7% -

AEE2018FFERE=([EED I —

Aﬁ%&*(@%%kﬁ*ﬁﬂ%ﬁ*ﬁ) aJ

RER(BIERNEE KNBEERK
fé*)&k%ﬁ)%ﬁ%?" o
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SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS DENARER

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by IZRED DI RNEB U A K ELE ST
reportable segments: W

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZ2018F12A31HILEE

Thermal  Renewable Coal
power energy mining Eliminations Total

K& TBERR 8 B R i At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THRT TRT TRT TERT

Segment revenue 2 EA
External sales MBS E 61,694,508 9,114,929 6,130,688 — 76,940,125
Inter-segment sales AHEEE - - 140,617 (140,617) —
Total @it 61,694,508 9,114,929 6,271,305 (140,617) 76,940,125
Segment profit 72BN 7,403,850 4,665,171 2,436,690 14,505,711
Unallocated corporate expenses RO EEEHR (1,826,318)
Interest income FEHA 414,113
Losses on disposal of Shanxi HELRARKEESR
Coal Mining Assets (2,121,569)
Gains on disposal of other HEE R RE RS
equity investments 102,475

Finance costs MBER (4,314,685)
Share of results of associates EEHErEEE 223,638
Share of results of joint ventures [ELAEDEELE 53,937
Dividend income from FVOC| l«X’D\foﬁf nJriE_

lllll H‘I—AE{ l"T\

Hﬁlﬁnﬂ’]fﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ

R BHA 212,993
Exchange gains B 5 s
Profit before tax FR B B 7,311,175
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. DEPFHE R B TIHKEEE °

| | [ /4 o 5
O [ ]
®°o
I R \ o
| b

Annual Report 2018 3R | 77



MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIEE w21

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ2017F12A318LFE
Thermal Renewable Coal
power energy mining  Eliminations Total
KE  ABERER FRIEFIR B @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TEL TAL

Segment revenue AEUA

External sales INEBSHE 60,295,789 7,481,758 5,534,130 — 73,311,677

Inter-segment sales DEEHE — — 118,931 (118,931) —
Total @t 60,295,789 7,481,758 5,653,061 (118,931) 73,311,677
Segment profit AEHE 6,538,715 4,154,059 2,896,483 — 13,589,257
Unallocated corporate expenses K DEMEER (1,427,129)
Interest income FEWA 310,854
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries 1 &M BA AR 143,965
Losses on disposals of other HERMERRERE

equity investments (133,065)
Finance costs BER (3,991,498)
Share of results of associates e 136,448
Share of results of joint ventures EHAECEEE (104,558)
Dividend income from AHERERSKA

available-for-sale investments 189,572
Exchange losses P 5 E1E (193,456)
Profit before tax BR 7RI 71 8,520,390
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Geographical information

Substantially all of the Group’s non-current assets are located in
the PRC, and operations for the year were substantially carried
out in the PRC.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses mainly comprise fuels, repairs and
maintenance, depreciation and amortisation, employee benefit
expenses, consumables, tax and surcharge, impairment loss,
and other operating expenses. Other operating expenses
include production safety expenses of coal, office rent, water
charges, production maintenance fees, utility expenses and other
management expenses. Operating expenses in 2018 amounted
to HK$66,175 million, representing an increase of 5.3% from
HK$62,814 million in 2017.

Fuels for 2018 amounted to approximately HK$39,437 million,
representing an increase of HK$1,365 million or 3.6% from
HK$38,072 million for 2017, mainly due to a 3.1% increase in
unit fuel cost.

Repairs and maintenance expenses increased by approximately
HK$191 million or 10.3% to approximately HK$2,039 million,
mainly attributable to an increase in the number of generation
units under repair and maintenance in 2018 as compared with
2017.

Depreciation and amortisation increased by approximately
HK$645 million or 6.1% to HK$11,153 million, mainly due to the
newly commissioned wind and photovoltaic power projects of the
Group.

Employee benefit expenses increased by approximately HK$890
million or 17.2% to HK$6,068 million from approximately
HK$5,178 million in 2017, mainly due to the contribution
obligation for corporate annuities programme, a defined
contribution retirement plan, starting from current year and the
increase in staff costs for newly commissioned projects.

Tax and surcharge increased by HK$222 million or 19.1% from
HK$1,163 million in 2017 to HK$1,386 million, mainly due to
an increase in coal price, an increase in resource tax paid by
subsidiary coal mines and the environmental protection tax set by
the State with effect from 2018.

b33 & R

AEBBRHDIFRBDEELNTE - M
REFNLENRETBZNPBET

EERA

KEN RN EBEMEIAE - #IE%
ECTEHBE - BINA MRE
&M REEK S UWREMEEK
Ko @& ABTERERLEEES
MAEME  KE HEHE - -FHHE U
MEMEREERS - 2018 F KL KA
£661.7518 %8 7T 2017 F #628.14
AT EFA53%

2018 F WA R AR ) /2394 .37 BT -
82017 F #380.72 8B L1 hN13.6518
BILH3.6% BRTEXEHHIN TERE
AR EBEAMEIR AR EF3.1%

o

HIEMBEERA EFAH1911EE T
103% £ #2039 B TER2HR
2018 F L HEM AR B X BB EFH AT
#hn e

WEHEBEBERNRTANIEINL6.45EFE
T 6.1% 2 111.53BF T TERASE
BEFTIRENREMYCRIEEFTE -

BTRHABE2017F451.78E BT L7
#1890 B L 17.2% ° £60.6818 5
T BRTEXREEFHIN  TEEHRRAFEH
RELECEFETE(—EBRTHEHIEK
FENHAREBEFEURHIEEER ALKR
N o

e RWMME2017 FH11.631E 5 i
222 B T 519.1%  £13.8618 8
T EERHAREELFA  TBEERE
BB IRFIE N - A K B 2018 F £ K
RARBUORRT -
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Impairment loss increased by 13.1% from approximately HK$851
million in 2017 to approximately HK$962 million, mainly
including: (1) impairment provisions made for power assets of
approximately HK$777 million, which mainly included impairment
provisions of HK$298 million made for goodwill of China
Resources Power Gucheng and Shenhai Power Plants, provisions
of HK$127 million made for the capital already invested in two
discontinued hydropower projects, and impairment provisions
made for obsolete environmental protection, safety and energy
saving facilities as a result of technological upgrades; (2)
impairment provisions of approximately HK$185 million made for
coal mine assets, which were mainly provisions for impairment in
connection with the proposed shut-down of Hunan Coal Mine.

Other operating expenses in 2018 amounted to approximately
HK$3,994 million, representing a decrease of HK$169 million or
4.1% as compared with HK$4,163 million in 2017, mainly due to
reclassification of discharge fees to “tax and surcharge” after the
fee-to-tax reform. Other operating expenses mainly included other
production costs for power operations, such as water charges
and utility expenses, in an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$1,684 million; other production costs of coal operations, such
as production safety fees and production maintenance fees, in an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$1,164 million; and other
administration expenses such as office rent, building management
fees, professional fees, transportation costs and other
administrative fees, in an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$1,146 million.

Other income and other gains — net

In 2018, other income amounted to approximately HK$2,613
million, representing an increase of 11.9% from approximately
HK$2,335 million in 2017, mainly attributable to an increase
in income from sales of by-products and an increase in interest
income. Other income for the year mainly included revenue from
sales of by-products of approximately HK$758 million, receipt
of government grants and subsidies of approximately HK$755
million, interest income of approximately HK$414 million,
dividend income of approximately HK$213 million and income
from heat network connection fees of approximately HK$205
million.
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BEB K B2017F 48511 E T £H
13.1% E2#49.62B BT TEBHE : (1)
BHEEMIERELN7T77ES T £ 2
EHEREHDHEHALEEHNEER
HE298EEB T HEFIEAZEAME
KEBEBERAWNER1.27EEBT TN
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MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIEEN w1

Other gains - net were approximately HK$91 million, mainly
including gains on disposal of equity interest in Fuyang project
amounted to HK$93 million, charity donations of HK$121 million,
exchange gains of HK$61 million and income from insurance
claims amounted to HK$31 million.

During the year, the Group transferred to Guoyuan Company the
equity interest in China Resources Coal and the equity interests
in Ruihua Energy, CR Liansheng, CR Shanxi and CR Taiyuan under
China Resources Coal at a consideration of RMB1, and at the
same time the Group's shareholder loans and accounts receivable
due from the above companies were transferred to a company
under Guoyuan Company for a consideration of RMB11,000
million, thereby the Group recorded the loss of approximately
HK$3,038 million on the transfers; the Group transferred
its equity interest in CR Daning to its parent company at a
consideration of RMB3,486 million, and a profit of approximately
HK$917 million has been recorded. The net loss on disposal
of the above coal asset transfers amounted to approximately
HK$2,122 million.

Operating profit

Operating profit represents profit from subsidiaries before
deduction of finance costs, income tax expenses and non-
controlling interests. Operating profit amounted to approximately
HK$11,348 million for 2018, representing a decrease of 9.1%
from HK$12,480 million for 2017. The decrease in operating
profit was mainly due to the net loss on disposal of coal assets by
the Group during the year.

Excluding the loss on disposal of coal assets, the operating profit
of the Group for 2018 would be approximately HK$13,470
million, representing an increase of HK$990 million or 7.9% from
2017. This was mainly due to (1) contribution of earnings from
newly commissioned wind power projects; (2) appreciation in the
exchange rate of RMB against Hong Kong dollar; but the increase
was partially offset by the increase in unit fuel cost of electricity
sales from subsidiary coal-fired power plants of the Group.
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Finance costs

Finance costs amounted to approximately HK$4,315 million in
2018, representing an increase of HK$323 million or 8.1% from
HK$3,991 million in 2017, mainly due to the increase in bank and
other borrowings of the Group and the rising average borrowing
interest rate during the year.

MBER

2018 F BB AL BA3N5EB T &
2017 H39.91 BB T N3.231EE T
%8.1%  TEEHRFALRNEBAIRTT
NEMEEE FAULRFEFHEER X L
T o

Interest on bank and other borrowings RITREMEEF S
Interest on corporate bonds NEMEFFE
Interests on loans to related parties R 7 B R A

Others HA

Less: Interest capitalised in property,
plant and equipment

RBERCFB

2018 2017
TE)\F et
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FET
4,211,098 3,585,454
785,349 803,024
17,091 —
106,769 91,254
5,120,307 4,479,732
(805,622) (488,234)
4,314,685 3,991,498

Share of results of associates

Share of results of associates increased by 63.9% to HK$224
million in 2018 from HK$136 million in 2017, mainly due to
recovery in the earnings of associate coal-fired power plants.

Share of results of joint ventures

Share of results of joint ventures in 2018 was approximately
HK$54 million as compared with a loss of HK$105 million
recorded in 2017, which was mainly attributable to the turn-
around of Hezhou Power Plant in Guangxi from loss to profit due
to the increase in utilization hours.

N4
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N
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FEIL B bR EE

2018 F BB E D EXEE B224EE
JC B2017 F1.36 B8 L% K63.9% °
TERHRNETHEERCERTIOFH -

LGB hRER

2018 F MG AEEEELNB0SLESR
JC M2017FE AEE1.05881L T2
EETEABMEE/MEN A/ NF_ EAR
EAEA -
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Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses for 2018 amounted to approximately
HK$2,286 million, representing a decrease of HK$615 million
or 21.2% from approximately HK$2,902 million in 2017, mainly
attributable to less amount of dividend withholding tax due
to less amount of profit distributed by subsidiaries to overseas
shareholders.

Details of the income tax expenses for the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017 are set out below:

FrisHiER

2018 F EMFISHE A A 52286185
TC 0 2017 F 4929.021B B TR 4 6.15
BT 21.2% TERHRETFAF
B TRIREIND AL - B BRI RUR D o

HE2018F K2017F 12 A31 B IFFE
HETSH BB BEyImT

2017
—ET—tF
HK$'000
FH&TT

Current income tax — PRC enterprise
income tax
Deferred income tax

EEMEH
EXEPT SR

EHAEHEA-TE

2,437,137
(150,835)

3,129,034
(227,348)

2,286,302 2,901,686

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group had no taxable profit or incurred tax losses in Hong Kong
for both years.

The PRC enterprise income tax has been calculated based on the
estimated assessable profits in accordance with the relevant tax
rates applicable to the subsidiaries in the PRC.

(@)
o

AR A SR E R W ([l 5 2 AR &S I AL
ARMANBRELER - WA EREEF
SRR -

FRECEXMEHERBERRTEMNER
AR ARBE IR R IR R ERRAEA & -
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Operating profit for the year FRE&E RS

2018 2017
= LI T+
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Operating profit for the year has been FRELENEE MR
arrived after deducting the following items: T3)&IE -
Directors’ remuneration BExMe
— Fees —1B% 1,335
— Salaries and bonus —TENES 23,133
— Pension costs —RIREAR 156
15,273 24,624
Wages, salaries and bonus IERES 5,042,559 4,395,857
Pension costs, excluding directors — retirement RIRKA » TEIFEEE —
benefit schemes RIKAEF 5T 2 1,034,681 624,206
Employee termination benefits RRBFK A (24,283) 133,076
Total staff costs BIKA42%E 6,068,230 5,177,763
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TERT A E SR IEEE G 98,676 95,892
Amortisation of mining rights PR 388,425 396,292
Auditor’s remuneration Z SRR BN <5 13,124 12,056
Cost of inventories recognised as FERAERBEES L
operating expenses 40,562,857 39,132,963
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥1% - E LR EITE NI EAER 10,015,238
Impairment loss on property, M~ WE M EREREEX
plant and equipment 434,496 728,239
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment AN FIERERE,
on prepaid lease payments (#E) 86,165 (2,112)
Impairment loss on mining rights BRI ER X 100,658 99,808
Impairment loss on goodwill EENEAEREES 298,100 —
(Reversal of)/provision for FEBEEE) EH
impairment of inventories (10,369) 28,984
Provision for/(reversal of) bad debts ZIRER(BE) 52,954 (4,254)
Operating lease payments on land T REFHLEHEE
and buildings TEfRTRIE 143,812 133,496
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BB RIR 2T

And after adding the following items:
Dividend income from FVOCI

Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments

Government grant

Dividend income

Sales of scrap materials

Service income from heat connection contracts

Net exchange gains/(losses)
(included in other gains/(losses))

Net (losses)/gains on disposal of investment in
subsidiaries (included in other gains/(losses))

Net losses on disposal of other equity
investments (included in other gains/(losses))

Net loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment (included in other gains/(losses))

Net gains on disposal of prepaid lease
payments (included in other gains/(losses))

REFFATHIEE :
KAEUAREEFELZS
FEAEMAR S W
TR EER B EMA
KAEAHEERENRBKA

212,993

755,495
414,113
757,782
205,070

B B
FEHA
HEERRBRA
P S e as, (HRK) 38
(EBRREREM
Flis/ (%K)
HEMEARIREF
(#B#) W (ERRE
REMFE,(8%K)
HE R EFELR
(EBRREREM
Flig,/ (%K)
HEME - BENEE
MERFE(E 8RR
REMAE,(18%K)
HERNEE BN WS
FRE(DBRNEMD

60,880

(2,019,094)

(74,281)

Flfs,($BK) 67,129
Expenses capitalised in construction in progress: IRERE TIRANENENER :
Other staff costs E 8 TR 442,571
Pension costs HEZY DN 41,464
Depreciation and amortisation PrE B B 74,137

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

As a result of the above, profit attributable to owners of the
Company decreased from approximately HK$4,623 million in
2017 to approximately HK$3,950 million in 2018, representing a

year-on-year decrease of 14.6%.

RRBEB ARG

Annual Report 2018 %3k | 85

2017
—T—+tF
HK$'000
TAET

189,572
785,581
310,854
600,707
333,227

(193,456)

143,965

(133,065)

(363,925)

439,761
30,912
41,966

MR EIE - NARESE ARBMLFE
2017 F 4946231 B L& £ 2018 F 4
395018 7T AR 14.6% °
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Earnings per share BRER

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share ZARQFI#HEA ABGNSRERRESHF
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the RIEBEUTERE :
following data:

2018 2017

—z-nr [EEEEEE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAETT

Profit attributable to owners of the Company N2 BI#EA A &1L FH m 4,623,323

Number of ordinary shares

ZiEREE
2018 2017
—z— 5 SR
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FetEFREABFIME -
(excluding own shares held for incentive plan) @ (T IELEE)
for calculation of basic earnings per share ST Z AN FIRG)
B I T 19 B8R CWENREYAREEN 4,777,316,320
Potential dilutive effect on ordinary shares: HERARMBTHETE -
— share options — B 174,857
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Gt ESREEETME
for the calculation of diluted earnings I AR ) N T 5 £
per share kR YR AN 4,777,491,177
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Basic earnings per share BREREF 0.97

Diluted earnings per share BREERT m 0.97
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Final dividend and closure of register of members

The Board resolved to recommend a final dividend of HK$0.203
per share for 2018 (2017: HK$0.75 per share).

KR EREEHERNBLTE

BECZREH2018FERAREATR
0.203787T(2017 4 : ®HR0.75/87T) °

Dividends distributed during the year:
2018 Interim, paid — HK$0.125 per share
(2017: HK$0.125 per share)

2017 Final, paid — HK$0.75 per share

(2016: HK$0.75 per share) % 0.75 8T

(2016 F : &M 0.75/87T)

FREDIRAEE
Bk 2018 FHERAE B —
FH0.12578 7T
(2017 4F : &/%0.12587T)
2IRA 2017 FEREARL B —

2018 2017
TE)\F s
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
601,305

3,580,429 3,584,343
4,177,819 4,185,648

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 25 June
2019 (the "AGM"), the proposed final dividend will be distributed
on Friday, 26 July 2019 to shareholders of the Company whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company at the
close of business on Friday, 5 July 2019.

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 20 June 2019 to Tuesday, 25 June 2019 (both days
inclusive), during which no share transfer will be registered.
In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all
share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company's share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 19
June 2019.
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YN

FFIRRML2019F 6 A25 B (28 = ) 817
MEERFEAFRE((REAFEFARE])E
% BRI KRB B KR 2019F 7
A26B (28 A )k% F1R2019F7 A5
B(EHR)ZEREERBZIARAR
REMARRER -

RETHERERAFASRES LRER
R KRB MDELER2019F 6 A
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For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2018, the register of members of
the Company will be closed on Friday, 5 July 2019 and no share
transfer will be registered on that day. To qualify for the proposed
final dividend, all share transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m.
on Thursday, 4 July 2019.

Capital structure management

The Group and the Company manage capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity structures. The Group’s and
the Company’s overall strategy remain unchanged as in prior
years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts (including
long-term and short-term bank borrowings, corporate bonds,
loans from related parties), cash and cash equivalents, pledged
and restricted bank deposits and equity attributable to owners
of the Company (comprising issued share capital, reserves and
retained earnings).

The Board has reviewed the capital structure on a periodic basis.
As part of the review, the Board considers the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on the
resolution of the Board, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as by issue of new debts or repayment of
existing debts.

Liquidity and financial resources, borrowings, and
charge of assets

The Group had net current liabilities of approximately HK$29,633
million as at 31 December 2018. The Directors are of the opinion
that, taking into account the presently available undrawn bank
credit facilities and internal financial resources of the Group,
the Group has sufficient working capital to meet its present
requirements, at least for the next twelve months commencing
from the date of the financial statements.

The cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2018
denominated in HKD, RMB and other foreign currencies amounted
to approximately HK$959 million, RMB6,138 million and US$2
million, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB RIR 2T

KEBMR2018F K2017F 12 A31HH
RITREMEEDT -

Bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2018
and 2017 were as follows:

2017
—E—+F
HK$'000
FET

4,115,637
77,325,486
19,481,746

800,000

BEMIRITER
EIIPIRITER 79,330,271
NRIEH 14,020,748
R 5 B —

3,324,118

Secured bank loans
Unsecured bank loans
Corporate bonds

Loans from related parties

CIHATNEVA 101,722,869

BSRIT R EAEENRBHEMT

The maturity profile of the above bank and other borrowings is as

follows:

2018 2017
TE-N\F s
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FHET
Within 1 year —FR pYRTCIA  32,960,983
Between 1 and 2 years fEiE—FETEBBAMRTF N HFLN 20,774,002
Between 2 and 5 years HRERF BT HE A F PYHMLPREFN 25,426,074
Over 5 years BBRE SANTINAEN 22,561,810
ST EVA 101,722,869

The above secured bank and other borrowings it B HEKIFRIRIT R EMEE

are secured by: AT 5I3E B /B

Pledge of assets (Note) BEER () 3,918,842 3,072,225

Hiat - EFRITEZUAEEIEEES B A0 T (2017
1 940F L) ~ 1,007,489 F L (20174 ¢
1,137,179F %) %2,911,353F &L (20174 -
1,934,106 T8 7L) M fERAE  EF BER
B R VR R -

Note: Certain bank loans were secured by the Group's land use rights, buildings,
power generating plants and equipment with carrying value of HK$0
(2017: HK$940,000), HK$1,007,489,000 (2017: HK$1,137,179,000) and
HK$2,911,353,000 (2017: HK$1,934,106,000), respectively.

H2018F 12 A31H Uit AR
NEAMINEDERRTT R EMEE D R4
#203.0518%8 7T - AR 660.801E7T
1.2018% T} 0.02 BT

Bank and other borrowings as at 31 December 2018 denominated
in HKD, RMB and other foreign currencies amounted to
approximately HK$20,305 million, RMB66,080 million, US$120
million and EUR$2 million, respectively.
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As at 31 December 2018, bank and other borrowings of
approximately HK$20,305 million and US$120 million (2017:
HK$18,502 million and US$120 million) bore interest at a range
from HIBOR plus 0.88% to HIBOR plus 1.60% per annum and
LIBOR plus 1.60% per annum, respectively. The remaining bank
and other borrowings carried interest rates at a range from
2.35% to 4.99% (2017: 2.75% to 6.40%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2018, the ratio of the Group’s net debt
to shareholders’ equity was 126.2%, and total debt to total
capitalisation was 55.6%. In the opinion of the Directors, the
Group has a stable capital structure, which can support its future
development plans and operations.

In 2018, the Group's primary sources of funding included new
bank borrowings, proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, dividend
income and net cash inflow from operating activities, which
amounted to HK$56,193 million, HK$8,372 million, HK$744
million and HK$18,097 million, respectively. The Group's funds
were primarily used for the repayment of bank borrowings,
redemption of corporate bonds and notes, acquisition of and
deposits paid for property, plant and equipment and prepaid
lease payments, interest and dividend payments, which amounted
to HK$50,618 million, HK$4,516 million, HK$16,884 million,
HK$4,757 million and HK$5,305 million, respectively.

Trade and note receivables

P2018F 12 A31H RIT R EMEE
BIESE#)203.05BF TN 1.208%T
(2017 : 185.02 18Tk 1.2008% L)
BIAN FHBRITEAFEFKEMOSSERE
EBBTRERBIMI0EHFENRR
WAREREMIOENENKRFE -
Mg TIRITREMBEEZENF235EE
4.99/E (20174 : 275 B & 6.40F ) ) F
FIEETE ©

P2018F 12 A31H A£BHFAEMG
HIRR R R A1262% @ RABHE
B K A555.6% c EERAE - NEER
BARGEERTE X HERRERTER
BB o

2018F » AEBEMNETEESRKREBEEH
LR1TEE HENBARME - KRB
AREEESHEENRESRAFERE - D7
A561.9318H8 7T~ 83.72188 70 ~ 74418
BT K 180978 BT - AEEMNESE
DHEEBERIRITEE  BRARELANLE
% BEYE - BELREBERENHEER
HRNENZEREZS INHFERKE
2 Al A506.1818 /& JT * 45.16 18 /& JT »
168.84 1878 7T ~ 47.57 187 7t 52 53.05 &
BIT °

FEWBRFR R RN R 15

Trade receivables & I BR 53R
Note receivable e =5

Less: bad debt provision for trade receivables

B FEUCR IR R

2018 2017
Sl Tt
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT T
11,401,608 9,789,845
143,885 788,129
11,545,493 10,577,974
(114,676) (159,973)

11,430,817 10,418,001

Trade receivables are generally due within 60 days from the date
of billing.
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The following is an aging analysis of trade and note receivables
included in trade receivables, other receivables and prepayments
at the end of the reporting period:

AT RN HmEHREEERBRR - B
& W TR e T8 A R TR ) 0 R LA R R B B U
SEH BRI DT -

2017
—T—+tF
HK$'000
TAET

0 - 30 days 0&30H
31 - 60 days 31260H
Over 60 days 60 B

6,453,797 6,868,924
583,248 655,806
4,508,448 3,053,244

11,545,493 10,577,974

Trade payables

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables included in
trade payables, other payables and accruals at the end of the
reporting period:

FEAS iR R

WA 0 Hh B LR A (R Eof
P O A 21 58 D P B 1 0R k BR
i

2017
—T—+tF
HK$'000
TAET

0 - 30 days 0&30H
31 - 90 days 31290 H
Over 90 days 90 HMA £

6,672,213 5,112,944
2,253,431 2,779,780
2,417,342 3,494,283

11,342,986 11,387,007

Average credit term for purchases is 90 days.

BEYHEEHAOH -
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Key financial ratios of the Group

REBNETEMBLER

2018 2017

TE-N\F s

Current ratio (times) MBI (fF) 0.41
Quick ratio (times) RELE(F) 0.36
Net debt to shareholders’ equity ratio (%) FEEHREER (%) 126.91
EBITDA interest coverage (times)® EBITDA 7| BARFERZH (5 )M 5.37

Current ratio = balance of current assets at the REILLE REFLE)REE E 4
end of the year/balance of current %/ NERNRE A
liabilities at the end of the year B4

Quick ratio = (balance of current assets at the end #RE)LLE (RFERORBEE
of the year - balance of inventories BHR-NFERNEER
at the end of the year)/balance of B8R RFEROR
current liabilities at the end of the A EES
year

Net debt to = (balance of borrowings at the end  FBEHARE (RFRIEEHH —

shareholders’ of the year - balance of cash and R RELRNIRITER K
equity ratio cash equivalents at the end of the Re -—RFLHER
year - balance of pledged cash at HIRITHER) RF
the end of the year)/balance of BEOAR QB %A A
equity attributable to owners of the IHREE AR
Company at the end of the year
EBITDA interest = (profit before taxation + interest EBITDAFE (Br AT FE + 7 B 5
coverage expenses + depreciation and IREE (5 8 X+ rEREE), T
amortisation)/interest expenses BXH(BEERE
(including capitalised interest) 20
Note: Htat -
(1) Excluding non-cash income and expenses, being loss on disposal of assets, (1) TEFRSWET  PREEEESIEX  HEEBLAR
impairment loss and exchange gains and losses. B H 184 o
Foreign exchange risk P = @ fax

The Group collects substantially all of its revenue in RMB
and most of the Group’s expenditures, including expenditure
incurred in its operations as well as capital expenditure, are also
denominated in RMB. Dividends receivable from the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates can be collected in either RMB, US

Dollar ("USD") or HKD.
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RMB is not a freely convertible currency. Future exchange rates
of RMB could vary significantly from the current or historical
exchange rates as a result of controls that could be imposed by
the PRC government. The exchange rates may also be affected
by economic developments, political changes and supply and
demand of RMB. The appreciation or devaluation of RMB against
HKD and USD may have positive or negative impact on the results
of operations of the Group.

The functional currency of major project companies of the
Group is RMB, the revenue and expenses of the Group are
mainly denominated in RMB, foreign exchange risk mainly arises
from borrowings denominated in HKD and USD, particularly
depreciation of RMB against HKD and USD. However, certain
entities are located in Hong Kong and their functional currency
is HKD or USD, their foreign exchange risk mainly arises from
balances denominated in RMB.

In addition, given there are different functional currencies within
the Group, there is still foreign exchange risk which arises from
the transactions and balances within the Group even after intra-
group eliminations. The carrying amounts of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities before
elimination as at 31 December 2018 are as follows:

ARBAIFEARBEE - ARBHIRK
PE =< 7] e A PP BRI R B e Y T B3R 1T 3k
BENERFERESR - EXTAlgERE
BERE - BOAZSHARARBEHKEERR
& A\RBEIBITRETIHESRRZER R
UAKENKEXEER IALA®Y
=,

AEENETRHEBRANDEEEE /A
R AEENKGELXHTERAARE
SIME - EXRRAREIZRNBIT - XTHE
R LERARBHETMETEZE - A
- AETERURES  HYEEELRE
TTHRETT  HEXRERTIZRRUAARE
FIMEH)AEER

oy ERAEBARNGFETRANEE
B MAEARERANR S RGBSR
M NDHEEEEENIMNERE - 22018
F12A831 8 BRI AINETEHEK
EEMNEBEENREERT

The Group
AEE
As at 31 December
M12A31H8
2018 2017
G T tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&ET FET
Assets BE
usD ETT 12,508 12,965
RMB AR 16,400,607 15,121,282
HKD BT 405 79,196
Liabilities =L
RMB AR 6,277,095 6,579,650
EURO BT 13,544 14,521

AEEVERBITESRTASHARE
BT MR TTEREFHER o

The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge
its exposure against changes in exchange rates of the RMB
against HKD and USD.
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Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, the Group provided certain guarantees
amounting to HK$2,894,284,000 (31 December 2017:
HK$3,849,912,000).

In addition, there were certain pending litigations and claims
against the Group. After consulting with legal counsels, the
Directors are of the view that the likelihood of any material
adverse financial impact on the Group is remote. Therefore, no
provisions have been made in respect of such litigations and
claims.

Employees

The Group had 21,629 employees as at 31 December 2018 (2017:
29,827 employees).

The Company and its subsidiaries have concluded employment
contracts with all of their employees. The compensation of
employees mainly includes salaries and performance-based
bonuses.

Medium to Long-term Performance Evaluation Incentive
Plan

The Company has adopted the Medium to Long-term Performance
Evaluation Incentive Plan (the “Plan”). The Plan aims to link
the performance of employees and the management and the
overall operating results and the accomplishment of strategic
objectives of the Company to the income of employees and
the management through medium and long-term performance
appraisals. The Plan was effective from 25 April 2008 for a term
of 10 years, and was terminated on 24 December 2018.

After the Plan was terminated, the Company sold 31,319,230
Shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange through the
trustee during 2018, and net proceeds from the sale amounting
to HK$469,969,737 have been fully remitted into the Company's
accounts without distributing to any employees.

M2018FE 12 A31H " REEFEIRE AR
2,894,284,00078 ) & F R (2017 F
12 8318 :3,849,912,000/87T) °

BEAN - BEHBEAKBEHE T ARRFRIR
8 - RFZEBAHERE  EFR/ALAE
BXAEMERTROM B EN AT
TR Bl - WERZEFFARRREED
B e

il

EE
A
N

MR2018F 128318 REBERT
21,629% (20174 : 29,827 R )EE -

ARBIREMBERARHEBEREER]
VEAEH - BEBRMEIERET LR

hRBAME LR

AAa]BE N RIS S 2R RS
([#ZET8l))  ZEtBlE @B REEX
it BEIREEEMNRRNARERE
M HEEHERE R ERBEREETR
EEEMWARSD - %58l 52008F 4
H25BAR - BE+F - R2018F 4
H24 B8k -

EIRIEE  ARAEIR2018FANEBF
T AERE AT E 31,319,230 % 2 A%
15 FT1SFRIAF %8 5 469,969,737 ¢ °
FrEREEEARGRE » BIESRLT
BT -
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A. INTRODUCTION

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) strives to
ensure that the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) meet
high standards of safety, performance and corporate governance.

The Board has ultimate authority over, and oversight of, the
Group’s operations and regards good corporate governance as a
critical element in the drive to improve the Group’s performance
and achieve the Group’s vision of being a world class energy
provider and one of the most admired employers in China.

In 2018, CR Power has applied all of the principles and complied
with the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to The Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The following summarizes the Company’s corporate governance
practices and explains the implementation of recommended best
practices.

A.1 The Board

The Board is responsible for the optimization of the
Company's corporate governance, and is ultimately
accountable for the Company’s strategic planning, operating
activities and operating results.

The Board Charter is published on the Company’s website
(www.cr-power.com) under the “Corporate Governance”
section of “Investor Relations”. The Board Charter is
updated reqgularly to take account of changes in the law and
governance practices.

The Board is ultimately responsible for the oversight and
review of management, administration and the overall
governance of CR Power and its strategic direction. The
Board plays a central supporting and supervisory role in CR
Power’s corporate governance structure, provides leadership
and guidance to the Group’s activities, and oversees the
execution of the Group’s business strategies.

This includes:
>  the protection of shareholders’ interests by seeking to

ensure that CR Power’s strategic direction provides and
creates value for its shareholders;

BE

ARAEEE([EFE )R NERARQT
REWBAR(AREDELZE  ¥ER
EEERTMEDRRE

EXeHAKEMNELHERRENRE
BEMR RARMNEEERKFRIE
AREERRMEEKRBER—IRERHEE
BEPERREDRE - NBEREAE -

-

NF - EFEENDHRAMAEEAY

—BHEKEEERSEN(=E] R
ERBETSMABRRAES ETRA

(H:rh%E,\JJ)Wﬁ—l—m)ﬁﬁﬁﬁ”ﬂﬁﬁlﬂ%ﬁ °

TXBURARRRINERER
MR RETROFR

FREEAE

Al BEEE
EEeRNRERNANDEE AL
% WHAARMEKERE - 2458

ERRERBERBRRER -

EEeEREEHRNARAIAL
(www.cr-power.com) #9[ # ,éf % 4
BRI—WETIRAEERIHDY -EF
Aﬁ%”iﬁﬂﬁiiﬁ?ﬁ A AEERIER
ERE

EESUEBENER  SER2E
EAEEBRDINYREERE L8
EHTEBESR - EEREEHT
ﬁm¢%aé%%¢%ﬁigmﬁﬁ
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K

B
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»  establishing goals for management and monitoring the
achievement of those goals;

» authorising policies and overseeing the implementation
of these policies;

»  seeking to ensure that CR Power’s internal control and
reporting procedures are complete, effective and abide
by laws and regulations as well as business ethics.

The Board should ensure that management can effectively
perform its duties. The Board’s policy is to regularly monitor
the effectiveness of management policies and decisions,
including the implementation of strategies.

The Board oversees the implementation and operation
of a risk management system. In addition to fulfilling its
obligations to generate rewards for shareholders who
invest their capital in CR Power, the Board recognises that
CR Power has responsibilities to its customers, employees
and suppliers and to the communities in which CR Power
operates.

In carrying out its responsibilities and powers as set out in
the Board Charter, the Board will at all times recognise its
ultimate responsibility to:

»  maintain good corporate governance standards;

»  perform duties honestly, fairly and diligently;

> supervise safety, health and environmental issues
associated with the Company’s operations;

> establish and reinforce a "“zero-tolerance” culture
against corruption;

»  comply with laws and regulations;
> avoid conflicts of interest;

> enable the Company to become an excellent corporate
citizen; and

» gain and maintain the social community’s respect for
the Company.

Non-executive Directors should use all reasonable
endeavours to ensure that CR Power’s operations, business
and transactions are conducted in accordance with the law
and the highest standards of propriety.
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The Company has set forth matters that require the Board's
approval in its Board Charter.

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the Code principle and Code provisions A.1.1 to A.1.8, as
described as follows:

A.1.1 Pursuant to code provision A.1.1 of the Code, meetings
of the Board should be held at least four times a year
at approximately quarterly intervals. During the year,
the Board held a total of eight Board meetings.

The Board met eight times in 2018. Each meeting
involved the active participation in person of a majority
of Directors entitled to be present.

In the year under review, Mr. Ge Changxin, Mr. Hu
Min, Ms. Wang Xiao Bin, Mr. Chen Ying, Mr. Wang
Yan, Mr. Ma Chiu-Cheung, Andrew, Ms. Leung Oi-sie,
Elsie, Dr. Ch'ien Kuo Fung, Raymond and Mr. So Chak
Kwong, Jack were Directors throughout the year.

During 2018, the following changes in directorship
were announced:

Ms. Zhou Junging resigned as the Chairman of the
Board and an Executive Director with effect from 5
March 2018; and

Mr. Li Ru Ge was appointed as the Chairman of the
Board and a Non-executive Director with effect from 5
March 2018.

ARPREZSERTHIAKES
SHAERFIE

RN B Bl BA A FE B 1% 8 <7 <7 Al R Al
BT AR XA 1 EA 1.8 a0
™

A1 BRESFRIE A TIESFRINES
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REF  BREFHBEKRHED
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BEERMELE B L
FhELLE REXRE £E
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The former and current Directors’ attendance at the
meetings of the Board, the Annual General Meeting
(the "AGM") and an extraordinary general meeting
("EGM") during the year is as follows:

MEMBEESHRFEAFEE
EegR R RBFRE (K
RBFEARG D EERERIAE
(TEREFHAREDMBERIT :

Attendance

rate of board

meetings

Number  during the

of board office of
meetings directorship Attendance Attendance
attended fEEHAR of the AGM  of the EGM
HEEEE EE888 HERR HERR
=5 YN8 HEE BERE RHKXE

Non-executive Directors FHITES

Li Ru Ge (Note 1) P E (M) 6/6 100% 4 4

Chen Ying (Note 2) PR & (BsE2) 2/8 25% — —

Wang Yan (Note 2) TEFIE2) 28 25% — —

Executive Directors HITES

Zhou Junging (Note 3) AEB(HEE3) N/A N/A N/A N/A

3 A i A iE A NiE A

Ge Changxin EEH 8/8 100% v v

Hu Min HAER 8/8 100% v 4

Wang Xiao Bin FW 8/8 100% v v

Independent Non-executive BYFHITES

Directors

Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung 5 AR 7/8 88% v v

Elsie Leung Oi-sie (Note 4) 2EFMT4) 6/8 75% v v

Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung ERE 8/8 100% v v

Jack So Chak Kwong BRZ N 5/8 63% v —

Note (1): Mr. Li Ru Ge was appointed as the Chairman of the Board MsE(1) : EHEEER T N\F=AH
and a Non-executive Director with effect from 5 March 2018. AEZERESTSER RIFNT
Given that Mr. Li Ru Ge concurrently holds senior positions EBE FHBERERKRART
with the Company’s controlling shareholder, he has abstained ROF R 52 B T e AR BR AL - AR
from voting on the board resolutions regarding certain ERFRRBITHNNEZS S H
transactions in two of the six board meetings held during the ZHEPRMAIEZLERETREHN
year after his appointment. EEYREAXHERE -

Note (2): Given that Mr. Chen Ying and Mr. Wang Yan concurrently MizEQ2) : BRELAERTELERBFRAR
hold senior positions with the Company’s controlling AR R SR E T = AR BR AL + AR
shareholder, they have abstained from voting on the board HEERFARITHNESS
resolutions regarding certain transactions in one of the eight BRI EF—RgRLMETR
board meetings held during the year. FNEEGREAZHERSE -

Note (3): Ms. Zhou Junging resigned as the Chairman of the Board WaE@GE) : AERZtER - \F=A%h
and an Executive Director of the Company with effect from 5 ABERRRESTGER RIT
March 2018. Bxo

Note (4): Due to conflict of interest, Ms. Leung Oi-sie, Elsie abstained W) - ARTFERNEEZR  REFLL

from voting on a board resolution in one of the eight board
meetings held during the year.
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A2

A4

In 2018, arrangements were in place to ensure that all
Directors were given an opportunity to include matters
in the agenda for regular Board meetings. The Board
is supported by four committees, namely the Audit
and Risk Committee, the Nomination Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Sustainability
Committee to ensure that it is well equipped to
discharge its responsibilities. Each committee has its
own terms of reference which are available on the
Company’s website (www.cr-power.com). The terms of
reference of each committee are updated regularly to
take account of changes in the rules and regulations
and governance practices. The chairperson of respective
committees reported to the Board regularly and
made recommendations on matters discussed when
appropriate. Members of senior management of the
Company may attend committee meetings upon
invitation by the relevant chairperson.

In the year under review, notice of at least 14 days was
given of a regular Board meeting, giving all Directors
an opportunity to attend. For all other Board meetings,
reasonable notice was given. The Board aims to set
dates of regular meetings, AGM and site visits at the
start of each year, so that all Directors can make proper
arrangements to ensure attendance of the meetings
and visits.

The Company Secretary attended all Board and
committee meetings except meetings of the
Remuneration Committee where a person (non-member
of senior management) was appointed as secretary.
Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board
Committees were kept by the Company Secretary or
duly appointed personnel and were arranged to be
reviewed by the Directors present at the meetings
before signing by the chairperson of the respective
meetings. Such minutes will be made available by the
Company for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director when he/she deems
necessary.

w
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A.1.5 Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board
Committees recorded in detail the matters considered
by the Board or Board Committees and decisions
reached. Draft and final versions of minutes of Board
meetings and meetings of Board Committees were sent
to all Directors for their comments within a reasonable
time after the Board or committee meetings were held.

A.1.6 The Board Charter sets out the policy that Directors,
especially Non-executive Directors should be provided
with sufficient resources in the furtherance of their
duties as Board/Committee members, including access
to independent professional advice, if necessary, at the
Company’s expense.

A.1.7 Physical board meetings, as opposed to written
resolutions, were held to consider matters in which a
substantial shareholder or Director had a conflict of
interest which the Board determined to be material.
At these physical board meetings, Independent Non-
executive Directors who, and whose close associates,
had no material interest in the transaction were
present. Directors who had a conflict of interest
abstained from voting.

A.1.8 The Company has arranged corporate liability insurance
coverage in respect of legal actions against its Directors.

The Board Committees have adopted, so far as practicable,
the principles, procedures and arrangements set out in
A.1.1 to A.1.8 in the Code, where applicable.

The Chairman and the President

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
the President has been clearly established and set out in
writing. Under A.2.1 of the Code, the role of the Chairman
and the President should be separate to ensure a balance of
power and authority. The Chairman’s primary responsibilities
include deciding on the meeting schedule and agenda,
formulating Board policies, ensuring Board effectiveness,
promoting the Company and maintaining the Company’s
corporate governance. The President has delegated authority
from, and is responsible to, the Board for managing the
Group’s business, including the implementation of the
strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board.
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In the period under review, the Company strictly complied
with the Code principle and Code provisions A.2.1 to A.2.9
as described below:

A.2.1 The roles of the Chairman and the President of the
Company are separate and are currently assumed
by Mr. Li Ru Ge and Mr. Hu Min, respectively. The
division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
the President has been clearly established and set out
in writing. After Ms. Zhou Junging resigned as the
Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director of the
Company with effect from 5 March 2018, Mr. Li Ru Ge
was appointed as Chairman of the Board and an Non-
executive Director with effect from 5 March 2018.

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for providing
leadership for the Board. The duties are mainly to
ensure the effective operation of the Board, and the
establishment of and compliance with the corporate
governance practices and procedures. The Chairman
is also responsible for ensuring that appropriate
procedures are adopted to guarantee effective
communications with shareholders, and that the
shareholders’ opinions are circulated among all Board
members.

The President of the Company is responsible for
managing the Company’s business and coordinating
overall business operations, implementing major
strategies approved by the Board and making day-to-
day operation decisions.

None of the members of the Board has any connections
(including financial, business, family relationship and
other material/related relationships) with each other
(including between the Chairman and the President).

A.2.2 All Directors were properly briefed on issues arising at
Board meetings. Any enquiries and requests from the
Directors were followed up and responded to by the
management of the Company in a timely manner.

A.2.3 The Board papers contained sufficient details and
Directors were given reasonable time to review the
contents before the meetings. All Directors who were
present at the Board meetings received adequate
information in a timely manner, prior to the meetings.
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A.2.4 One of the Chairman’s responsibilities is to provide MAFTFENEET 2 —REZES
leadership for the Board. The Chairman ensures that the T TREREETSHWEE
Board works effectively and performs its responsibilities, UWEITEME WEAEF®MAE
and that all key and appropriate issues are discussed BREIEEAEE - TREXH
by the Board in a timely manner. The Chairman, with HATESER R WMENH
the help of other Executive Directors and Company B xEZEEEBREESLH
Secretary, is primarily responsible for drawing up and EIEMRBEREL - WERE(W
approving the agenda for each Board meeting taking BE)BEMNEFIRENETEMN
into account, where appropriate, any matters proposed AER WEFEZIHNRES
by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda. The g% AEZTXETESH
Chairman should delegate this responsibility to a NEMERITZBE -

designated Director or the Company Secretary in the
event of her absence at a board meeting.

A25 The Chairman takes primary responsibility for ensuring AMSEFFEEERRELRIFH
that good corporate governance practices and procedures TEBERATHALERF X/FH
are established. The Chairman meets regularly with BYFMTEETCHI@E &7
Independent Non-executive Directors to discuss, among wmERBE)EEESTE
others, suggestions and feedback with regard to Board EEARTRANE NS EHE
and corporate governance practices and procedures and B E MR EE o

areas for improvement.

A.2.6 The Chairman encourages all Directors to make a full AME6XEERBFIEESFHEETE S
and active contribution to the Board’s affairs and FBIER 2 EEGE R BiEE
takes the lead to ensure that the Board acts in the EBEABREEFSTEFNANRN
best interests of the Company. The Chairman also NAREFZ - TEINSEEH
encourages Directors with different views to voice their TRIERNEEFRERNT@T
concerns, allows sufficient time for discussion of issues MEE ' THATHREHHENT®
and ensures that Board decisions fairly reflect Board EEE MHREZTSHRTE
consensus. NERMEBEESHE -

A.2.7 The Chairman, Mr. Li Ru Ge, held a meeting with AMIRZE—NFHA EFETXL
the Independent Non-executive Directors without the PAEHEBYIIFNTESEH
presence of other Directors or management in May eH EMRMTEEREEE
2018. WEHEEE® -

A.2.8 The Chairman ensures that appropriate steps are taken A28 TEHERFENEE P BEARE
to provide effective communication with shareholders BRER AEEREERE
and that their views are communicated to the Board as ETEEELRES -

a whole.
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A.2.9 The Chairman promotes a culture of openness and
debate by facilitating the effective contribution of Non-
executive Directors and ensures constructive relations
between Executive and Non-executive Directors. During
the year, the Independent Non-executive Directors
visited our wind power project in Hebei Province in July
2018. The site visit gave the Independent Non-executive
Directors an opportunity to meet with the Company’s
front-line staff and local management team and also
gained first-hand understanding of the Chinese power
industry.

A.3 Board Composition

The Board’s composition is determined in accordance
with the following principles, the Company’s Articles of
Association and relevant governance requirements:

»  the Company should appoint at least three Independent
Non-executive Directors and maintain Independent
Non-executive Directors representing at least one-third
of the Board;

» the role of Chairman and President should be held by
separate persons;

» the Board should comprise of Directors with an
appropriate range and mix of skills, experience,
expertise and diversity;

»  the performance of the Board and its members should
be reviewed annually and objectively; and

> all Directors must submit themselves for re-election at
regular intervals.

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of 10
Directors, 3 of whom are Non-executive Directors, 3 are
Executive Directors and 4 are Independent Non-executive
Directors. The number of Independent Non-executive
Directors complied with the requirements of Rule 3.10 and
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The list of Directors as at
the date of this report and their biographies are set out in
the Directors and Senior Management Section on page 18 to
page 34 of this Annual Report, and are available on the Company’s
website (www.cr-power.com).
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Set out below are details of the composition of the Board RASREHE EEeNETLZES
and its committees as at the date of this report: R EFRBIT ¢

Committee Membership

ZEEHE
Board Audit
Designation Sustainability and Risk Remuneration Nomination
Director ESalN THERR BREAR i RBE
Li Ru Ge FHE NE, C v C
Ge Changxin BERM
Hu Min il
Wang Xiao Bin T/
Chen Ying R NE
Wang Yan TE NE v
Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung S BR#F INED 4 C 4
Elsie Leung Oi-sie REF INED 4 C 4
Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung #$3R % INED 4 v v
Jack So Chak Kwong ERZ N INED C v v
Note: MIEE :
C: Chairman C: *E
E: Executive Director E: WITES
NE:  Non-executive Director NE : FEMITES
INED: Independent Non-executive Director INED : B IEHITES
In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with REEEE  AFIHREES FilE
the above principles and Code provisions A.3.1 and A.3.2 as BB <P AR A 3.1 A 32 - Bt
described as follows: (N
A.3.1 The Independent Non-executive Directors accounted AN BYIEHITEFTABLEES
for more than one-third of the members of the KEANEBEBE=27—BAN
Board and were expressly identified in all corporate AIFfESREEEHEZN AT B
communications that disclosed the names of Directors I IERRBY IERITER F D ©

of the Company.

A32 The Company posts the names and biographical A32 AR A A A H b (www.cr-power.
details of the Board members on its website (www. comEFEFEHENLEE R
cr-power.com), with their designations in the Board B WixBES FMH - AN
clearly stated. The Company also posts on the website TR B P A uh 7 &2 E &3
of the Stock Exchange an updated list of its Directors EHEZLE - AN B A
identifying their roles and functions and whether they EL BB IEHITTESE -

are Independent Non-executive Directors.
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A.4 Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors A4 EEHE « FEMEE

The Board’s Nomination Committee sets and reviews the
criteria for new Director appointments having regard to the
overall composition of the Board.

The Board seeks to ensure that its membership is such that
each Director:

» is a person of integrity;

»  has sufficient time available and abilities to perform his
or her role effectively;

»  brings an independent and questioning mind to his or
her role which enables him or her to exercise sound
judgment;

» enhances the breadth and depth of skills and
knowledge of the Board as a whole; and

»  enhances the experience and diversity of the Board as a
whole.

The service term of every Director is 3 years. All Directors
are subject to regular retirement and retiring Directors are
eligible for re-election. The staggered structure enables the
Board to change its composition in an orderly manner over
time while maintaining leadership, stability and continuity,
and allows for regular evaluation of the mix of skills and
experience, as required.

During the year under review, the Company strictly complied
with the above principles and Code provisions A.4.1 to A.4.3
as described as follows:

A.4.1 Each Non-executive Director (including Independent
Non-executive Directors) receives a letter formalizing
his or her appointment and that letter outlines the
key terms and conditions of the appointment. Each
Non-executive Director (including Independent Non-
executive Director) is appointed for a term of 3 years.

EEeREZESTEESTENER
HRRERBENESTRERE -

EEg N KBRERES

> ABHEEAL:

> WHRRRERENMENARET
BE
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> REAEFENERREEME
BEMRE &

> HENEFEeNEELRLZEK
Mo

BREFNEHRIF -MBEEH

AEHRME REEEEEREEE

f-RREEBEEFTSITRBARF

B HAAR - RIRRFEGN - BT

E&Fﬁﬁ I AT 4R 23K BT E 5
Z<« ,%A ZE/\ o
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R
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A4.2

A43

In accordance with Article 120 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors,
including Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors
as well as Independent Non-executive Directors, shall
retire by rotation at each AGM of the Company,
provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least every three years and
a retiring director shall be eligible for re-election.
Pursuant to Article 120 of the Articles of Association,
Mr. Ge Changxin, Mr. Hu Min, Ms. Wang Xiao Bin
and Mr. So Chak Kwong, Jack, retired from office by
rotation and were re-elected at the AGM on 28 May
2018.

In accordance with the Company’'s Articles of
Association, all new Directors appointed to fill a casual
vacancy or being a new member of the Board of
Directors shall be subject to re-election by shareholders
at the next general meeting after their appointment (in
the case of filling casual vacancy) or next AGM (in the
case of addition to the Board). Pursuant to Article 98
of the Articles of Association, Mr. Li Ru Ge, who was
newly appointed as Chairman of the Board and Non-
executive Director on 5 March 2018, retired from office
and was re-elected at the AGM on 28 May 2018.

As at the date of this report, among the Independent
Non-executive Directors, only Mr. Ma Chiu-Cheung,
Andrew has served more than 9 years. Mr. Ma was
re-elected at the AGM on 8 June 2017 by a separate
resolution.

On the date of the 2019 AGM, Mr. Ch'ien Kuo Fung,
Raymond and Ms. Leung Oi-sie, Elsie will have served
as Independent Non-executive Directors for more than
9 years from their date of appointment on 22 April
2010. Further appointment of Mr. Ch’ien Kuo Fung,
Raymond and Ms. Leung Oi-sie, Elsie as Independent
Non-executive Directors will be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by shareholders at the
upcoming AGM in June 2019.
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The Board considers that the long service of each of Mr.
Ma, Mr. Ch'ien and Ms. Leung would not affect his/
her exercise of independent judgment and is satisfied
that each of Mr. Ma, Mr. Ch'ien and Ms. Leung
has the required character, integrity and experience
to continue fulfilling the role of Independent Non-
executive Director. The Board believes that, with their
in-depth understanding of the Group’s operations and
business, the continued tenure of Mr. Ma, Mr. Ch'ien
and Ms. Leung will bring considerable stability to the
Board, and the Board has benefited from the valuable
insight, objective view, independent guidance and firm
commitment by Mr. Ma, Mr. Ch'ien and Ms. Leung over
the past years. The Board considers that the re-election
of Mr. Ch'ien and Ms. Leung as an Independent Non-
executive Director at the upcoming AGM in June 2019
is in the interest of the Company and its Shareholders

EFxeRs Bt BRE
RRZETZENRHRBIE
FEHEELBIHE  YHSF
A BEERRZTAGE
BRETBLFATEFTACH
FHO MG - WS REREEH
E-EBFEMRE BREYUAE
BEBEENRATE Bk
£ BEERRZINFES
M RESFEEFRBE B
ZEREBBLE #RE
RRZTHBEERR  TEHH
BB UABEEEAETE
HoBEEERA R-T—N
FRABRTHERREAFASE
BETENMRLLTRBIIFHN
TEENAEARALERERD

as a whole. BESENZ -
A5 Nomination Committee A5 REZEE

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with REREFE  ARAERE&ESTAE

Code provisions A.5.1 to A.5.5 as described as follows: XAS51TZEASS BT

A.5.1 The Company has established a Nomination Committee ASI ARRIRAEREZEZEER - BE4
which is comprised of 4 members, including 3 HKE - BE3IBEILIFRNITE
Independent Non-executive Directors and Chairman ENEEFEEFF - -R_ZF—N
of the Board. In 2018, the Nomination Committee F REZECHAHRMAE
held two meetings to, among other things, review the EOUNEAYpE I RTESS
composition and performance of the Board and the AR RRBARRRESZNK
policy for nomination of Directors. The attendance K-IBBZEGXNEREIRESF
record of the members of the Nomination Committee EAMHFREsERET T

during the year under review is set out as follows:

Number of meetings

attended/number
of meetings held Attendance
HEBTEE rate
Nomination Committee RE HER
Li Ru Ge (Chairman) (Note 1) Z=4E (FFE) (MizE1) 1/1 100%
Elsie Leung Oi-sie REFF 1/2 50%
Raymond Ch’ien Kuo Fung BERE 2/2 100%
Jack So Chak Kwong #RZ N 2/2 100%
Zhou Junging (Note 2) &R (M5 2) 11 100%
Note(1): Mr. Li Ru Ge was appointed as the Chairman of the Nomination MeE() : EHEEER_ZE—N\F=AH
Committee with effect from 5 March 2018. ARZTRIEEEESIR -
Note(2): Ms. Zhou Junging resigned as the Chairman of the Nomination Q) : AEBMztR=S—N\F=AH
Committee with effect from 5 March 2018. ABTiREZE8gxR -
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A52The major responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee are to formulate and implement the policy
for nominating candidates for appointment on new
directors or for re-election by shareholders of the
Company based on criteria such as reputation for
integrity, accomplishment and experience, professional
and educational background, and potential time
commitments, and to assess the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee (which is
reviewed regularly and updated where necessary) have
incorporated the specific duties set out in the Code
provision.

In considering the new appointment of Directors, the
Nomination Committee assesses candidates on criteria
such as perspective, integrity, independent mindedness,
experience, skill and ability to commit time and effort
to carry out duties and responsibilities effectively and
makes recommendations to the Board for approval. In
2018, Mr. Li Ru Ge was appointed as a Director of the
Company.

A5.3 The Nomination Committee’s terms of reference are
available on the Company’s website (www.cr-power.
com) and the Stock Exchange's website.

A.5.4 The Company ensures that the Nomination Committee
is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties.

Where necessary, the Nomination Committee may seek
independent professional advice at the Company’'s
expense, to perform its responsibilities.

A551f the Board proposes a resolution to elect an
individual as an Independent Non-executive Director
at the general meeting, it will set out in the circular
to shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general
meeting:

>  the process used for identifying the individual and why
the Board believes the individual should be elected
and the reasons why it considers the individual to be
independent;
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A6

» if the proposed Independent Non-Executive Director
will be holding their seventh (or more) listed company
directorship, why the Board believes the individual
would still be able to devote sufficient time to the
board;

> the perspectives, skills and experience that the
individual can bring to the Board; and

»  how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board.

The Company has established a policy concerning diversity
of Board members which is available on the Company’s
website (www.cr-power.com). The Company strives to
achieve diversity of the Board by endorsing the principle
that the Board should have a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business. The Company welcomes a very diverse population
of people that reflects the range of cultures and background
spanned by its operations. These differences will be taken
into account in determining the optimum composition of
the Board. The Nomination Committee will consider, and
if appropriate, set measurable objectives to implement the
policy and review such objectives to ensure appropriateness
of the objectives and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objectives. The Nomination Committee has
reviewed the policy to ensure its continued effectiveness.

The Company has established a nomination policy of Board
members in the Board Charters. Pursuant to the nomination
policy, the Company strives to assure that nomination of
candidates to stand for election as Board members must go
through formal, prudent and transparent procedures. The
Board is required to evaluate the overall composition of the
Board and the skills of members on a regular basis, in order
to prepare succession plans, facilitate smooth handover and
to maintain efficiency at all times. Further details of the
nomination policy is available on the Company’s website
(www.cr-power.com).

Responsibilities of Directors

The Board plays a central supporting and supervisory role
in the Company’s corporate governance structure, provides
leadership and guidance to the Group's activities and
development and oversees the work of the management and
its execution of the Company’s business strategies.

Ab
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In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the above principle and Code provisions A.6.1 to A.6.8 as
described as follows:

A.6.1 All newly appointed Directors will receive a formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of their
appointment in order to ensure that they will have a
proper understanding of the operations and business of
the Company and that they will be fully aware of their
personal responsibilities under statute and common
law, the Listing Rules, applicable legal and other
regulatory requirements, and the Company’s business
and governance policies.

A.6.2 Independent Non-executive Directors actively participated in
Board meetings of the Company. The Company’s Audit and
Risk Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Sustainability Committee comprise a
majority of Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Directors were encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development programs at the
Company’s expense to remain abreast of changes and
developments impacting the business.

The roles of Independent Non-executive Directors
also include providing their independent views to the
Board and management on business proposals and
strategies and supporting the implementation of these
strategies. Independent Non-executive Directors shall
take lead in board meetings in the event there are
conflicts of interests. They also scrutinise and monitor
senior management’s performance in meeting goals
and objectives. During the year, the Independent
Non-executive Directors also examined the Group’s
operations in different locations to broaden their
knowledge of the Group's business.

A.6.3 Directors’ attendance of Board meetings and Committee
meetings is set out on pages 98, 107, 115 and 125 of this
Annual Report. Each of the Executive Directors and Non-
executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) ensured that he/she gave sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Company.
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A.6.4 The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in

Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the
Company confirmed that all Directors have complied
with their obligations regarding dealings in securities
of the Company under the Model Code throughout the
year.

The Company has also established written guidelines
for senior management and employees in certain
functions in respect of their dealings in the securities of
the Company for their strict compliance. The Company
issued notices to all Directors, senior management and
relevant employees reminding them to comply with
the restriction on dealing of securities of the Company
under the above code and guidelines 60 days prior to
the publication of the annual results and 30 days prior
to the publication of the interim results.

A.6.5 The Company’s Executive and Non-executive Directors

(including Independent Non-executive Directors)
participated in various development programs to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to help
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. Directors are encouraged to
participate in professional training programs and
the Company also organizes and funds such training
programs.
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BE-—Z2—N\F+-A=+-—
ALFE EE2EEREE
BE S BIL E R A A
HBAES - AN E D UE E
EEEEYRGE - LERER

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Directors
participated in training programs regarding Directors’
responsibilities and duties and examined the Company's
operations. The Company has received the Directors’
training records, which are set out as follows:

SR

Training

on recent
development of
the Listing Rules,
corporate
governance

and Directors’
responsibilities

Site visits to
thermal

power plants,
renewable

power projects or
other operations

BB LWHRA - BEihER

TEERR RKOBER
EsEFEH B4 RERER
R IEF REMER
Li Ru Ge (Note 1) FaE (MizE) v v
Ge Changxin BERH v v
Hu Min HAB v v
Wang Xiao Bin T v v
Chen Ying PR E v —
Wang Yan TE v —
Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung R v v
Elsie Leung Oi-sie REFF v v
Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung BERe v v
Jack So Chak Kwong BROE N v —
Zhou Junging (Note 2) A& (FiFE2) N/A N/A

M) THREEER-_FT—-\F=AR
HEZERARAERELIER
FHTES -

et ) : ARzt _E—N\F=/AH
HEBHIARRIEESEFE R
TEE -

Note (1): Mr. Li Ru Ge was appointed as the Chairman of the Board and a
Non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 5 March
2018.

Note (2): Ms. Zhou Junging resigned as the Chairman of the Board and
an Executive Director of the Company with effect from 5 March
2018.

A BREZFENEZERLTH
MARNBHER LT AR
A ETNBOREMTET
EM BB RS > HBPA LT A
A SR AR A HY B R I 56 B 2 B
il o W BETFFHET -

A.6.6 Each Director has disclosed to the Company at the
time of his or her appointment, and on a periodic
basis, the number and nature of offices held in public
companies or organisations and other significant
commitments, with the identity of the public companies
or organisations and an indication of the time involved.
Such disclosures should be made annually.
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A6.7Independent Non-executive Directors actively

participated in Board meetings and Committee
meetings. In order to develop a balanced understanding
of the views of Shareholders, the Chairman and
a number of Executive Directors participated in
roadshows and investor forums to meet with
institutional investors during the year. As laid out in the
attendance table in A.1.1 on page 98 of this Annual
Report, majority of the Directors attended the AGM
held on 28 May 2018. The Company sets the date of
the AGM at the beginning of a year so all Directors
are encouraged to attend the AGM to enhance

TeEHEATETER - AEK
HRREEANHE THE  FR
EFHERBDATESTLZ2 N T K
EHENRIEEEREEEER
BEEH - WAFREIGE
AN T FREERRATE - KD
DEEHE TR -_Z—N\FH
AZ+ N \BBHEMBRERAEFX
T ARBRNBFEFVEER
RBAFAKENBE  SEMA
BEEHEREAD LN AR

communication with Shareholders. For the Company's HEBE®B - BAR R HHR
report on communication with Shareholders, please RARBERANRE  FHLREF
refer to page 128 to 134 of the Annual Report. WME128EHE134H -

A68Independent Non-executive Directors actively A8 BIUIEMNITERRIBLHEES

participated in Board meetings and Committee @@%&%igguﬁlﬁﬂﬁ
meetings and made a positive contribution to the BEULRBHOREINER
development of the Company’s strategy and policies ﬁ$ AIREE R REREEL
through independent, constructive and informed FEER

comments.

A7 BIERHEREH

REEEFE AR B ESTTENE
NATAEATI BHRAT

A.7 Supply of and Access to Information

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
Code provisions A.7.1 to A.7.3 as described as follows:

A.7.1In respect of regular Board meetings and Committee A7 E‘JEIEHHWE%E’]§$AQE§&§
meetings, the Company’s policy is to provide at least FEEMEs @ ARAIWEBUER
a 14-day notice prior to the meeting setting out the EEEH&%TTZEE/J\14 =N
intended agenda. An agenda and accompanying board ?é‘ﬁgﬁ - ERHIEE
papers are delivered in full to all Directors at least three IR © EA%$AQE$§
days before the intended date of a Board meeting or ?E\’%@%Tﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ HHIRT =
Board Committee meeting. AezNEEREEESS
LT %Z LFﬁﬁi%

|I| \
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A7.2 To enable Directors to make decisions based upon
the related data on hand, management is required to
provide adequate, complete and reliable information
and provide briefing to the Board in respect of the
matters and issues under consideration. The Company
supplied Directors with monthly management reports
to keep Board members informed of the latest
development and performance of the Company.
The Board and Directors also have separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior
management.

A.7.3 All Directors are entitled to have access to board papers
and related materials. Queries from Directors also
receive a prompt and full response.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND BOARD
EVALUATION

The level and make-up of remuneration and
disclosure

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the Code provisions B.1.1 to B.1.5 and the recommended
best practices B.1.6 to B.1.9 except for B.1.8 as described as
follows:

The Board has an established Remuneration Committee and
its primary functions are to evaluate the performance and
make recommendations on the remuneration packages of
the Directors and senior management, and to evaluate and
make recommendations on employee benefit arrangements.
All three members of the Remuneration Committee are
Independent Non-executive Directors.
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In 2018, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting
to, among other things, review and determine the policy
for the remuneration of the Executive Directors, assess
the performance of the Executive Directors, and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages
of all Executive Directors and senior management. The
attendance record of the members of the Remuneration
Committee during the year under review is set out as
follows:

—T-N\F FHEEEAR—XE
& (EPER) B i ERTES
HFBOR - FFZBITE SRR
ARERTERHSREREAR
MFM T RAESSREHEBRER
FNEZE e EROBEFEANLE
ACEREIIEAT

attended/number

Remuneration Committee

of meetings held

Elsie Leung Oi-sie (Chairman) REF (XFE)
Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung 5 R
Raymond Ch'ien Kuo Fung ERE

Number of
meetings
HE BT Attendance rate
BEXE i E =R
171 100%
171 100%
11 100%

B.1.1 The Remuneration Committee may consult the
Chairman, the President or any independent third party
about the remuneration level of Executive Directors.
The Company has a policy that the Remuneration
Committee may seek professional advice from
independent third parties if it thinks necessary at the
expense of the Company.

B.1.2 The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
(which is reviewed and updated regularly) have
incorporated the specific duties set out in the code
provision of the Code. Code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) was
adopted by the Remuneration Committee.

B.1.3 The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are set out on the Company’s website (www.cr-power.
com) and the Stock Exchange’s website.

B.1.4 The Remuneration Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties. The
Remuneration Committee may seek professional advice
from independent third parties if it thinks necessary at
the expense of the Company in order to enable it to
properly discharge its duties and responsibilities.

Bl HNEE SR M TTE SN HE
Bk EZBER - RESLAEM
BYEZH o RIBEARAMIK
R -FHWEESUEERAY
BRHABIE=SKEEE
R BEHRKNQREIE-

B12 FZEenBEaE(THE
BB #7) 2 4 A ST RIEY < BIl K
XHEEERE FTHEES
INE BRAN ST BIMESTB.1.2(0)(ii) °

BI3HNZE SR ESHEEFHN
X A A # U (www.cr-power.
com) M H§E A P A8 U ©

Bl4FMEZBESERMBETETERN
BITHERE FHEEEIE
HRRLEBERRBLLE =N
KEXER  BRAARRQBK
B ANEHREEZEETRER
BfE -
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BIS TNEENITEENSRERE
R B EFTNEE T -

B.1.5 The emoluments of the members of the senior
management team (excluding Executive Directors) are
within the following bands:

Number of individuals

A8

2017
—FE—tF

Emolument bands e E
HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 0% 1,000,000/ 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/&7c%2,000,000/& 7T —
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 752,500,000/ 7T —
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/&7-%3,000,0005 7T —
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/&7 % 3,500,000/ 7T 2
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001/ 524,000,000/ T 2
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001/%&7c%4,500,0005& T 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001/&7c%5,000,000/& 7T 5
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 7% 5,500,000/ 7T 3

B.1.6 The Board has no disagreement with the Remuneration BI16 EERERMATEETLSR
Committee on remuneration or compensation EEABNFTMIBELTHER
arrangements with regards to Executive Directors and HEFMEZESUBREMER
senior management. DU o

B.1.7 A significant proportion of Executive Directors’ BA7T HITESHHMAEEY - B8

remuneration is structured so as to link rewards to
corporate and individual performance. The Company
sets its strategic and performance targets on an
annual and three year rolling forward basis. Based
on the Company’s overall performance targets, the
Company assigns responsibilities and sets performance
benchmarks and evaluation methods for each Executive
Director, members of the senior management team
and other managerial staff. The total remuneration of
Executive Directors and senior management comprises
three key components, namely basic salary, annual
bonus and the Medium to Long-term Performance
Evaluation Incentive Plan. The actual performance of
the Company and each Executive Director and senior
management team members’ own performance against
performance targets determine the component paid
under the annual bonus and Medium to Long-term
Performance Evaluation Incentive Plan. Please refer
to Note 52 under the section “Notes to the Financial
Statements” in this Annual Report on page 337 to 340
for details on Directors’ remuneration.
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B.1.8The Company has not adopted the recommended

best practice to disclose details of any remuneration
paid to members of senior management (other than
Executive Directors) on an individual and named basis
in the Annual Report. Having disclosed Directors’
remuneration and remuneration of the five highest
paid individuals, the Company believes that disclosure
of individual senior management’'s remuneration does
not benefit Shareholders. The majority of Shareholders
are concerned with the total amount of remuneration,
rather than on an individual basis.

B.1.9Board evaluation is conducted on an annual basis.

During the year, this evaluation was conducted by
consulting each Director regarding the attendance
of the Board and Committees, the implementation
of improvement opinions made by the Directors in
prior years. The evaluation report was considered and
discussed by the Board.

B18 ANRYERMNEZRET MR
EARFEHRBENEZRESN
SREEABMITESRRIN)
R =N G I I NVNESTR 2
E ACHRBEEELAEERS
FEALTFHBBR T B EE
RS REEA BB SR
B o RZHRRETFH A
7 MmIFEA R -

BIOESZENXEEBFET AF
B hWEFAENEEFEREER
BEgHFEX EFREFEMR
BERONMERRATHER 1L
REEFERNTAET &
FeCEENTwAMN GG
8o

C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT C. BAEHREX

C.1 Financial Reporting C.1 B i5ESR
The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and BFgaE Z?EEE LD EATRREEN
comprehensible assessment of the Group's performance, SENXRIER - BAKAISE - EEFEN

FEREERUEEQFRIAKE
REFER  FELRESRENFE

position and prospects. It is also the Board'’s responsibility to
oversee the preparation of the annual accounts which give a

true and fair view of the Group’s state of affairs, results and BEH o

cash flows for the year.

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with REEFE » NAREKEST LR
the above principle and Code provisions C.1.1 to C.1.5 as BB <F BIE X C11EC1.5 Bt
described as follows: (N

MNEFTETHRENFERESR
o A B2 (7R 52 B B 7 B R e
HEEER - AERIEFE -

C.1.1Directors were provided with financial information and
the related information of the Group enabling them to
make an informed assessment before the publication of
the interim results and the annual results, respectively.
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C.1.2To enable Directors to discharge their duties under
Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules, senior
management is required to provide adequate, complete
and reliable information and provide briefing to the
Board in respect of the matters and issues under
consideration. The Company supplied the Board with
monthly management reports to keep Board members
informed of the latest development and performance of
the Group.

C.1.3The Directors have acknowledged their responsibility
for overseeing the preparation of financial statements
of each financial period, which gives a true and fair
view of the operating results and financial conditions
of the Group. More information about the external
auditor’s responsibilities is set out in the Independent
Auditor’'s Report on pages 136 to 340 of this Annual
Report. In preparing the financial reports for the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Directors have selected
appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently; made judgments and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable, and prepared accounts on a
going concern basis. The Company does not foresee
any uncertainties in its ability to continue as a going
concern.

C.1.4The Chairman’s Statement on pages 9 to 17 of the
Annual Report provides a summary of the Group’s
performance and future prospects on how the Group
will preserve value over the longer term and our
strategies for delivering the Group's objectives.

C.1.5The Directors have acknowledged that their
responsibility to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment extend to annual and
interim reports, other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules, reports to regulators as well as
other information required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.

The Company has not resolved to announce and publish

financial results on a quarterly basis and has not adopted
recommended best practices C.1.6 and C.1.7.
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C.2 Risk Management and Internal Control C.2 REEE R AR

The Board has the overall responsibility to maintain sound
and effective risk management and internal control systems
for the Group and to review their effectiveness to safeguard
Shareholders’ investment and the Group's assets. To this
end, risk management and internal control systems have
been established to provide reasonable assurance against
material misstatement or loss, and to manage or mitigate
risks of failure to achieve business objectives. The Board
oversees the senior management in design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems and the senior management have provided
a confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of these
systems for 2018.

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the above principle and Code provisions C.2.1 to C.2.5 and
has taken into consideration recommended best practices
C.2.6 to C.2.7 as described as follows:

C.2.1The Company’s target is to establish an efficient and
effective risk management and internal control system.

The Company emphasizes on professional integrity and
high business ethics. 533 managerial officers and staff
signed an annual declaration on compliance with code
of ethics for the year under review.

The Company and its subsidiaries provide regular
training to its management and staff. The training
sessions not only cover the technical and operational
aspects of our businesses, but also on business ethics,
Listing Rules, corporate laws and regulations and
internal controls.

EESTHARANRRARNASE
EEpEIE R ARMEEER - WiaF
PR REERRIRE R AN EEEE °
Rt REBRTERETE R AR
BERS  NEaBRETGHRERELR
BaiEKL  WEBNFEREEDZE
BEERNER - EFGER -~ BT
N BB E e E IR AR BRI R AT |
EESRERE - E%Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ%
$ u/u;A:}v Zﬁ —)\$E@W
R o

REBEFE  ARRBRSEST LR
BIESFBIEXXC21EC25MME &
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aan T
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BRRE R E IR & AP 62
/%0

AArRfABENEESRE
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The Group has an internal audit department which is
responsible for the monitoring of the Group’s internal
control. The internal audit team has unrestricted access
and authority to review the information on the business
and internal control matters of the Group. The Chief
Audit Officer reports directly to the Chairman of the
Audit and Risk Committee and administratively to the
President. The internal auditors can employ outside
resources when necessary. In 2018, the internal audit
department completed internal audits and follow-
up audits on a number of subsidiaries and branches
of the Group, and presented their findings and
recommendations to the Audit and Risk Committee and
senior management of the Company.

During the year, the Board had reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems (including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions) of
the Group. The Board believes that in order to manage
the risk of failure in achieving the Group’s goals and
objectives to an ultimate extent, the Group should
improve continuously its risk management and internal
control systems.

C.2.2In March 2019, the Audit and Risk Committee reviewed

the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience of the Company’s internal audit function,
accounting and financial reporting function and
believes that the Group should monitor on an ongoing
basis its total resources in the accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions, and continue
to increase its investment and budgets for staff
recruitment and training and information technology
system.

C.2.3The Board, through the Audit and Risk Committee,

reviews annually the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the
Company and its subsidiaries, such review considers:

e the changes in the significant risks since the last
review, and the Company's ability to respond
to changes in its business and the external
environment;
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the management’s ongoing monitoring of risks
and the internal control system, and the work of
the internal audit function;

the communication of the monitoring results to
the Board semi-annually that enables it to assess
control of the Company and the effectiveness of
the risk management;

any possible significant control failings or
weaknesses that have been identified and the
extent to which they have caused unforeseeable
outcomes or contingencies that had or might
have material impact on the Company’s financial
performance or condition; and

the effectiveness of the Company’s processes for
financial reporting and Listing Rule compliance.

C.2.4In the year under review, the Company complied
with the risk management and internal control code
provisions C.2.4(a) to C.2.4(e) as described as follows:

(a)

The Board has delegated to senior management of
the Company the responsibility to design, operate
and monitor its risk management and internal
control systems for identifying and evaluating the
risks and probable exposures faced by the Group.
Key risks, control measures and management
actions are continually identified, reviewed and
monitored by the management. The internal
auditor assists and guides the management in
the formulation of risk policies and processes
to effectively identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks. The management has established
a risk identification and management process.

The senior management is accountable to the
Board for providing assurance on managing and
monitoring the risk management and internal
control.
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The Group's risk management and internal control
systems provide a systematic and disciplined
approach to risk management process, which
are embedded as an integral part of corporate
governance. The systems help sustain business
success, create value for stakeholders and support
the Board in discharging its corporate governance
responsibilities by proactively identifying,
addressing and managing key risks within the
Group.

The Board is accountable for overseeing the
Group's risk management and internal control
systems and for reviewing its effectiveness,
while the management and other personnel are
responsible for implementing and maintaining
a robust system of internal controls that covers
governance, compliance, risk management,
financial as well as operational controls to
safeguard the Group's assets and stakeholders’
interests. The systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasonable, and not absolute assurance against
material misstatements or loss.

All findings and recommendations on internal
control deficiencies for each audit engagement
are communicated to senior management who
are required to establish remedial plans to
correct those internal control deficiencies within
a reasonable time period. Post-audit reviews are
performed regularly to monitor those agreed
action plans and to ensure that corrective
measures of previously identified internal control
deficiencies have been implemented as intended
and on a timely basis. Significant deficiencies
of individual engagement are reported to and
reviewed by the Audit and Risk Committee.
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C3

(e) The Company has adopted a policy for certain
relevant employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information
in relation to the Company or its shares, for
instance financial results of the Company.
Relevant employees are required to acknowledge
their understanding of this policy and the list of
relevant employees is updated at regular intervals.
The Group has management controls in place
to ensure that potential inside information can
be promptly identified, assessed and escalated
for the attention of the Board to decide the
need for disclosure. Furthermore, the Company
ensures that dissemination of inside information
strictly complies with the standards and disclosure
requirements of the Listing Rules.

C.2.5The Company has an internal audit function in place.

In the annual assessment of the effectiveness and adequacy
of the risk management and internal control systems, the
Company has taken into consideration the recommended
best practices contained in C.2.6 and C.2.7.

The Company considers the risk management and internal
control systems are effective and adequate.

Audit and Risk Committee

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the Code provisions C.3.1 to C.3.7 and recommended best
practice C.3.8 as described as follows:

C.3.1Full minutes of the Audit and Risk Committee meetings
were kept by a duly appointed secretary of the meeting.
Draft and final version of minutes of the Audit and
Risk Committee meetings were sent to all committee
members for their comment and records within a
reasonable time after the meeting.
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C.3.2The Company's Audit and Risk Committee comprises
three Independent Non-executive Directors and
one Non-executive Director, with Chairman of the
Committee, who is an Independent Non-executive
Director, having the requisite qualification, knowledge
and experience. A former partner of the Company's
existing auditor shall be prohibited from acting as a
member of the Audit and Risk Committee for a period
of two years from the date of the person ceasing to be
a partner of the firm; or to have any financial interest

in the firm, whichever is later.

C.3.3The main duties of the Audit and Risk Committee

include the following:

e to investigate any activity within its terms of
reference with full access to all books, records,
facilities and personnel. It is authorised to seek
information it requires from any employee and all
employees are required to co-operate with any
request made by the Audit and Risk Committee;

e to obtain independent legal or other professional
advice and to secure the attendance of outsiders
with relevant experience and expertise if it
considers necessary to carry out its duties; and

e to be primarily responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor,
and any questions of its resignation or dismissal.
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The attendance record of the members of the Audit
and Risk Committee during the year under review is set
out as follows:

BEZEERZ 8 gKE N O E
FE A FERCEREII T

Number of meetings
attended/number of

Fix a0

Audit and Risk Committee BEREE®

meetings held

HFE BT

Attendance rate

Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung (Chairman) 5EE# (E/F)

Elsie Leung Qi-sie Pgad
Jack So Chak Kwong ERZ N
Wang Yan FE

SRRH i R
3/3 100%
3/3 100%
2/3 67%
1/3 33%

The terms of reference of the Audit and Risk Committee
have incorporated all the duties set out in the Code
provision and are reviewed regularly and enhanced
where necessary.

For the period from 1 January 2018 to the date of this
report, the Audit and Risk Committee has performed
its duties, including reviewing the Group’s interim
and annual results, risk management and internal
control systems, the internal control report prepared
by the Company's internal audit department and the
statement relating to risk management and internal
control systems as set out in this report. The Audit
and Risk Committee also met with the external auditor
without the presence of Executive Directors and
senior management. In March 2019, the Audit and
Risk Committee reviewed the financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018,
including the major accounting issues raised by the
external auditor. The Audit and Risk Committee also
recommended the re-appointment of the external
auditor.

C.3.4The terms of reference of the Audit and Risk Committee
are available on the Company’'s website (www.cr-
power.com) and the Stock Exchange's website.

%% B S B & 08 0 E
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C.3.5In 2018, there was no disagreement between the Board C3ISRZE—NF - HEFINEZ

and the Audit and Risk Committee on the selection and
appointment of the external auditor. The Audit and Risk
Committee is mandated to monitor the independence
of the external auditor to ensure true objectivity in the
financial statements. Prior to the commencement of
the audit of the Group’s 2018 accounts, the Audit and
Risk Committee received written confirmation from the
external auditor on its independence and objectivity.
The external auditor is refrained from engaging in non-
audit services except for limited tax-related services or
specific approved items. The Audit and Risk Committee
reviews the external auditor’s statutory audit scope and
non-audit services and approves its fees.

gE EEgRBELERRE
BEeUTEARAER - FRER
REEERERERINERE
RDE B - AR B K
ERHELFEBENER - K&
BT \FHREZZRAGBZ
Al ERERREZE SRR
SIEE % SR BN A B8 08 L1 N R
MHEEER - BRBRENR
BRI ERRB SN SNEX
SR N BRRMIERBR - T
ZERBREEEEEINEEE
B #00A T AR H B M SR E R
%o WHt/ERWKE -

2018
—E-N\E
HK$'000
FHT

Audit services ZERTE
Non-audit services IEAZ ERAR TS
Total BEt

CIOR-_E—N\F FEZHERRBE

C.3.6The Audit and Risk Committee was provided with a VT o
BERRTERAEITRE -

sufficient resources to discharge its duties in 2018.

C.3.7The terms of reference of the Audit and Risk Committee €37 %V;ﬁg@ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ@g@% %’@
have incorporated all the duties contained in the Code EEE'@U\TTE\'J fE% 32 P 261 BO P A L
provision. =

C.3.8The Company has established a whistleblowing policy C38 A A B 78 IK R K

B REMEAEEXZXZHHE
fitb At AT 45 L RS R RS E B B A

and system by which employees and others who deal

with the Group can raise concerns, in confidence, \ o
about possible improprieties in any matter related to SENEREBEETRESHE -

the Group. The contents of the whistleblowing policy REHRROADT AEARR R

are available on the Company’s website (www.cr- A b (www.cr-power.com) &
power.com). Bd °
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D.

D.1

D.2

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Management functions

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the principle set out in the Code and Code provisions D.1.1
to D.1.4 as described below:

D.1.1The Board is mainly responsible for formulating and
approving the business strategies, objectives, policies
and plans of the Group, and monitoring the execution
of the Group’'s strategies. It is also responsible for
overseeing the operational and financial performance
of the Group and establishing appropriate risk control
policies and procedures in order to ensure that the
strategic objectives of the Group are achieved. In
addition, the Board is also responsible for improving
the corporate governance structure and enhancing
communications with Shareholders.

D.1.2The Board Charter has laid out clearly the role of the
Board, including matters which are reserved for Board
approval and delegation to management. The Board
Charter is reviewed regularly and enhanced where
necessary to take account of changes in law and
governance practices as well as changes in business
operations.

D.1.3The responsibilities of the Board and the management
are contained in the Board Charter which is available
on the Company’s website (www.cr-power.com).

D.1.4The Company has formal letter of appointment for all
Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of
their appointment.

Board committees

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the principle set out in the Code and Code provisions D.2.1
and D.2.2 as described below:

D.2.1The Company has established written terms of
reference for the Committees (namely, Audit and
Risk, Nomination, Remuneration and Sustainability
Committees) of the Board. Details on the duties and
terms of reference of the Board Committees are
available on the Company’s website (www.cr-power.
com) and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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D2.2The terms of reference of each Board Committee
require it to report back to the Board on its decisions
and recommendations.

In addition to the Nomination, Remuneration and Audit
and Risk Committees meetings held as mentioned on
pages 107, 114 and 123 of this Annual Report, the
Sustainability Committee also held one meeting in 2018
where all members of the committee attended the
meeting.

D.3 Corporate Governance Functions

During the year under review, the Company strictly complied
with the Code provisions D.3.1 and D.3.2 as described
below:

D.3.1The Board Charter includes the duties specified in the
code provision.

D.3.2The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out in the Board Charter
including determining the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company, and duties performed by
the Board under D.3.1.

E. COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

E.1 Effective communication

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the principle set out in the Code and Code provisions E.1.1
to E.1.5 as described below:

E.1.11In respect of each substantially separate issue at a
general meeting, a separate resolution was proposed by
the Chairman of the meeting, including the re-election
of individual Directors. The poll voting results of the
meetings are available on the Company’s website
(www.cr-power.com) and the Stock Exchange's website.
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Matters resolved at the 2018 AGM

Received the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017 together with the Reports of
the Directors and the Independent Auditor

Approved payment of the final dividend of HK$0.75 per
share for the year ended 31 December 2017

Re-elected Mr. Li Ru Ge, Mr. Ge Changxin, Mr. Hu Min,
Ms. Wang Xiao Bin and Mr. So Chak Kwong, Jack, as
Directors, and authorised the Board of Directors to fix
the remuneration of the Directors for the year ended
31 December 2018

Re-appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers as Auditor of the
Company and authorised the Board to fix the Auditor’s
remuneration

Granted a general mandate to the Board for the share
repurchase of a number not exceeding 10% of the total
number of the Company’s issued shares as at the date
of 2018 AGM

Granted a general mandate to the Directors to issue
new shares of the Company not exceeding 20% of the
total number of the Company’'s issued shares as at the
date of 2018 AGM

Approved to extend the general mandate granted to
the Directors to issue new shares of the Company
by addition thereto of the shares repurchased by the
Company
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E.1.2The general meeting is the ideal venue for the

interchange of ideas between the Board, the
management and Shareholders. We therefore
encourage Shareholders to attend our AGM to discuss
matters of business substance with the Board and
management and to give us valuable advice and
feedback on both operational and governance matters.
At the AGM held on 28 May 2018 at 10:00am, there
were a total of 96 individual Shareholders, authorised
representatives of corporate Shareholders as well as
proxies participated and the number of shares voted
represented 84.50% of the total number of the
Company'’s issued shares.

As laid out in the attendance table in A.1.1 on page 98
of this Annual Report, a majority of Directors attended
the AGM held on 28 May 2018. The Directors and
management of the Company took the opportunity
to communicate with the Shareholders present, and
answered their queries with respect to the Company’s
operations and industries. A representative of the
external auditor attended the AGM and was available
to answer Shareholder’s questions about the conduct
of the audit and the preparation and content of the
auditor’s report (if any).

The Company, the Board and management highly value
the opinions and requirements of our Shareholders.
The Company communicates with Shareholders through
various channels including publication of interim
and Annual Reports, circulars, press releases and
announcements of the latest business developments,
operational results, major financing plans and other
developments of the Company on its corporate website
(www.cr-power.com) and the Stock Exchange’s website
in a timely manner.

E.1.3 The notices to Shareholders are sent at least 20 clear

business days before the AGM and at least 10 clear
business days for the extraordinary general meeting.
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Convening Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to section 566 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of Laws of Hong Kong), members of the
Company representing at least 5% of the total voting
rights of all the members having a right to vote at general
meetings may request the Directors to call a general
meeting. The request must state the general nature of
business to be dealt with at the meeting and may include
the text of a resolution that may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at the meeting. The request may
consist of several documents in like form and may be sent
to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form and
must be authenticated by the person(s) making it.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to section 615 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of Laws of Hong Kong), the members of the
Company may request the Company to give to members
of the Company entitled to receive notice of the annual
general meeting, notice of a resolution that may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting. The
request may be sent to the Company in hard copy form (by
depositing at the registered office of the Company for the
attention of the Board) or in electronic form (by email: crp-
ir@crc.com.hk) and must identify the resolution of which
notice is to be given, authenticated by the person or persons
making it and received by the Company not later than 6
weeks before the annual general meeting to which the
requests relate; or if later, the time at which notice is given
of that meeting.

The Company will give notice of a resolution if it has
received the requests from (a) members representing at
least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the members who
have a right to vote on the resolution at the annual general
meeting to which the requests relate; or (b) at least 50
members who have a relevant right to vote.
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Procedure for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as Director

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as Director are available on the website of the
Company (www.cr-power.com).

E.1.4 An Investor Relations team has been designated to
maintain purposeful dialogue and ongoing relationships
with investors and analysts. We strive to provide quality
information to Shareholders as well of our many
stakeholders regarding the latest developments of the
Company whilst ensuring that material information is
equally and simultaneously provided and accessible to
all interested parties. The Company has established a
shareholder’s communication policy which is available
on the Company’s website (www.cr-power.com).

Investor Relations Activities

The Company consistently pays close attention to investor
relations activities and always believes that maintaining
effective communications with Shareholders and provision
of timely and accurate information are critical in creating
shareholder value.

The Company enhances communication with Shareholders
through various investor relations activities. Details of major
investor relations activities in 2018 are set out below.

In 2018, there were over 100 requests for company visits
and teleconferences from different investors. Together
with investor conferences and roadshows in major financial
centres around the world, we met approximately more than
250 fund managers and analysts. During the meetings with
investors, we explained the development and trend of the
power industry and updated Shareholders on our operational
conditions, strategic planning and future outlook. We also
placed great emphasis on listening to investors’ feedback,
concerns and expectations so we can relay the messages
from Shareholders to our management team.
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In order to enhance the understanding of investors towards
our business operations, we also arranged site visits to
power plants in Beijing, Nanjing and Guangdong for fund
managers and securities analysts. These activities enabled
our investors to have the opportunity of direct contact
with front-line managers and staff, thereby having a better
understanding of our operations, and in the meantime,
our front-line managers were also able to get a better
understanding of shareholders’ expectations, which helped
to improve our internal management.

Through emails or designated telephone lines, we also
provide Shareholders and potential investors with a channel
to obtain the latest information of the Company and have
their queries answered in a timely manner. We announce our
power generation volume and coal production volume on a
monthly basis on our Company website (www.cr-power.com)
as well as through announcements on the website of the
Stock Exchange.

The Board always welcomes Shareholders’ views and input.
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board by addressing them to the Investor
Relations Department of the Company by letter, telephone,
fax or email. Details of the contact information can be found
on page 342 of this Annual Report.

E.1.5The Company adopts a general dividend policy that
aims to provide shareholders of the Company out of
the Group’s profit attributable to shareholders in any
financial year, subject to the criteria set out below.

Such declaration and payment of dividends shall
remain to be determined at the discretion of the Board
and subject to all applicable requirements under the
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and the Articles of Association of the Company.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also
take into account, inter alia:

e the Group actual and expected financial
performance;

e shareholders’ interests;

e retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company;
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e the capital structure of the Company;

e the Company’s capital expenditure and future
expansion plans;

e statutory and regulatory restrictions;
e general business conditions and strategies;

e general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group’s business and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business
or financial performance and position of the
Company; and

e other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Board may propose the payment of dividends, if
any, with respect to the Company's shares on a per
share basis.

In addition to cash, dividends may be distributed in
the form of shares subject to and in accordance with
the procedures set out in the Company's Articles of
Association.

Except for interim dividend, any dividends declared
by the Company must be approved by an ordinary
resolution of shareholders at the general meeting and
must not exceed the amount recommended by the
Board.

The Company will continually review its dividend policy
and reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion
to update, amend and/or modify its dividend policy at
any time.

E.2 Voting by Poll

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the Code principle and Code provision E.2.1. The Chairman
explained the detailed procedures for conducting a poll at
the AGM in 2018.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

In the year under review, the Company strictly complied with
the Code principle and Code provisions F.1.1 to F.1.4.

The role of Company Secretary is taken on by Ms. Wang Xiao
Bin, who is also an Executive Director and Chief Financial
Officer of the Company and has day-to-day knowledge of
the Company’s affairs. Her duties as Company Secretary
include ensuring good information flow among the Directors
and that board policy, procedures and all applicable laws,
rules and regulations are followed. She advises the Directors
through the Chairman of the Company and also facilitates
induction and professional development of Directors.

In 2018, Ms. Wang attended at least 15 hours of relevant
training which complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

. CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

In the year under review, there were no significant changes
in the Company’s Articles of Association.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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To the Members of China Resources Power Holdings
Company Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China Resources Power
Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 146 to 340 which
comprise:

o the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018;

. the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

o Impairment of the non-financial assets (including property,
plant and equipment, prepaid lease payment, mining rights
and prepayment for acquisition of mining rights) in coal
mining segment

o Disposal of coal mining assets
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Key Audit Matters

Impairment of non-financial assets (including property,
plant and equipment, prepaid lease payment, mining
rights and prepayment for acquisition of mining rights) in
the coal mining segment

Refer to notes 4(b), 4(d), 6, 7, 8, 9 and 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group had made material impairment of non-
financial assets in its coal mining segment in past years
because of the coal market downturn and China’s supply-
side reform. During the year, although the Group had
disposed several subsidiaries in coal mining segment
and the coal prices had been kept at high level, the
Group continued with its shutdown plan of some of
its coal mines gradually, pursuant to the government
policy implemented for reducing overcapacity in the
coal industry. This indicated that the carrying amounts
of the non-financial assets of the Group in the coal
mining segment might not be recoverable. Therefore,
management performed an impairment assessment and
made additional impairment provision of approximately
HK$180,429,000 for non-financial assets in the coal
mining segment for the year ended 31 December 2018.

For the impairment assessment performed, management
of the Group had determined the recoverable amounts of
the coal mining related non-financial assets based on the
higher of their fair values less costs of disposal and their
value in use (“VIU") amounts. VIU calculation involved
significant management estimates and judgements
including (1) the possibility of converting prepayments
made into mining rights; and (2) growth rate of coal
prices, output volumes, estimated operation date for the
coal mines currently under construction and discount
rates used in the calculation.

We focused on this area due to the material amount of
the non-financial assets and the significant estimates and
judgements involved in the impairment assessments using
the VIU calculation.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

We obtained management’s assessment and supporting
documents, and checked the accuracy of calculation
by verifying the inputs of the underlying financial
information and the correctness of calculation.

We assessed the reasonableness of the following
management'’s key assumptions used in the impairment
assessments:

o Possibility and timing of converting the
prepayments made into the mining rights - we
reviewed the related agreements and the relevant
government policies. We inquired management
as to assess their views on the development of
coal mine industry, the approval status of related
projects and if there were any legal barriers;

e  Growth rates of coal prices — we compared them
to the historical trend of coal prices and economic
and industry forecasts, and corroborated with the
discussion and enquiry with the management;

o Output volumes of each operating coal mine,
and estimated operation date for the coal
mines currently in construction — we compared
them to the approved throughput, and relevant
government requirements/standards for coal mine
industry;

o Discount rates — we involved our valuation
specialists to assess the reasonableness of the
discount rates used, taking into account the cost
of capital of each cash generating unit as well as
the relevant territory and industry specific factors.

We also formulated a range of sensitivity analysis
by varying the key assumptions to assess whether
additional impairment provision or reduction would have
been required.

We found the significant estimations and judgements
made by the management can be supported by the
evidence we obtained.
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Key Audit Matters
Disposal of coal mining assets

Refer to Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

On 17 August 2018, the Company announced that it had
entered into two equity transfer framework agreements
to transfer the equity interests in certain coal mining
group entities. One agreement was transacted with a
third party Guoyuan Company (as defined in Note 45)
and the other with the Company’s immediate holding
company CRH (as defined in Note 1).

On 23 November 2018, the Group entered into a formal
equity transfer agreement with AACI (as defined in
Note 45), a wholly owned subsidiary of CRH to dispose
its entire equity interests in AACI HK, which holds
51% equity interest in CR Daning (as defined in Note
45) in cash consideration of HK$3.9 billion. The cash
consideration was determined based on an independent
third party valuation performed on the fair value of equity
interest of AACI HK as of 30 June 2018. The disposal
was approved by an extraordinary general meeting of
shareholders of the Company held on 17 December 2018.

On 26 December, the Group entered into a formal equity
transfer agreement and a formal debt restructuring
agreement with Guoyuan Company. The Company agreed
to transfer the equity interest of its indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, CR Coal (as defined in Note 45), and four
of the coal companies under CR Coal (collectively the
“Target Coal Companies”) and all their respective coal
mines to Guoyan Company at a consideration of RMB1.
Meanwhile, Guoyuan Company agreed to undertaken to
repay RMB11 billions of shareholder loans of the Target
Coal Companies, which they owed to the Group totally
RMB21.9 billions.

The directors of the Company considered the above two
transactions as a single arrangement.

The carrying amount of the disposed coal mining assets
was about HK$5.6 billion and the arrangement resulted
in a loss of HK$2.1 billion in 2018.

We identified disposal of coal mining assets as a key
audit matter because the structure of the transactions
are complex, have material impacts to the consolidated
financial statements, and we spent considerable audit
efforts in this area.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

We read all the relevant meeting minutes,
announcements and agreements entered into by the
Company, to assess the business reason of these
transactions.

We assessed the rationale and reasons leading to the
judgement made by management of the Group that
these transactions should be accounted for as a single
arrangement and how the date of completion of the
disposal was determined.

We scrutinized how the consideration of the
transactions were determined, in particular, the
consideration for the transfer of equity interest in AACI
HK, given it is a related party transaction.

With assistance of our internal valuation experts,
we read the related independent valuer’'s report
and assessed the valuation methodology and key
assumptions applied.

We performed audit procedures on significant items in
the financial statements of the disposed companies as at
the date of completion of disposal to evaluate accuracy
of the net assets being disposed. We examined the
cash receipts of the consideration. We reperformed the
detailed calculation of disposal losses.

We checked relevant accounting treatment and the
relevant disclosures made in the consolidated financial
statements.

We found that the measurement and presentation
made by the Company in relation to the disposal were
supported by the evidence we obtained.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the “Report of the Directors” and “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis” (but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’'s report thereon), which
we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report. On the
other hand, the following information are expected to be made
available to us after that date, including the “5-Year Summary”,
“About CR Power”, “Service Areas”, “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Directors and Senior Management”, “Corporate Governance
Report”, “Corporate Information” and “Information for
Investors”.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other
information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the “5-Year Summary”, “About CR Power”,
“Service Areas”, “Chairman’s Statement”, “Directors and Senior
Management”, “Corporate Governance Report”, “Corporate
Information” and “Information for Investors”, if we conclude
that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to the Audit and Risk Committee
and take appropriate action considering our legal rights and
obligations.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit and Risk Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit and Risk Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safequards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit and Risk
Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Chow Wai Yin.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
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» CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

N SHEERERER

Note
B aE

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB RRE 6
Prepaid lease payments TENHEERIE 7
Mining rights PRUE 8
Exploration and resources rights BIRENERAE 9
Long-term receivables and R AR K R BATE T 5RIB
prepayment for non-current assets 14
Investments in associates FOBGE 5 1 SE R i 2 10(a)
Investments in joint ventures REEPERNER 11(a)
Loans to a joint venture mEe & EER 11(b)
Amounts due from a joint venture JEW & &> FRIE 18
Goodwill B 12
Deferred income tax assets BEEFTSITHEE 33
Financial assets at fair value through WAREBEFEAES
other comprehensive income (FVOCI) ST AEMERE WA
TRIEE 13(a)
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 13(a)
Loans to an FVOCI investee company MAAABEFERE
T AHMARS WY
WIRERNEER 13(b)
Loans to an available-for-sale [ ] B R IRE A A
investee company EX 13(b)
Loan to a non-controlling shareholder  [A]Ff /& A A5 HII A% 3R
of a subsidary B3 19(b)
Current assets RENE
Inventories FE 15
Trade receivables, other receivables FEURBR SR - E fth FE U RIB
and prepayments RIERT IR 16
Loans to associates A B 1 S B R 10(b)
Loans to joint ventures mE&EPEER 11(b)
Loans to an FVOCI investee company MIARABEFEBEEH)
ST AHEMARS WY
WIRERNEER 13(b)
Loans to an available-for-sale A ] B AR IR E A A
investee company BEX 13(b)
Loans to non-controlling shareholders  [&) B /& /A B FE2 %Il 1 A% 51
of a subsidary B 19(b)
Amounts due from associates JREE LS B o 1 2E SR IE 17
Amounts due from joint ventures & & E IR 18
Amounts due from other JFE 5 L Ath B 3 R R SR IE
related companies 19(a)
Pledged and restricted bank deposits BRI R ZBRHIRITFR 20
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBFEFED 21
Total assets BEE
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As at 31 December
R+=—RA=+—H

2018
—E2-)N\F
HK$'000
FHExT

145,272,477
3,437,135
480,605
216,025

11,521,984
9,480,198
3,678,437

1,287,142
882,182

1,877,311

126,331

14,266

178,274,093

3,295,536

17,898,990
33,137
45,652

306,631

36,521
32,637
42,473

66,063
214,281
7,977,153

29,949,074

208,223,167

2017
—TE—+F
HK$'000
FHET

152,334,653
3,537,380
15,301,970
162,310

5,093,455
8,747,317
3,660,368
41,590
142,566
1,626,560
946,782

1,516,177

149,937

14,954

193,276,019

3,205,152

16,006,853
1,158,256
255,889

303,893

466,885
25,006

2,649
890,182
5,381,686

27,696,451

220,972,470



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
SHEERER

As at 31 December

Rt+=ZHA=+—H
Note 2018 2017
ks =LV Tt F
HK$'000 HK$:00_O
F#ET AT
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EakaEd
Equity attributable to owners RAREEABMLES
of the Company
Share capital fi% 7 22 22,316,710 22,341,736
Other reserves 1&1;%1% 24 VARV 13,618,598
Retained earnings REFE 25 cLWELNPEN 39,253,485
70,135,314 75,213,819
Non-controlling interests FEPES) iR 7,149,297 5,528,061
Total equity HRER 77,284,611 80,741,880
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings BE 31 EWAORVAN 68,761,886
Contract liabilities /\Hgﬁ 27 531,755 —
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFASFRAE 33 778,517 2,576,356
Deferred income PRFEW A 34 779,275 1,060,334
Retirement and other long-term BrRARHEMERET
employee benefits obligations BRI AR 38(iii) 56,729 224,604
71,356,447 72,623,180
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables, other payables and JETRR R« ELfth J& (< RKIB
accruals RFE: B 26 L WEENIAN 32,181,836
Contract liabilities aRAE 27 1,128,165 —
Amounts due to associates FE ST B & 1> 2 FR08 28 1,370,208 629,919
Amounts due to joint ventures F‘§1‘TA**/JJ:\¥/TJ\I§ 29 648,770 317,077
Amounts due to other JE A< EL b B 38 R R 5RIR
related companies 30 292,310 1,440,535
Current income tax liabilities eI PT1SHIR 423,929 877,060
Borrowings BE 31 YA RIAN 32,160,983
59,582,109 67,607,410
Total liabilities weE EDCEERAN 140,230,590
Total equity and liabilities mERREE W IEWYERIFA 220,972,470

The notes on pages 154 to 340 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 146 to 340 were approved by
the Board of Directors on 22 March 2019 and were signed on its
behalf.

Director

=

F154BEFE 40BN T IZEEHY
EMRAKEE D o

BEECR _E—NF=A-+_-HBAE
%@E’\\%M6E F 340 B BHR K ]I
EET@J%%R%%%%TZE :

Director

5=
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

o BHHREE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEFE

Note 2018 2017
B 5 —ZE-N —T—+
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FEx FETT
Turnover EHER 5 ARLURPEN 73,311,677
Operating expenses: KRN
Fuels Rk (LW EIRLE))  (38,071,827)
Repairs and maintenance HASAI4EE (PRELRVZN (1,848,321)
Depreciation and amortisation P7EE B BR ((RREPICEPNY  (10,507,422)
Employee benefit expenses EERMNMAXZ 37 (FEWENY  (5,177,763)
Consumables A ERECREPI)Y  (1,032,152)
Impairment charges B R 43 (962,004) (850,665)
Tax and surcharge i K BT an RN (1,163,242)
Others HAh (EXCERLIEY  (4,163,098)
Total operating expenses B E A ({RVANEY)] (62,814,490)
Other income H A A 35 2,613,340 2,335,498
Other gains/(losses) — net Eﬁﬂf' S,/ (1B%) —F58 36 91,441 (352,687)
Net loss on disposal of certain HERBERES AT
subsidiaries in coal mining segment B A REEFE 45 (2,121,569) —
Operating profit KERE BEEVERELS 12,479,998
Finance costs Mi%E A 39 [CREENFEI)  (3,991,498)
Share of results of associates JELEtE XS 10 223,638 136,448
Share of results of joint ventures EhEeatEEER 11(a) 53,937 (104,558)
Profit before income tax R %3 A0 A 7,311,175 8,520,390
Income tax expense TSt &R 40 (Eyrkiaelrd)  (2,901,686)
Profit for the year FRFE 5,024,873 5,618,704
Profit for the year attributable to: FRABEBER :
Owners of the Company KABIEAR A 3,950,435 4,623,323
Non-controlling interests JEIEHI MR 1,074,438 995,381
5,024,873 5,618,704
Earnings per share attributable to FRABRBRERTREETEAZ
owners of the Company for BREF
the year 41
- Basic —EK CIEEKE-FA HK$0.978 7T
- Diluted —#E CIECTEEY:- T HK$0.97%5 7T
The notes on pages 154 to 340 an integral part of these 21548 ZF340 BEMWEIZEE O

BRI A E D ©

consolidated financial statements.
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» CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
«o COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

L AHRFEIRAS

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—BHLFE

2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
FAT
Profit for the year F R AE 5,024,873 5,618,704
Other comprehensive (loss)/income:  Hfth 2 (E58), WA :
Currency translation differences b W =% (4,578,808) 5,750,623
Share of other comprehensive (loss)/ GRS EZEIRER
income of investments accounted Hib#ra (E518), e
for using the equity method (206,700) 190,355
Release to profit or loss upon REEWBAREEER
disposal of subsidiaries (818,797) (2,549)
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale At EERMEERNLEBEE S
investments, net of tax (Biz) (33,642)
Items that will not be reclassified to TREEFT DA E R e I IH B
profit or loss
Changes in fair value of FVOCI, net of tax ARAREBEFEBZ ST AHAM
melEnNemEEANEERE
2E(Big) —
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FAHMEE(EE), WA
for the year, net of tax wEE (F1&) (5,295,661) 5,904,787
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FRBEZEER) WARE
for the year, net of tax (eHORAL) 11,523,491
Attributable to: BER
Owners of the Company RARIEER A EBFARETIY) 10,299,555
Non-controlling interests FEE M 900,578 1,223,936
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FAZE(EBE) WALE
for the year (270,788) IEREREYER/ N

The notes on pages 154 to 340 are an integral part of these 1548 Z=F 340 BMMENZES HH
consolidated financial statements. BEmTRHAEKED o
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» CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGGES IN EQUITY
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BHIEERER

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+—HLFE

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid

BEZDELNRTRE
REEPEENRSE
EAEHR

Cash inflows from
operating activities - net

RETHELENRERNFE

Cash flows from investing activities
Dividend received from associates
Dividend received from FVOCI

investee companies

Dividend received from
available-for-sale investments
Interest received
Decrease in term deposits
Acquisition of property,
plant and equipment,
prepaid lease payments,
mining rights and exploration and
resources rights
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payments
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, net
Loans repaid by/(loans to) associates

Loans repaid by/(loans to) joint ventures

(Loans to)/loans repaid by other

related parties
Capital contributions into associates
Capital contributions into joint ventures
Cash outflow on acquisition of

interest in a subsidiary
Additional investment made into FVOCI

Government grants related to assets

REFDELENAESRE
B EERKS
EWM REEFER

AT AR AR & U aS #Y
W&ﬁ AR S
BWAIHEHERERE

2 A8

TE BT SR

BEVE - BERRE
BNBERE - REER
BRI ERIE

HEME  BE - RER
BNHEERENAEHIE

HERBA ﬂﬁﬁ/aﬁf\lﬁg‘%ﬁ
BECEERRER
(MEEtEER)
BRLEEEER
(WA%/&\¥E )
(MEMBEEHER),
,\MEEHWEﬁEﬁK
AR CETE
REELETE
WK B A B A
Bemt s
RLAREEFEBEE
STAEAMERE MR
TREENEIMEE
£ /2 AR 2 A0 TS 4 1

Note
B &
43(a) 20,627,406
(2,530,642)
18,096,764
531,507
PAVRYE]
307,825
37,996
(16,884,456)
43 337,031
43(b) 8,371,942

143,161

113,000
(39,880)
(725,228)
(100,548)
(4,923)

(851)
111,074

Cash outflows from
investing activities - net

REFHELNRSRHFE

(7,589,677)
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2017
—tF
HK$'000
THT

21,379,778
(2,817,758)

18,562,020

908,581

218,593
212,399
82,229

(15,527,187)
239,401
445,824
(654,872)
(118,507)
19,919

(530,382)
(61,494)

(14,720,509)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

SHREERER

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from bank borrowings
Repayment of bank borrowings
Redemption of corporate

bonds and notes
(Repayment of advances to)/
advances from an intermediate
holding company
Proceeds from issuance of
shares for exercised options
Proceeds from sale of shares
held by share award scheme
Proceeds from disposal of interests
in a subsidiary without loss of control
Capital contributions for additional
interest in a subsidiary
Capital contributions from
non-controlling interests
Advances from associates
Advances from/(repayment of
advances to) joint ventures
Repayment of advances to other
related companies
Advances from/(repayment of
advances to) non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries
Interests paid
Dividends paid to owners
of the Company
Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries

RETHELNRERE
HERITIEE
BRBITEE
BOARERRER

(EEREERATRE),/
IR A B 2K

RITERBRERITRMD A
TR

HE B D SR Bhat &I P RE AR O
HO PSR

HEMB LA ES
(CRERIZHIE) SRR
W BB P B xRS

1Ean s T RIFRIR
gL S

B (b X BGR

RELERF
(BERERZELERN)

278 E A R X B 23K

P /88 2 B HO SR AR A 2R
2R/ (EEMBL RN
IR RSN

ENFE

BIRNADEHEE ABRR

RANE =N Zli e
BR

Cash outflows from
financing activities - net

Net increase in cash and REeRBASEEMEMER
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at FOHReRRFED
beginning of the year

Exchange (losses)/gains BE 5 (18K),/ W

Cash and cash equivalents FRESRBESZEY

at end of the year

The notes on pages 154 to 340 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+—HLFE

2018
—g-N%
HK$’000
FH

56,192,679
(50,617,562)

(4,516,360)

(812,104)

469,970
650,068
(1,042)

1,008,653
289,949

394,042
(455,411)
13,599
(4,757,071)
(4,184,668)

(1,119,931)

(7,445,189)

3,061,898

5,381,686
(466,431)

7,977,153

F154BEF 340 BT Y
EMRAAK D o
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2017
—E—+F
HK$'000
FET

38,788,104
(32,909,672)

800,102
33,954

55,184

497,611
107,090

(517,812)

(34,718)

(5,052)
(4,090,291)

(4,185,088)

(1,770,857)

(3,231,445)

610,066

4,347,022
424,598

5,381,686



» NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

« ST RS F e Bl 5

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”) is a public company incorporated in Hong
Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. The intermediate holding company
of the Company as at 31 December 2018 is China
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited (“CRH"), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The Directors regard the
ultimate holding company of the Company to be China
Resources Company Limited (“CRCL"), a company registered
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the construction and operation of
power stations and coal mining. During the year, the Group
has disposed certain Group entities (including associate
and joint ventures held by the subsidiaries disposed), which
were engaged principally in coal mining in Shanxi province
("Disposal of Shanxi Coal Mining Assets”). The details of the
disposal and the impact to the Group’s financial result and
position are set out in Note 45.

The address of the registered office of the Company is
Rooms 2001-2002, 20th Floor, China Resources Building, 26
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in HK
dollars, unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 22 March 2019.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R RS ER R B 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuED)

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for certain
financial assets which are measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with the HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
4.

2.1.1 Going concern

At 31 December 2018, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately HK$29,633,035,000.
In addition, there were outstanding capital
commitments amounting to HK$22,814,916,000
(Note 44). The directors are of the opinion that,
taking into account the current operating and
business plan of the Group as well as the banking
facilities (Note 31) available to the Group, the
Group has sufficient working capital to enable
it to meet in full its financial obligations as and
when they fall due for the coming twelve months
from the balance sheet date. Therefore, these
consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

2.1

TREES R B =

A
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%‘%ﬁﬁ‘n R
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MR ELER - ARAETH
Bt MEEENEA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 New and amended standards adopted by the
Group
The Group has applied the following standards
and amendments for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2018:

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

o HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

o Amendments to HKFRS 2 “Classification

and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions”

. Amendments to HKFRS 4 “Insurance
Contracts”

o Amendments to HKFRS 28 “Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures”

e Amendments to HKAS 40 “Transfers to
Investment Property”

o HK (IFRIC) 22 “Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration”
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R RS ER R B 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESFBRMEm
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 mEEE @)
2.1.2 New and amended standards adopted by the 2.1.2 7N 5 (8 P £R A O 3R] A

Group (Continued) {EET 2RI (1)
The Group had to change its accounting policies FRBEMBRELENSE
and make certain retrospective adjustments 95% & & B B 15 i 5 X A
following the adoption of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15. F155%  AEEFEN
Most of the other amendments listed above did %/\guﬂﬂl RIVEHSE T
not have any impact on the amounts recognised in BYPHAE L REHH
prior periods and are not expected to significantly ST AR ET 3B 1+ AR R AR
affect the current or future periods. WEBIYEEMRFE B

BT e Y E RS oR KA
BEREATE -

2.1.3 New and amended standards not yet adopted 2.1.3 A< SR B 15 K BR AR 1 37 5] K
by the Group RAERT2ER
Certain new accounting standards and aETHerr Bl RREL
interpretations have been published that are EHEM EERR 2T
not mandatory for 31 December 2018 reporting —N\FE+ZA=+—8%#
periods and have not been early adopted by the HHIR R HIMIT > MAKE
Group. The Group's assessment of the impact of B iR P AN B BT E]
these new standards and interpretations is set out ERARZE - AEBHEB
below. AR ERZENTEM

TERHESZIAT

e HKFRS 16 Leases s FENBHESERNSE
1657 E
HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will BEANBWMEENE
result in almost all leases being recognised 165N T —RF—
on the balance sheet by lessees, as the Rt - AR EME
distinction between operating and finance EHpERE 2HH
leases is removed. Under the new standard, @R hr - FH L2
an asset (the right to use the leased item) TR B M A RAME
and a financial liability to pay rentals are ANEEERBELRTRE
recognised. The only exceptions are short- R RBHFLER - B
term and low-value leases. F(@E}aﬂ? ZIHE M

R 3 A 7 % A
TRABED THER -
e — 9 I Sh R 52 H Ko
EEEES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B I RS IR 5
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEBEESBERMZEm
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 mEEE @)

2,13 7 SE B R R A 9 B 3T
S 5T R (o)

BRI RELEASE

2.1.3 New and amended standards not yet adopted
by the Group (Continued)

o HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) °

The Group will apply the standard from its
mandatory adoption date of 1 January 2019.
The Group intends to apply the simplified
transition approach and will not restate
comparative amounts for the year prior to
first adoption.

The Group has reviewed majority of the
Group’s leasing arrangements up to date in
light of this new accounting standrad. The
standard will affect primarily the accounting
for the Group’'s operating leases.

As set out in Note 44, at the reporting date,
the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$244,657,000.
Of these commitments, approximately
HK$73,384,000 relate to short-term leases
and/or low value leases which will both be
recognised on a straight-line basis as expense
in profit or loss.

Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group
expects to recognise right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for the remaining lease
commitments on 1 January 2019. The
Group's financial performance is not expected
to be materially impact by the adoption of
HKFRS 16. Further update of the impact will
be provided in the interim report for the six
months ending 30 June 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R RS ER R B 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EBEFHBERBZEm

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinuep)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.3 New and amended standards not yet adopted
by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The Group's activities as a lessor are not
material and hence the Group does not
expect any significant impact on the financial
statements. However, some additional
disclosures will be required from next year.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
“Sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture”
were originally intended to be effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016, but the effective date has now
not been determined.

HK (IFRIC) 23 “Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments” is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019. This change in accounting standards
is expected to have no significant effect on
the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 “Prepayment
Features with Negative Compensation” is
effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019. This change in
accounting standards is expected to have
no significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

2.1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EBEFHBEREZRmw

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

21

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.3 New and amended standards not yet adopted
by the Group (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 28 “Long-term
Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures”
is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019. This change in
accounting standards is expected to have
no significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards
2015-2017 Cycle is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019. This change in accounting standards
is expected to have no significant effect on
the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

Amendments to HKAS 19 “Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or Settlement” is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019. This change in accounting
standards is expected to have no effect on
the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R RS ER R B 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.3 New and amended standards not yet adopted
by the Group (Continued)
o HKFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021. This change in accounting
standards is expected to have no effect on
the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

There are no other standards that are not yet
effective and that would be expected to have a
material impact on the entity in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments and HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers on the Group’s financial
statements.

The Group used modified retrospective approach when
adopting HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 without restating
comparative information. The reclassifications and the
adjustments arising from the new impairment rules
under HKFRS 9 alongside with other cumulative impact
of the adoption of HKFRS 15 (if any) are therefore not
reflected in the balance sheet as at 31 December 2017,
but are recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1
January 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& {H Hif %65 R 2R Bfit 53
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEBEESBERMZEm
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 2.2 BETEREEH @)
2.2.1 Impact on the financial statements 221 BRI BRRNTE
The following tables show the adjustments %EQRMEIJEE?_‘EE@
recognised for each individual line item. Line items .;;E’]Eﬂ 5 T2E8
that were not affected by the changes have not v & E‘]\I\ng I{,/‘;E %EE
been included. The adjustments are explained in !ﬁ;;m’fﬂljﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁmﬁ*
more detail by standard below. BRESRE-
31-Dec-17
Consolidated Balance sheet As originally 01-Jan-18
(extract) presented HKFRS 9 HKFRS 15 Restated
N
—T—+#F R
TZR  FREME  EENE it
=t—-8  HBEER ekl —A-AH
AHEERER(RE) REZF] £ 95 E15% &gE75
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THEL THT THEx
Non-current assets ERBEE
FVOC| AR BE:tER
HEBAHM
FalaneREE — 1,516,177 — REA
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 1,516,177  (1,516,177) — —
Current assets TEEE
Trade receivables, other receivables JEMBEFR « EAt
and prepayment %%AIE&TEH%IE 16,006,853  (316,105) = 15,690,748
Equity B
Other reserves Hit A
- Available-for-sale reserves — AN ER ARG 23,213 (23,213) —
- FVOCI reserves —HAAREEHER
HEoar AR M
FalEn G — 23,213 — 23,213
Retained earnings REEF 39,253,485  (242,356) o 39,011,129
Non-controlling interests IR 5,528,061 (73,749) S 5.454,312
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables, other payables — FERTERFN « H A/
and accruals NHBEREFER 32,181,836 —  (1,281,123) ELEIINAE!

Contract liabilities aHaE — — 1,281,123 B EAPE]
There is no material impact on the comparative ﬁ%ﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁ‘%iﬁ%ﬁﬂ']%
consolidated statement of income and 9‘?‘)77&%7%%/5‘%%&/%@5\”
comprehensive income by adopting HKFRS 9 and E 155)%‘7/\1%14&51%&6\
HKFRS 15. @mwz i‘«%ﬁ’]tbf%{?

WEBATE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R RS ER R B 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESFBRMEm
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuED)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 2.2 SFTEEREE (@)
2.2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 222 BB BRELEREIRS
=
HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 BB B HE XA L R
that relate to the recognition, classification and A BB G ERIE 395
measurement of financial assets and financial ﬁj@aﬁﬁiﬁ - DERFTES
liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments, MEENTREME  KIb
impairment of financial assets and hedge EREMIA SREE
accounting. The impacts are set out below in VEREDNE k== i 0k S
detail. X BEZENFBEIRN
T3 e
() Classification and measurement of financial (i) EWMEEIENE
assets

On 1 January 2018 (the date of initial R-ZB—NF—H—
application of HKFRS 9), the Group's HEXERBEY
management has assessed which business HHmEEREIR A
models apply to the financial assets held H) X&EBEEE
by the Group and has classified its financial B E R R
instruments into the appropriate HKFRS 9 BN AEBERTE
categories. PREE WEKE
CRTAESHERER
BB B M S E £ 8

FoW—FH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

TESEHBREZE @

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 2.2 SEFTEEREE @)
2.2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) 222 BV HRELERE RS
T B (&)
(i) Classification and measurement of financial () EMEEDERE

assets (Continued)

The Group elected to present in other
comprehensive income (“OCI”) the changes
in the fair value of all its equity investments
previously classified as available-for-sale
investments, because these investments are
held as long-term strategic investments that
are not expected to be sold in the short to
medium term. As a result, assets with a fair
value of approximately HK$1,516,177,000
were reclassified from available-for-sale
investments to FVOCI and the accumulative
fair value gains of HK$23,213,000
were reclassified from the available-for-
sale reserves to the FVOCI reserves on 1
January 2018. There will be no longer any
reclassification of accumulated amounts from
reserves to profit or loss on the disposal of
these investments.

There is no impact on the Group's
accounting for financial liabilities, as the new
requirements only affect the accounting for
financial liabilities that are designated at fair
value through profit or loss (FVPL) while the
Group does not have any such liabilities upon
initial adoption.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R RS ER R B 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

2.2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(i)

On 1 January 2018, the financial instruments
of the Group were as follows, with any

2 EEEFHBRBEEm

2.2 ETTHEREE (@)
222 B BEHREEDEIES
T B #)
() ¢MEELERSE
(&)
R_E—NE—A—

B A&EEMERT

reclassifications noted:

Measurement category

BT - AR
B¥oME

Carrying amount

FTEER BEE
Original New Original New Difference*
(HKAS 39) (HKFRS 9) HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RE ]
(BAg (BRUEES RA EH] Efe
ERIE395)  EREIR) TR TR TERL
Non-current financial assets
FRBeEEE
Equity investments Available for sale FVvoCl 1,516,177 1,516,177 =
RiER A AELE AAAREETE
BE®EEA
Httir e s
Loans to/amounts due from Amortised cost  Amortised cost
related parties 349,047 349,047 —
M/ NS ER 7B BaER B
Current financial assets
Trade receivables, other receivables Amortised cost  Amortised cost
and prepayments 16,006,853 15,690,748 (316,105)
R - EAt IR R BN BaER B
Loans to/amounts due from Amortised cost  Amortised cost
related parties 2,212,578 2,212,578 —
[/ RS A ER /A BIERA BIERA
Pledged and restricted bank deposits ~ Amortised cost  Amortised cost 890,182 890,182 —
BEERRZBHRITER BERA B R
Cash and cash equivalents Amortised cost  Amortised cost 5,381,686 5,381,686 =
e RAEEFEY BIEKAK BIENAK
@ The difference noted in this column is the result * ANEFTit = 2E 2 E R
of applying the new expected credit loss model. FIBHEEEHEBER

The reclassifications of the financial instruments on
adoption of HKFRS 9 did not result in any changes to
measurements.

B AR o R E AR
%5 i &5 4 B 55 9 5%
BN RERTAY
EEHGETEE

L) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

FTESEHBRBEE @

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 2.2 S BEREH @)
2.2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) 222 BV HRELERE RS
T B (&)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (i) =MEERE

The Group has three types of financial assets
that are subject to HKFRS 9’s new expected
credit loss model:

° Trade receivables,

o Other receivables (excluding receivables
from related parties), and

° Loans to/amounts due from related
parties.

The Group was required to revise its
impairment methodology under HKFRS 9 for
each of these classes of assets. The impact of
the change in impairment methodology on

rEBEBE=fHe®E
ERBTEBMBR
HEBE IR H A
HEERERREN

o EUIRAK -

. E itk
(F 2 18 12 78
308+ R

o [m/REARREEE
B FIE -

AEBE AR L& IR
BERENRBEYH
HEEFIFER

HBERZE BE

the Group's retained earnings and equity is HEEBEHAEEN
disclosed in the table in Note 2.2.1 above. R E%"J&%EE’U/\%
ERBEN LXK

While cash and cash equivalents are also
subject to the impairment requirements of
HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

221 HERA

VI EETREMB
& 2RI 5 9 5% B R
BRE - BEBAR
BEEBELIFERX -

Trade receivables JEWBR 5
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified AEERBEAMG

approach in measure expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables. This has not resulted
in any additional impairment loss for trade
receivables as at 1 January 2018. Note 3.1.2
provides for details about the calculation of
the allowance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R RS ER R B 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

2.2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 to assess
the lifetime expected credit losses for
other receivables (excluding prepayments
and deposits) when the credit risk has
increased significantly. For that purpose,
other receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics. On
that basis, the loss allowance amounting to
HKD316,105,000 was further recognised
for other receivables as at 1 January 2018.
Note 3.1.2 provides for details about the
calculation of the allowance.

Loans to/amounts due from related parties

For loans to/amounts due from related parties
already in place at 1 January 2018, the Group
has determined that reliably assessing the
probability of default at the initial recognition
of each loans to/amounts due from related
parties would result in undue cost and effort.
As permitted by HKFRS 9, the credit provision
will be determined based on whether credit
risk is low only at each reporting date, until
the receivables are derecognised. The Group
has assessed that the expected credit losses
for these receivables are not material under
the 12 months expected losses method. Thus,
no loss allowance provision was recognised
as at 1 January 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
2.23HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers

The Group adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective approach which means that the
cumulative impact of the adoption (if any) will be
recognised in retained earnings as of 1 January
2018 and that comparatives will not be restated.
The effects of the adoption of HKFRS 15 are as
follows:

Presentation of assets and liabilities related to
contracts with customers

Reclassifications were made as at 1 January 2018
to be consistent with the terminology used under
HKFRS 15:

o Contract liabilities for advanced proceeds
received from customers were previously
presented as “Trade payables, other payables
and accruals”.

The Group did not introduce any refunds or
customer loyalty programme which is likely to be
affected by the HKFRS 15.

The Group does not expect to have any contracts
with material consideration where the period
between the transfer of the promised goods to the
customer and payment by the customer exceeds
one year. As a consequence, the Group does not
adjust any of the transaction prices for the time
value of money.

No additional cost occurs to fulfil the contract was
identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R RS ER R B 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EESHBEREZE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuED)

2.2 ETTHEREE (@)
223 BB IEHREERIF 155

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
2.23HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (Continued)

As a result, other than certain reclassification of
contract liabilities, the adoption of HKFRS 15 did
not result in any impact to the financial statements
as the timing of revenue recognition on sales of
products is not changed.

2.3 Subsidiaries
2.3.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

(@) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EBEFHBEREZRmw

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

23 [HEBERQHF

2.3.1 fFE AR

(@) Business combinations (Continued) (a) EBEOHH(E)
The Group recognises any non-controlling 7N £ B 1 ME 1) e B =
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition- AEFE R 1 U B 5 A

by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured
at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by
HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value

FEIE B MR S - BIR
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WRERBR AR TINE
RS e

i 75 & 0F 2 B BOE
17 WBHERIRE

of the acquirer’s previously held equity B 1% U B8 5 IR AN HE 2
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair KU EE H H R BREE
value at the acquisition date; any gains or ThEHTEARWE
losses arising from such re-measurement are HEONAREE: &
recognised in profit or loss. FETEE AR

170 | China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. ZMEIERERAT

aREBEEREREERA
R o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R RS ER R B 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EESHBEREZE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuED)

2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued) 2.3 MYBATRE @)
2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued) 2.3.1 ZREANRGE)
(a) Business combinations (Continued) (a) EBACE
Any contingent consideration to be NE B AT E R (1A
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair FARERELEB
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent M nBEER -
changes to the fair value of the contingent WA —HEE K
consideration that is deemed to be an asset BENHAREBEATR
or liability is recognised in accordance with BENEEZS &
HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a RREB d"&ﬁ\'J
change to other comprehensive income. 39"3‘1;%9'7%%)76 MRS
Contingent consideration that is classified as BmacE M EmRA
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent BE) o DHERERD
settlement is accounted for within equity. AR EBLEEH A
B MERGENE
m AR e
The excess of the consideration transferred, FrEgEAE NIl
the amount of any non-controlling interest F& 7 (TR FRFE I MR
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair 0 H) & B S B T Al
value of any previous equity interest in the KB EETT R s R
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable WEREMNAREE
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill Bt PIT I E A A R O
(Note 2.11). If the total of consideration BENAAEBEE
transferred, non-controlling interest B ER0 AR B S BR
recognised and previously held interest (B7E2.11) - HZEE
measured is less than the fair value of the BEMS » WAHEE
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the KE - B ERIEZEH
case of a bargain purchase, the difference is M MR AR
recognised directly in the income statement. Bt ERaAEE
REBEBEEPTKEN
BRAFRNFEENLRR
BE HEESEE
R ARER o
Intra-Group transactions, balances and % W ~ Al A AR
unrealised gains on transactions between YN E I I/NG]
Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised ZFﬁX%E’]*ﬁ’%ﬁ”&
losses are also eliminated. When necessary, W T A o RE
amounts reported by subsidiaries have MEENT AL -
been adjusted to conform with the Group's fIE A RIPTERE R
accounting policies. ERFTERELHA

B NEAEENS
ATBCRRTT — 2 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EBEFHBEREZRmw

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

2.3 MELA

2.3.1 &HRE AR (E)

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries (b) AERBEZFIENKELD
without change of control AFTERES
Transactions with non-controlling interests TEHREEHIED
that do not result in loss of control are FEEHMERZ S A
accounted for as equity transactions - RINER R 5 — Al
that is, as transactions with the owners of NEERERANE
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. ENBRRNES
The difference between fair value of any NETRS - EAE
consideration paid and the relevant share NHRERREBEEMR
acquired of the carrying value of net assets BEMBARGHER
of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains AFEEREEMNE
or losses on disposals to non-controlling gﬁﬁ'”ﬂfﬁg’v\ o [A] FRE
interests are also recorded in equity. MR h & R M s

BRI ERER o

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries (c) HEMEQR

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes

ZNE Sy e
5 - RN ERHEAR
B iR R AR
EHNARBEERN
AFE ARGEER
HEERKRAER -

of subsequently accounting for the retained FLE R ARSI FR &
interest as an associate, joint venture or X AELESE
financial asset. In addition, any amounts mﬂéﬁ?ﬂ’ﬂ% AR
previously recognised in other comprehensive HERARBE/VGE
income in respect of that entity are 5 ° o - SRR
accounted for as if the Group had directly H 2 YA BE R R
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. ZERBAENCEMNR
This may mean that amounts previously BEENASEDE
recognised in other comprehensive income ELHEFBEEXRA
are reclassified to profit or loss or transferred CEDEWN S A
to another category of equity as specified/ BEEWRERIAEHME
permitted by applicable HKFRS. HRABRNCREE
# “*EZ\TEEJZE
P& 7B W 7% = R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R RS ER R B 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuED)

TREES R B =

2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued) 2.3 MYBATRE @)

2.3.2 Separate financial statements 2.3.2 B BIEIREE
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at E@ﬁﬁ%?ﬁﬂ’\]&ﬁﬁ?ﬁ$
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct @?Wﬁﬁ@)\,ﬁﬁ: EXZIKDT
attributable costs of investment. The results of BRERENEEZEMGLX
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on Ko HBARMNEERE
the basis of dividend received and receivable. WS B K R MR IR R A
AIARR ©
Impairment testing of the investments in MR KB A B8 1% & U EX

subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate

R B - ANz Ik B R @ %
MEARREIRRE M
F) 2 U A BEE j@ﬁi
P ERERAZKENERR
BEBEFIBHRE AT

financial statements exceeds the carrying amount 53 iéf%éfﬁ;‘%@(@%ﬁ
in the consolidated financial statements of the B)NEREE  AZERE
investee’s net assets including goodwill. BIERVERIR °
2.4 Associates 24 EpEz
An associate is an entity over which the Group P EIEAREFRHEAEET KX
has significant influence but not control, generally EENBWIFHEEITHENE
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and B, 3EE KT A 20% 2 50% 1%

50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount
is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date
of acquisition. The Group's investments in associates

SREAOME - NEE DX
/\LMEé/\'\m* AR o IRIBHE
mk - ARANSRRARERE
R MEREE S EIER - L
RREERERIRE AR KE
EHENAER AKEREZ
RMES a%EAH&Zﬁ%HﬁﬁTJE

include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the THEE . IWEMEPERES
acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, ifgifg‘ % - P%ﬁ}%&$gﬁi$

any difference between the cost of the associate
and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted
for as goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinuep)

FTESEHBERBEE @

2.4 Associates (Continued) 24 EEEE @)

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to ‘share of profit of investments accounted for using
equity method’ in the income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in
associates are recognised in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R RS ER R B 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuED)

2 EEEFHBRBEEm

2.5 Joint arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as
either joint operations or joint ventures depending
on the contractual rights and obligations of each
investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its
joint arrangements and determined them to be joint
ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests
in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements
in other comprehensive income. When the Group's
share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds
its interests in the joint ventures (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the joint ventures), the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group's interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of joint ventures have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B AT #R HR R 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.6 Foreign currency translation

2.6.1 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK dollars (“HK$"), which
is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

2.6.2 Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are
generally recognised in profit or loss. They are
deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges
or are attributable to part of the net investment in
a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the statement
of profit or loss, within finance costs. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the statement of profit or loss on a net basis
within other gains/(losses).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R RS ER R B 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EESHBEREZE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuED)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 2.6 SNBBRE @)

2.6.2 Transactions and balances (Continued) 2.6.2 X5 R AEER ()
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair SN IR B EFTER
value in a foreign currency are translated using FEREE NRET AR
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value BEAHEMNEXRBE -
was determined. Translation differences on assets ARRBEFENEENR
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as BENREZBRIERAR
part of the fair value gain or loss. For example, BEKEHEEN —HD
translation differences on non-monetary assets 2Pl FERKSH
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value BERAGBMRAREE
through profit or loss are recognised in profit RETEBRRREIENE
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and ) NBREEEEBRSERA
translation differences on non-monetary assets REBANREBEWRNE
such as equities classified as fair value through B —#n  MFEEEE
other comprehensive income are recognised in EMBEZE(IMDBAR
other comprehensive income. AREEFEAHEEET

AH M2 EB AR
AR 2 ERAFER ©

2.6.3 Group companies 2635KE AT

The results and financial position of foreign BB AERZNNE

operations (none of which has the currency of a A —Behge B (A

hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional VEEMNERSARER

currency different from the presentation currency REERBNER) - HXA

are translated into the presentation currency as 08 35 51K 50 33 1 A R T3 0K

follows: BREREYNE

e assets and liabilities for each balance sheet s XREERBEBXRMZET
presented are translated at the closing rate at MEENBEHIER
the dateof that balance sheet, ZEEE BRI T E X

B"E

e income and expenses for each statement of e FEZXAEKEHEKZ:
profit or loss and statement of comprehensive KW ANZ Hig#&
income are translated at average exchange BRF 19 [ R 3 H (B
rates (unless this is not a reasonable JERWIERZHHEE
approximation of the cumulative effect of ANRZRBENS
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, BAIEME - FELBER
in which case income and expenses are T WARRZTIR
translated at the dates of the transactions), RHEHBE) Rk
and

e all resulting exchange differences are e FMBEEAMERER
recognised in other comprehensive income. B HE M2 E WA FE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

FTESEHBRBEE @

2.6 HNE]RE ()
2.63 @A T (&)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

2.6.3 Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as part
of the gain or loss on sale.

RiEARER - BEFIH
BERZEAREFBEAR
ERRBEIEERZFRE
Mm@ T AR
ELMENEZE TJE’\‘H
fir e WasHHER - B

9I\%$Eﬁ%jﬂ%5€@}x
8o ERERSE
BE - HEELEZ8EE
MOBERD  EREE
Wen S EIRE — 8D ©

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the P M 8 353 91 3R 15 i 22 2 Y
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as ﬁ%&@ﬁ{%ﬁﬁ%i@ﬁ
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and ERIEGMEERE

translated at the closing rate.

& WAKHERBE -

2.6.4Disposal of foreign operation and partial 264 HEBHNEBRBOHE
disposal
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a HERIINEBHBENEER
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign SERBINEB T B
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control m AEESREKE—FE

over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a
joint venture that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of significant

MEBAR(BREEINES)
EHIE - RE—RAeED
X(BRBINES)OHKR
2 HIAE SR K — R

influence over an associate that includes a EEE(BEBEINEBL)HN
foreign operation), all of the currency translation ERAFENE  B@ALXRQ
differences accumulated in equity in respect of BB ABIEZEBOFT

that operation attributable to the owners of the
company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R RS ER R B 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuED)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

2.6.4Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal (Continued)

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that
is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest
in associates or joint ventures that do not result
in the Group losing significant influence or
joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to
profit or loss.

2.7 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors
and senior management of the Company that makes
strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.8 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment consists of buildings,
power generating plant and equipment, mining
structures, motor vehicles, furniture, fixtures,
equipment and others and construction-in-progress
(“CIP"). Property, plant and equipment, other than
the CIP are stated at historical cost less depreciation
and any impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
expensed in profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

2

FTESEHBRBEE @

2.8 W% WEKRE

WE BEERRBEEET
HEMNRE RERE A
B RE BEEEKE REL
HARERIR(ERZT
Bl 1% BB MREGE
BTSN THIR R 2 R AR B
KA EE RSB - B LA
AERWEBEEREESI RN
= .

BREKANEE EEARBERK
RBEMmBRAEEEEIRAL
£H - AEKAKNENA EAE
B R ABEMREE R
RABILEEER) - 1E
REDOFREESHOEER °
PrEEMEEREETRNE
AR R AE R IE AR A

WE - BENMRBOFTETDR
ToOfER R E A F R E ROX
7% EL R AR 7 = H ORI R (B BT

=]
ZAr

Estimated useful lives

fhet A E A 5

Buildings BF 18 - 45 years
18ZE 454

Power generating plant and equipment 2 &5 & %1% 15 - 18 years
152184

Mining structures RIEZRE 5 - 20 years
5£220%F

Motor vehicles, furniture, fixtures, AECRE - BEEE - 3 - 10 years
equipment and others =i R HAth 3ZE104F

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R RS ER R B 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuED)

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

CIP represents the direct costs of construction incurred
of property, plant and equipment including interest
capitalized less any impairment losses. No provision or
depreciation is made on construction in progress until
such time the relevant assets are completed and put
into use. CIP is reclassified to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’ in the
consolidated income statement.

Mining rights

Mining rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses, and are amortised
using the unit of production method based on the
proved and probable mineral reserves.

2.10 Exploration and resources rights

Exploration and resources rights are recognised at cost
on initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition,
exploration and resources rights are stated at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Exploration and
resources rights include the cost of exploration rights
and the expenditures incurred in the search for mineral
resources as well as the determination of the technical
feasibility and commercial viability of extracting
those resources. When the technical feasibility and
commercial viability of extracting mineral resources
become demonstrable and relevant mining rights
certificate is obtained, previously recognised exploration
and resources rights are reclassified as mining rights
or other fixed assets. These assets are assessed for
impairment before reclassifications.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinuep)

FTESEHBERBEE @

2.11 Goodwill 211 &

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Each unit or group of units to which
the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored
at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment
is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.

2.12 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life - for example,
goodwill and intangible assets which have an indefinite
life - are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are Grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered from impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R RS ER R B 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EESHBEREZE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuED)

213 TREE
2131 B

2.13 Financial assets

2.13.1 Classification

From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its
financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through OCI or through profit
or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI.
For investments in equity instruments that are
not held for trading, this will depend on whether
the Group has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

2.13.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B AT #R HR R 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

2.13.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at FVPL, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together
with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate
line item in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R RS ER R B 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuED)

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

2.13.3 Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVOCI.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in profit or loss. When
the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss and recognised in other gains/
(losses). Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in
other gains/(losses) and impairment expenses
are presented as separate line item in the

statement of profit or loss.

o FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net
within other gains/(losses) in the period in

which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& 0 B 5 SR 2R B 5
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEBESFHPERBZE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)
2.13 Financial assets (Continued) 213 TRMEE @)
2.13.3 Measurement (Continued) 2133 FFE @)
Equity instruments #am TA
The Group subsequently measures all equity E%%%E/Aﬁ{ﬁﬁz
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s ?Eiifﬁﬁzﬂ;l%ﬁ BEAK
management has elected to present fair value ERE ?fb:/\\ﬁﬁﬂiﬁ
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, BaAN2IESRRENA
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value fEERS R EE Hg ’ %
=] N\
gains and losses to profit or loss following the Jtﬁ@w&ﬁfgifgiiﬁﬂ‘rﬁib
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from ERER € &%Ei*ﬁ A
such investments continue to be recognised in ZR@m - EAR dh@ﬁiﬂﬁ
profit or loss as other income when the Group’s X AR B 3K IEW*E%'JHT 2
right to receive payments is established. ﬁ?xﬁf:‘lﬁﬂx SHEN B
HERBEAMUA -
Changes in the fair value of FVPL are recognised ’Aﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ;ﬂi“ &t
in other gains/(losses) in the statement of profit or ):\ﬁmﬂ’] ;LE{ """"" HEN
loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal TE@?’%EW%E@%ﬁ@W?
of impairment losses) on equity investments /(JEETE)(ZZDL}EH)S A
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately /b{?'\@nﬁ'é'@—ﬂ”‘j’:@}ﬁiz\ﬁ
from other changes in fair value. i, & B W oS 2 HE S A Y
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EESHBEREZE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuED)
2.13 Financial assets (Continued) 213 TRMEE 3
2134 BE

2.13.4 Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a
forward looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments carried
at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables, see
Note 16 for further details.

2.14 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EBEFHBEREZRmw

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)
2.15 BIBEREXN

2.15 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payments when due, in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and
other bodies on behalf of subsidiaries or associates to
secure loans, overdrafts and other banking facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the
financial statements at fair value on the date the
guarantee was given. The fair value of a financial
guarantee at the time of signature is zero because
all guarantees are agreed on arm’s length terms, and
the value of the premium agreed corresponds to the
value of the guarantee obligation. No receivable for
the future premiums is recognised. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the Company’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of

o the amount determined in accordance with
the expected credit loss model under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments and

o the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles
of HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R RS ER R B 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuED)

FTESEHBRBEEm

2.15 BIEIEREN ¢

2.15 Financial guarantee contracts (Continued)

These estimates are determined based on experience
of similar transactions and history of past losses,
supplemented by management’s judgement. The
fee income earned is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the life of the guarantee. Any increase in
the liability relating to guarantees is reported in the
consolidated income statement within other operating
expenses.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables
of subsidiaries or associates are provided for no
compensation, the fair values are accounted for as
contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the
investment in the financial statements of the Company.

2.16 Inventories

Inventories include fuel oil for power generation, coal,
materials for repairs and maintenance and spare parts,
and are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value.

Inventories are initially recorded at cost and are charged
to fuel costs, repairs and maintenance, or comsumables,
respectively when used, or capitalised to property,
plant and equipment when installed, as appropriate,
using weighted average cost basis. Cost of inventories
includes costs of purchase and transportation expenses.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EESHBEREZE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.17 Trade and other receivables 2.17 FERUWERFR R AWK IR
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for EWEER AR EXBGBIZT
products sold or services performed in the ordinary EHEMBARENRBERKE
course of business. If collection of trade and other F R IR e ﬁﬁfﬁﬂﬁ/\‘\_iﬁ%
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the A(KEER XSG EBEAHIR
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), By ) MR 20 Al R Lt
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are W#iE - Bl EREE 8B A
presented as non-current assets. RBEE  BRARERBEE

275 o
Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at & W AR R N L Al B W R IR 4] 2
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost RO BEERER  HEAUNE
using the effective interest method, less provision for R RORIL B ARTE > I
impairment. ABRRERE -

2.18 Cash and cash equivalents 218 RERREFEY
Cash and cash equivalents listed in the consolidated REHBRSREXRZEINAS
statement of cash flows represent cash in hand, %ﬁ/i\%igmﬁ'ﬁiéﬁﬁii\ i
deposits held at call with banks, and other short- ﬂﬁ%ﬂﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁﬂ{%ﬁ%@]}ﬁ
term highly-liquid investments with original maturities ﬁ@/J_\E)‘]J?/HWEZ%Z1H 3 A
of three months or less that are readily convertible THEBAEREERNKRE (7]
to known amounts of cash and are subject to an ERERARCHMEHEIRS) -

insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.19 Share capital 2.19 B
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. TaRO B AER -
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue %@%ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬂ_ﬁgﬁﬁfﬁﬂ’ﬂ
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a ﬁ\iWAﬁlﬁjﬁ’EﬁﬁEWEﬁﬁﬁMﬁ
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. R (BRBL 1R ) ©

= =

2.20 Trade and other payables 2.20 BN IR R AN FRE
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or J%“Hf%%?ytéif%ﬁ‘%ﬂﬁ
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course o EEE\E@E\%E\%EE\?D ﬁﬁ&ﬂ‘%ﬁg
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables HM‘E\EE :jlfﬂ’f\liﬁ/i_iﬁu
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due W<}EE%%%E@@§WE
within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle KA lf”/ﬁ‘ﬁ;f‘”@f‘%ﬂéﬁ
of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as mﬁgt}/ﬂ\lﬁﬂ BARRDAEE
non-current liabilities. BRRIERBEERT -
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair H%ﬁﬂf?’x&ﬁ@ﬂﬁ%ﬁfﬂlﬁ%ﬂé
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost %Z\;ﬂg%ﬁﬁ% /H;T%@fﬁﬁﬁ
using the effective interest method. RN EOEI B AN E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R RS ER R B 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinuep)

2 EESEHHBEREE @)

2.21 Borrowings 221 88
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of BESVEAALBERKREE
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently EHRHRA)HER - EEHEK
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the RE ARSI - PR FRIRGN
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption B 5 A7) SR Bl (B {3 /(]

value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

2.22 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

%%ﬁiﬁﬂﬁgfﬁﬁ? AE R XX

EEFRRAEMIELSHEH
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B AT #R HR R 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.23 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and
deferred income tax. Income tax expense is recognised
in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(a)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
the tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred taxtion asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R RS ER R B 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuED)

2.23 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)
Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements, except for deferred income tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Generally the Group is unable to control the
reversal of the temporary difference for associates.
Only where there is an agreement in place that
gives the Group the ability to control the reversal
of the temporary difference, deferred income tax
liabilities are not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable
the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be
utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to
settle the balances on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B AT #R HR R 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

2.24 Employee benefits

Employee benefits include all expenditures relating to
the employees for their services. The Group recognises
employee benefits as liabilities during the accounting
period when employees render services and allocates to
related cost of assets and expenses based on different
beneficiaries.

(a)

Defined contribution plan

In connection with pension obligations, the
Group operates various defined contribution
plans in accordance with the local conditions
and practices in the countries and provinces
in which they operate. A defined contribution
plan is a pension plan under which the Group
pays fixed contributions into a separate publicly
administered pension insurance plan on
mandatory and voluntary basis. The Group has
no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods.
The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when incurred.

Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans, state-managed retirement benefit
schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R RS ER R B 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuED)

TESEHBEREE @

2.24 Employee benefits (Continued) 224 BEEA @

(b) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before the
normal retirement date, or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits at the earlier of the following dates:
(a) when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity
recognises costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after
the end of the reporting period are discounted to
their present value.

2.25 Share-based payment

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-
based compensation plans, under which the Group
received services from directors and employees of the
Group, directors of CRH, employees of CRH and its
subsidiaries to the Group.

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options and
award shares granted at the grant date is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with
a corresponding increase in employee share-based
compensation reserve.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates during the vesting period,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to employee share-based
compensation reserve.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

TESEHBEREE @

2.25 Share-based payment (Continued) 2.25 AR BEBNAR @)

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in employee share-
based compensation reserve will be transferred to share
capital. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting period or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in employee
share-based compensation reserve will be transferred to
retained earnings.

The Company also operates a Medium to Long-term
Performance Evaluation Incentive Plan (the “Scheme”).
Pursuant to the Scheme, share plan trust has been set
up by the Company for employees.

The Scheme is accounted for as a cash-settled
transaction. The Group measures the services acquired
and the liability incurred at the fair value of the liability.
Until the liability is settled, the Group remeasures the
fair value of the liability at the end of each reporting
period and at the date of settlement, with any changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss for the period.

2.26 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or contractual obligation as a result of
a past event, and it is probable that the Group will
be required to settle that obligation, and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Provisions are measured
at the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R RS ER R B 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuED)

TESEHBEREE @

2.26 B (@)

2.26 Provisions (Continued)

Provisions for the Group’s restoration, rehabilitation
and environmental expenses are based on estimates of
required expenditure at the mines in accordance with
PRC rules and regulations. Provisions are measured at
the present value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

2.27 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with
all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated income statement over
the period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred income and are credited to the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

TESFHEREZE @

2.28 Revenue recognition 2.28 W TER

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sales of
products and services in the ordinary course of the
Group's activities. Revenue is shown, net of discounts
and after eliminating sales with the Group companies.
The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity;
and when specific criteria have been met for each of
the Group’s activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customers, the type of
transactions and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a) Sales of electricity

Revenue is earned and recognised upon
transmission of electricity to the customers or the
power grid owned by the respective regional or
provincial grid companies.

(b) Sales of coal

Revenue is recognised when the coal delivered
to the customers and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the coal.

(c) Sales of heat supply

Revenue is recognised when the heat is delivered
to the customers.

(d) Provision of services

Service income is recognised when services are
rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R RS ER R B 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuED)

TESEHBEREE @

2.29 Interest income 2.29 R E U A
Interest income from FVPL is included in the net fair EEXEBUAAAEEFZEES

value gains/(losses) on these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
and FVOCI (2017: available-for-sale investments)
calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss as part of
other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes. Any other interest income is
included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction
of the loss allowance).

2.30 Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets measured
at FVOCI (2017 — from available-for-sale investments).
Dividends are recognised as other income in profit or
loss when the right to receive payment is established.
This applies even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition
profits, unless the dividend clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of an investment. In this
case, the dividend is recognised in OCI if it relates
to an investment measured at FVOCI. However, the
investment may need to be tested for impairment as a
consequence.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNnuED)

TESFHEREZE @

2.31 Leases 231 #HE

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases.

The Group is the lessee — Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

The Group is the lessor — When assets are leased out
under an operating lease, the assets are included in the
balance sheet based on the nature of the assets. Lease
income is recognised over the term of the lease on a
straight-line basis.

2.32 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’'s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R RS ER R B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE_Z— \Ft+-_A=+—HLEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk,
fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate
risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central Group
treasury department under policies approved by the
board of directors. The department identifies, evaluates
and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with
the Group'’s operating units.

3.1.1 Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The majority of the Group’s operations
are in the PRC and transactions are mainly
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") which
is the functional currency of the respective
Group entities. Foreign exchange risk mainly
arises from certain cash and cash equivalents
and borrowings which are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"”) and US dollars
("US$"). However, the Company and certain
subsidiaries are located in Hong Kong and
their functional currency are HK$ or USS$,
the foreign exchange risk for them mainly
arises from balances denominated in RMB.
During the year ended 31 December 2018
and 2017, the Group did not enter into any
forward exchange contracts or currency swap
contracts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE—Z-N\Ft+-A=+—BIEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueD)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.1 Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

In addition, given there are different
functional currencies within the Group, there
are still foreign exchange risk which arises
from the transactions and balances within the
Group even though they are eliminated. The
carrying amounts of the foreign currencies
denominated monetary assets and monetary
liabilities before elimination (excluding the
amounts denominared in HK$ or US$, of
which the functional currency is US$ or HK$)
at the reporting date are as follows:

3 TrlRREEREm

31 sREREE@)
3.1.1 TiEEK (#)

(i)

—2-N\F

16,400,607

Assets BE

Us$ XTT

RMB AR

HK$ BT
Liabilities =L

RMB AR

Euro (“EURS$") BT ([T )

SN LB ()

o ERAKHE
NEFET RO EE
5% A EAREE
NEY 3 55 I i R B 3R
o DFEEELER
SNEE L BR o R E
B - #E 5 AT AN 5

ENEBEELREE
BEMABEUET
3 & TTHE R R T K
BLTIINBEEEREA
B)MREEWNT :
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—AH
2018 2017
—E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT T
12,508 12,965
15,121,282
405 79,196
6,277,095 6,579,650
13,544 14,521

As shown in the table above, the Group is
primarily exposed to changes in RMB/HK$
exchange rates. The sensitivity of profit
or loss to changes in the exchange rates
arises mainly from non-functional currency
denominated financial instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AT IR ER R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BItFE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT contnuepy 3 ERlEEREIE @)

31 sREREZE@E
3.1.1 TiREK (#)
SNE LR ()

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.1 Market risk (Continued)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (i)

Impact on post Impact on other

tax profit components of equity

HERANBNY HHEMRERINTE

2018 2017 2018 2017

—E-N\F el —2—\F —t5F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET TET TET

RMB/HKS exchange rate AR HBTEX

—increase 10% —FFH10% (279,763) (496,749) BIPAPREYA 1,345,522
- decrease 10% —~T%10% 279,763 496,749 BEWPEPEEVAR (1,345,522)
Profit is less sensitive to movements in the HRUAAREER
RMB/HK dollar exchange rates in 2018 than BERD RZF
2017 because of the decreased amount of —NFrafEAR
RMB denominated borrowings. Impact to the BB T IE R B

other equity components is relatively stable
between two years. The Group’s exposure
to other foreign exchange movements is not
material. This sensitivity has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign
exchange rates had occurred at the balance
sheet date.

BREENR_Z—+
FoZMEBEFEANY
EE R EEY
B o AEBEHEM
PE = & ) BT T ¥ R B

WAEKN - B xR
ENREEL&EH N
MERSFEMET °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE_Z— \Ft+-_A=+—HILLEE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT contnuepy 3 ERlEBREIR @)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 emEEREZEE)
3.1.1 Market risk (Continued) 3.1.1 miEE kR (&)
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (i) BERERAALBEN
22 2 B
The Group's interest rate risk arises from K/\%.EE*UTHM/
long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at i%ﬁ)ﬂﬁ% ?ﬁzg,u
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow & LTE'/‘” ET§$ 5H
interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed HH R 2R E N KRR
rates expose the Group to fair value interest @ o }}Z.Eﬂ ST
rate risk. NEEFEAEEEER
AABEMNERRE -
As at 31 December 2018, except for R=ZF—/\F+=A
_+ H - BRZZH

HK$56,953,339,000 (2017: HK$51,393,624,000)
of long-term borrowings whose interests
were charged at floating rates, interests on all
remaining long-term borrowings and long-term
loans from related parties were charged at fixed
rates.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for borrowings at floating rates which
are not hedged with hedging instruments.
The analysis is prepared by assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the end
of the period were outstanding for the whole
year.

At 31 December 2018, if interest rates on
long-term borrowings at that date had been
10 basis point higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year or net assets as of 31 December
2018 would have been approximately
HK$42,715,000 (2017: HK$38,550,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest expenses on floating rate
borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R RS ER R B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE_Z— \Ft+-_A=+—HLEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueD)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.1 Market risk (Continued)

(iii)

Price risk

The major price exposure of the Group is
from purchase of coal. The coal price is
influenced by the global market as well as
regional supply and demand conditions.
A material change in prices of coal could
significantly affect the Group's financial
performance. The Group historically has not
used any commodity derivative instruments
to hedge the potential price fluctuations
of coal and does not have a fixed policy to
do so in the foreseeable future. However,
the Group does take means to manage
the fluctuation of coal price, such as
participating the long-term co-orporate
coal pricing scheme sponsored by the PRC
government. If the coal price increased/
decreased by 5%, net profit for the year
would have been HK$1,478,884,000 (2017:
HK$1,427,693,000) lower/higher.

3.1.2 Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to bank deposits, trade and other receivables
and amounts due from related companies. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations as at 31 December 2018 in relation
to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet.

3 TRRREEEw

31 sREREZE@E
3.1.1 TIREM (&)

(iii)

EERER
AEENEEEBRAE
% IR B B K B R o
BRERIZIRME
M@ s F AR B
T8 HRERNE
AEFAEREFE
KEBRPEELE -
AEBEBEILEFH
ERERITETAY
R E) BB
gy - E0] B R ARKIR
45 [&] 7F BUR 51 R IR
RBEBIRKE - A
- ANEEEFERE
MEEREERS - f
AN 2 B | B BT B
R RHEERKTE
Bitdle MEKRE
®m, 5%
FRHF GRS
# 511,478,884,000
BT ZE—+F:
1,427,693,000 /&
JL) °

312 ZERk
AEBMEERREER
BIRITER - BWERR K
H b B UL 3R TE K FE Uk E i
RNAEIFRIE - MR BEFR
ER-_ZE—NF+=A
T+ HEATRENE
T AHEZSEEERSR
EEEBEMNERNEERR
BAEHEERBBRRMIIZ
LEENEREEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE—Z-N\Ft+-A=+—BIEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueD)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credlit risk (Continued)

(i)

Risk management

Credit risk for the Group is concentrated
on a limited number of power grid
companies, associates, and joint ventures.
However, management of the Group, having
considered the financial background and
good creditability of the power grid and
related companies, and operating prospects
of associates and joint ventures, believes that
there is no significant credit risk.

Bank deposits are mainly placed with state-
owned financial institutions and reputable
banks which are all high-credit-quality
financial institutions.

Other than above items, the Group also
exposes to credit risks arsing from below off-
balance sheet items:

TRIREER @

31 TRiER

SEJE)

3.1.2 EERE @)

(i)

EEE
ZK%IE’]FEHA%
RFRIDBEER
%M/\%&/\%ﬂ:
&ﬁ%%_ TE’JE\M‘%
jb%&ﬁ&?ﬁ’] REN
MBEERRAED
EWREMZ®’ K
E.EEEJEWLAEJIE
EXEERR -

ROTERTEFER
BAREEREE
REFHIRTT - BRAR
THRREEEREN
TR -

PR At BB Sh - RS
BIrEHEKREEER
ERIINABNEER

2017
it PN T\
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Credit risk exposure relating HE&EEBEXRINER
to off-balance sheet items: B EERER :
Financial guarantees B RS HEIR (1 5E 48)
(Note 48) 2,894,284 3,849,912
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R RS ER R B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BHE-_ZT—\F+-A=1+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continue)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.2 Credlit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has three types of financial assets
that are subject to the expected credit loss
model:

o Trade receivables,

. Other receivables (excluding receivables
from related parties), and

o Loans to/amounts due from related
parties (including associates, joint
ventures, FVOCI investee companies
and non-controlling shareholder of
subsidiaries).

While cash and cash equivalents are also
subject to the impairment requirements of
HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

3 TRRREEEw

31 sREREZE@E
3.1.2 EERE @)

(ii)

EREERE
AEEBE=-HzmE
B BRRNBEHIE
EEEERN

o JRUERAK

o H b B FKIA
(B ¥E e W e
BTER) -

e MEKLT(ERE

U BN ST A
/N I

% ARAE
BEFfERHE
AtAEMEEIR
i H) IR E R 7]
K BB X R FE =
IR ER ) B
F& U B8 Bt 05 R
15 o

BETEREBUBRE
% BI| 55 9 5% B Rk (B AR
o MR RBRE B
B AEK o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE_Z— \Ft+-_A=+—HILLEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conminuep)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.2 Credlit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables from initial
recognition.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the
aging information.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period
of 48 months before 31 December 2018
or 1 January 2018 respectively and the
corresponding historical credit losses
experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect
current and forwardlooking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables. The
Group has identified several relevant factors,
and accordingly adjusted the historical loss
rates based on expected changes in these
factors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AT IR ER R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BItFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT contnuen) 3 @l @RS IR &)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 emEEREZEE)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 3.1.2 EERE @)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) =HMEERMEGE)
Trade receivables (continued) JEY R L (48)

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31
December 2018 and 1 January 2018 (on
adoption of HKFRS 9) was determined as

EHERE E
WERXNRZ-ZZE—N
F+-A=1+—8BK

follows for trade receivables: —E—-NE—H—H
(KM BRBTBRE
AR 9 5% ) Y B R
BETHT
Under Over
31-December-2018 1year 1-2years 2-3years 3-4years 4 years Total
“E-N\% -FR -EME WEZE =ZEME BEARE - H
+ZA=1+-H HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
THER TR TR TR TR THER
Expected loss rate ERERLX 0.00% 0.02% 2.02% 55% 100% 1.01%
Gross carrying amount BRI (E 9,874,567 1,293,619 118,165 7,303 107,954 11,401,608
Loss allowance BRA% (2) (283)  (2,386)  (4,051) (107,954) (114,676)
Under Over
01-January-2018 Tyear 1-2years  2-3years  3-4years 4 years Total
—Z-\§-A-H —FR  —EZME WE=F ZENE ®ENRE @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr  TEr  FET TEx TErn TEx
Expected loss rate BABBEL % 0.00% 0.11% 3.89% 29% 100% 1.63%
Gross carrying amount RHaE 9,159,484 375,359 38,253 83,046 133,703 9,789,845
Loss allowance iRk - (426)  (1,487)  (24,357) (133,703)  (159,973)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=1+—ALEFE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuedy 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credlit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

The closing loss allowances for trade
receivables as at 31 December 2018 reconcile
to the opening loss allowances as follows:

TRIRBER (m)

31 sREREE@E
3.1.2 EERE @)

(i) TREEREGE)

R

(&)

R-ZE—N\FE+_HA
=+ — B ERERRK
HiR R R B B 1)
EREREEERET -

2018
—E-N\EF
HK$'000
FHET

31 December - calculated +ZA=+—H-RE
under HKAS 39 EREHEN
F£39EHE

Amounts restated through RENREBERBNEY 25

opening retained earnings

159,973

Opening loss allowance as at RZET—/\F—H—H
1 January 2018 - calculated ~ HVER¥IESIE MR —

159,973

under HKFRS 9 BIEE B KR
FORFTE
Increase in loan loss FARBRERNER
allowance recognised BRI N

in profit or loss
during the year

Receivables written off during 4F PRI 85 H9 S AT Uk
the year as uncollectible (o] fE W 3k I8

Transfer out after Disposal of HEILFEREERE

Shanxi Coal Mining Assets

41,126

(8,478)

(71,232)
(6,713)

Exchange differences BE N =
At 31 December R+=—HA=+-—H

114,676

Trade receivables are written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst
others, the failure of a debtor to make
contractual payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R RS ER R B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE_Z— \Ft+-_A=+—HLEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueD)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.2 Credlit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

Previous accounting policy for impairment of
trade receivables

In the prior year, the impairment of trade
receivables was assessed based on the
incurred loss model. Individual receivables
which were known to be uncollectible were
written off by reducing the carrying amount
directly. The other receivables were assessed
collectively to determine whether there was
objective evidence that an impairment had
been incurred but not yet been identified. For
these receivables the estimated impairment
losses were recognised in a separate provision
for impairment. The Group considered that
there was evidence of impairment if any of
the following indicators were present:

e significant financial difficulties of the
debtor,

3 TRRREEEw

31 sREREZE@E
3.1.2 EEREME &)

(ii)

SRMEERNEE)
BRI ()

JE U BR KRR (E B 18
REENB 25 R
BEEEFE - HRK
[ 55 B 2 G A & 7R
TIRR—IEE AR °

75 B 89 JE W AR 5 R 1B
BiTHE

RBEFE - BEEK
FREDREDELE
BREIE - 2 A
R B Y (8 5 UL
TRIARE B B Z R AR
T {E T sH - ¥ H A
FEUW R IR ETTR BT
i NEEREEE
BEBRRTDHLEM
(ENENCE N %R
HFRWHREAEMS @ A
FEREBER S —1’
R B RERR - 1
BT EAEEZ - Bl
AEER/FHERE
B

EBABREKR
B TR IR 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE—Z-N\Ft+-A=+—BIEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT contnuen) 3 @l @RS IE )

31 sREREE@)

3.1.2 Credlit risk (Continued) 312 5ERRK(#E)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) =MEEREGE)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

Previous accounting policy for impairment of
trade receivables (Continued)

o probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation,
and

e  default or late payments.

Receivables for which an impairment
provision was recognised were written off
against the provision when there was no

expectation of recovering additional cash.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost
include loans to/amounts due from related
parties (including associates, joint ventures,
FVOCI investee companies and non-
controlling shareholder of subsidiaries) and
other receivables (excluding receivables from
related parties).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H AT IR ER R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BItFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueD)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.2 Credlit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Other financial assets at _amortised cost

(Continued)

The loss allowance for other financial assets
at amortised cost as at 31 December 2017
reconciles to the opening loss allowance
on 1 January 2018 and to the closing loss

allowance as at 31
follows:

December 2018 as

Closing loss allowance
as at 31 December 2017
(calculated under
HKAS 39)

Amounts restarted through
opening retained earnings

R-B-+t&+=-A=t-H
NWHAEBRE(REES
S ERFE39EHE)

RENREBNE)EHE

Opening loss allowance
as at 1 January 2018
(calculated under
HKFRS 9)

R=2-N\£-A-H
MR ERERE(RE
ERMBENFITHE

Increase in the allowance
recognised in profit or
loss during the period
Receivables written off during
the year as uncollectible
Transfer out after Disposal of
Shanxi Coal Mining Assets
Exchange differences

AR BRSNS
BREERN

FRMEN LD
e
HELRREEERED
52

Closing loss
allowance as at
31 December 2018

RZE-NE+-A=+-H

MR ERRE

TrlEEEIR (|
31 sREAREZE@E)
312 (EEER )
(i) SHEEHEE)
AR SR E
fh % A EE ()

Loans to/
amounts
due from
related
parties

B,/ B
Loy
&7/ %A
HK$000
TEx

184,422

184,422

(175,942)
(8,480)

receivables

R_ZE—+F+_A
=+ — BIRE AR
AAENAEMEREE
BEBEE_T N\
F-A—BRHIE
BRERR-_Z—N
F+ZA=+—AH0K
R ERBES R
T

Other
Total

Hth
EWRE
HK$'000

TEL

At
HK$'000
TR

306,913

316,105

438,596 623,018

11,828 11,828

(12,780) (12,780)

(136,752)
(19,817)

(312,694)
(28,297)

281,075 281,075
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=1+—ALEFE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueD)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credlit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Net impairment losses on financial assets
recognised in profit or loss

TRIREER @

31 sREREZE@

3.1.2 FERE (&)
(i) SFEEEHEE
RIEas R A % &
R B8 FEE

During the year, the following gains/(losses)
were recognised in profit or loss in relation
to impaired financial assets:

FA - RERMESF
BERBmBERIAD

e (EE)

2018
—E-N\F
HK$"000
T

Impairment losses on trade
receivables

Impairment losses on other
financial assets

P& W B SR (B 5 1R
Hih o @B ERERR

Net impairment losses on
financial and contract
assets

TRNMANEERE
BB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R RS ER R B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE_Z— \Ft+-_A=+—HLEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT contnuen) 3 @l @RS IE &)

3.1 erpEREE@®
3.1.3 Liquidity risk 313 REIESER

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

The Group operates a central treasury function
at corporate level that surplus cash of operating
entities within the Group is gathered in a pool. The
cash balance is then advanced to entities within
the Group with cash needs. The Group’s policy is
to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions in order
to meet the liquidity requirements of the Group in
both short and long terms.

As stated in Note 2.1.1, the Group had net current
liabilities of HK$29,633,035,000 and outstanding
capital commitments of HK$22,814,916,000
at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017:
HK$24,335,160,000), which exposed the Group
to liquidity risk. In order to mitigate the liquidity
risk, the Group had obtained sufficient short
and long-term bank facilities at the end of the
reporting period. In addition, the management will
undertake close monitoring process to control the
timing of the expected cash outflows associated
with the construction of new power plants and the
purchase of power generation equipment or other
new investments. In this regard, the Directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s liquidity
risk has been significantly reduced and they are
satisfied that the Group will be able to meet in full
its financial obligations as and when they fall due
for the coming twelve months from 31 December
2018.
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M FE21 P R =
E—-NF+ZA=+—
H XEENREBERETF
BERAREEERNEES R
/29,633,035,0005 7T &
22,814,916,0007% o (= &
—+tF+_-_A=+—H:
24,335,160,000/87T) * {F4
EEmERBESRAR -
BRERBESRE A
EENBEHRERER
MEREEERBAEITE
Bl EEREEHET
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iR ENHBREER S
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=1+—ALEFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contnuepy 3 ZREERE IR a)

31 sREREE@)
313 RBELERE @)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative
financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment
terms. The table has been drawn up based on
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities,
computed on the earliest date when the Group
would be required to settle them. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are computed at
floating rates, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate at the end of the reporting

TRFIIAREERIE T
BERGERBENIFTES
BMAENRBRSNER -
TRIRBEASENTE
AERARENREAY
AENARTRRSRER
o ZRFIFERAE
RenE - HFNERER
FRAEMBRT - KRiT
ﬁ%@éi@ﬁ%%%%
% -

period.
Weighted Total Carrying
average On Less than over undiscounted amount/face
interest rate demand 1 year 1-5 years 5years  cash flows value
il 4 REX RfRRS RaE/
Fian% fE HR-§ -Z1f itN ik ¢35 HfE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% Tin Tin Tén TiEn TiExn Tin
At31December 2018  R=F-\E
tZB=1-H
Non-derivative financial ~ JEfTESHERE
liabilities:
Non-interest bearing T8 NARER 16,246,093 11,908,560 - — 28154653 28,154,633
Fixed interest rate [EhiE 3.987 = 8928975 12,737,533 64,830 21,731,338 20,576,318
Variable interest rate RHE 3.446 21,460,040 34,660,143 34657156 90,777,339 76,098,819
16,246,093 42,297,575 47,397,676 34,721,986 140,663,330 124,829,770
Financial quarantee BRERGH
contracts = 2,312,414 581,870 = 2,894,284 2,894,284
At31December 2017 R-F-tE
t2R=1-H
Non-derivative financial ~ FEFTESBEE :
liabilities:
Non-interest bearing THE NAMEE 17,603,682 11,998,907 - — 29622589 29,622,589
Fixed interest rate Bl 4017 — 6659775 2322481 — 2988405 27,577,108
Variable interest rate LK 3.69 — 28810527 29384557 28008074 86,283,158 74,145 761
17,623,682 47529209 52,608,838 28,028,074 145,789,803 131,345,458
Financial quarantee contracts B ERAL — 3181874 668,038 — 3809912 3849912

RZBE-—N\FE_ZF—+t
F+-_fA=+—H K&
B EEASTAE SR IA -

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group did
not have any derivative financial instruments.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BItFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contnuepy 3 ERbERE IR a)

3.2 Capital risk management EXERES
AEBEAEE S EREARE

The Group’s objectives in managing capital are to

safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going BERIFELEREN  UARE
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders TR B 3 & 1A B At A1) &5 AH BE 35
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an RftEE  BEHEEENERE
optimal capital structure in order to reduce the cost of B UARREEARKA o

capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors its capital based on gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
equity (excluding non-controlling interests). Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings and loans from related
parties less cash and cash equivalents, and pledged and
restricted bank deposits.

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2018 were as

REFIABERNER A&
B A BIRMNTRRAOKRS
TR REEARATHRR - #1T
SR EEENRDER ©

AEERBERABBLEXRER
HEXR - g R AEFHEK
A8 4 (4 B 18 9F 12 Bl 15

=) 8 - AEFRRESERE

&xamkﬁmgﬁmééﬁ
594 5 E ) R IR L B

RITEHEE -
R_EB-—N\F+ZA=+—H

follows: MEARBEBLLERLOT :
2018 2017
—E—N\#F —E—+F
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FEx FAET
Total borrowings BEERE CIAVAEyA 100,922,869

Loan from an intermediate RKE—EHPEZERAF®N
holding company B — 800,000
Less: cash and cash equivalents B ReRIREEEY iy EE) (5,381,686)
pledged and restricted bank B KX R

deposits RITFRK (214,281) (890,182)
Net debt BEFHE EWEEWOEN 95,451,001
Total equity e LR SRN 80,741,880
Gearing ratio BEARBEKEE 118%

The directors of the Company consider the Group's
gearing ratio has been maintained at a comfortable
level.

ARBEERR AEENE
AEELEREFRIEBENKF -
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BE_Z- ) \FT_A=1T—BHLFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conminuep)

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

(i) Loan covenants

Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities,
the Group is required to comply with the following
financial covenants:

o The consolidated tangible net worth shall not
be less than HK$20 billion; and

o The ratio of consolidated adjusted EBITDA to
consolidated interest expense in respect of
each relevant period shall not be less than
3:1.

The Group has complied with these covenants
throughout the reporting period. As at 31 December
2018, the consolidated tangible net worth was
HK$75,997,469,000 (HK$79,115,320,000 as at
31 December 2017) and the ratio of consolidated
adjusted EBITDA to consolidated interest expense
was 5.0:1 (5.4:1 as at 31 December 2017).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AT IR ER R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BItFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contnuep)y 3 ERERE IR @)

3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AAEEME

The table below analyses financial instruments carried TR EEEZ QAR EE

at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels IR BT A - EENT

have been defined as follows: RAIERWLT -

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active F— — AERNEEXBER
markets for identical assets or liabilities V& B T 35 ) BB R

)

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included F — BEEEBIER)K
within level 1 that are observable for the #E (BN B B )R]
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as BREERBENSR
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from ASEBE-—HRBRE
prices) B =R BRI

Level 3 — Inputs for the asset or liability that are not E= — WIREATERTS
based on observable market data (that is, ENEETNEENEA
unobservable inputs) BEr s ASEE T

AIER ST HY B A BRR)

The following table presents the Group’s financial TREJIAEER_-_ZT—N\F

assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at TZA=T—B®RAAEEE

31 December 2018: ENeREERAE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—& BR E=RK st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FTHERT FERT THET THERT

Assets BE
FVOCI AAREBERER
BEE AHAM
Ra W — 1,877,311 1,877,311
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE—Z-N\Ft+-A=+—BIEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT contnuen) 3 il @RS IE )

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREEMAFT @
The following table presents the Group's financial THREVWAEER-_ZT—LF
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at +ZA=+—BERALEER
31 December 2017: ENEREERAE :
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EF—H EM E=MR Kt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FHETT FAETT FAETT
Assets BE
Available-for-sale AHEHERE
investments — — 1,516,177 1,516,177
There were no transfers among level 1, level 2 and level REXN E—H - F-_HRE
3 during the year. =R 2 I e o
(a) Financial instruments in level 1 and level 2 (d) E—FRFE—HLMTAE
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group RNR-E—NERKR _-_F—+
held no such financial assets. F+-_HA=+—8 K&
EWESERETRHEE
(b) Level 3 instruments (b) £F=RTE

Level 3 instruments mainly included equity
investments at FVOCI in unlisted equity securities.
As these investments are not traded in an active
market, their fair values have been determined
using dividend discounted model. The details of
the assumptions for FVOCI and the sensitivity
analysis are disclosed in Notes 13(a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AT IR ER R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BItFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contnuepy 3 ERbERE IR a)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) N AREEME @)
(b) Level 3 instruments (Continued) (b) ”'_ﬁ&IE( &)
The movement of level 3 instruments for the year BHE_Z—N\F+=A
ended 31 December 2018 is as follows: =+—H LI:EF E=
TEMEHNAT :

FVOCI
A REE
HEE
BETTA
Hinim & s
HK$'000
THER
Opening balance at 1 January R—HA—Br 4 eR 1,516,177
Exchange difference PE W =% (51,243)

Gains recognised in other comprehensive T E At 2 [ U AR SR A R & (1)
income (i) 411,526
Additions NE 851

Closing balance at 31 December BT A=1+—B8ER&EH 1,877,311

The movement of level 3 instruments for the year HE_Z—+tF+= A
ended 31 December 2017 is as follows: =t+t—HIEFE F=ZR
TAMEEHNAT :
Available-
for-sale
investments
A ERE
HK$'000
FETT
Opening balance at 1 January R— A — BRHEY &k 1,471,665
Exchange difference DE 5L ZRR 85,974
Losses recognised in other comprehensive P E At 2 TE R A HERR B B 48 ()
income (i) (44,856)
Additions NE 3,394
Closing balance at 31 December R+ A=1+—HHERE 1,516,177
(i) The gains/(losses) represented fair value changes of an FVOCI, (i) Wz (BRI AAEE

namely Tanggang Railway Co., Ltd. (“Tanggang Railway”).

ATRHEEHI ALK
(ED%/’%fﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁi{f’cQT
(F%xﬁﬁﬁﬂ))ﬂ’]ﬂﬁ1 =]

h‘i
K
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HE_Z— \Ft+-_A=+—HILLEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within next financial year are addressed below:

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The estimate of depreciable lives of property, plant
and equipment, especially power generating plant
and equipment and mining structures, was made
by the directors with reference to the following: (1)
the historical usage of the assets; (2) their expected
physical wear and tear; (3) results of recent durability
assessment performed; (4) technical or commercial
obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in
production of similar fixed assets; and (5) the changes
in market demand for, or legal or comparable limits
imposed on, the use of such fixed assets. When the
useful lives differ from the original estimated useful
lives, management will adjust the estimated useful lives
accordingly.

The current estimated useful lives are stated in Note
2.8. It is possible that the estimates made based on
existing experience are different to the actual outcomes
within next financial period and could cause a material
adjustment to the depreciation and carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R RS ER R B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE_Z— \Ft+-_A=+—HLEE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continuep)

(a)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

If the estimated depreciable lives of power generating
plant and equipment and mining structures had been
increased/decreased by 5%, the depreciation expenses
of fixed assets for the year ended 31 December 2018
would have been decreased/increased by approximately
HK$445,234,000 and HK$397,002,000 respectively
(2017: HK$411,649,000 and HK$393,581,000).

Estimated impairment of non-financial assets
(other than goodwill)

In determining whether a non-financial asset is impaired
or the event previously causing the impairment no
longer exists, management has to exercise judgement,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred that may affect the asset value or such event
affecting the asset value has not been in existence; (2)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported
by the net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset or
derecognition; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management to determine the
level of impairment, including the discount rate or the
growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect net present value used in the
impairment test.

4 BARZEHLSTRFE w0

(a)

(b)

ME - BERRK
FHA (@)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE_Z— \Ft+-_A=+—HILLEE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continuep)

(b) Estimated impairment of non-financial assets

(other than goodwill) (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, although
the Group had disposed several subsidiaries in coal
mining segment and the coal prices had been kept
at high level, the Group continued with its shutdown
plan of some of its coal mines gradually, pursuant
to the government policy implemented for reducing
overcapacity in the coal industry. This indicated that
the carrying amounts of the non-financial assets of
the Group in the coal mining segment might not be
recoverable. Net impairment losses therefore were
recognised in the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (Notes 6, 7 and 8).

Further considerations in performing impairment tests
regarding non-financial assets in coal mining segment
are set out in Notes 6, 7 and 8 respectively.

Impairment review of goodwill

As of 31 December 2018, there was goodwill
substantially arising from acquisition of various power
plants amounting to HK$1,287,142,000 (2017:
HK$1,626,560,000) (Note 12). Determining whether
goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated. The recoverable amounts of each of
CGUs are determined based on value in use calculation.
The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the cash-generating unit and any residual value from
disposing the related assets and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise.

The details of the assumptions used by management
and the sensitivity analysis are disclosed in Note 12.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 FISBZEH{aEtRYIET @
JUDGEMENTS (continuep)

(d) WEBRIEENCS AN IR

(d) Impairment review of prepayment paid for

acquisition of mining rights

Prepayment for acquisition of mining rights/exploration
rights are reviewed for impairment whenever one of the
following events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable (the
list is not exhaustive).

The possibility of converting the prepayment into
the mining rights/exploration rights.

o The period for which the entity has the right to
explore in the specific area has expired during the
period or will expire in the near future, and is not
expected to be renewed.

o Substantive expenditure on future exploration for
and evaluation of mineral resources in the specific
area is neither budgeted nor planned.

o Exploration for and evaluation of mineral
resources in the specific area have not led to the
discovery of commercially viable quantities of
mineral resources and the entity has decided to
discontinue such activities in the specific area.

e  Sufficient data exist to indicate that, though
a development in the specific area is likely to
proceed, the carrying amount of the exploration
and resources rights is unlikely to be recovered in
full from successful development or by sale.

In estimating the recoverable amounts of assets,
various assumptions, including future cash flows to
be associated with the deposits and discount rates,
are made. If future events do not correspond to such
assumptions, the recoverable amounts will need to be
revised, and this may have an impact on the Group's
results of operations or financial position.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4
JUDGEMENTS (continueD)

(d) Impairment review of prepayment paid for
acquisition of mining rights (Continued)

At 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of
prepayment for acquisition of mining rights/exploration
rights is HK$1,330,744,000 (2017: HK$1,449,133,000)
(Note 14) and there is no impairment made for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5
INFORMATION

Turnover represents revenue arising from sales of electricity
and heat generated by thermal power plants, and sales of
coal during the year. The Group is currently engaged in
three business areas - thermal power (inclusive of coal-fired

FAR BSOSt A& w0

(d) WEBRBENE AN RIE
AR E R ST (&)

RZZFE—-—N\NF+_A=+—
B WHEEBEE B FEE
X NENRENERES
1,330,744,0008 T(Z & —+
£ 1 1,449,133,000% 7T ) (Bt
F14HEEBEE_ZE—N\F+_H
=t+—BLFEBMEELRE
Tt F i E) e

EXRBRDPER

EERBERFANFEEEN REW
HEA R RGHE T E £ RV ©
SERTREE=—EZEIM—ANHE
E(BRMREBRMARER) - A FH

and gas-fired power plants), renewable energy (inclusive of ERRR(BERNEE KAIBEER
wind farms, hydro-electric projects and photovoltaic power HIRNEBEE) RHEFEE -
generation) and coal mining.
2018 2017
Ll T F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
Sales of electricity BHE AFOOEWENN 64,013,900
Including: B
Sales of power generation from NERMEEHE
thermal power plants 56,886,301 56,532,142
Sales of power generation from AEARREEHE
renewable energy 9,114,929 7,481,758
Heat supply (by thermal power plants) Hpeftre (NERELR) 4,808,207 3,763,647
Sales of coal IR E 6,130,688 5,534,130
76,940,125 73,311,677
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (conTinueD)

The chief operating decision-makers mainly include
executive directors and members of senior management
of the Company. For the purpose of resources allocation
and performance assessment, the chief operating decision-
makers review operating results and financial information
on a Group company by company basis. Each such Group
company is identified as an operating segment. When the
Group company operates in similar business model with
similar target Group of customers, the Group’s operating
segments are aggregated.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in Note 2.
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of central corporate expenses, interest
income, finance costs, share of results of associates, share
of results of joint ventures, fair value changes on derivative
financial instruments, gains on disposal of investments,
dividend income from FVOCI investee companies and
exchange gains/(losses).

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

TREERRETEBREARRHT
EEREMEERBKE - MERDE
RERAFGME @ TREERRER
NAEEFEHEEK B RANEER
BRMEER S RREBEXE AR
BRHRI A —EEENE - EEER
AIE PR E A S AR B
BEFPHE  AKENZENE ST
P S B VMARS ©

&) BB H) & R BOR SR 5E 2 At Ay
AEEETBORER - 7 2B FBHAIE
DEERADEFREXEM - 78
WA -BMBER  BEBMELRE
B RBEAECERERITAESRT
ERnEEZS HERENKE -
ARREBEAEEZI AR MES
Yoz MY BAR B 2 R R BB U A R B 5
Wz, (B8 ) VBN T BREREI R o

7 BRfE #H E R IRIT ISR FEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BHE-_T—\F+-A=+—HILFE

5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5 EXBRIBENm
INFORMATION (continueD)
Segment information of the Group's revenue and results is REBWARFER D AR ST 0
presented below: N
For the year ended 31 December 2018: HE-T - N\F+HA=+—HILF
B

Thermal Renewable
power energy mining Eliminations Total

AE TUBLERE  KBREAR g At

HKS'000 ~ HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
TET TERL TRET TERT TERL

Segment revenue LA

External sales INEBSHE 61,694,508 9,114,929 6,130,688 — 76,940,125
Inter-segment sales DEEHEE — — 140,617 (140,617) —
Total @t 61,694,508 9,114,929 6,271,305  (140,617) 76,940,125
Timing of revenue recognition  HEFRURZS KBS

At a point in time RE—EEEH 61,489,438 9,114,929 6,271,305  (140,617) 76,735,055
Over time BRI TR 205,070 - — - 205,070

61,694,508 9,114,929 6,271,305 (140,617) 76,940,125

Segment profit yaxciilb 7,403,850 4,665,171 2,436,690 — 14,505,711
Unallocated corporate expenses  AABEEEER (1,826,318)
Interest income YN 414,113
Losses on Disposal of Shanxi HELFARREESE

Coal Mining Assets (2,121,569)
Gains on disposal of HEEMMBARAKEFE

other subsidiaries 102,475
Finance costs BBER (4,314,685)
Share of results of associates EEBEtCEXE 223,638
Share of results of EEAE0EEE

joint ventures 53,937
Dividend income from FVOCI MEEMERED

investee companies qu)\ﬁ@wT\/\ilﬁ

HREDARELA 212,993

Exchange gains & M 60,880

Profit before income tax BR BT 55t A1 8 7,311,175

228 | China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. ZHEIZRERAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AT IR ER R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_Z-A\Ft-A=1T—HLFE

5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5 EXB[RIBER (-
INFORMATION (continueD)
For the year ended 31 December 2017: BE_T—+tFT+A=1T—HILF
E
Thermal  Renewable Coal
power energy mining  Eliminations Total
RE UEERE  RERR A @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL FET TAET FET FET
Segment revenue AEBA
External sales HNERHE 60,295,789 7,481,758 5,534,130 — 73311677
Inter-segment sales AHEREE - — 118,931 (118,931) —
Total @5 60,295,789 7,481,758 5,653,061 (118,931) 73,311,677
Timing of revenue recognition M A
At a point in time RE-EHY 59,962,562 7,481,758 5653061  (118,931) 72,978,450
Over time FER R 333,227 — — - 333,227
60,295,789 7,481,758 5,653,061 (118,931) 73,311,677
Segment profit ax il 6,538,715 4,154,059 2,896,483 — 13,589,257
Unallocated corporate expenses  AAELEER (1,427,129)
Interest income MERA 310,854
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries  HEMBL 7 143,965
Losses on disposal of other HEEMERRE
equity investments, net BRTE (133,065)
Finance costs MBER (3,991,498)
Share of results of associates EEBErE%E 136,448
Share of results of joint ventures EfEAEMEEE (104,558)
Dividend income from available- AItHEREREMA
for-sale investments 189,572
Exchange losses I 3 518 (193,456)
Profit before income tax BRATEB AR 8,520,390
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=1+—ALEFE

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5 ZBXEBHRIBBER @
INFORMATION (continueD)

Segment information about the Group's assets and liabilities RTAAEENEERBENSHE

is presented below:

*

2018 2017
TE)\F i
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FExT FH&T
Segment assets PWEE
— Thermal power —NE CENERAVA 103,616,110
— Renewable energy — A AR (REEWELS 61,997,153
— Coal mining — R CEEERNEN 30,409,930
Total segment assets BOEEE WAAVYRTEN 196,023,193
Investments in associates RE LRI 9,480,198 8,747,317
Investments in joint ventures REETERIRS 3,678,437 3,660,368
FVOCI and loans to an FVOCI NARBEFEEES)
investee company T AH A 2 E WA
e ARBETE
BEFHtAEMEMA
Wa IR E R Bl ER 2,310,273 —
Available-for-sale and loans to an A E K m— R A
available-for-sale investee HEHREEER 1,970,007
Loans to/amounts due from associates |, FEURE: & ¥ K
and joint ventures BEDEER A 153,899 2,090,192
Loans to/amounts due from non-controll |,/ FEURH B A 7 &
shareholders of a subsidiary and other Hh BEES 75 FETERR
related parties R E A 116,850 17,603
Pledged bank deposits, and cash and cash ~ BiEFRITHER * W&
equivalents KIREEEY 8,191,434 6,271,868
Deferred income tax assets RS ERE 882,182 946,782
Other corporate assets, mainly representing HtEEE T4
assets held by head office and HEB IR EIEAR A A
investment holding companies BFEMEE 6,265,789 1,245,140
Consolidated assets EHEE NP ERIYA 220,972,470
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AT IR ER R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BItFE

Current income tax liabilities

IS E R AR

5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5 BEBROIIER M@
INFORMATION (continueD)

2017
—ET—tF
HK$'000
FETT

Segment liabilities PEHEE
— Thermal power —NE 18,688,471 15,356,768
— Renewable energy — A B4EER 7,929,827 7,923,887
— Coal mining — ERERER 1,388,962 8,516,356
Total segment liabilities wonamd X WL N 31,797,011
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE CIyANEYA 100,922,869
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTIEHEE 778,517 2,576,356

423,929 877,060

ENBEEERAEE

Amounts due to associates and

joint ventures S EFIE 2,018,978 946,996
Amounts due to other related parties JE 1~ EL Ath B gt 5 IR 292,310 1,440,535
Other corporate liabilities, H bk %Eﬁ I;d%

mainly representing liabilities of HEB R E TR A A

head office and investment WaE

holding companies 2,742,425 1,669,763

aHftaE

Consolidated liabilities eI 140,230,590
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE_Z— \Ft+-_A=+—HILLEE

5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (conTinueD)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than investments in associates, investments in joint
ventures, FVOCI and loans to an FVOCI investee
company, loans to/amounts due from associates
and joint ventures, amounts due from other related
companies, deferred income tax assets, pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents managed by
corporate office, and other unallocated corporate
assets; and

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than bank and other borrowings, deferred income
tax liabilities, current income tax liabilities, amounts
due to associates and joint ventures, amounts due to
other related parties and other unallocated corporate
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AT IR ER R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BItFE

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5 BXRBARDEBEN @)

INFORMATION (continueD)

Other segment information is presented below: T REMmDEHER

For the year ended 31 December 2018: (E-F - \F+-A=1+—HILF
=

Thermal Renewable Coal

power Y mining Unallocated Total
XE TABLERER BB AAE Azt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TET

Amounts included in the BREEIBAERD B
measure of segment profit BEGENSE:
and segment assets:

Additions to non-current assets (i) FEENEERIE M () 3,988,213 15,336,803 632,210 5,755,170 25,712,396
Depreciation and amortisation ~ #T& R #$H 7.322,343 3,077,524 694,835 58,212 11,152,914
Impairment charges RERX 612,869 164,543 184,592 - 962,004
Net (losses)/gains on disposal of &Y% * BiRE k&

property, plant and equipment  KI(B18) /S FE (35,214) (165) (41,675) . (74,281)

Amounts regularly provided to EHEFEEERFH
chief operating decision RUBREEESD
maker but not included in the FEirEHEE
measure of segment profit:

Share of results of associates ERHECEEE 222,650 — 988 — 223,638
Share of results of joint ventures EIHAEC¥£E (8,378) 50,133 12,182 — 53,937
Finance costs BBER 1,450,079 1,065,990 747,821 1,050,795 4,314,685
Interest income FEMA 58,658 48,069 87,847 219,539 414,113

Income tax expense FEHER 1,089,316 555,014 537,849 104,123 2,286,302
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE—Z-N\Ft+-A=+—BIEE

5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5 BXRBARDTBEN @)
INFORMATION (conTinueD)
For the year ended 31 December 2017: BE_ZT—+tFT+HA=1T—HILF
E
Thermal  Renewable Coal
power energy mining  Unallocated Total
KE  AEEER  EBERR AHHE st

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TATL TR TAL TAL TR

Amounts included in the AREEIBAERD B
measure of segment profit BEGTEMEH:
and segment assets:

Additions to non-current assets (i) FE/RE)E B RIIE M0 (i) 1,714,488 17,087,811 3,796,611 799,210 23,398,120
Depreciation and amortisation ~ #T& R # 8 7,340,011 2,538,445 588,940 40,026 10,507,422
Impairment charges RERL 700,709 2,119 147,837 — 850,665
Net (losses)/gains on disposal of HEYE  BERR

property, plant and equipment ~ MIEEFE (377,134) 5,737 7,511 (39)  (363,925)

Amounts regularly provided to EHIEFEEERFE
chief operating decision RUBFEEEDID
maker but not included in the I/t EHNEHE :
measure of segment profit:

Share of results of associates FEhBatEEE 181,325 — (44,877) — 136,448
Share of results of joint ventures EfEAEMEXE (107,928) — 3,370 —  (104,558)
Finance costs HBER 1,520,106 798,149 1,266,991 406,252 3,991,498
Interest income FEMA 52,736 30,376 192,944 34,798 310,854
Income tax expense FEHER 1,387,113 419,331 460,691 634,551 2,901,686
(i): Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets and financial instruments. () : FERBDEETRIEECHBEERSBMTA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AT IR ER R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BItFE

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5 ZEBRIPBER @)
INFORMATION (continueD)
Geographical information b 13§ & K}

AEBNEETBEMRPE - A&
BAERBIINTZFEHUARE
RABEHEF RZE—N\F+=
A=+—H ' A&EBEMNIERBEE
(TEREEMSHREERERT
£)169,614,856,000/8 (=T —+
£ :190,458,538,000 7 7T ) iz 1A

The Group's operations are principally located in the
PRC. All of the Group’s revenue from external customers
are attributed to customers located in the PRC. The
Group’s non-current assets excluding deferred income
tax assets and financial instruments, which amounted to
HK$169,614,856,000 as at 31 December 2018 (2017:
HK$190,458,538,000) are located in the mainland China.

B A o
Information about major customers FBEFXrEEZEFNER
Revenue from customers of each corresponding year REMEFEERMASEERIEEES
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as 10% B FHRALT -
follows:
2018 2017
TE-N\F g s
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHATT
Customer A P A (ERELIPELON 13,433,150
Customer B =FEB 10,351,951 10,369,292
Customer C BEC 8,565,736 8,441,875
Customer D ZED 7,880,532 6,512,923
The above mentioned customers are under the thermal EFPBERANERABARIRD

power and renewable energy segments.

B |
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BHE-_T—\F+-A=+—HILFE

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 WE - MERKIB

Motor
vehicles,
Power furniture,
generating fixtures,
plant and Mining  equipment Construction
Buildings  equipment  structures and others in progress Total

RE- 58

BER  RE a6
85  RE WEEE  RE@  ERIR &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THn AT TR it TER  TEx

At 1 January 2017 RZZ-t£-f-H
Cost A 38,683,741 136,698,793 3509962 9,836,108 11,740,078 200,468,682
Impairment HE (1,111,047)  (1,420,779)  (32,644)  (759,230)  (3,006,403)  (6,330,103)
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (10,802,990) (43,071,412)  (765343) (1,223,637 — (55,863,382
Net book amount REEFE 26,769,704 92,206,602 2,711,975 70853241 8,733,675 138275197
Year ended 31 December 2017 HE-3-tF

TZA=T-HLEE
Opening net book amount ENREFE 26,769,704 92,206,602 2,711,975 70853241 8,733,675 138275197
Exchange differences ERER 1,873,879 5,991,489 189,838 534,021 594,507 9,183,734
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT (54,277)  (3,808,422) - (5,270) (1.122)  (3,869,091)
Additions AE 37,167 2,175,928 — 1,083,663 16,831,223 20,127,981
Transfer g 1206413 9475838 294,603 20,770 (10,997,624) —
Disposals e (89,352)  (430,592) — (21,388)  (61,994)  (603,326)
Impairment BB 189,524 (269,433)  (89,867)  (197,089)  (361,374)  (728,239)
Depreciation charge HERY (1,810,285)  (7,906,961)  (154,377)  (179,980) — (10,051,603)
Closing net hook amount EXBEFE 28,120,773 97434449 2,952,172 9,087,968 14,737,291 152,334,653
At 31 December 2017 R-B-t

TZAZt-H
Cost A 42,354,603 150,922,254 4,053,193 11,307,318 18,532,829 227,170,197
Impairment RE (801,682)  (1,331,600)  (165,684)  (861,718)  (3,795,538)  (6,956,222)
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (13,430,148) (52,156,205)  (935,337)  (1,357,632) — (67,879,322)
Net book amount REFE 28,120,773 97434449 2,952,172 9,087,968 14,737,291 152,334,653
Year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE-)

TZA=t-ALEE
Opening net book amount ENEEFE 28,122,773 97434449 2,952,172 9,087,968 14,737,291 152,334,653
Exchange differences ERESE (1,199,752)  (4,380,164)  (108,113)  (408,959)  (694,126) (6,791,114)
Disposal of subsidiaries FELENBAR (979,885)  (2,740,549) (2,011,911)  (160,740)  (548,513) (6,441,598)
Additions AE 279,652 1,254,740 — 17,03 16,024,242 17,675,697
Transfer Eh 1,161,101 8,124,226 (417,127)  (8,868,200) -
Disposals e (30,953)  (201,368) (109,269) —  (341,590)
Impairment R (20,403)  (217,922) (12,709)  (183,462)  (434,49)
Depreciation charge MERR (2,027,147)  (8,541,699) (150,450) —  (10,729,075)
Closing net book amount EXRERE 25,305,386 90,731,713 822,369 7,945,777 20,467,232 145,272,477
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E

TZR=t-A
Cost A 39,274,766 144,189,673 930,378 9,167,299 21,033,012 214,595,128
Impairment R (324,296)  (336,870)  (56,830) (1,375)  (565,780)  (1,285,151)
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE (13,645,084) (53,121,090  (51,179)  (1,220,147) —  (68,037,500)
Net book amount REFE 25,305,386 90,731,713 822,369  7,945777 20,467,232 145,272,477
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

BE

- N\F+A=+—HILFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Construction work in progress as at 31 December 2018
mainly comprises infrastructure contruction of new power
plants, technical impovement projects of existing power
plants and coal mines being constructed in the PRC.

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs
amounting to HK$805,622,000 (2017: HK$488,234,000)
(Note 39) on qualifying assets. Borrowing costs were
capitalised at the weighted average rate of the borrowings
of 4.58% (2017: 4.43%).

Depreciation expenses of HK$10,665,813,000 and
HK$63,262,000 (2017: HK$10,015,238,000 and
HK$36,365,000) has been recorded in operating expenses
and construction in progress, respectively.

The impairment charges related to property, plant
and equipment amounting to HK$434,496,000(2017:

é

Y% - MERRRE @

RZEBE—N\F+-_A=+—HBHWEZE
TEFEEEMEEHRNERTRE
REBEMOREMRAEE REFEH
R AR o

RERN > REBEERLEEBKRE
E B K 4805,622,000# (=&
— + £ : 488,234,000/ JT ) (M 3%
39) - EERAIZEEE M INEFY
R458% (ZF —+tF :443%) %8
A4k o

¥ & B9 %10,665,813,0007% 7T &
63,262,000 (= & — + &
10,015,238,000% JT X 36,365,000
BILT)DAIABRREERT RERET

EHEME  BEEKEREBERXKX
7,%434,496,000,%75(_§ + &

HK$728,239,000) has been recorded in operating expenses. 728,239,000/ L) ERKLEK A
The movement on the provision for impairment of property, ABE o RE @&"Hﬁiu SEVE - K
plant and equipment of the Group by segment is as follows: BN EEBERENEEHIT

Thermal power Coal mining

KE yo8 ek

2018 2017 2018 2017

TE-N\F il — T — )\ F —+F

HK$'000 BTSN HKS'000 EE€YN)

FERx FET FET FAET

At 1 January R—A—H 1,247,926 696,001 BEWALEWEIN 5,634,102

Exchange differences M=% (58,903) 17,402 BNEIAFErAA) 126,555

Provision of impairment BB 420,815 703,007 13,681 213,518

Reversal of impairment charged  JB{E 18 k[0 — — = (188,286)
Disposal of Shanxi Coal Mining ~ H&LTAKEEE

Assets (Note 45) (Pft5E45) — — (4,764,093) —

Disposals HE (Cep )] (168,484) EMELENIT)] (77,593)

At 31 December R+=ZA=+-—H YIRS 1,247,926 307,541 BENAEWER
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE_Z— \Ft+-_A=+—HILLEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

During the year, certain small-scale coal-fired power
generators were determined to be closed down and certain
power assets were retired or obsolete to follow the change
in technology regulating environment, consequently the
Group has made an impairment charge of HK$420,815,000,
after considering any possible benefit receivable during the
disposal process. The recoverable amounts of these assets
are based on their fair value less costs of disposal.

The impairment charge reported in coal mining segment
for the year ended 31 December 2018 mainly related to
property, plant and equipment held by subsidiaries located
in Hunan and Henan Province. The impairment provision
of HK$13,681,000 made mainly resulted from the Group’s
shutdown plan of some of its coal mines gradually according
to the government policy of reducing overcapacity in coal
industry.

Each coal mine is determined as one CGU. The impairment
losses or reversal of impairment attributable to these CGUs
was then allocated to write down the assets in the CGU on
a pro rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
(including prepaid lease payments (Note 7), mining rights
(Note 8) and related property, plant and equipment) in the
CGU.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H AT IR ER R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

BE

- N\F+A=+—HILFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

After Disposal of Shanxi Coal Mining Assets, remaining
coal mines are mainly located in Inner Mongolia, Guizhou
and Hunan province. The VIU of these coal mine CGUs
have been estimated using calculations of pre-tax cash
flow projections developed based on financial budgets
compiled by management covering a five-year period. Cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated without
considering any growth rate. The annual production volume
of each coal mine CGU throughout the projection period
is consistent with the certificate of each mining right or
technical feasibility report. The key assumptions and discount
rate used for VIU calculations and the recoverable amount of
those CGUs are as follows:

é

ERRTAITRE

Real pre-tax discount rate

Coal prices (% annual growth rate) HxER(FERANL)
Recoverable amounts of the CGUs rEERAENREEE
held by the Group ol e

Another key assumption is the full operation timing for
certain mines currently in construction. The management
currently estimated a full operation of all mines by the end
of year 2022.

Y% - MERRRE @

HELAKEEER %Tﬁ%ﬁ%
FEUREG EMEPEE - %25
HEReEABSUNEAEEDANA
ﬁ?ﬁfﬁfiﬁﬁiﬁiﬁ’]i’iiﬁﬂﬁﬂ&ﬁ%
EEMBRFHAIRES RERANGTE

SEMAE o EHEE iu”jﬁiﬁi,ﬁﬂﬂjﬂfﬁ
EMERWELT REMERE - ZF
BN e EEBUNEERRHNFE
B 2 B R A AR B S M SRR T R 4T

MREEFT - FREBETEREFA

MNEEBREIETREZERELSE
AR Bl REAN T

2018 2017

—E-N\F —+F

PN LLARVPSEAN  11.84%-13.83%

0% 0%

GLEE AT BTN HK$7,868,815,000

/\@IK{EJ*’LZ%EEHTELE’J S TR
ERE2EESNRRE - EEEREMA
.:fﬁfrﬁl%ﬁ%ﬁf\_? T CFRAEEHE
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B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE_Z— \Ft+-_A=+—HILLEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 W% - BMERRIE®
(CONTINUED)

Should the coal prices have been 5% lower while holding W E KBS T 5% M EMmE S
other variables constant, the Group would have recognised T KAXEEEMRBSELEME
a further impairment against the CGUs by Nil (2017: RE—IDIBEZTABTL(ZE—LF:

HK$9,014,000).

Should the discount rate have been higher by 1% while
holding other variables constant, the Group would have not
recognised a further impairment against the CGUs.

As at 31 December 2018, total net book value of property,
plant and equipment pledged as collateral for the Group’s
bank borrowings amounted to HK$3,918,842,000 (2017:
HK$3,071,285,000) (Note 31).

As at 31 December 2018, the ownership certificates of
certain buildings (“Building Ownership Certificates”) of the

9,014,000 7T) °

i B ER RS 1% T HAth B LA HF T
- E\'J$’§l7ﬁaﬁﬁwfﬁﬁﬁii1
H#E—RIE -

R_EBE—-N\F+—_A=+—H &
HAEAEBRTEERRAROY
¥ BELXENEEDBEFESR
3,918,842,0008 (= F — + F ¢
3,071,285,000 7 7T) (KI5E31)

RZZE—N\F+_A=+—08 &&E
lﬁ*%ﬂ$%l”$§$MWﬁ%

Group with an aggregate carrying value of approximately E(EFREEE]D(REAEEBENR
HK$4,889,799,000 (2017: HK$8,815,640,000) had not 4889 799,000 (=T — L F :
been obtained by the Group. After consultation made with 8,815,640,000/87C)) - KARRAIESE
the Company’s legal counsel, the directors of the Company EBARNARERERE - RANRE

consider that there is no legal restriction for the Group to
apply for and obtain the Building Ownership Certificates and
it should not lead to any significant adverse impact on the
operations of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H AT IR ER R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

BE

- N\F+A=+—HILFE

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS YENHEER
The Group's prepaid lease payments are related to leases AEEMENEEE AR EA
of land located in the PRC and their net book value are THHLOERE  ZEHEONEREEFE
analysed as follows: DT -
2018 2017
T2 )\F ks
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FEx FETT
At 1 January R—HA—H 3,537,380 3,344,692
Exchange differences MEHZER (168,327) 220,947
Additions INE 424,336 71,225
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKE A A (157,945) (103)
Amortisation charge B (109,551) (101,493)
Disposal HE (2,593) —
(Provision of)/reversal of impairment B (B ) /o (86,165) 2,112
At 31 December R+=—BA=+—H 3,437,135 3,537,380

Amortisation of HK$98,676,000 and HK$10,875,000 (2017:
HK$95,892,000 and HK$5,601,000) has been recorded
in operating expenses and construction in progress,
respectively.

Certain bank borrowings of the Group are secured by
land leases at an aggregate carrying amount of Nil (2017:
HK$940,000) (Note 31).

As at 31 December 2018, land use right certificates (“Land
Certificates”) of certain parcels of land of the Group with
an aggregate carrying value of HK$315,558,000 (2017:
HK$467,883,000) had not been obtained. After consultation
made with the Company’s legal counsel, the directors
consider that there is no legal restriction for the Group to
apply for and obtain the Land Certificates and it should not
lead to any significant adverse impact on the operations of
the Group.

# 498,676,000 7t & 10,875,000
BT(ZZ—+4 1 95,892,000/8 7T
X.5,601,0007% 7T ) 5 Bl A BR 48 & X,
ARERETRE -

AEBETFHRITEELREAESRA
T(ZZ—+% : 940,000/ 7T )H
H AR AR (BIEE31) ©

RZZE—N\F+_A=+—H &%
B mARESAEERS TR WA T
FREZE((HEZ ) (EEAE
/315,558,000 8 T( =& — 4 :
467,883,0005%71:)) o BEMABAA

RAEREMRE  REXNEBHB
&5% iﬁﬂMEITTEEH/féBE
#il - B NS ARE B R BN TR
BARTHMFE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=1+—ALEFE

8 MINING RIGHTS 8
At 1 January W—AB—H
Cost DN
Impairment AR
Accumulated amortisation RETEE
Opening net book amount FHREFEE
Exchange differences ME H ZRE
Additions NE
Impairment BIE
Amortisation charge BIHR
Disposal of Shanxi Coal Mining Assets & L PR E A (MYEE 45)
(Note 45)
Closing net book amount FRIREFE
At 31 December Rt+t=ZA=+—
Cost B
Impairment AR
Accumulated amortisation RETEE
Net book amount REFE
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iRt

2018
—E2-N\F
HK$'000
THET

21,942,145
(CHEVILY)
(2,402,934)

15,301,970

(404,324)
pLER

(100,658)

(388,425)

(14,226,564)

480,605

1,210,516
(522,748)
(207,163)

480,605

2017
—EtF
HK$'000
T

20,685,448
(3,841,298)
(1,941,252)

14,902,898

597,419

297,753

(99,808)
(396,292)

15,301,970

21,942,145
(4,237,241)
(2,402,934)

15,301,970



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AT IR ER R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BItFE

MINING RIGHTS (continuep) 8 HIE#Em

Amortisation is provided to write off the cost of the
mining rights using the unit of production method based
on the proved and probable reserves of the coal mines.
Amortisation of HK$388,425,000 (2017: HK$396,292,000)
and impairment of HK$100,658,000 (2017: HK$99,808,000)
have been recorded in operating expenses.

The impairment charge of HK$100,658,000 in 2018 was
provision for certain mining rights held by a subsidiary
located in Hunan Province. Further considerations in
performing impairment tests, the key assumptions used in
the impairment calculation and the sensitivity analysis are set
out in Note 6.

As at 31 December 2018, the ownership certificates
of certain mining rights (“Mining Rights Ownership
Certificates”) of the Group with an aggregate carrying value
of approximately HK$6,306,000 had not been obtained by
the Group (2017: HK$2,790,071,000 not been obtained
and HK$1,792,695,000 expired not yet renewed). The
management has considered the impact of such situation in
impairment assessment of related assets.

EXPLORATION AND RESOURCES RIGHTS

9

B3 TH AR R BB A R BR K HE R
HEFHAEEEAMZET UG
12 - DARRSH R TR RE A AN o 28 5
388,425,000%8 t(=— & — +
£ 396,292,000 7T ) & A
{8100,658,0008 L (Z T —+
£ 99,808,000 70) 2 AR

RZZE—-—NFHRAEIREKX
100,658,000 % 7t &2 iz 70 8
LW —HNBRRMEBENSET
REERRR - £r7REANRD
E—PEE - BEFEMADN
FEREZERHERE D TEHRK
FF6 o

R—_E—NF+_A=+—
B A&EBHADRSEASER
E1{E & £ #96,306,000% T(—
T —+4 :2,790,071,000/8 T
WAREE M 1,792,695,000 78 7T
EAHBEHMAEE)MNE TEHERE
OB RE([RERMA R
F BEEEENETEBRE
ERREFHZEEEBIEN

SRENRE

2017
—T—tF
HK$'000
FHET
At 31 December 2017 R-E—tF
+=—A=+—H 162,310 151,677
Additions NE 65,131 —
Exchange differences EH =% (11,416) 10,633
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE—-NF
+=A=+—H 216,025 162,310
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=1+—ALEFE

10 INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO 10 RIS EENERROE
ASSOCIATES SEEEM
(@) Investments in associates (a) REEZERENER
2018 2017
b N T F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FHT
At 1 January B—HA—H 8,747,317 8,459,278
Transfer from investment in ERERANEGEPENER
a joint venture 111,651
Transfer from investment in EHEE R —FEH B AR
a subsidiary (Note i) AR (BIEED) 701,487 528,397
Capital contributions to associates FBEDETE 719,549 530,382
Disposal of associates (Note ii) o B e 1 5 (B ET i) — (464,836)
Share of profits A A 222,650 181,325
Dividends declared by associates BEPETIRKRE (499,744) (925,896)
Share of other comprehensive EmEMEE(EBER) WA
(loss)/income (107,349) 65,870
Share of other equity movement of DB E D ER E M
associates e 1,698 (1,271)
Exchange differences MEHZR (305,410) 262,417
At 31 December R+=A=+—H 9,480,198 8,747,317

AEBRBECENKREXRABIER
651,643,000 T(ZF—+ 4
700,536,000/87T) °

Included in the Group’s cost of investment in
associates is goodwill of HK$651,643,000 (2017:
HK$700,536,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AT IR ER R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BItFE

10 INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO
ASSOCIATES (contiNnuED)

10 REEEENER RO
STEER @

(a) REEEEMNER @)

R_EBE—-NE+-_A=+—
B AEBETEHLLEGK
RS FE) T

(@) Investments in associates (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the principal associates of the
Group, all being accounted for using equity method,
were as follows:

Issued and fully
paid share capital/

Place of registered capital
incorporation and paid-up capital
and operation BRTHERE/ Percentage of equity Principal
Name of associate B3 THEAR interest held activities
Bet¥ERm REEHE BREX FEENRER D TEXY
Directly Indirectly
Ef 583
China Resources (Xuzhou) PRC Registered and = 42.65  Operation of
Electric Power Co., Ltd. i paid-up capital a power station
BHERENERAR RMB863,110,000 EEE
HM R R ER
AR™863,110,000 70
China Resources Power PRC Registered and 49 —  Operation of
(Liuzhi) Co., Ltd. HE paid-up capital a power station
EREN (AR ARAR RMB1,300,000,000 EEE
HM RS RER
AK%1,300,000,000 70
Jingneng (Xilinguole) Power PRC Registered and = 30 Operation of
Corporation HE paid-up capital a power station
e (H9) FEERAA) RMB1,916,000,000 EEE
AMRERER

AK%1,916,000,000 7

Fuyang China Resources Power PRC Registered and 40 —  Operation of

Co., Ltd. ("CR Fuyang") (note i) mE

BHZEENERRA
([ 2EZ8 ] (HE)

paid-up capital
RMB1,263,265,000
FMRERER
AR#1,263,265,000

a power station
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=1+—ALEFE

10 INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO
ASSOCIATES (conTiNuED)

10 REFEEEER RO
SEEEMm)

(@) Investments in associates (Continued)

(a) PABEEZAVERS (@)

Name of associate

BELEER

Place of
incorporation
and operation

oA
REEH

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital
and paid-up capital
BRTBRRE
AMEAR
BREX

Percentage of equity
interest held

FRNRREIL

Directly
B

Indirectly
F3

Principal
activities

Hunan Taohuajiang Nuclear PRC Registered capital = 25  Operation of
Power Co., Ltd. HE RMB1,025,704,000 a power station
("Hunan Taohuapang Nuclear”) Paid-up capital HER

AEkiEInE RMB1, 149,227,000
(T#mtk mW*J) SRER

AR 1,025,704,000 70
BRER
AR 1,149,227,000 T

Jiangsu Zhenjiang Power PRC Registered and = 425  Qperation of
Generation Co., Ltd. e paid-up capital a power station
(“Jiangsu Zhenpang Power") RMB1,482,200,000 2EE

IHBEIEEERA HRARER
U/I%iﬁ/lé’é@ﬁ AR 1,482,200,000 70

Yangzhou No. 2 Power PRC Registered and 45 —  Operation of
Generation Co.,Ltd. HE paid-up capital a power station

BNE-EEEREAAR RMB1,692,000,000 BERY

kAR ER
AR 1,692,000,000 7T

Guodian Changzhou Power PRC Registered and = 25  Operation of
Corporation # paid-up capital a power station
EEMEEERAR RMB1,000,000,000 BERY

kG CER
AR 1,000,000,000 7T

Zhengzhou Huayuan Coal Mining PRC Registered and = 30.67  Exploration and
Co., Ltd. e paid-up capital sale of coal

BNERREXARAA R%%?&o HRRHEERR

1 i =
AR 750,000,000 7T

Shanxi Zhonglv China Resources PRC Registered capital — 20 Operation of

Company Limited # RMB1,641,750,000 a power station

WA REEERAA Paid-up capital LET
RMB1,000,000,000
HHEX
AK®1,641,750,0007
BREX

AK#1,000,000,0007C
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R RS ER R B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

BE

10

2 \EFTZ A=t RUEEE

INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO
ASSOCIATES (continueD)

(@) Investments in associates (Continued)

Note i: In 2018, the shareholding by the Group in CR Fuyang was diluted
to be 40% after the additional capital injection by another
shareholder. The carrying amount of remaining investment
were remeasured at fair value as of disposal date and a gain of
HK$93,656,000 was recognised. Therefore, CR Fuyang became an
associate of the Group.

Note ii: The investment in Taiyuan China Resources Coal Co., Ltd. ("CR
Taiyuan”) were disposed as part of the Disposal of Shanxi Coal
Mining Assets. Please refer to Note 45 for details.

The above table lists the principle associates of the
Group which, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, principally affected/will affect the results
of the year or formed a substantial portion of the net
assets of the Group. To give details of other associates
would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
result in particulars of excessive length.

All above associates are limited liability companies.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group provided
guarantees amounting to HK$581,870,000 (31
December 2017: HK$617,093,000) to secure bank loans
of Hunan Taohuajiang Nuclear.

10

I 7%

it = 1B 5% BY 1 25 e 160 B
ﬁ%: R (@)

(a) PABEE AV (@)

MizEi: R-ZT—N\F AEEEBREE
HEFRAETE S — ZREEIN
EEBRBETA0% - 8 T
EMEFEAEERESEBHOAA
REEEFHE  THERAUKE
93,656,000/ 7T - At + BF5
ERHRANEBNBEDE -

Mizkii: BMARZFEBEEERAFTIK
REBDMREEALE LA
RELAEN—HF2LE - #1575
2BMIEE 45 -

KRAREERE t%%ﬂ$
SEFTEBMENCED BY
Elifﬁﬁﬁig%ﬂiﬁ
KASRBEFEEZETERNS o
$ REERE " Wﬁﬁm
EhENEREE ﬁéﬂﬂw
T

FIEMECEO/BRALER
ETO

R_E—NE+_A=+—
H'Z’KEITEL\%;&\
581,870,000 JT Ay #& R(=
T—+HE+-_AF=+—8:
617,093, ooo;‘%ﬁ)%ﬁ%iﬁﬂﬁﬁ
MIETZBERIRITER »
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE—Z-N\Ft+-A=+—BIEE

10 INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO 10
ASSOCIATES (conTiNuED)

(@) Investments in associates (Continued)

Summarised financial information for immaterial
associates

According to the assessment of directors of the
Company, as at 31 December 2018, no individual
associate is material to the Group, therefore, no
information on individual associate is disclosed.

Set out below are the summarised financial information
for the immaterial associates which are accounted for
using the equity method.

Profit from continuing operations REKEEBHTE
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hib2mE(E18), WA

Total comprehensive income ZHIRAEEE

248 | China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. EMEERERAT

RS EENER RO
STEEESRm)

(a) PABEEDZEARER @)

TE R E DB % E R
L3

18R D A B E T - R
T—N\F+-A=+— A
BRI & 0 R AR T S B
BT E 4 I 5 1
B ROER o

AT 851 A #E s R ABRE T
BEABZECENMEEHRE -

2018 2017
ZE-N\F g
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
222,650 181,325
(107,349) 65,870

115,301 247,195



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AT IR ER R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BItFE

10 INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO 10 REEEENER RO
P A
ASSOCIATES (continueD) SEEERm)
(b) Loans to associates (b) BEELEER
2018 2017
—E—-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FETT
Non current: JEBNER -
Loans =1 3,055,175
Less: written down of loans B MEEE R (3,055,175)
Current: BVER -
Loans =& 1,716,407
Less: written down of loans B MEEE (558,151)
1,158,256
As at 31 December 2017, the loans were mainly due RZE—+tF+_A=+—
from CR Taiyuan, which have been written down H ZEERFTEERKRKAR
to reflect the loss recognised in applying the equity EHRIB EWMBEZERUR
method exceeding investment in the associate. During MEREREZERNERBEL
2018, the loans were settled as part of deal terms of Rz ErENER RNZT
the Disposal of Shanxi Coal Mining Assets. Please refer —N\F - BEXEREELAEE
to Note 45 for details. BEEBRIN—FBoEHEE -
FIBE2EMEE4S -
As at 31 December 2018, loans to associates are all R-_E—NE+_A=+—
denominated in RMB, unsecured, with annual interest B ABECEEFTHUAR
rates of 0% to 4.35% (2017: 3.92% to 4.75%). EHE - BEER  ZNT0%

FA435%MFHNE(ZF —+
F: N FR3.92%FE475%)
JE_-I_/%\ °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=1+—ALEFE

10 INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO 10 REEEENER RO
ASSOCIATES (continueD) STEER @
(b) Loans to associates (Continued) (b) BEELEER @)
Movements on the written down are as follows: WEEEER T -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FETT
At 1 January K—A—H 3,613,326 3,244,373
Charged to profit or loss RIB BRI (988) 44,877
Disposal of Shanxi Coal Mining Assets & |LIFATEEE E
(Note 45) (FtzE45) (3,487,663) —
Exchange differences N E (124,675) 324,076
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 3,613,326
11 INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO A 11 REE E'J’f&f"é&né
JOINT VENTURES =1t
(@) Investments in joint ventures (a) 3
2017
TE-N\F s g2
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
At 1 January B—HA—H 3,660,368 3,610,368
Transfer to investments in associates ERERERE S — (111,651)
Capital contributions to joint ventures [M&&THTE 100,548 61,494
Disposal of Shanxi Coal Mining Assets & ILITAEEE E
(Note i) iz, (86,519) —
Share of profits/(losses) (Note ii) FEMRFIRE,(B8) (i) 162,643 (104,558)
Share of other comprehensive M EMm2E(EE) WA
(loss)/income (99,351) 124,485
Exchange differences EH =% (59,252) 80,230
At 31 December R+=—AR=+—H 3,678,437 3,660,368
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AT IR ER R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_Z-A\Ft-A=1T—HLFE

11 INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO A
JOINT VENTURES (continuep)

—
—

(@) Investments in joint ventures (Continued)

Note i: During 2018, the Group disposed three joint ventures as part of
the Disposal of Shanxi Coal Mining Assets (Note 45).

Note ii: The amounts of 2018 were after deduction of HK$108,706,000,
representing certain termination benefit costs of a joint venture,
namely China Resources Power (Jinzhou) Co., Ltd. ("CR Jinzhou"),
undertaken by the Group

e
=

2
(=)
TS

Ik

N
ﬂl

A\

TENESROS
SN @

() NEELENEZ @)

MisEi :

Hit e i -

R-ZB—N\F AEEHE=M
RELE  FREBILAREER
B (Pt 45) 8 — &

—E - \ENRELHRAEE
FiAE-—HAELLEERES
(BM)BRARATERSEIM )
BETRIEZERAKARREK
108,706,000 47T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=1+—ALEFE

11 INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO A 11 REEEENESRAOS
JOINT VENTURES (continuep) STESN @
(@) Investments in joint ventures (Continued) (a) REELENER @)
As at 31 December 2018, the principle joint ventures RZE-—N\F+ZA=+—
of the Group, all of which were accounted for using H REEFESL0EMEK
equity method, were as follows: FAEZEAR)EZNT :

Issued and fully

Place of paid share capital/
incorporation registered capital
and operation and paid-up capital  Percentage of equity  Principal
Name of joint venture B3N BRTHERE/ interest held (%) activities
RELXER Ed-3:. dMEARBEES FMEENREBDIL(%) IEXH
Directly  Indirectly
B CF:
Resources J Energy Investment HK Share capital 66 — Investment
Limited ("Resources J") © 58 US$266,599,544 holding
R RRERRAR EN REER
(IERRER]) 0 266,599,544 7T
China Resources Power Orient HK Share capital = 66 Investment
Co., Limited (“Orient") © BE US$265,311,808 holding
EEBHEHARAT B REER
Eva 265,311,808 7T
China Resources Power (Hezhou) PRC Registered and — 66 Operation of
Co., Limited ("CR Hezhou") @ 1 paid-up capital a power station
EREN(EM)FRAA RMB1,724,000,000 LEEY
(TEEEM]) O aM kB RER
AEKH1,724,000,000 7T
Summit Plus International Limited UK Share capital - GBP3 = 40 Investment
(“Summit Plus") B MR —3 g holding
REEK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H AT IR ER R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BItFE

11

INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO A
JOINT VENTURES (continuep)

(@) Investments in joint ventures (Continued)

Notes:

The Group holds 66% of the interests of Resources J. As certain key
financial and operating matters should be approved unanimously
by the board members appointed by both the Group and the third
party, the directors of the Company consider that Resources J is
still jointly controlled by the Group and the third party. Orient and
CR Hezhou are 100% directly and indirectly held by Resources J,
respectively.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group provided guarantees amounting
to GBP232,000,000 (equivalent to HK$2,312,414,000) for bank
loans of a subsidiary of Summit Plus, namely CRC New Energy (UK)
Limited, to finance its acquisition of investment in a wind farm in
UK. The loan have been repaid and the Group's guarantee released
in Feburary 2019 after the Group and other investors of Summit Plus
made capital comtribution of GBP232,000,000 and GBP348,000,000,
respectively, to discharge the Group’'s commitment for shareholder
loans of GBP232,000,000 (equivalent to HK$2,312,414,000) (Note
44).

%g%ﬂﬁ%ﬁ&@%

=)
STEEMNm@

(a) REEDENER @)
B 3

REBEFHBIERIR66% ML o
ETIEMBREERRALRE
BhkF=DHAREZENEEGEKE
— b RUEARRIEZTRAR
SERF =778 BEERIDITELR
RIEHIE - 7 REBEMOEE
%F@E%EUEEEFQT%%E?EET%&F&%%

i. R-ZB—-NEFE+=-_BF=+—8"
A &£ E gtSummit Plusty i B
A ®\J(BICRC New Energy (UK
Limited) & $R 7 & X IR £ IR -
& 20232,000,000H & & R
2,312,414,0005% 7Tt ) © LA & B
EEEBRKBRERESERE &
£ B K Summit Plus#) H b & &
& 5 Bl JE & 232,000,000 & £ K
348,000,000 2 £5 LA fif B AR &£ B 19
A% 3R B SR ¥ & $2 232,000,000 2
$E(#8 B 12,312,414,000 7T )
% HREFRER-_Z—NAF_A
BEERRASBEMEERDER
B (MizE44) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=1+—ALEFE

11 INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO A "

JOINT VENTURES (coninuep)

(@) Investments in joint ventures (Continued)

All the entities above are limited liability companies.

According to the assessment of directors of the
Company, as at 31 December 2018, no individual
joint venture is material to the Group, therefore, no
information on individual joint venture is disclosed.

Set out below are the summarised financial information
for the immaterial joint ventures which are accounted

for using the equity method.

REE
STEESNm

g%m%&&@e

() NEELENEZ @)
rdmmEERYABREER

=

ol

BREBEARBEEHNMGE - R
E-N\Ft+-A=+—H ¥
BEEMNSEEEHAEEHES
R At WEFEER G E

SEHER -

LA 8051 5% A #E 2

YN :ES

BEARRZELENMBEEMRE -

2018
—E2-N\F
HK$'000
TR
Profit/(loss) from continuing BEKEERRN
operations FE(EE) 162,643
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hth2mE (&), WA (99,351)
Total comprehensive income 2HEW AL
(b) Loans to joint ventures (b) MEELEER
2018
=1 Jyy-
HK$'000
TR
Non-current: FERNER

Loans to a joint venture
Less: provision for impairment

m—E&EEEER
B ORE R

Current:
Loans to joint ventures
Less: provision for impairment

BIHY
A&2EEER
B : R E R

45,652

45,652
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2017

—T—+tF

HK$'000
TBT

(104,558)
124,485

19,927

2017

—T—+tF

HK$'000
FABT

226,012
(184,422)

41,590

255,889

255,889



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AT IR ER R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_Z-A\Ft-A=1T—HLFE

11 INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO A 11 REELENERROE
JOINT VENTURES (continueD) STEER @
(b) Loans to joint ventures (Continued) (b) EELEER @
As at 31 December 2018, loans to joint ventures are RZE-—NFE+A=+—
unsecured with annual interest rates of 4.35% (31 BH MELCX¥ERAEIR
December 2017: 0% to 4.35%). o FREE435% (ZF—+
F+—_A=+—H : NT0%n=E
4.35% °)
As at 31 December 2018, due to the short-term nature RZE—NF+ZA= —{— =
of the loans to joint ventures, their carrying amount is (= EEE’\\\EEHE MHE |mae
considered to be the same as their fair value. TEER bff@?ﬁﬂﬁi%i‘ﬁ
ZRER ETE
Movements on the provision for impairment of loans to [lA 2D EE R R E B EE
joint ventures are as follows: AT -

2017

—E—+F

HK$ 000 HK$'000

TR FAETT

At 1 January R—H—H 184,422 172,340

Transfer out (Note i) (PR (175,942) —

Exchange differences PE W =58 (8,480) 12,082

At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 184,422

Note: FfeE -

i. After disposal of three joint venture state in Note 11(a), the loans i. MK 1@ FAMEE=HA & k%
to them amounting to HK$135,834,000 (Note 45) all together with % MZSEALECEERARAH
provision were transferred out. 135,834,000 7% 7T (Fi 5k 45) 328 [R5 48

g#E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=1+—ALEFE

12 GOODWILL 12 B8

The movements in the carrying amount of goodwill during HENERRERSFENEEHAT -

the year are as follows:

Goodwill

[k

HK$'000
TET

At 1 January 2017

R=-ZT—+tH—HF—H

Cost PR 2,676,469
Accumulated impairment losses Z2ETBEEE (1,108,785)
Net book amount BREFE 1,567,684
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE=-Z—tH%+=H
=+—HIFE

Opening net book amount FYREFE 1,567,684
Exchange differences PN E%R 58,876
Closing net book amount FRREFE 1,626,560
At 31 December 2017 R=TB—tE+=-HA=+—8

Cost PR 2,719,606
Accumulated impairment losses Z2EHRERE (1,093,046)
Net book amount BREFE 1,626,560
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-ZE-NF+=A

=t+—RHLFE

Opening net book amount FHREFE 1,626,560
Impairment charge ERER=ES (298,100)
Exchange differences & N E%R (41,318)
Closing net book amount FAREREFE 1,287,142
At 31 December 2018 R-ZB-N\F+=-A=+—8H

Cost DN 2,675,089
Accumulated impairment losses ZEPREEE (1,387,947)
Net book amount BREFE 1,287,142
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H AT IR ER R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BItFE

12 GOODWILL (conTinueD)

Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the CGUs of the Company's
subsidiaries within three segments, thermal power,
renewable energy and coal mining, in different provinces in
the PRC. The carrying amounts of major goodwill allocated

to individual CGUs are as follows:

12 BHEwm)
GEERER:

HESEEARTRFETREHDH
MEBARI=RaE(ANEE - OIF
FRERREBEAR) ANESELE
i NEEMNBEEELAEMNEE
EEREENT ¢

Exchange
2018 Opening Impairment difference Closing
—E2-N\E¥ F4 WE ERESH FR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT THET TET
Thermal power segment KOBES
- Shenyang China Resources —BREERN
Heating Co., Ltd. BERAR
(“Shenyang Power (BBEAIRAD)
Company”) 348,774 (150,000) 198,774
— China Resources (Jiangsu) —EBENOLE)
Investment Co., Ltd. REBR AT 470,359 (21,629) 448,730
— Xuzhou Huaxin Power —BRMNESEE
Generation Co., Ltd. BERAA 330,248 — (15,186) 315,062
- Other companies —HAa] 466,731  (148,100) (4,503) 314,128
Renewable energy segment A B4ABERSD 10,448 — — 10,448
Total Aot 1,626,560  (298,100) (41,318) 1,287,142
Exchange
2017 Opening Impairment  difference Closing
—E—tF F1) BE  ERERE FR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET FET
Thermal power segment KOBED
- Shenyang Power Company  —&F[5E /A F] 348,774 — — 348,774
— China Resources (Jiangsu) —EBENOLE)
Investment Co., Ltd. REBR AT 439,545 — 30,814 470,359
- Xuzhou Huaxin Power —HRMNEBEE
Generation Co., Ltd. BERAA 308,614 — 21,634 330,248
-~ Other companies —HMRA] 460,303 — 6,428 466,731
Renewable energy segment A B4EER D & 10,448 — — 10,448
Total met 1,567,684 — 58,876 1,626,560
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE_Z— \Ft+-_A=+—HILLEE

12 GOODWILL (conTinueD) 12 BHEw®)

Impairment tests for goodwill (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of each of the CGUs are
determined based on value in use calculations. The
key assumptions for the value in use calculations are
those regarding the discount rates, sales growth rates
and expected changes to gross margin during the year.
Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates
that reflect current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The sales growth
rates are based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in
gross margin are based on past practices and expectations
of future changes in the market.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group performed impairment
test for goodwill based on pre-tax cash flow projection
covering a period of shorter than the useful life of the
property, plant and equipment and operation period of
each of the CGU. The first 5 years derived from the most
recent financial budgets approved by management, while
the forecast beyond 5 years is compiled by extrapolating
the projection based on the financial budget, assuming no
growth.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AT IR ER R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BItFE

12 GOODWILL (conminueD) 12 BEmw
Impairment tests for goodwill (Continued) 2R BRI @)
For each of the CGUs with significant amount of goodwill, HEECHRBEANSREELEMM
the key assumptions and discount rate used in the value-in- 5 RIE-NERZZE—LFAR
use calculations in 2018 and 2017 are as follows: EERAEENEZERZ LR XM

™

Thermal power segment 2017
RKNBES B i
Gross margin VRS SRS IY  -10%~16%
Sales growth rate HERERX -12%~2% -12%~6%
Pre-tax discount rate BRA% ATRL IR =R 10%~11.15% 10%~17%
Renewable energy segment 2017
EEEL ——tr
Gross margin eV 30%~44% 20%~25%
Sales growth rate HEBRX SYLYWIL  -27%~21%
Pre-tax discount rate PR TR IR = 10% 10%
At 31 December 2018, the recoverable amount R-ZFBE—NE+—-_HA=+—8 " &
calculated based on value in use exceeded carrying BEETE MK UL 2B
value by HK$407,881,000. A decrease of gross margin HE {8 407,881,000 7T o EF|E TFE
by 9.21%~11.31%, or a rise in pre-tax discount rate to 921% 2= 11.31% a5 i B AL IR & T+
7.85%~28.70%, all changes taken in isolation, would Z=7.85%F28.70% (FT A & &) )57
remove the remaining headroom. TXEE - BB EREE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE—Z-N\Ft+-A=+—BIEE

13 FVOCI AND LOANS TO AN FVOCI 13 URREESIEEREST

INVESTEE COMPANY HiRE s R DT
BEStEE# &5t AEHM
moNENREENTE
™=

(@) FVOCI (a) A7 1§{EL+EE#£ A

Hibira W
FVOCI represent equity investments in unlisted equity NWAnBEFEBREHTAH
of certain limited liability entities registered in the PRC e WmEEPEERNSE
which are not held for trading, and which the Group ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁfiﬁﬁfm#iﬁﬁxzﬁ
has irrevocably elected at initial adoption of HKFRS MEREE  WIEFIEEE -
9 to recognise in this category. These are strategic BREBRNEXEXNE BT
investments and the Group considers this classification #ﬁ%qﬁ/@”%9%ﬁ e A Hm
to be more relevant. Movement of FVOCI is disclosed in R EEZBERN R EREHEE

Note 3.3(b). E ﬁ?ﬁlﬁﬁﬁ”ﬁﬂ&ﬁ PN
/Ejﬁﬁijﬂﬁﬁﬁ-ﬁﬁﬂw"
Mﬁﬁﬁiﬂ AEET AH
1,%?/:.\1451 % 1) & B 7B aE 3.3(b)
$5E o

On disposal of these equity investments, any related HEZSHREER  UAR

balance within the FVOCI reserve is reclassified to
retained earnings. In the prior financial year, the Group
had designated equity investments as available-for-
sale where management intended to hold them for the
medium to long-term.

Note 2.2 explains the change of accounting policy and
Note 2.13 sets out the remaining accounting policies.

EBEFELZH T AREMES
Yo 25 f+f 18 P B 1 1] 48 A 45 £ 5
ENOBERERFN - N E—
B BEE  NEEDSEED
REEEAAHRLE MERE
BEERFPRYPAKAERE
mE o

fizE2.2 A E g TR
B mKiE2.1380Eges
BUSR o

2018 2017
S —T+F
HK$000 HK$'000
Fhx T

Company A RAEJA
Company B NGIN
Company C NCIN@
Company D UNEIIY;
Company E ~AIE
Company F ~AlF
Others HAth

583,440 180,257
532,394 551,724
256,056 264,096
184,910 184,910
146,656 153,725
123,910 129,882

49,945 51,583

1,516,177
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AT IR ER R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BItFE

13 FVOCI AND LOANS TO AN FVOCI 13 DlIRcBEsEtEa%E S
INVESTEE COMPANY (conTiNuED) ANEMGRS NS RUA
EBEstEa2ast AEM

molNENRRENTE

R ()
(@) FVOCI (Continued) (a) URAREEFEEZ8EA
Hi4R & Wt @)
Fair value of FVOCI in Company A has been determined REFPABNNUAAREBEFER
using dividend discounted model. The key assumptions BEAHEMEERENA
used for dividend discounted model calculations are as AEBEEEEAREMBREE
follows: E e REBBRENGEMEA
WEERRWOT :
2017
—E—+tF
Real discount rate BERANA X 14%
Average growth rate of dividends FHREERR 3%
As at 31 December 2018, FVOCI are all denominated in BHE_Z-N\F+-A=1+—H K
RMB. AABEFEBEH T AHEMERE Y
HEUARKEEE -
(b) Loansto an FVOCI investee company (b) MUAREEFTEBR B
)\Eiﬁ?ﬁé'—lﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂﬁ?ﬁﬁ@
2017
—E—+F
HK$'000
FAET
Non-current FERE 126,331 149,937
Current E 306,631 303,893
At 31 December R+=—A=+—~” 432,962 453,830
As at 31 December 2018, loans to an FVOCI investee RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—H AN
company, are unsecured, denominated in RMB, bearing ARBEFEBZESHTT AHMIEZES K
interests at the rate published by the People’s Bank of EHERE AT ERAEEE - A
China, and repayable in 2019 and 2021 respectively. REEHE - RPEARRITRMAF]
B BASRR-ZTE-—hFERZ
T —FEER -
As at 31 December 2018, for the current portion of RZZ2—N\FE+ZA=+—H @R
the loans to an FVOCI investee company, due to the BREHAUYE  mUAREBEFERE
short-term nature, their carrying amount is considered Bt AEMAGE WEEIRERFE
to be the same as their fair value. For the non-current KB EAER D BRE (AR REER A
portion, the fair values are also not significantly NAEE - IR - EARE
different to their carrying amounts. BEEEASBENERNEER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE—Z-N\Ft+-A=+—BIEE

14 LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES AND 14 REABWRIBERNIERSD
PREPAYMENT FOR NON-CURRENT EEBNYRIE
ASSETS
2018 2017
TE-\F et
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
Consideration receivable for Disposal of & ILIFAEIEE =
Shanxi Coal Mining Assets (Note 45) JEUSRE (BFFE45) 4,611,513 —
Input VAT to be recovered AU [B] HE TE 18 (B A 3,046,489 1,865,691
Prepayments for acquisition of WHEM S - BB R EER
property, plant and equipment TERTFRIA 2,437,302 1,713,288
Prepayments for acquisition of Lt e BB A O TR SR IE (1)
mining rights (i) 1,330,744 1,449,133
Prepayments for establishment of B A7 Bk (R VTR IR
associates 79,692 41,987
Prepayments for acquisition of WHEE & EM TR IR
intangible assets 16,244 23,356

11,521,984 5,093,455

(i) In January 2008 and December 2011, the Group iy R-ZZEENE—RAR=-F
entered into agreements with a local government ——®+ - fF K&
authority in the PRC to acquire the exploration B9 Fh B M 5 R M BE =T
and resources right attached to an area of THE URARBARK

21,000 hectares of a coal mine located in Inner
Mongolia at a consideration of RMB5,782,130,000
(equivalents to HK$6,599,087,000). Up
to 31 December 2018, deposit amounting
to RMB1,166,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,330,744,000) (2017: RMB1,166,000,000,
equivalent to HK$1,394,886,000) had been
paid by the Group, with the remaining balance
payable at approximately RMB4,616,130,000
(equivalent to HK$5,268,343,000 (Note 44))
(2017: RMB4,616,130,000, equivalent to
HK$5,522,276,000) included in the capital
commitments.
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E-HE-_T—-N\F+-A
=+—H ' xEBENE
& A R #1,166,000,000 7T
(¥ = #1,330,744,000 7%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AT IR ER R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BItFE

15 INVENTORIES 15 F&E
2018 2017
N T tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FaET FH&TT
Coal B 2,630,495 2,233,252
Spare parts and consumables BERZEHMERER 626,288 930,999
Fuel oil ey 38,753 40,901

3,295,536 3,205,152

The cost of inventories recognised as operating BRAKEIHNGFEEXNER A
expenses amounted to HK$40,562,857,000 (2017: 40,562,857,000 8 T(ZF — 4 :
HK$39,132,963,000). 39,132,963,000/7T) °
The impairment reversal related to inventories amounting A2010,369,0008 L (ZF—+4F :
to HK$10,369,000 (2017: charged HK$28,984,000) has 182K 28,984,000 8 L) MBEBIEEN
been recorded in operating expenses. The movement on the BERBEREETHAR - A5H
provision for impairment of inventories of the Group is as FERBEREZEHNT
follows:
2018 2017
Al T tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAETT
At 1 January R—H—H 108,511 80,321
Exchange differences MEHZER (4,856) 5,887
Impairment (reversal)/charged to PR (B E ), 0k
profit or loss BB (E (10,369) 28,984
Disposal of Shanxi Coal Mining Assets & L PR A B (MYaE 45)
(Note 45) (34,226) —
Disposal HE (49,351) (6,681)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 108,511
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=1+—ALEFE

16 TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER 16 FEWERFR - HMEUWRIR
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS RIEARRIE
Trade and other receivables, and prepayments comprise the FEUSRR TR ~ L Ath FEUURIE KR A 5/ I8
following: BIENTEIE :
2018 2017
- SIS T
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Trade receivables JE W AR 7K
— Accounts receivable — FEUBR X 11,401,608 9,789,845
— Notes receivable — RN EE 143,885 788,129
11,545,493 10,577,974
Less: provision for impairment of W FEWER SRR A
trade receivables (114,676) (159,973)
Trade receivables - net FE W B FOFHE SWELERFA 10,418,001
Input VAT to be recovered and prepayment #5 Uk B3 BB FT & TS HE
for income tax Fa T RIA 2,433,934 1,807,575
Prepayments for coal and fuel P& R N 8RR TR A~ 508 1,135,189 1,013,718
Consideration receivable for Disposal of MEE LAREEEE
Shanxi Coal Mining Assets (Note 45) BB (FFFE45) 1,125,358 —
Dividends receivable from available-for-sale JEULA] i H & IXE A A
investee companies HIAR B — 25,144
Dividends receivable from other companies FEURE {2 B AR & 335,036 —
Deposits for environmental protection RIRES 17,011 201,721
Loans to employees MESEK 1,642 5,530
Others HAth 1,701,078 2,657,655
6,749,248 5,711,343
Less: provision for impairment of R B PR IR R E B
other receivables (281,075) (122,491)
17,898,990 16,006,853
All the trade and other receivables are denominated in RMB. FT 75 FE WUAR 30 B H b fE W SR IE T LA A

R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H AT IR ER R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

BE

16

2 \EFTZ A=t RUEEE

TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2018, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables based on invoice date is as follows:

0-30 days 0&30H
31-60 days 312 60H
Over 60 days #8860 B

6 R - Bt INFRIE
=%
& ENE/EITD
RZZE—N\F+—A=+—8 - &%
= HHIE 5 B9 FE U BR X AY BR 5 0 AT 40
=
2018 2017
TE-\F g s
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FTEIT
6,453,797 6,868,924
583,248 655,806
4,508,448 3,053,244
11,545,493 10,577,974

The Group's trade debtors are mainly thermal power and
renewable energy electricity sales receivable from local grid
companies. Generally, the Group usually grants about 60
days’ credit period to customers from the end of the month
in which the sales is made, except for the tariff premium
for renewable energy projects. The collection of such tariff
premium is subject to the allocation of funds by relevant
government authorities to local grid companies, which
consequently takes a relatively long time for settlement.

Pursuant to Cailian [2012] No.102 Notice on the Interim
Measures for Administration of Subsidy Funds for Tariff
Premium of Renewable Energy ( (Al B4 ge/REE W IN#E
BELEEETIE) ) jointly issued by the Ministry of
Finance, the National Development and Reform Commission
and the National Energy Administration in March 2012,
standardised procedures for the settlement of the tariff
premium came into force in 2012 and approvals for the
inclusion in a national register of qualified renewable energy
projects(”“Register Inclusion Approval”) on a project by
project basis are required before the allocation of funds to
local grid companies.

$§%@E’JFH&EE ATEREBEHE

NAEIMANE &—Iﬁi ERENHE
R ARBBERTEPHNOBN

REE(BENE A RERMK)(A]
BARREENSENRMEBRIN)
%Fﬁﬁbuﬂ’]@H&,,\%EHEE%&W%%
MEMBERARELES MG
ME - BRFRHEHRE °

BEVHEH BRERMNNKEZE
eMNERERERRR_ZE——F=A

HE T BERRE B I
%éA” EITHA )R B A (B &
[2012]1025%) * EEHR MO EER
—E - FBRREELEEXNBT
HEERSHAESABRRAERATEB
A geRIE B B (& A & St
EDBEBENEEHR NS EBNZEE
HWEMRNF -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=1+—ALEFE

16 TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER 16 FEWNERFR - HMEUWRIR
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS BRI RRIE ()
(CONTINUED)
As at 31 December 2018, certain operating projects of the RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—H &
Group have been obtained such Register Inclusion Approval EETEZEBCRSEEM NN
for the tariff premium and certain projects are in the process ABGME - EBHHBEEHERH
of applying. The ageing analysis of trade receivables over 60 mEEED - ZFHB60 B ERER
days excluding those tariff premium receivales is as follows: K(TETREEHNE )RR DT
™
2018 2017
—E-\F tialgs
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Over 60 days iBiE 60 H 204,406 157,147
As at 31 December 2018, included in trade receivables was RZZ2—N\F+ZHA=+—H " 5A
an amount of HK$531,425,000 (2017: HK$213,517,000) JE W2 BR 3K 9 531,425,000 % T (=&
which is due from fellow subsidiaries or associates and is — 44 : 213,517,000/ 70 ) &K B
aged within one year. B Z BB A B 2B & 1 2 9 B R
A BRECTHEIB—F o
Movements on the provision for impairment of trade 7N 55 B R W BR SR BR B A Y B B 4
receivables of the Group are as follows: ™
2017
—ET—+F
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January B—HA—H 159,973 140,410
Provision for doubtful accounts REREE 41,126 10,679
Receivables written off during the year FAERT A IKIEIE B #isH
as uncollectible B FE U R IE (8.478) (1,657)
Transfer out (Note 45) B (M5t 45) (VA XY)) —
Exchange differences ME H ZRE (WAE)) 10,541
At 31 December R+=A=+—H 114,676 159,973
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BItFE

16 TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

Movements on the provision for impairment of other

receivables of the Group are as follows:

16 BUGRR - HMEIRRIR

At 31 December 2017 - under HKAS 39

Amounts restated through opening
retained earnings

Restated as at 1 January 2018 -
under HKFRS 9

Provision for/(reversal of) doubtful accounts

Receivables written off during the year
as uncollectible

Transfer out (Note 45)

Exchange differences

At 31 December

B yE FRIE (@)
7 £ [ L i 7 L K T Rk 1 B 4 )
/N
2018 2017
e s —= tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
R=-ZB—+tHF+=8
=+t—H-REFES
sHERIZE 39555 E 122,491 124,948
HEYRB B ES 25
316,105 —
R-BE-N\E—H—BW
HAEERE - RESTE
IS ERIE 9 SRETE 124,948
REREME, (B ERD) 11,828 (14,933)
FAREATAKEIER
5 1 5H A0 e W SRIR (12,780) (12,722)
) (ffsE45) (136,752) —
PEH =% (19,817) 25,198
Rt+=—RA=+—H 281,075 122,491

AEBRABTBY RS LERIE IR

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. This did not
resulte in any increase of the loss allowance on 1 January
2018. Note 3.1.2 provides for details about the calculation
of the allowance.

The loss allowance increased by a further HK$41,126,000
to HK$114,676,000 for trade receivables during the current
reporting period.

Information about the impairment of trade receivables, other
receivables and the group’s exposure to credit risk can be
found in Note 3.1.

BOAFTERBEEEE  ImA
RUSRFERERBEYBREE - B
BAMEr EEERN - N\F—A—
BEBEEREEMIEM - BREFE
BB FBENME3 1.2

RAFREBREIA - FEUER KA S 18 8
B — 12 N41,126,000/8 T &2
114,676,000& 7T °

BRABWARR - Efb YA R ALK

= 5\ B 10 R0 (B4R B & R A B o
3.1°
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16

17

TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER 16 FEUWNBRFR - HAEINRRIE
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS BRI RRIE ()
(CONTINUED)
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date REE BHFMESN R EERR B
is the carrying value of each class of receivables mentioned PR B RERFIENREE - AEE
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security. WEFAEAERREREMR -
As at 31 December 2018, the fair values of trade and other RZZE-—N\F+_A=+—H @R
receivables approximate their carrying amounts due to the BRHME - YRR E ARG
short-term nature. EWAAEEERREERS
AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES 17 BNESEERIE
2018 2017
g5 S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Dividends receivable from associates JE i Bt 5 1 AR B 65,976
Interests receivable from associates JE KB o 1 ) B 181,197
Others HA 219,712

466,885

Amounts due from associates are denominated in RMB,
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

The Group does not provide any allowance for amounts due
from associates as none of them past due.

As at 31 December 2018, the fair values of the amounts due
from associates approximate their carrying amounts due to
the short-term nature.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BItFE

18 AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINT VENTURES 18 G E{EFEMRIE

2018 2017
=LV Tt F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Non current: FERNHR -
Interests receivable from a joint venture Y —FE&E RS 142,566
Current: BER :
Interests receivable from joint ventures FEU A &R B 2,248
Other amounts due from joint ventures Hipr A & %A 22,758
42,473 25,006
42,473 167,572
The amounts due from joint ventures are all denominated B E EPEFIBHUANARKESE -
in RMB, unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on REEM - THBRARERER -
demand.
The Group does not provide any impairment provision AEEWEBEY S &S EFRIETIR
against amounts due from joint ventures as none of them FARERE  BRZEFREHRED
past due. HY -
As at 31 December 2018, the fair values of the amounts due RZE—N\FE+=ZA=+—H @R
from joint ventures approximate their carrying amounts due BRHME  BREELERBENRD
to the short-term nature. AEEEAERAREES °
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19 AMOUNTS DUE FROM OTHER RELATED 19 BIREMBEEATIRE,
COMPANIES/LOANS TO NON- kBT IFIERRERE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER OF A =R
SUBSIDIARY
(@) Amounts due from other related companies (a) FEURH fhERE N RIFRIE

2017
—+tF
HK$'000
FHET
Non-trading related: JEE FH
Amounts due from non-controlling FEUS KT A Rl IR AR R
shareholders of subsidiaries I8 1,887 789
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries  JEUR[R] & Ff & A 71718 15,412 1,860
Amounts due from FVOCI EBARAAEEGER
B Eh; +)\ﬁ/rtﬂ£*AH&ﬁ_&
K E g WNCIP O] 48,764 —
66,063 2,649

& W 7N 6% [ HL i B Bt 05 SRR 7 R K
- UAREEE - RERAREKX

The amounts due from other related parties of the
Group are unsecured, denominated in RMB, non-

interest bearing and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2018, the fair values of the
amounts due from other related parties approximate
their carrying amounts due to the short-term nature.

Loans to non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2018, loans to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary are unsecured, denominated
in RMB, with annual interest rates from 4.35% to 4.9%
(2017: 4.9%).

FREEE o

RZZF—N\F+=-_A=+—8 " BR
%%D A - U E A RS SIER
NAEEHEERERS °

(b) EEABFEZERBERER

R—ZZE—-—N\F+_A=+—
B - [ —REH B R F FEIZER R
RERAEEE  UARES
{E AN F4.35% F4.9% (=

T—tF :49%)NFFEF
B o
As at 31 December 2018, for the current portion of the RZE-—N\NF+Z_A=+—
loans to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries, H BAREBEHtE  miE
due to the short-term nature, their carrying amount R FE 122 iR AR 58 & R A B ER 0

is considered to be the same as their fair value. For

DHREERRKSBEFN /\/“‘*

the non-current portion, the fair values are also not {ETE SIERNEIE D - HAR
significantly different to their carrying amounts. Ffﬁiﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂlm%ﬁ
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20 PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK

21

DEPOSITS

Pledged and restricted bank deposits represent deposits
pledged to banks to secure banking facilities granted to
the Group, deposits restricted for special purpose and time
deposits.

As at 31 December 2018, deposits amounting to
HK$206,051,000 (2017: HK$411,140,000) had been
pledged to secure bank acceptance bills. Deposits amounting
to HK$5,546,000 (2017: HK$292,385,000) were restricted
for environmental protection and industry transformation
compliance purpose with the approval of certain
governments. Deposits amounting to HK$2,684,000 (2017:
HK$146,657,000) were restricted by PRC court order.

Term deposits amounting to HK$40,000,000 at 31 December
2017 were with terms from three months to one year with
interest rate ranging from 1.54% to 3.85% per annum. The
term deposits can be withdrawn on demand.

As at 31 December 2018, the pledged and restricted bank

deposits are all denominated in RMB and the fair values
approximate their carrying amounts.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

20 EERRZIRHIRITER

21

EERLZRHRITFREEERT
RITERAKBEERRITERE 2ER
MTFHK « R BIERE R FR K
TEHITFRK

R—_ZE—NEFE+_A=+—8"
4 #206,051,00078 T(= T — £
F 1 411,140,00078 T ) B9 IF R &
B AIERBITALEE - &
#(5,546,000% t(= T — £ F:
292,385,000 8 7T ) M fF K& A T
FIREEH PR SIVEIR B IRE R E S8R
EHRERZH - 5%02,684,000% 7T
(ZZ—+%F : 146,657,000 7T ) Y
FERZHPBER SRS

R-_B—+E+-_A=+—8BH0FE
HA 77 £ 40,000,000 T HATR A& =
BMAZ—F FHENF154%=F
3.85% ° EHITF XA R EKIFIEER o

R-B—N\F+-A=+—8 E&
R IR HIRIT R 2 BB AN AT
- AR EERERERLE -

Cash at bank and on hand IRIT M FEEIRE

RERREFEY
2018 2017
ZE-N\F g s
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
7,977,153 5,381,686

As at 31 December 2018, included in cash and cash
equivalents was an amount of HK12,854 (2017:
HK$492,294,000) which is deposited in China Resources
Bank of Zhuhai Co., Ltd., a fellow subsidiary of the Group,
with interest rates ranging from 0.35% to 1.495% (2017:
0.35% to 1.265%) per annum.

R-ZE—NFE+=-_A=+—8 " &t
ARERBEESZEYM12,8548 T
ZE— 44 : 492,294,000 )8
REGTRAEERRWNEB R RKE
EHRTBROBRAR  FREN
T0.35% F1.495% (=T —+ 45 :
0.35% & 1.265%) °
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21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (conmnvueny 21 RERREFEY w0

The cash and cash equivalents of the Group are denominated AEENREERESEMUANTE
in the following currencies: HEHE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
RMB AR¥E 7,005,208 4,999,939
HK dollars 7B TT 959,414 364,807
US dollars e 12,531 16,940

7,977,153 5,381,686

22 SHARE CAPITAL AND OTHER STATUTORY 22 BEARHMETEERFHiB

CAPITAL RESERVES
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: LA BERITRER
Number of
I EVGEY  Share capital
BB ER & 7
‘000 HK$'000
T FET
Balance at 1 January 2017 R-ZE—+tF—H—H
B 45 ER CRIYAEN 22,257,732
Issued upon exercise of share options 1T AR M R B 1T
(Note 23(a)) (FFsE23(a)) 2,781 84,004
Balance at 31 December 2017 (i) RZE—+F+=A4
=+—HmERG) 4,810,444 EEVYIEYSWELS
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZZE—-N\F—H—H
B 45 85 4,810,444 EEYEVSIVEL
Sold shares held for share award & M R B AT 2l P
scheme (Note 23(b)) A&7 (B 7 23(b)) (25,026)
Balance at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N\F+=AH
=+—HN&EH 4,810,444 EEPEAWAL)
Note i: Including treasury shares of 31,320,000 held for share award scheme Mizxi: BERMEBGTEMBFRS
(Note 23(b)). 31,320,000 EFRRMD (K&

23(b)) °
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23 SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARES HELD FOR 23 MEBiR#ERFhAZ{D R EIS Sl

SHARE AWARD SCHEME Zigsdicdva)
(a) Share options (a) BEBk#E

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme approved by a
resolution of the shareholders of the Company dated 6
October 2003, the Board may, at its absolute discretion,
offer any employee, director, consultant or advisor
of (i) CRH and its subsidiaries; and (ii) the Company,
its subsidiaries and associated companies, options to
subscribe for the Company’s shares, for the promotion
of success of the business of the Group. The exercise
price of the share option will be determined at the
highest of (1) the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant of the
option; (2) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange on the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (3) the
nominal value of the shares.

Options granted are exercisable during the period from
the vesting date to the last day of the ten-year period
after grant date. The share options have vesting periods
from one to five years and every 20% will be vested at
the end of each year.

Employees of the Group
AEEREE

REARRBRR-_ZZT=F
TANBRZERIENER
BatE - EEen 2GR
HWEBEELEMNBATF : &
(iNART] - EH B E R
EENTARE EF - BEM
HEAARDBRERBEARR
AR - AR E AN E R A Y
R - BREMTTE B RRIE
TIEEEEE : (1) ANAAK
DR BB AR I ) B HR AR B S
MBEHE QAXARRBEOHRE
ERE BRI AER S HEB
RATE P WTHE - R 3) D
HfE

REmBRETNEE R M
ERHERRTFEHEERE
BEfT6E - BRENEBHN
F—FERF RNEFEEE
20% °

Number of
options Weighted
(Granted at 30 average

March 2007) exercise price
RERR S B

(R=TTLHF
ZA=+THEERE) IEFHITEE

Outstanding as at 1 January 2017 RZ-_Z—+F—H—H

BTSN 5,852,660 12.21
Exercised during the year FRITE (2,780,940) 12.21
Cancelled during the year F AT (3,071,720) 12.21

Outstanding as at 31 December RZZE—tFR
2017 and 2018 —ZE-N\F+ZA
=+—BETEIN —
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23 SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARES HELD FOR 23 BERR#E R TLZ{DRE)STE
SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continuep) FT 51D )

(b) FhBRADEREDRT BIFTIRAR {2

(b) Shares held for share award scheme

On 25 April 2008 (the “Adoption Date”), a Medium to
Long-term Performance Evaluation Incentive Plan (the
“Scheme”) was adopted by the Company. The Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing from the Adoption Date.

Pursuant to the rules of the Scheme, the Company has
set up a trust, and BOCI - Prudential Trustee Limited
(“Trustee”) acts as the trustee. The Company’s shares
may be purchased by the Trustee from the market out

RZZEENFEOA=-_+HH
([HMBE])  KAREMF
RHE BT EZB A8 ([3Z 5T
1) ZErEl B M B HARE
10 FEREEBK -

RIBEZTE IR » ARARK
MV —IRfERE YA FRERE
BR#ELABERQAIXE
ADERZFTEA - KAF KM

AAXFEARTIZEAREE
EMBETEE  UAEFEER
REEREBRE EEZEM
B dn Ko & B AT 1S AR 38
ZEtBGEX B RO TR E
REBSILE -

of cash contributed by the Group and be held in trust
for the qualified employees until such shares are vested
and proceeds from sale of shares distributed to the
qualified employees in accordance with the provisions
of the Scheme.

BE-F—/\F+-A=+—

As at 31 December 2018, the schemes have been

terminated and all shares have been sold through the B Z%5:8e®&ilE mAAA
market. The difference between the proceed received BROEFEBMBHE - 2T
and the remaining balance of reserve is debited to SREREFEESR CENEZRE
share capital. B IR AHIR
2018 2017
=E2-N\F —E—+tF
Number Number
of shares ANOTOES  of shares Amount
RO A IR7 EEnEeE [N
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR FHET T FAETT
At 1 January R—A—H 31,320 494,996 EIRIZ LR
Sold during the year FALE (31,320) (494,996) (3,452)  (55,184)

At 31 December

R+=BA=+—H _ 31,320 494,996
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24 OTHER RESERVES 24 Hihicle

Details of changes in reserves of the Group are set out in AEERBEDFBERANE150HE
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages FISVEMNEHEREHE -

150 to 151.

General reserve comprises statutory surplus reserves, —RREEBEMLNTENMEA AR
enterprise expansion funds and reserve funds of subsidiaries EERREE  CEBRESLFEE
in the PRC. Pursuant to the provisions of their respective E% - BERSFZEAEBERAAN
Articles of Association, certain of the Company’s subsidiaries B - ARralEa TERAFEMRNEA
established in the PRC shall make appropriation from their AIERBRBEFN B BE—RFHE -
profit after tax to the general reserves. The general reserves —REEEAEREEERNBARN
shall be used for making up losses and capitalisation into EERERER -

capital of the respective subsidiaries.

The special reserves of the Group represents the difference AEBNERNREEARAARZEITR
between the nominal amount of the share capital issued by AEHERREREHE A ARIKROES
the Company and the nominal amount of the share capital BEE AP T mETREBEAEEA
of subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group reorganisation WHEARIRAEE 2 HNERE -

for the purpose of the preparation of the listing of the
Company'’s shares on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.
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24 OTHER RESERVES (continuED) 24 E s

The movement of the capital reserve is as follows: BEARENEEHOT :
As at
i
2018 2017
TE)\F biagis
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FATT
Opening balance at 1 January R—B—BE94&8 448,997 509,789
Changes in fair values of FVOCI, net of tax NAAAEETEEE
ST AR AR S WA HY
NABEZEH(NRTIE) 277,781 —
Changes in fair values of available-for-sale  AI i HERE RN BEE S
investments, net of tax (FBRTEE) (30,255)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMRE AR (9,052)
Release to profit or loss in Disposal of MEE LAXEEEE
Shanxi Coal Mining Assets CEAEIE S (140,753) —
Change in ownership interests in a TE 7 8 58 A1 il &Y
subsidiary without losing control B T B —
MEARIHARE —

Acquisition of additional interest W iE — KT B A BRI MER

in a subsidiary —
Share of other equity movement of GRS EZERER

investments accounted for using H 28

the equity method 1,443 (1,080)

Transfers (Note a) (M a) 215,500 201,737

Transfers upon utilisation (Note b) EREER(MED) (273,091) (222,142)

Closing balance at 31 December RTZA=+—BERER 571,500 448,997

Notes: s -

(@)  Pursuant to certain regulations in the PRC governing the mining industry, (@) WBEIHEEEFEEXNEREN  A&5E
the Group is required to make an annual transfer to a specific reserve EOFTER —SHEERETHEBEERE &
account an amount being calculated at the tonne volume of coal ore RE 12 B 4F 7R £R A 5 B 8RO A8 AR b R 51
extracted that year, mulitplied by the applicable rate. Pursuant to these B o IRIBABAAL  ZESERAERR
relevant regulations, the fund can only be used for future improvement of HNEFBRERRATIERSER - Z&
the mining facilities and enhancement of industrial safety measures. The STRAREDIRTARRRRE ©
fund is not available for distribution to shareholders of the Company.

(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2018, HK$273,091,000 (2017: by BEZZT-NFF+ZA=+—BLHF
HK$222,142,000) had been utilised for expenditures incurred in the ¥ 273,091,000/ jt(= & — & &F:
qualified assets as stated in Note a, and therefore the corresponding 222,142,000 ) B AR M a s &
amount was transferred out of the capital reserve account to retained BEEMEEMNAS - B BRERIERER
earnings. HENEHERERZREFE -
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25 RETAINED EARNINGS 25 RBFHE
2018 2017
—E-NEF —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
At 31 December R+=A=+—8” LPLERELN 40,016,379
Change in accounting policy (Note 2.2) SETECREE (FIzE2.2) (242,356) —
At 1 January B—HA—H LNARMPLEN 40,016,379
Profit for the year FRF)E 3,950,435 4,623,323
Dividends paid to owners of the Company BEfARAHEA AKE
(Note 42) (FyzE42) (CRVAEAE)  (4,185,648)
Profit appropriation to reserves BERENFE COEWAOIY  (1,220,974)
Transfers (Note 24) B (P 5 24) (215,500) (201,737)
Transfers upon utilisation (Note 24) 2 A& B (M5 24) 273,091 222,142
At 31 December R+=—B=+—H ELWELNYEN 39,253,485
26 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 26 ﬂ'i%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ - HihEfA RRIB
AND ACCRUALS RESTER
2017
—E—+tF
HK$'000
FAT
Trade payables (i) FETBR R (i) 11,342,986 11,387,007
Other payables and accruals (ii) H A FE AT 0B K fEET 2 A (i) IR WAAN 20,794,829
YWLEWAEN 32,181,836
(i)  Ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: () ENEREFOEREIWTAT
2018 2017
—E-NEF —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
0-30 days 0Z30H 6,672,213 5,112,944
31-90 days 31E90H 2,253,431 2,779,780
Over 90 days 90 HIA F 2,417,342 3,494,283

11,342,986 11,387,007
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26 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 26 ﬂ%ﬁfﬁ_ﬁ%ﬂ - H I MIB
AND ACCRUALS (continueD) K IESTE R mw)
(i) Ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: () FENERFOERERINOT : (&)

(Continued)

The average credit term for purchases of goods is 90
days. The Group has financial risk management policies
in place to ensure that all payables are within the credit

BEEYHIEHEEH RO
He AEBEEERVERAKRE
BHE  BRAEEMZER
SEHAS -

HitEARARETERER

terms.
(i) Other payables and accruals include: (ii)

Payables in respect of purchase of EHBEERDEE
non-current assets B FE - 5RIE

Accrued wages EstEe

Advances from customers BEFER

Other tax payables H R TI8

Interests payable JE A T2,

Payable in respect of employee B B B~ RE B A
settlement costs of a subsidiary S B B A< SRR

Retirement and other long-term FEEHR K K H Ath = HA
employee benefits obligations - current B TA&FIAK A — BN HR
(Note 38 (iii) (Ff 7 38¢iii))

Deferred consideration payables JERTRERE

Others HAh

12,741,981 14,200,426
1,110,304 1,211,722

— 1,358,820
1,257,860 1,085,036
565,574 611,900
18,718 359,113
23,514 32,207
— 99,879

1,192,824 1,835,726

16,910,775 20,794,829

Trade and other payables are unsecured, interest free,
repayable on demand, and mainly denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2018, the fair values of trade and other
payables of the Group approximate their carrying amounts
due to the short-term nature.
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27

28

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

27

aR&aE

2018

HK$'000
FHET

LY
ME

Non Current
Current

531,755
1,128,165

1,659,920

Majority of contract liabilities are from power and heat
supplies customers which are usually transferred into
revenue within one year.

AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES

As at 31 December 2018, except for the deposits amounting
to HK$1,243,319,000 (2017: HK$376,787,000) which are
market-rate-interest bearing, other amounts are unsecured,
non-interest bearing, and repayable on demand. The
amounts due to associates are mainly denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2018, the fair values of amounts due to
associates approximate their carrying amounts due to the
short-term nature.

28

ABHAAEERAENRERE
F o — R — R A -

BAYTIEEERIR

R—ZEBE-NFE+-_A=1+—08" K
¥ 41,243,319,0008 T(—Z T — +
4 : 376,787,000 jT ) & T 15 F K
HESN  HbFBAEET 2B K
AREREEER - BB E XA
FEUARETIE -

RZE—-N\E+=A=1+—H8 R
BREEME - ERAEBECEFIAENA
AEEBEREERS °

/7
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29 AMOUNTS DUE TO JOINT VENTURES 29 BNEGEEFMRIEA

R-ZZE—N\F+-_A=+—8 " Bk
4 528,191,000 T (Z T —t & :

As at 31 December 2018, except for the deposits amounting
to HK$528,191,000 (2017: HK$155,975,000) which are
market-rate-interest bearing, other amounts due to joint 155,975,000 % 7T ) & i 3% F &5 &
ventures are unsecured, non-interest bearing, and repayable N HEN & & b ERIE A ER
on demand. All are denominated in RMB. - REREAREREEERE - ZFX
HEHAARKSE -

As at 31 December 2018, the fair values of amounts due to RZZE—N\FE+_A=+—H AR
joint ventures approximate their carrying amounts due to the J?&,Hﬂ ME - J?Efﬁ/\“ﬁ%mIEH’JA
short-term nature. AEEHEKREEES

30 AMOUNTS DUE TO OTHER RELATED 30 BIYEMRAELTIRIR

COMPANIES
2018 2017
= LI T+
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loan from an intermediate holding company 3 & — &/ A% A 7]
M E X 800,000
Amounts due to non-controlling FET I A Rl IEE IR AR R
shareholders of subsidiaries IR 284,139 633,825
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries JEHR 2B A ﬂ%&lﬁ 7,568 5,498
Amounts due to an intermediate JE—FE R R AR KIE
holding company 603 1,212

1,440,535

FR EER A R(EEEE) BRI
FME198% B BNHALE
BERRRAREEN  RENARE

Except for the loan from the intermediate holding company
(CRH) with an annual interest rate of 1.98%, amounts due
to other related companies are unsecured, non-interest

bearing, and repayable on demand. They are mainly KEEE ZERETEZEUARET|
denominated in RMB. =
As at 31 December 2018, the fair values of amounts due to R-ZFBE—NE+—-_HA=+—H R

other related companies approximate their carrying amounts
due to the short-term nature.

280 | China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. ZHEIZRERAT

EREBEE - BNEMEEARR
MR EBEEREERS



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H AT IR ER R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BItFE

31 BORROWINGS

31 B8

Non-current JE BN EA
Bank loans RITER

- Secured —BEA

— Unsecured — R
Corporate bonds and notes (i) NElEFREE ()
Current BP &3
Bank loans IRITER

— Secured — G H

— Unsecured — R
Corporate bonds and notes (i) NEEHFEMEE ()
Total borrowings EEAE

As at 31 December 2018, the secured bank loans of the

Group were secured by:

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FHET

2,791,704
58,104,169
8,314,298

69,210,171

532,414
21,226,102
5,706,450

27,464,966

96,675,137

2017
—TtF
HK$'000
TET

3,315,009
50,750,331
14,696,546

68,761,886

800,628
26,575,155
4,785,200

32,160,983

100,922,869

RZZE-N\F+_A=+—HB K&

E e A ERRITERATFIIEE (EE

1

Buildings and equipment (Note 6)
Prepaid lease payments (Note 7)

BT R (Ee)
BNHEEER(ME7)

3,918,842

3,918,842
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2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
THET
3,071,285
940

3,072,225



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE—Z-N\Ft+-A=+—BIEE

31 BORROWINGS (continuED) 31 BE8uwm

At 31 December 2018, the borrowings were repayable as
follows:

RZZ—\F+ZA=+—10 " E#E
RINTHEER

Within 1 year —FK
Between 1 and 2 years
Between 2 and 5 years
Over 5 years

B R F

BB —FETBBEMRF
AR FETBERSF

2018 2017
T2\ F i
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&TT
27,464,966 32,160,983
14,656,676 20,774,002
27,092,882 25,426,074
27,460,613 22,561,810

100,922,869

As at 31 December 2018, the fair values of borrowings,
except corporate bond, approximate their carrying amounts.
The fair values are based on cash flows discounted using a
rate based on benchmark lending rate of the People’s Bank
of China or LIBOR rate.

The fair values of the corporate bonds at 31 December
2018 were HK$13,957,759,000.The fair value measurement
of RMB8,000,000,000 corporate bonds issued (Note i)
are categorised within level 1 of the fair value hierarchy
as they are listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange. The fair
value measurement of other corporate bonds is categorised
within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as they are private
placements and are calculated based on the discounted cash
flows of the principal and interest payments.
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RZZE-—N\FE+A=+—H B8
(REIEFBRINO R EEEREE
HE - 2ABERBEATEARRE
TEREEN XL MARFFERR
MRS REAE -

REEFR _E—NF+=-A=1+—
HHy QR BEA13,957,759,000 8
JC ° A8 AR 8,000,000,000 7TH)
BERITAREBEFNAREBET= (K
TONBERAAEBEERANE K
REABBEBEARGESF IR EEBELER
S L™ - A RAREFNAREE
STENEARABEERNE=R
REABBEARIESFBILALE I
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AT IR ER R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BItFE

31 BORROWINGS (conTinueD)

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in
the following currencies:

31

B8

EENREENANTERIIE

RMB AR
HK$ BT
us$ ETT
EURS$ 8L T

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had the following
undrawn borrowing facilities:

2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
TR

75,416,716

20,304,928
939,949
13,544

96,675,137

2017
—T—tF
HK$'000
TAET
82,268,132
17,702,192
938,024
14,521

100,922,869

RoE-\F+-A=+—0 K%
EARDANEREEDT

—F R3]
— {25

&

Expiring within one year
Expiring beyond one year

4

N

During the year ended 31 December 2018, bank borrowings
bear average annual interest rate at 4.66% (2017: 4.09%).

HE—
g iR

2018
—E-N\E
HK$'000
FET
42,041,477
119,021,968

161,063,445

2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
THET
89,578,019
53,386,449

142,964,468

E-NE+_A=+—HItF

TEEUNFYFEFRE4L66E
ZE—+F 409F)FHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE_Z— \Ft+-_A=+—HILLEE

31 BORROWINGS (conTinueD)

(i) Corporate bonds and notes with fixed rates issued by
the Group as at 31 December 2018 are as follows:

(a) issued by China Resources Power Investment
Company Limited (“CR Power Investment”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in the
PRC:

(1) RMB1,785,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,037,202,650) — 4.70% due January
2020 (issued in January 2010) (“Tranche
1") and RMB500,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$570,645,000) - 4.95% due January 2020
(issued in January 2010) (“Tranche 2").

At the end of the fifth and seventh year
from the issue of corporate bonds Tranche
1 and Tranche 2, respectively, the issuer has
the right to adjust the coupon rate (“New
Coupon Rate”) and the corporate bonds
holders have the right to sell the corporate
bonds held by them, in whole or in part, to
CR Power Investment at a total consideration
equivalent to the total face value of the
corresponding corporate bonds within 5
business days after the announcement of the
New Coupon Rate.
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31 E8m

(i)

NTRBEE-_ZT—-N\F+_H
=+t —BARAEEETHER
REEFRER

(@) BARRNTEZENE
RAEHENREBERA
AMEBENRE D ®

1T

(1) AR #¥1,785,000,000
T (#H F R
2,037,202,650 %
TT) —470% R =&
—EF—-ARHR=
T-ZTF—A%T)R
AR # 500,000,000 7T
(#8 = $4 570,645,000
BT ) —4.95% 7 —
T-TF— AEH(R
—E-FF— A7)

(TE=#t]) -

HEMRE _#AF
BTG 2 5 E
TFERFLFER
> BITABEHE
RER(THEEX])
maAMEZFA AL
ERRAFEBENRE
HEREMFANE
EREIE NI ez
RAEBRER QM
RRERRAMERH
M EYHE R~ RHE A
AmEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R RS ER R B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE_Z— \Ft+-_A=+—HLEE

31 BORROWINGS (conTinueD)

(i) Corporate bonds and notes with fixed rates issued by
the Group are as follows: (Continued)

(a)

issued by China Resources Power Investment
Company Limited (“CR Power Investment”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in the
PRC: (Continued)

(2)

3)

(4)

RMB2,000,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,282,580,000) — 5.05% due May 2019
(issued in May 2012).

RMB5,000,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$5,706,450,000) — 3.49% due June 2023
(issued in June 2016 and listed in Shanghai
Stock Exchange).

At the end of the fifth year from this issue
of corporate bonds, the issuer has the right
to adjust the coupon rate (“New Coupon
Rate”) and the corporate bonds holders have
the right to sell the corporate bonds held
by them, in whole or in part, to CR Power
Investment at a total consideration equivalent
to the total face value of the corresponding
corporate bonds within 5 business days after
the announcement of the New Coupon Rate.

RMB3,000,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$3,423,870,000) — 2.92% due September
2019 (issued in September 2016 and listed in
Shanghai Stock Exchange).

31 E8m

(i) ATABAKREZTHNESR
AEGSFEERIER - (&)

(a) AR ERE N B
AREBENREARA
AEHENREDE

17 ()

(2) AR #2,000,000,000
o (#H F R
2,282,580,000 %
7T ) —5.05% RN =&
—NFRAZHHK=
T—_HFRHAIT) o

(3) AR ®5,000,000,000
T (A F B
5,706,450,000 &
T ) —349% N =T
—=FEXRAIHR =
T-RESNABTR
REBELARSATE
m) e

B A REFHEITEE
FhFEEmE - BT
AEHRRABREEX
(THEREX]MmA
AfEZFREE ARA#E
RAEHENRELE
BEHFANZEK
Mo REMES - AR
BERERRMHER
ZRAE=E2XBE AW
HEARESWEER
8-

(4) A R #3,000,000,000
T (8 F R
3,423,870,000 /&
TT) —2.N%HN_E
—NENLAFBR=
E-RNFLABRTK
REBBLFR ST L
m) e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=1+—ALEFE

32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial Assets

THEE

32 ZEREIDHNEM TR

Notes

P £

Financial assets at amortised cost

Loans to associates

Loans to joint ventures

Loans to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary

Loans to an FVOCI investee company

Loan to an available-for-sale
investee company

Amounts due from associates

Amounts due from joint ventures

Amounts due from other
related companies

Trade and other receivables
excluding input VAT and
prepayments

Cash and cash equivalents, and
pledged and restricted
bank deposits

Available-for-sale investments

FVOCI

BMERATEMN
THEE
[FE SR ER
A&EEEER

7] — FEIFfY /8 22 m] IR 42 A

R E R
FAAREEFER
BE it AHMEE
Wt IR &
NAEIER

[A) — [ /] it A 4R
RERBER

& W g 2 (b S FRIR
fel & &K IR

10(b)
11(b)

n
X

19(b)

13(b)

17
18

& s Bt B 2 RIBRIR

R M5 B R e LAt B MK
A GERIR A
R TS FRIARR M)

B kReEEYMA
K B R SR
RITIF

AL ERE

19(a)

20,21

UARBEFELEZS

AT ARABAR A Wak

13(a)

Financial Liabilities

THEHE

Liabilities at amortised cost

Borrowings
Trade and other payables excluding
non-financial liabilities

Amounts due to associates
Amounts due to joint ventures
Amounts due to other

related companies

Notes
b
REHEHATEN
B 3=k
BE 31
JE 1~ BR B B EL A FE AT
FE(GEeRAE
BRAN)
JE < Bt 8 (> ZE R IE 28
FEfS & & EFIA 29
JE A EL i B 38 2 R 5RIR
30
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432,962

32,637
42,473

66,063

14,329,869

8,191,434

1,877,311

25,102,325

96,675,137

25,843,365
1,370,208
648,770

292,310

124,829,790

2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
THET

1,158,256

297,479

14,954

453,830
466,885
167,572

2,649

13,185,560

6,271,868
1,516,177

23,535,230

2017
—E—+F
HK$'000
FA&T

100,922,869

28,035,058
629,919
317,077

1,440,535

131,345,458



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B H AT IR ER R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BItFE

33 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND
DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred

income tax liabilities is as follows:

33 BEEMSREERIELRN
SRER

B EEMECHEHA RN

Deferred income tax assets:
— To be recovered after more than
12 months
— To be recovered within 12 months

Deferred income tax liabilities:

— To be settled after more than 12 months

— To be settled within 12 months

Deferred income tax assets/
(liabilities) - net

DITET -

2018 2017
—E-NEF —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET

RIEFTISTREE -

— R 1218 Az &K E

617,325
— #5512 18 A R 329,457
882,182 946,782

RIEFTSRAE
— ¥R 12E R 28 EE (RPN  (2,445,485)
— B2 A NEE (47,456) (130,871)
(Cai ANl (2,576,356)

EEFFEHEE (AE)

R 103,665 (1,629,574)

The gross movement on the deferred income tax accounts is

as follows:

EIEFTISTAR B R BZ T ¢

At 1 January

Exchange differences

Disposal of Shanxi Coal Mining Assets
(Note 45)

Disposal of other subsidiaries

Credited to profit or loss (Note 40)

(Charged)/credited to other
comprehensive income (Note 40)

At 31 December

2018 2017

e s —= tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

W—HB—H CRPLEYZY (1,865,610)

N E5E (CRV.E) 1,269
HELAEBEE (MFE45)

1,703,984 —

HEHEAMME A A (9,256) (3,795)

Ri8zERET A (FIFE40) 150,835 227,348

REM 2R EE(F0ER),
s A(BIEE40) (102,881) 11,214
R+=—A=+—H 103,665 (1,629,574)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BHE-_T—\F+-A=+—HILFE

33 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND 33 BREFSIREERIEREAT

DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES SREeEw

(CONTINUED)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities NTRENELEMSHEERAED
during the year, without taking into consideration the 28 WERR-—NEAEERA
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdictions, are M AEERIEEH -

as follows:

Retirement  Impairment

Accurred benefit and Government
Deferred income tax assets expenses  obligations provision grant Others Total
BEFREHEE Eitfx BARNEE HEREE BB Hft: @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TER TAn TER TEn TAR
As at 1 January 2017 WM=Z-t5-B-A 146,411 48,004 154,256 147,692 254,126 750,489
Exchange differences ERER 12,476 6,516 11,526 12,392 15,804 58,714
Disposal of subsidiaries LENBAT] - (3,795) - - — (3,795)
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss ~ IMERERE A/
(f0%) 60,454 (17,624) 19,465 55,710 27483 120,748
As at 31 December 2017 RZE-t&
+=B=1-H 219,341 33,101 185,247 215,794 272,673 926,156
Exchange differences ERES (9,961) (784) (5323) (PIIRED) (45,374)
Disposal of Shanxi Coal Mining NEWERREE
Assets (Note 45) (Htzk45) (59,891) (59,891)
Disposal of other subsidiaries HEEMHBAT] (9,256) (9,256)
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss ~ IMERER(HIR),/
HEA (43,345) (3,674) (66,637) (16,367) 216,350 86,327
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-NF
+ZA=1+-H 166,035 28,643 113,287 190,256 399,741 897,962
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B S SRR it 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE—Z-N\Ft+-A=t+—HILEE

33 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND

33 BEEMSREERIELRN

DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES SREeEw
(CONTINUED)
Distributable
profits of
Fair value PRC
changes of  subsidiaries,
Fair Fair Fvocl/ associates
valueof  valueof available- and joint
Fair ~ prepaid property forsale ventures
Difference  value of lease plantand investments ME Mining  Accurred
of  mining payments equipment  WEEE  KEAF: fund  interest
depreciation ights  BAE 4 R REN  BELER  (Notei) income
Deferred income tax liabilties lfe FREN EERN RREN 0 OAEE  RELEN  FEED Bt Others Total
BEfERAE fEEHEE OABE  OABE QARE 29 UARME (M) AEMA  Ef i
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn  TEr  TEn T TR TR TEn  TEn Thn
As at 1 January 2017 Rt
-A-A (213473) (1608834)  (55,803)  (185,263) (15,159) (86,242)  (145,235) (252,945 (53,145)  (2,616,099)
Bcange diferencss B EE (13179 - - - o) -0 o 66 (T4
Credited(charged] to NERETL/
profit or loss (118) 18804 3963 569 - 14,354 126 (64250 41951 106,600
Credited to other REf2ENA
comprehensive A
income - - - - 11,14 - - - - 11,214
Asat31 December 207 R=§-tE
tZR=t-H (177848) (1569,195)  (55,476)  (159,614) (4.222) (71888) (155,285 (344403) (17,799)  (2,555,730)
Bxchange differences EfEE 19,057 35,931
Disposalof Shani nELAREAE
Coal Mining Assets (it as)
(Note 45) 1,528,702 146,428 1,763,875
Credited!{charged) to REEETA/
profit or loss (188) 40,493 162 (22,03) 64508
Charged to other REHZERA
comprehensive ncome il (102,881) (102,881)
Asat31 December 2018 R=E-N\E
tZR=1-H (139,122) (43360)  (68,282) (106,963) (69,258) (328,566) (385260  (794,297)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE—Z-N\Ft+-A=+—BIEE

33

34

DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND
DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES

(CONTINUED)

Note i:

Pursuant to certain regulations in the PRC relating to the mining industry, the
Group is required to transfer an amount to the capital reserve account and such
fund is not available for distribution to shareholders (see Note 24(a) for details).
Such amounts are deductible for tax purposes when they are set aside but are
expensed for accounting purposes only when they are utilised. Therefore, a
deferred tax liability is recorded for such temporary differences.

At 31 December 2018, the Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets in
respect of losses amounting to HK$17,676,949,000 (2017: HK$8,063,220,000)
and deductible temporary differences amounting to HK$ 3,349,469,000 (2017:
HK$8,013,402,000) due to the uncertainty of sufficient taxable income in
future. Included in unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2018 are losses of
approximately HK$15,635,860,000 (2017: HK$7,815,948,000) that will expire
within 5 years from the year of originating, in or before 2023. Other losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1
January 2008 onwards. The directors of the Company believe that the Group
has sufficient funds in the overseas companies within the Group and therefore
the Company will not require certain PRC subsidiaries to declare dividends in
the foreseeable future out of their profits earned from 1 January 2008 onwards
to 31 December 2018. Accordingly, the Group did not recognise withholding
tax liabilities for profits retained by certain PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$30,667,189,000 (2017: HK$39,080,845,000) for the years from 2008 to 2018.

DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income mainly represents subsidies granted by
certain PRC governmental departments related to assets. As
at 31 December 2018, government grants of HK$61,748,000
(31 December 2017: HK$61,383,000) was amortised to the
consolidated income statement (Note 35(i)).
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33

34

B REERELZFRT
SR8Emw

sk

RBEDBERBFEITENE THDESR - AREAE
B—SRBPEEARER  BRFESTADIK
FRER(F 1B R 2 M 24(a))  Z RN

A 0% - BEESARIX - Bt - Sy
FrEERE - EREHEAE -

RZE—NF+=-—A=+—8 AR KRK#E
CHEBALEIHABNOTHBEREREZ  BA
& B I & 5t A $017,676,949,00078 JT By & 18
(== — 4 % :8,063,220,000/8 7T )&7%%1
3,349,469,000 & LM A ARG 2R (—F —+
£ : 8,013,402,000 8 7T ) HEREILFT 15 %Réf% o

EA_%—/\EJr:ﬂEJr—E REERT I E 18
BEBRAEENFERTRAFARRIZE==
ek 2 A2 HI R 5B 49 15,635,860,000 8 70 (—
T —44 :7,815,948,000/87T) - HEAEIEA]
REAGESE o

BRETFECEMESHRIDERSH A Bz
ZTZNFE—A— B BPEMERQR BT
HRERAORESEMNENR - ARG EEME
F  AEEEALEETEIINARFRBEETRRE
& ARARRRAERRRGHBAERETH
BEfBARBEE-"ZTENF—A—AZ=_F—)N\
F+—A=+— E%ﬁ@%ﬂﬂ$aﬁwg°
I AEEWERE THRREMEATR=
ii_j—A$%%EMHﬂm6m1wow
#T (= F—44F : 39,080,845,000 % 7T ) R
HnHas-

BTN

z_u&z)\z%?&“?ﬂhlﬂzﬁaﬁ?w
FTREEEHEBOE - RZZT—N
F+-_A=+—H " 61 748000,%
T(ZE2E—+&F+_A=+—8:
61,383,000 70) AT BHE B & #F
W 2 2= 8 88 (M9 5 35(1)) ©
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B H AT IR ER R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BItFE

35 OTHER INCOME

35 HEMURA

2018 2017
=t LYIE T F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Sales of scrap materials HEREE 757,782 600,707
Government grant (i) BT #E B (i) 755,495 785,581
Interest income FEWA 414,113 310,854
Service income RSB YA 334,732 440,917
Dividend income from REUAREETE
FVOCI investee companies BEEF AHMES
H& SR E A ER
R EHA 212,993 —
Dividend income from REATHEEHERERN
available-for-sale investments i B A — 189,572
Others HAth, 138,225 7,867
2,613,340 2,335,498
(i) During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group () BEZZE—N\F+A=+—

received grants from certain PRC governmental
departments to compensate high operating costs
amounting to HK$67,072,000 (2017: HK$86,458,000).
There were no ongoing obligations or conditions
attached with these grants and, therefore, the Group
recognised the grants as income upon receipt.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
received grants amounting to HK$161,072,000 (2017:
HK$279,726,000) from the PRC government, which
were used for encouraging certain PRC subsidiaries to
close down the coal mines as a result of the China’s
supply-side reform. The grants were used for employee
temination compensation and fully paid in 2018.

BIEFE A&EBIK IJ%%E
o B BT BB P A 1E B A AR
M EKN B 28A
67,072,000 0( =ZF—+%F :
86,458,000/ 7T) ° 2 F B
MR EK M B Tk
B it - 7K £ (B A Uk TR B e SR A
B AW o

-z — += A
=t+t—HLEEFEE XK
H&z B OB BT B BB fE Bh
161,072,000/ (= & — £
1 279,726,000 7T ) © AR
HEETHEMNBARZRES
IL\,ZG@IJE&EE%T? k%ﬁ)% o % E
HEAREMEERE ¥
R_E—N\FEHEN -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE—Z-N\Ft+-A=+—BIEE

35 OTHER INCOME (contiNuED) 35 EMUA @

(i)  (Continued) 0y (&)
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the RE&EZE-_FT-NF+=ZA
Group received grants of HK$306,989,000 (2017: =+—BULEFE A& H
HK$188,420,000), from the PRC government, for W B & B OB OAT EE AR &9 4 RG
encouraging certain PRC subsidiaries to increase 306,989,000/ (= & — +
supply of electricity, and grants for encouraging % : 188,420,000 7T )(Jy A

the development of environmental friendly

R EERDE T B 8 & B A

electricity generation of HK$158,614,000 (2017:
HK$169,594,000). There were no ongoing obligations

or conditions attached to these grants and, therefore,
the Group recognised the grants as income upon

receipt.

During the year ended 31

December 2018,

the

government grants relating to assets are credited to
other income amounting to HK$61,748,000 (2017:

HK$61,383,000) (Note 34).

36 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) -

NET

BEEMN)UAREBAZEIRRE
T IH B 85 158,614,0007% 7T
(ZZ—+ % :169,594,000 %
TC) ° 3% %l B I 48 R = AR A B
HERESGEHE Bt A&HE
R UGS RER B AU °

Rz —-—N\F+=A
=+—BLEFE  FFAHEM
WAMEBEEMRBBRSHEY B
61,748,000 (=T — 4 :
61,383,000 7C) (FizE34) o

HtRIGE (IRXK) — 138

Net exchange gains/(losses)
Net losses on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Net gains on disposal of
prepaid lease payments
Net gains on disposal of subsidiaries
Net losses on disposal of
other equity investments

Gains on disposal of coal mining capacity

Others

fE X Was, (B9 8) #50
HEME - BE KRB
B8R
HEBENEEERAN
LI&( /?%E
HEME AR &M
HEH iR IRE
BB 1R %5

H 5 5 B ) £ E R B Wi 2
HAth

ik

2018 2017
=S T+
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FETT
60,880 (193,456)
(74,281) (363,925)
67,129 —
102,475 143,965
— (133,065)

— 90,643
(64,762) 103,151
(352,687)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AT IR ER R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BItFE

37 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 37 EEigfFESZ
2018 2017
—E—N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FETT
Wages, salaries and bonus T& - HFHaehiti 5,057,832 4,420,481
Pension costs — retirement benefit schemes  EREK AN — RKAEFI 5T 2
(Note 38())& (ii)) (B & 38(i) M (i) 1,034,681 624,206
Termination benefit costs (Note 38(iii)) BIEZEENEA
(Bt 5 38(iii)) (24,283) 133,076
6,068,230 5,177,763
(i) Five highest paid individuals (i) EEEEFHMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the FR AEBREZESHMA
highest in the Group for the year include three (2017: TEE=2(CZF—1tF: "
four) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the Z)EE(MFE52 AT D 7 I Bkt
analysis shown in Note 52. The emoluments paid to the HEHM) - FAXN TERTMA
remaining two (2017: one) individual during the year (ZE—+tF: —F)ATHFE
are as follows. T -
2018 2017
—E-—NF —ET—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FETT
Salaries and other benefits e MEMmEF 1,451
Bonus TEAT 3,880
Post-employment benefits BB 12 42 58
5,389
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=1+—ALEFE

37 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (conminuep) 37 EEENRSZ @

(i) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (i)

Emoluments of this two (2017: one) individual is within
the following bands:

Emolument bands s [E
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 BLE
4,000,000 7T
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 BTLE
4,500,000 77T
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 & TE

5,500,000;8 7T

FERESHMA L@

ERBA(ZTE—HF: —F)A
TR T TIIEE

Number of individuals
N
2017
—E—+tF

38 RETIREMENT AND OTHER LONG-TERM 38 RRREMKRBESEF
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEMES 5t &l

Retirement benefit schemes — Hong Kong (i) RBK@FETE —F S (i)

Retirement benefit schemes — PRC (ii) IROKAEFET B — A = (i)
Termination benefit (jii) =R F (i)
(i) HongKong (i)

The Group operates various defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all Hong
Kong employees.The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The amount of contributions is
based on a specified percentage of the basic salary of
employees and any forfeited contributions in respect
of unvested benefits of staff leavers are used to reduce
the Group's contributions.
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2018 2017
TE-N\F g
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT
2,923 2,746
1,031,758 621,460
(24,283) 133,076

1,010,398 757,282

)

AEBREZHEBTELRE
B2HE7 FRHFEMKRTE -
ZEHECEERASEEE
DHER THBYEEREZE
TRHA - - HAEDREEERE
A ZBEANLAE M
BERBETEEEZE 2R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R RS ER R B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE_Z— \Ft+-_A=+—HLEE

38 RETIREMENT AND OTHER LONG-TERM 38 BERREMKRIESIER
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEMES (continuep) 5128l om)

(if) PRC (i) FE

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members
of state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated
by the respective local government in the PRC. The
Group is required to contribute a specified percentage
of payroll costs to the schemes to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to these
schemes is to make the specified contributions.

During the year, the Group has set up a defined
contribution retirement scheme for all qualified
employees (“Corporate Annuity Plan”). They usual
need to service over one year in the Group to be
qualified. The Group contribute 5% of the salary of
participating employee to the scheme each year. The
total contribution obligation of the Group during the
year were HK$333,082,000.

The contribution to above schemes were
HK$1,073,222,000 during the year (2017:
HK$652,372,000). The amounts of above retirement
charged to the consolidated income statement
and capitalised in the construction in progress are
HK$1,031,758,000 (2017: HK$621,460,000) and
HK$41,464,000 (2017: HK$30,912,000), respectively.

AEENTRESZATEE
T BFEENBEREER
REFFF SRR E - NEEZA
FEFEELFERANKER
DHBEFASMHEF - NEH
Bk FRF S M ME— B TR F L

R R -

TR AEBEEFEARER
1B B 3% 3 5 &8 R K ET 2
([tEFEFTE] - -EBE—K
BEAEEREBRB —FHHF
EBEBER - AEBESFAZ
HEEME TEHEERER
© 5% MERK - AEBRFRH
H 3R E £ 4 58 &333,082,000
I

F RN M| kg F 8 K
1,073,222,0008 T (= &E —+
652,372,000/ 7T ) o kit
RRBAHSERE HFRERF
HEREEERNMABEREIENS
%8 9 Bl £1,031,758,0007% T
(ZZE—+ 4 : 621,460,000
7T ) % 41,464,000 (= &
—+% :30,912,000/7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE_Z— \Ft+-_A=+—HILLEE

38 RETIREMENT AND OTHER LONG-TERM
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEMES (continuep)

(iii) Termination benefit

(a)

For certain selected employees of China Resources
Power Hunan Liyujiang Co., Ltd., Shenyang Power
Company, and Hunan China Resources Coal
Mining Company Limited employed by the vendors
of the businesses as at respective acquisition dates
(the “Pre-acquisition Employees”), the Group
has offered early retirement packages to those
who met certain specified criteria and accepted
voluntary redundancy. Such arrangement required
specific approval granted by management of
the Group. The Group is obliged to pay such
termination benefits to those early retired
employees (i.e. retired before their statutory
retirement age), who had been working for more
than 30 years or in accordance with the respective
entities’ early retirement policy. These early retired
employees are entitled to certain monthly benefits
up to their statutory retirement age.

These obligations were provided for by the Group
at the present value of the total expected benefit
payments. Where the obligation does not fall due
within twelve months, the obligation payable has
been discounted using a pre-tax rate that reflects
management’s current market assessment of
the time value of money and risk specific to the
obligation (the discount rate was determined with
reference to market yields at the balance sheet
date on treasury bonds in the PRC). The amount
of these obligations charged to the consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31 December
2018 is HK$62,149,000 (2017: HK$76,977,000).
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38 RINREMKRIAESER

5t &l
(i) &1k
(@)

ZRER

R BRI R B XEB
EHEENMEERER
TAERRAR  BEENRA
m A E R ERES
[RArIEEEES ([
REEDME @ NEER
HeaETHEER ;AR
BB R W E AR B 12
HRPRAKFTE - AL
HEEASEEEEARE
B - NEBEA R ERZ
FRRPERNEER (BIREE
BRIRF R ATRIK) (TR
B=TFIRBEAREE
B 82 F A Il T AR IRBGR)
XHRIEZERTN - 2T
BRAREEREERFHIA
ERARFRZEEETEA
FAEH) o

ZEETHASELKE
AEAMNRAENRE
iR WEBETLE
R+ —@EAREH E
NRETEHEBB A
KALIE  ZMERBRERE
BEREKRSEEEREH
BEENSETRRETHE
RITHIGAEE - BRIR K2R
FEEBEESANEEARER
BRmisKeSEEmEE -
ZEFABRE-_E-N\E
+-—A=+—BIFEHKN
EHUERNETELE
462,149,000/ T(= =
— + £ :76,977,0008
JL) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R RS ER R B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE_Z— \Ft+-_A=+—HLEE

38 RETIREMENT AND OTHER LONG-TERM
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEMES (continuep)

(iii) Termination benefit (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount
of these termination benefit payable in current
and non-current portion are approximately
HK$12,113,000 (2017: HK$14,907,000)
(Note 26(ii)) and HK$56,729,000 (2017:
HK$80,745,000), respectively.

In 2018 and 2017, certain coal mining entities
closed down coal mines and offered a termination
benefit package to their employees. These
obligations were provided for by the Group at
the present value of the total expected benefit
payments. Where the obligation does not fall due
within twelve months, the obligation payable has
been discounted using a pre-tax rate that reflects
management’s current market assessment of
the time value of money and risk specific to the
obligation (the discount rate was determined with
reference to market yields at the balance sheet
date on treasury bonds in the PRC). Based on
latest estimation of propable obligations payout,
HK$86,432,000 was reversed in 2018 (2017:
expense of HK$56,099,000).

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount
of these termination benefit payable in
current is approximately HK$11,401,000(Note
26(ii)) (2017:HK$17,300,000 in current and
HK$143,859,000 in non-current).

38 RINREMKRIAESIER

58l

(iii) #&1E
(a)

ZIEEMN @)
(%&)
RZZE—NFE+ = A

=+ —HB EANKIER
& &8 A B0 B K 3E BN HA &6
SHEEMED LY A
12,113,000 8 T(Z & —+
4 1 14,907,000 JT ) (M
=T 26(ii)) 5 56,729,000 77T
— T —+ % : 80,745,000
BIT) °

RZE—N\FE_ZE—+
F o BT EE QR R
DEETFEEERE—
HRIEZEEBHAETE - 3%
ZETRASEIRBRE
Rt BREAIREIR -
WEBEEL AR+ =@
AREIE  ENETRA
PR AT AR ALIR - R
IR B E I B R R (E
EREBEEENEERR
EITHE BT S E - B
REAYLBHFRHBESFN
BEABREMNTBKRES
KRBT - BRIBEFHLAUTEE
ENROEFEE - %5
H 186,432,000 T2 T
BE(ZE—tF: BX
56,099,000&7T) °

R—ZZTE—NF+ = A
=t+t—H BRI
& %8 # %) &11,401,000
B oMt sE26(3) (= &
— -+ F : Bl Hf K& JE BD Hf
BHoOWMEBmESD LD
%17,300,000/% T K
143,859,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=1+—ALEFE

39 FINANCE COSTS

39 BB

2018 2017
= LI T+
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHT
Interests on bank and other borrowings RITREMEEFE 4,211,098 3,585,454
Interests on corporate bonds NElfEHFE 785,349 803,024
Interests on loans from related parties B2kl = SN 17,091 —
Others HAth, 106,769 91,254
5,120,307 4,479,732

Less: Interests capitalised in property, B RE - BE R

plant and equipment (Note 6) BEERNEBFE

(BFzE6) (805,622) (488,234)

4,314,685 3,991,498

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on funds
borrowed specifically for the purpose of obtaining qualifying
assets and on the general borrowing pool which are
calculated by applying a capitalisation rate of 4.58% (2017:
4.43%) per annum to expenditures incurred on qualifying
assets.

40 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

FADENMEMEERARR REE
REREEMEBEES REXERA
B UWIEBFENENEL58% (=
T—LF:443%)TEREREE
EEMRX -

40 FIERER

2018 2017
TE-N\F a2
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT

Current income tax BHIFTIS
- PRC enterprise income tax — B EMEN 2,437,137 3,129,034
Deferred income tax (Note 33) EIEFTS R (BIEE33) (150,835) (227,348)

2,286,302 2,901,686

298 | China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. ZMEIZRERAT
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE_Z— \Ft+-_A=+—HLEE

40 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (conTinuED) 40 FTERER M@

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group had no taxable profit in Hong Kong or incurred
tax losses for both years.

PRC enterprise income tax has been calculated based on the
estimated assessable profits in accordance with the relevant
tax rates applicable to certain subsidiaries in the PRC.

Pursuant to CaiShui [2012] No. 10 Notice on the Execution
of the Catalogue of Public Infrastructure Projects Entitled
for Preferential Tax Treatment, certain wind power projects
of the Group, which were set up after 1 January 2008, are
entitled to a tax holiday of a three-year full exemption,
followed by a three-year 50% exemption of enterprise
income tax, commencing from their first turnover-making
year.

Pursuant to CaiShui [2011] No. 58 Notice on Tax Policy
Issues concerning Further Implementing the Western China
Development Strategy, certain entities of the Company’s
PRC subsidiaries, which are located in the western regions
of the PRC, are entitled to a tax holiday of a two-year full
PRC enterprise income tax exemption, followed by a three-
year 50% exemption commencing from their first year of
reporting turnover and can enjoy a preferential income tax
rate of 15% after the tax holiday.

In addition, certain of the Company’'s PRC subsidiaries are
entitled to certain tax credit (“Tax Credit”) against their
assessable EIT, which is calculated as 10% of the current
year's purchases and use of specific environmental friendly,
water and energy-saving, safety-enhanced equipment in the
Group’s electricity generation business. The portion of Tax
Credit that has not been utilised in the current period can
be carried forward for future tax credit over a period of not
more than five years.

HAAEENREFEARNETELE
TR BN BEERERR -
B L E B ST R

b B4 2 TS B AR I A 2 T o
B 25 ) 4R B S e AR B
R o

REBEFH[2012110 5K B ED - B
BISEBERMITALERREEE
CEFGHESERAEREENE
mMy XEBR-_ZFTENF—H—H
LRI EETREIERR B & EER
FEEN—FERCEMMEHR - M
BER = FRRFRREEME

BRI [2011]158 SRR FE A B HE
PR B 3 B B 5 A A R BUR R - Y
WA ARBETFARF B
FEIME AR B & EERFERNR
FREHMPROCERSHR - 2%=
FERIEROEMSEH - BRNER
HBBZEH 15% NWEBMEHEE -

AN - AR BE T BN E R FE
AMERABHEAE —EHRBAERE
(IRBEEE])  ZHRABEDIEA
FEAEENBREXHBEE REMAR
R~ EIRERIKEY B 2 2 3R 08 SR Y
10% 518 ° 7N HAf 3 £ 58 /R &) B¢ 1R
B D A BN ARKER - HEHR
TEZREEF -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=1+—ALEFE

40 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (conTinuED) 40 FISRASZm@®
The reconciliation of the effective income tax rate from the ERMEENEEEFEMEHTED
statutory income tax rate is as follows: HERMAT -
2018 2017
—E-N\F ZT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT
Profit before income tax B BT 1S 55 A1 ) 7,311,175 8,520,390
Calculated at a tax rate of 25% BREE 25%
(2017: 25%) (ZB—+%F : 25%)7H 1,827,794 2,130,098
Tax exemptions and concessions rates BB A R ER IR
granted to PRC subsidiaries HERER (411,917) (386,882)
Other tax credit HMHIEES (37.764) (36,244)
Income not subject to tax BAGABA (122,642) (29,532)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes GIE 01553 195,914 319,617
Unrecognised deductible temporary RIERAI R E R =58
differences 281,978 192,942
Unrecognised tax losses RERTIEEE 682,552 437,077
Utilisation of previously unrecognised A BERERANIE
tax losses and temporary differences BERERERE (184,021) (239,315)
Withholding tax on the earnings HETHBAREL,
remitted/anticipated to be remitted TEHA IR a0 B TR0
by certain subsidiaries 54,408 513,925
2,286,302 2,901,686
Tax rate of 25% (2017: 25%) is adopted for the taxation MIEBHERER2% (ZE — 5
reconciliation as such tax rate is applicable to most of the 25%)BEGFE - RAAFALAKE
Group's operations in the PRC for the year. REDHBEEBRESFERZRE -
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BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BItFE

40 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continueD) 40 TSRS @)
The tax (charge)/credit relating to components of other ERAEMmEEWAARKIDHFIE
comprehensive income is as follows: (ZH) BEemT :

2018 2017
—E-N\f e
Before tax Tax charge  After tax JECISGICRE GEEEREVEe(0i After tax
BA BUEXM B WA WRE% i3
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn ThR ThR TEx TR TR

Fair value changes of FVOCI AR EBERE
BEE AL
malEm
NhEERY 411,525  (102,881) 308,644 — — —

Fair value changes of AfHEREAR

available-for-sale investments EEEZE (44.,856) 11,214 (33,642)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) 12
WA/ (E#) 411,525  (102,881) 308,644 (44.,856) 11,214 (33,642)
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HE—Z-N\Ft+-A=+—BIEE

41 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year excluding ordinary shares purchased by
the Company and held as treasury shares (Note 23).

41 ZREBF

(a)

E=WN

BREXBNRARNRER
ANEEMERAFRNED BTE
B NEFSH(AREEE
3 5 15 B AR £ ) A AR B A
(MH7E23))5tE -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FHET
Profit attributable to owners of AKRBHEE AEGFE
the Company 3,950,435 4,623,323
Weighted average number of BT S B AR IntE
ordinary shares in issue (thousands) FEHE(FR) 4,780,876 4,777,316
Diluted (o) #%

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. The Group has no such
potential diluted earning instrument as of 31 December
2018. For 2017, a calculation is done to determine the
number of shares that could have been acquired at fair
value (determined as the average annual market share
price of the Company’s shares) based on the monetary
value of the subscription rights attached to outstanding
share options during the year.

The number of shares calculated as above is compared
with the number of shares that would have been issued
assuming the exercise of the share options.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BItFE

41 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continueD) 41 SR8 m
(b) Diluted (Continued) (b) #58 @)
2018 2017
TE-N\F il gcs
HK$000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Earnings B
Profit attributable to owners of RNARHEB ARIEFE
the Company 3,950,435 4,623,323
Weighted average number of ERTEERNME
ordinary shares in issue (thousands) P& (FAR) 4,780,876 4,777,316
Adjustments for: FHEE -
— Share options (thousands) —EBRE(TH5) 175
Weighted average number of METETREERT
ordinary shares for diluted earnings mE - AN
per share (thousands) g (FR) 4,780,876 4,777,491
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42 DIVIDENDS 42 RR

Dividend recognised as distribution ERBIAPRKNRE () :
during the year (i):

Final dividend for 2017 of HK$0.75 B34,773,905,000 f%
(2017: for 2016 of HK$0.75) per share on (ZZ—+% : 4,779,905,000 %)
4,773,905,000 (2017: 4,779,124,000) shares BROTH St FERARE

BROISET(ZF—LE:
“E-REER0.75%T)

Interim dividend for 2018 of HK$0.125 254,779,120,000 f%
(2017: HK$0.125) per share on 4,779,120,000 (ZZ—+%F : 4,810,440,000 %)
(2017: 4,810,440,000) shares (ii) RS —E-NFHHKRE

FIR0.1258 T

(Z2—+F 012587 (

i)

Dividend proposed after the end of BEFERERERMBR L (iii) -
the reporting year (iii):

Proposed final dividend for 2018 of BE—T—\EXRERE
HK$0.203 (2017: HK$0.75) per share 5% 0.203 8T

(Z2—tF:075%71)

(i) The dividends paid in 2018 and 2017 were HK$
4,177,819,000 and HK$4,185,648,000 respectively.
They were stated after elimination of HK$23,489,000
(2017: HK$23,489,000) paid for shares held by the
Medium to Long-term Performance Evaluation Incentive
Plan, which is a share award scheme of the Group (Note
23).
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2018 2017
“E-N\F “E+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FAEL

3,580,429 3,584,343

597,390 601,305

4,177,819 4,185,648

976,520 3,584,344

TE-N\ER T+ FEN
I Bm Bl A 4,177,819,000 7 7T
% 4,185,648,000 87T ° K EFIR
IR R B NG E BB AT
E(AEBEMRG ERE)
B9 1 #9 23,489,000 78
TT(=ZF—+4% : 23,489,000/8
TC)BABR(MFE23) -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE_Z— \Ft+-_A=+—HLEE

42 DIVIDENDS (continueD)

(if)

(iii)

The interim dividend of HK$0.125 per share was paid
in cash (2017: HK$0.125 per share, paid in cash). The
interim dividend for 2018 is based on 4,779,120,000
shares in issue as at 16 August 2018, which excluded
shares held by the share award scheme. The interim
dividend, amounting to HK$ 597,390,000 (2017:
HK$601,305,000) after elimination of HK$3,915,000
paid for shares held by the share award scheme, has
been recognised in shareholders’ equity in the year
ended 31 December 2018.

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2018 of HK$0.203 per share, amounting to
a total dividend of HK$976,520,000 is to be proposed
at the annual general meeting on 25 June 2019. The
consolidated financial statements do not reflect this
dividend payable.

42 IRR @)

(i)

(iii)

FRZ0.125B TR R E(=
T—+F: §KR0125F T -
NESRE)ABR SR - —
ZE-NEFHEREDIRERER
—E-—NFNA+HB %
77 #94,779,120,000 B A% 15 &
EERABRERG EEE
BEFHEZRGD - RETEMBE®
HEATEFE RO AH
3,915,000 L& + 72+ B ix
£.597,390,000 t( =T —+
¢ 1 601,305,0008 ) E R &L
—E-N\F+=—A=+—H
tiﬁmﬂx%% S AR ©

Hz_Z—N\NF+ = A
—t+—HUEFENRBARE
7/% ‘E HXO.Z(B/% 7'E HX g 2
%8976,520,000/8 T N =&
—NWEXNAZT+HRBEHRER
FRELEETIK - &M
MR E R Z RS o

f
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HE-Z-\F+-A=1+—ALEFE

43 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 43 REREER
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) RETHBELEMES
2018 2017
“E-N\% —T+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FEL
Profit before income tax BRETEHAIME 7,311,175 8,520,390
Adjustments for: HE
Depreciation for property, plant and equipment nE - BEREEOTE
(Note 6) (Kizk6) 10,665,813 10,015,238
Amortisation of mining rights (Note 8) RS HE (M) 388,425 396,292
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments (Note 7) BNREBROEHE(ET) 98,676 95,892
Impairment charges on property, plant and mE - BERXEOREERX
equipment (Note 6) GEL)) 434,496 728,239
Impairment charges/(reversal) on prepaid ENRERRNRERL/
lease payments (Note 7) (Bm) (P3ET) 86,165 (2,112)
Impairment charges on mining rights (Note 8) REERRERL(FES) 100,658 99,808
Impairment charges on goodwill (Note 12) BENRERK(ME12) 298,100 —
Impairment (reversal)/charges on inventories (Note 15)  TF& R E(BE),1B%
(K#E15) (10,369) 28,984
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment of REERERE/(BE)
doubtful accounts (Note16) (FfzE16) 52,954 (4,254)
Exchange (gains)/losses (Note 36) P () /B (M 36) (60,880) 193,456
Interest expense (Note 39) HMER X (FFE39) 4,314,685 3,991,498
Interest income (Note 35) ﬂ A (F3E35) (414,113) (310,854)
Share of results of associates ElhBeat%%E (223,638) (136,448)
Share of results of joint ventures Eheetx%E (53,937) 104,558
Dividends received from FVOC! investee companies EM’R/’?FTEJ;H """"" E)
(Note 35) STARMERE MENBEIRE
A Y ER A AR 2 (P 2E 35) (212,993) —
Dividends received from available-for-sale BA#HERBERRMRE
investments (Note 35) (B3 35) (189,572)
Net losses on disposal of property, plant and HENE  BEREENESR
equipment (Note 36) FE (M 36) 74,281 363,925
Net gains on disposal of prepaid lease payments HERNBEERNKRFE
(Note 36) (K3 36) (67,129) -
Net losses/(gains) on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARER/ (k)
(Note 36 and 45) FE (M3 36 ]k 45) 2,019,094 (143,965)
Net gains on disposal of other equity investments HEEMERRERDTE
(Note 36) (I‘ﬁ?36) 133,065
Changes in working capital: 2EEEHE
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEEM) /WD (465,077) 135,281
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables, FEUERS - Hf IR R
other receivables and prepayments BRZERD,/(E0) 1,273,153 (1,852,116)
Decrease in trade payables, AR - R TIER
other payables and accruals st ERR D (4,814,258) (840,489)
(Decrease)fincrease in retirement and RAREMRBESRFEML
other long-term employee benefits obligations (R2)/48m (167,875) 52,962
Cash generated from operations SETHEENEE 20,627,406 21,379,778
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43 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (conTiNuED) 43 REREEN @

(a) Cash generated from operations (Continued) (a) RETBHELENRE @)
In the statement of cash flows, proceeds from sale of FTREMERT  HEWHE -
property, plant and equipment comprise: W E MBS RIARE
2018 2017
= IEN Tt F
HK$°'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Net book amount (Note 6) REFE(MIzES) 341,590 603,326
Net losses on disposal of property, HEYE - BEMEE
plant and equipment (Note 36) W ESRF R (A5 36) (74,281) (363,925)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEW¥E WEEREN
plant and equipment RS RIE 267,309 239,401
In the statement of cash flows, proceeds from sale of EREeRERT  HEBMNME
prepaid lease payments comprise: EERNMEHRERS
2018 2017
—E-)N\F —EFE—tF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
Net book amount (Note 7) AREFE(PFIEE7) —
Net gains on disposal of HEBRNEEERN
prepaid lease payments (Note 36) Wz F 8 (FfT5E36) —
Proceeds from disposal of HEENHEEEAN
prepaid lease payaments RS FIE —
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43 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (conTiNuED)

(b) Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, net

In the statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposal

of subsidiaries comprise:

Net proceeds from Disposal of
Shanxi Coal Mining Assets (Note 45)

HE WL TEREEE

PSSR IR RE (TR 45)

Net (cash outflow on)/proceeds from HEEMHE R R
disposal of other subsidiaries (Remt) g8/
Fr8 k18
Net Proceeds from disposal of HERB QT
subsidiaries PRSI B

(c) Net debt reconciliation

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and
the movements in net debt for each of the periods

presented:

Net debt
FAE

Cash and cash equivalents

Pledged and restricted bank deposits

Loan from an intermediate holding
company

Borrowings — repayable within one year

Borrowings — repayable after one year

RekREEED

B R R R B RITFK
KB — R EER R

HYE K
EE-R—FAEER
fEE-R—FRER

Net debt

FRE

Cash and bank deposits
Gross debt — fixed interest rates
Gross debt — variable interest rates

e RR1THEK
BEARE - BEER=E
BEBE-FPHE

Net debt

FEE
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43 REREER @)

(b) HEMBQTFR

EREREXRT  HEWBLQ
A SRIBRL

2018
—E-N\F
HK$°000
T x

8,485,985

(114,043)

8,371,942

(c) FEBEHER
REZIHENFABREER
EFHWATEHINOT -

¢

2018
—2-N\%
HK$000
Tl
7,977,153
214,281

(27,464,966)
(69,210,171)

(88,483,703)

8,191,434
(20,576,318)
(76,098,819)

(88,483,703)

BRUBBE

2017
—T—tF
HK$'000
TAET

445,824

445,824

2017
.
HK$'000
FA&TT
5,381,686
890,182

(800,000)
(32,160,983)
(68,761,886)

(95,451,001)

6,271,868
(27,577,108)
(74,145,761)

(95,451,001)
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BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BItFE

43 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (conTiNuED)

(c) Net debt reconciliation (Continued)

Net debt as at 31 December 2016 R-B-RETZA
t-RNFEE

Cash flows LR

Foreign exchange adjustments NESE

Other non-cash movernents NPk 1)

Net debt as at 31 December 2017 R-E-tE+ZR
t-RNFEE

Cash flows REmE

Foreign exchange adjustments NEAE

Qther non-cash movements AfpRes

Net debt as at 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+=R
T-ANFEE

Cash and
cash
I

RER
RESEY
HK$'000
TR

4,347,022
610,066
424,598

5,381,686

3,061,899
(466,432)

1,977,153

43 REREERN @

(c) FEEBEHE@

Other assets

RfRE

Pledged and
restricted
bank
deposits
BERRS
REBTER
HKS'000
T

1,092,114
(267,459)
65,527

890,182

(622,490)
(53,411)

214,281

Loan from an
intermediate

Liabilities from

company

HK$'000

(800,102)

(800,000)

(32,160,983)

812,104 16,682,472
(12,104)

2,412,074
— (14,398,529

—  (27,464,966)

financing activities Total
RERERBHAE 3t
holding  Borrowings  Borrowings
due within ~ due after
RE-B 1 year 1 year
TEERAR f&8- 8- Total
WER R-EARE N-FARE it
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Tin Tn Tikn Tikn
= (21,29,587)  (70,166,815)  (86,024,266)
4,807,669 (10,686,101  (6,335927)
102 (1277,795)  (2,226,708)  (3,014,276)
— (143942700 14317738 (76,532)

(68,761,886)  (95,451,001)

(22,257,589)  (2.323,604)
6,734,990 8,615,117
15,074,314 675,785

(69,210,171)  (88,483,703)
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44 COMMITMENTS 44 HiE

(i) BAREIE

RBEMRETNERKREE
HVEAAGET

(i) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted but not yet provided for
at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2018 2017
Al T EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FATT
Contracted for but not provided in B ETAVB N MR B IR B
the financial statements
— Capital expenditure in respect of —AEVE - BERZH
property, plant and equipment BRANERFR EWLERETE 16,386,216
— Capital expenditure in respect of — R B R
the acquisition of mining rights/ BHANERRX
exploration rights 5,268,343 5,522,276
— Capital expenditure in respect of —fEETEEEBY
the acquisition of intangible assets BERRAE 29,013 87,898
— Unsubscribed shareholder loans in —PRESEBERRE
respect of investment in a joint BRERE R (HEE11)
venture (Note 11) 2,312,414 2,338,770
22,814,916 24,335,160
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44 COMMITMENTS (continueD) 44 HE @)

(ii) Operating lease commitments — as lessee

The Group has various land and buildings, office
premises and other assets under non-cancellable
operating lease agreements. The lease terms of the
Group’s agreements are between one to ten years.

Total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are as follows:

(i) ARLHELEE - FREEA

AEBERBETAHELEHELD
BEEE ZEL M RIEF - P
RERREBEE - AEEH
HEEEFRA—E+F -

A B R K T R R
EARE M DT -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF

Land and Land and

buildings buildings
TR Others TH R Others
BF Hits B¥ Hity
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET TET TET
No later than 1 year TEBE—F 28,250 45,134 50,411 42,210
Between 1 year and 5 years #BiB—FETHBMBAF 29,592 71,079 70,564 173,119

Later than 5 years HBRAF 27,759

42,843 18,202 36,606

85,601 159,056 139,177 251,935
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45 DISPOSAL OF SHANXI COAL MINING 45 LEURKREEE

ASSETS

The disposal were archived by two transactions as below.

Disposal of AACI HK (as defined below)

On 23 November 2018, the Group entered into an equity
transfer agreement with AACI SAADEC Holdings Limited
("AACI"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of CRH, in relation to
the transfer of its 100% equity interest in AACI SAADEC
(HK) Holdings Limited (“AACI HK"”) and the coal company,
namely Shanxi China Resources Daning Energy Company
Limited (“CR Daning”), whose 51% equity interest is held
by AACI HK, at a cash consideration of approximately
RMB3,485.7 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,930.6 million), as determined based on the valuation
of the equity interest of AACI HK as at 30 June 2018
as assessed by an independent valuer. The Disposal
was approved by an extraordinary general meeting of
Shareholders of the Company held on 17 December 2018.
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HE AACIHK (B2 R TX)

R=ZZF—N\F+—H=+=0 &%
B HEHEEN 2 EHE QR AACI
SAADEC Holdings Limited ([ AACI])
RN IR E W & HAAC
SAADEC(HK)Holdings Limited
(TAACI HK]) 100 % A% # & & &= A
7 + BIAACI HK$# B 51 % BRI
AEBREERERAB(EBX
F]) BEREBHABARY3,4857
BB T(HEENRL3,93065EE T
JC) v JOAREIE Sk E A AT ETE AACI
HKR - \F A=+ HRKRE
HEETE  HEFTHEERAREES
T N\E+_A+LtABITZRER
RIRE FRERE -
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HE_Z— \Ft+-_A=+—HLEE

45 DISPOSAL OF SHANXI COAL MINING 45 LEUREFEEEE @

ASSETS (conTinuED)

Transfer of coal assets held by CR Coal including
equity interests in four Coal Companies and transfer
of Target Debt (as defined below)

On 26 December 2018, the Group entered into an equity
transfer agreement (the “Equity Transfer Agreement”) with
a third party, Guoyuan Shidai Coal Asset Management
Company Limited (“Guoyuan Company”), in relation to the
transfer of its 100% equity interest in China Resources Coal
(Group) Co., Ltd. (“"CR Coal”) and its entire equity interest
in four of the coal companies under CR Coal, namely (1)
Shenzhen Ruihua Energy Investment Co., Limited (“Ruihua
Energy”); (2) Shanxi China Resources Liansheng Energy
Investment Co., Ltd. (“CR Liansheng”); (3) Shanxi China
Resources Coal Company Limited (“CR Shanxi”); and (4)
CR Taiyuan (a 49% associate of CR Coal), (collectively,
the “Target Coal Companies”), and all their respective
coal mines, at a consideration of RMB1. Immediately prior
to the transfer, the Company (through its wholly-owned
subsidiaries) beneficially owns 74.14%, 51%, 75.5% and
24.99% in Ruihua Energy, CR Liansheng, CR Shanxi and CR
Taiyuan.

EFRRAESENEREEER
BREARERAANRE RS
ZHEER(EER T

RZE—NF+_A=-+/,"H =«
EEEE-ZFTRFERFRAKEREES
BERAR(TBERERR )T EE
HEmaE(IREEZmE]D  BR
EZEHAEHRE(RE)BRAA
(TP D100 % IR #E M FE 5
EREETORERRANZ I
B RIIRERRKREBR A
AI([TmEERe R ]) 5 (2) 1L 78 2 B A%
RERIEARR AR ([EE B (3)
WAAEFEERMER QA (TEH
Weml) : R KREB(EBREED
49% RN (B AIBEAR])
MEZENERE  REARK 1T
BREZF ARRI(EBEZEN
BRANDAESEAITERLR - #
AR - EBRILAERKRERS 5
7414 % ~51% ~ 75.5 % }&%24.99%
A HE o
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45 DISPOSAL OF SHANXI COAL MINING 45 LEUREFEEEE @

ASSETS (conTiNuED)

Transfer of coal assets held by CR Coal including FHRXFANEREESS
equity interests in four Coal Companies and transfer Eﬁm%ﬁf@jmﬂﬂé Eﬁii
of Target Debt (as defined below) (Continued) ZEREH(ERER T ) @)

On the same date, the Group also entered into a debt ER—B  NEEREBRAREIL
restructuring agreement (the “Debt Restructuring BEHEMGA(EHFEMR RG]
Agreement”) with Guoyuan Company and agreed that TRBGEERER SERERA
all shareholder loans and accounts receivable in the total ARBRARENARE 2198 TN E
amount of approximately RMB21.9 billion owed by CR HERER R EREFAE( BRE
Coal and/or the Target Coal Companies to the Group (the #51) - ABERE T BRI i HA
“Target Debt”) shall be transferred to and assumed by g RERARE10ET - BURA
Guoyuan Company for a consideration of RMB11 billion. AIREEEERAXNBRERS —
Guoyuan Company or its designated entity shall pay the first HARB60EL  IR=ZF=—F
installment of RMB6 billion of the Target Debt and pay the NA=BAH ﬁ$;’%l§ﬁﬁ%T}\E%
remaining RMB5 billion and all outstanding interest accrued SORTTRATE REERAFE

to the date on which the consideration is fully paid based $Eﬁ$ﬁﬂ1§ff,ﬁﬁél’jﬂlﬂ ./\Efﬁﬁfﬁﬁ
on the PBOC prevailing benchmark lending rate of the same BEEERMEFAE - RZT—N\F -
tenor to the Group before 3 September 2021. In 2018, the AEBERRFE —HARARKE60
Group has received the first installment of RMB6 billion. 8T °

As above arrangements are all in relation to the disposal of RN Bl PR A REE
coal mines assets in Shanxi Province which are contemplated EGR  RERAKBERREETT A
of each other in order to achieve the strategic direction of iRtz - BETFREFI - AAF
the Group and they are entered into almost at the same EEORSARLERERE—XS
time, the Directors of the Company consider that they BREMAK - -EFRA/XH7TKAH
shall be treated and accounted for as a single transaction. BR-E-—N\F+_A=tAXRB-

The Directors considered the date of completion of the
transaction to be 26 December 2018.
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45 DISPOSAL OF SHANXI COAL MINING 45 HEUWREREEEE @)
ASSETS (conTinuED)

Transfer of coal assets held by CR Coal including ZEHRESENEREEEZE
equity interests in four Coal Companies and transfer BRENKERQANERE RE
of Target Debt (as defined below) (Continued) ZEABREK(EER T @)
The cash flows from the Transactions were as follows: RHNBHEERAT -
AACI HK CR Coal Total
AACI HK EHEREE wE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
THET FTHERT THERT
Consideration received - cash BRARE-RE 3,930,571 — 3,930,571
Shareholder loans repaid EBERRER — 5,856,111 5,856,111
Less: cash and cash equivalents B RS B BRI
held by the subsidiaries on RAFAENE S
the disposal date RIREEEY (658,756) (641,940) (1,300,696)
Net proceeds from disposal HERBRIERE 3,271,815 5,214,171 8,485,986
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45 DISPOSAL OF SHANXI COAL MINING

ASSETS (conTiNuED)

Transfer of coal assets held by CR Coal including
equity interests in four Coal Companies and transfer
of Target Debt (as defined below) (Continued)

Net assets of CR Coal and AACI HK as at the date of the

45

HELURRIES E )

ERRESENVEREEEE
BIEORKERATNEKRE RE
ZEHEGEK(EERT ) @

FERHEELRAACI HKREE B HH

disposal were as follows: FEEWNT
AACI HK CR Coal Total
AACI HK EMREE wnEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FExT FExT
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRSZEY 658,756 641,940 1,300,696
Pledged and restricted bank deposits = 8 & 52 R
RITIFK 301,936 — 301,936
Trade and other receivables B 5 kE MR 650,542 610,602 1,261,144
Inventories BE 149,466 142,090 291,556
Investments in joint ventures NEEhERE
(Note 11(a)) (FI=E 11(a)) 86,519 — 86,519
Loans to a joint venture m—fE&EhERER 135,834 — 135,834
Amount due from a joint venture W —FEEEhE
I8 136,011 — 136,011
Loans to an associate m—EEECEER — 826,113 826,113
Amount due from an associate JE U — RT3
FIB — 338,862 338,862
Property, plant and equipment M BB RRE 1,011,707 2,864,488 3,876,195
Prepaid lease payments ERNEEER 61,423 31,191 92,614
Mining rights (Note 8) PRaE i (P 8) 6,154,548 8,072,016 14,226,564
Prepayment for non-current assets KREATEf A — 524,156 524,156
Deferred income tax assets (Note 33) IEILFTIEFIE E
(F3E33) 59,891 — 59,891
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMSHAR
(Note 33) (Fff3E33) (1,702,449) (61,426) (1,763,875)
Trade payables, other payables and  JENBERZ - HAbfESR
accruals HEREER (875,353) (6,478,201) (7,353,554)
Dividends payable FERTAR B (292,495) (212,900) (505,395)
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFTIS BB & (248,760) (26,524) (275,284)
Borrowings BE (114,129) — (114,129)
Loans from intermediate holding REBEEZERAA
company BER — (20,892,116) (20,892,116)
Total net assets/(liabilities) BEE/(BE)FE 6,173,447 (13,619,709) (7,446,262)
Equity attributable to owners of RAGIHER AEIS
the company s 3,279,356 (8,864,521) (5,585,165)
Non-controlling interests FEFEE A A 2 2,894,091  (4,755,188) (1,861,097)
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45 DISPOSAL OF SHANXI COAL MINING

ASSETS (conTinuED)

Transfer of coal assets held by CR Coal including
equity interests in four Coal Companies and transfer

of Target Debt (as defined below) (Continued)

The loss on disposal of CR Coal and AACI HK was calculated

as follows:

45 HEUREEEE @

+

EHEXEENEREEEE -
EORERADNRE  KE
ZEHEGEK(EERT ) @

HEFEHE ¥ N AACI HKEYE 5T
BT

@ Hi

Total
HK$'000
THET

CR Coal
ERREE
HK$°000

FHET

AACI HK
AACI HK

HK$'000
FTET

Consideration: RIE -
Equity Transfer Agreement P& HE B 2 1p 3,930,571 — 3,930,571
Debt Restructuring Agreement B EADZE — 12,493,580 12,493,580
Total consideration BB 3,930,571 12,493,580 16,424,151
Less: NS
Net (assets)/liabilities disposed SEE@mENLE

as measured at Group level (EE)/BEFHE  (3,279,356) 8,864,521 5,585,165
Shareholder loans and accounts HECRERERK

receivable transferred FEWBRIE — (24,868,913) (24,868,913)
Add: hn
Transfer from other comprehensive  #E B E 2K A

income 265,626 472,402 738,028
Gain/(loss) on disposal of HERBARZ

subsidiaries Wz, (&58) 916,841  (3,038,410) (2,121,569)
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46 AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

46 B ENBNE

Audit services
Non-audit services

= BRA
X BURT

2018 2017
SR —T+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TR
11,957 11,025
1,020 1,031
12,977 12,056

47 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

The Group entered into two trademark licence
agreements dated 17 October 2003 with CRCL and
CRH, respectively, under which the Group was granted
irrevocable, royalty free and non-exclusive licences to
use certain trade marks and the rights to sub-license
the same to any member of the Group in consideration
of a nominal amount of HK$1 each.

Key management compensation

Key management includes directors (executive and non-
executive) and senior management. The compensation
paid or payable to key management for employee
services is shown below:

47 BBHRS

(a)

AEER-_FTE=F+At+t
BEonlErBEEFMERE
BET Y MIBREIRR A e 0 &
o AEEEEAAHD - 2
ENREFEBRAAERET
AR - A B[R A 6% [ 6 (A AR
BRRNDKAERSE THEEN
BN RESRESEBH1E

.
FEEE A S m

TREEABBRBRERHTR
FRTIRERERE - SES
REENKENEEZEEAR
B SRBH LA TS PR

Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

RERR (R 12 A

e hEMEHESEF

2018 2017
TE-N\F g s
HK$°'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
82,980

595

54,760 83,575
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AT IR ER R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BItFE

47 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

(c)

Material related party transactions

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the following
transactions were carried out with related parties

during the year:

Name of related company

- UNTE

Relationship
2l

47 RS R S @)

(0 EXEBIXS

E=R

Nature of transactions
XHIEE

CRH
E£H&HE

China Resources Co., Limited

EBRNBRAA

Certain subsidiaries of CRH

EREENETHEAR

Certain joint ventures of CR
Cement

ERKENETAEERE

Certain associates of CR
Cement

ERRENAETHELE

Certain subsidiaries of China
Resources Land Ltd.

EHEMERARNET
Loy

Intermediate
holding company

PR A A

Intermediate
holding company

PR A A

Fellow subsidiaries

EESH-IN]

Joint ventures of
fellow subsidiary
RZAKBRR

ZREDE

Associates of
fellow subsidiary

EES =N
ZHEhE

Fellow subsidiaries

EELHEPNG

Interest expense paid (Note 30)

EfHEER (5 30)

Disposal of a subsidiary

HERBAR

Supply of direct power

BEEMHE

Providing retail power agency
services(i)

RETES HHIBRE ()

Rental expense

HEEHR

Purchase of limestone
powder

BEARAH

Providing retail power agency
services(i)

RETEENRERS ()

Supply of direct power

BEEHE

Providing retail power agency
services(i)

RETEENRERS()

Rental expense
HeER
Transportation fee
RBE

Other expense

HEtn B

BRE I s mAREME D WE
RERNERE T ETT
T E

2018 2017
- SN T+ F
GICHIN  HK$'000
FET FET
520

138,597

22,357

99

3,672

30,361

31,979 23,137
35 28

7
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47 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 47 BAED32 5 ()
(CONTINUED)
(c) Material related party transactions (Continued) () EXREEHRZZ ()
2018 2017
- SISl T F
Name of related company Relationship Nature of transactions HK$'000 HK$'000
2PN R RHME TER THET
China Resources Energy Service  Fellow subsidiary Contract environment 50,241
Co., Ltd. EESIENG! management fee, contract
ERERREARAR energy management fee and
exclusive operation fee
RRRRERER -
BRRREEE AR
R EER
China Resources Bank of Fellow subsidiary Interest expense paid (Note 31) 695
Zhuhai Company Limited RZHB AR ERFEEMAE3)
WeERBRTROERAA Interest income (Note 21) 1,107
MEHA(PHEE21)
China Resources Leasing Fellow subsidiary Providing maintenance service 1,001
Co., Ltd. EES=PNG R RERS
ZRHEBRAT
Guangzhou Runxin Energy Joint venture Sales of heat 58,038 41,081
Development Co.,Ltd. RELE HE R
BB RRZE AR AR Maintenance expenses 1 359
HEER
Sales of by-products —
HE B Em
Providing agency service fee —
REREREE
Jiangsu Zhenjiang Power Associate Sales of electricity 51,079 158,155
IHETIEE BeEhR HEB
Sales of coal 300,468 51,024
HER K
Providing agency service fee 26,781 28,209
RERIEREE
Purchase of fuel 81 712
BEMRE
Interest expense paid (Note 28) AL 1,779
ERNFISER (T 28)
Providing maintenance service 11,337 996
R A RS
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47 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 47 RO R S )
(CONTINUED)
(c) Material related party transactions (Continued) () EXREEHRZ ()
2018 2017
b LI — T F
Name of related company Relationship Nature of transactions HK$'000 HK$'000
BELNRIAME L RH5HE TERT FTET
China Resources (Xuzhou) Associate Sales of coal 29,961 8,010
Electric Power Co., Ltd. ik HE R IK
HMNEBENARAT Sales of electricity 88,863 144,534
HEEN
Providing agency service fee 20,927 23,055
REREREE
Interest expense paid (Note 28) 2,179 1,662
BFE 2 A (FfE28)
Providing maintenance service 31,392 20,341
R E R
Sales of materials 39,272 40,312
HE MR
Nanjing Yanjiang Heating Associate Sales of heat 90,648 92,639
Power Co.,Ltd. a3 55 Eae
AR IRANERAR Service income 2,548 2,533
FRAUA
Rental income 168 165
HakA
Resources J Joint venture Sales of coal 759,441 216,531
iR RERE HERX
Providing maintenance service 14,092 15,417
Rt ERY
Service income 27,655 25,943
FRFUA
Interest expense paid (Note 29) 3,361 4,293
ERMEER(FE29)
Purchase of fuel 242,202 268,159
EEE
Sales of electricity 969 —
HEEN
Providing agency service fee 650 650
RUEREREE
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47 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 47 BAED32 5 ()
(CONTINUED)
(c) Material related party transactions (Continued) () EXREEHRZZ ()
2018 2017
Sl T tF
Name of related company Relationship Nature of transactions HK$'000 HK$'000
2PN AP RHME T THET
Shanxi Lanhua Daning Electric Joint venture Interest income (Note 11) 1,602
Power Co., Ltd. (Note ii) BRTE ISV ONCIERRD)
WABEAEETFRAA
(F&Ei)
Chongging Energy (Guizhou) Associate Interest income (Note 10) 1,011
Coal and Power Co., Ltd. Behx FEHA(KIEE10)
BEGREMNEEERAF
CR Taiyuan (Note ii) Associate Interest income 124,235 204,589
ARER (K MR FEWA
Sales of coal 1,078 13,242
HERK
Providing maintenance service 5
REEERS
Providing agency service fee 8,858
REREREE
Purchase of coal 12,360
BEKX
Sale of coal mining capacity 177,732
HE R SRR
Tianjin Zhonghai CR Marine Joint venture Purchase of coal transportation 109,481 150,555
RERBER RERR service
SRR KRR
CR Jinzhou Joint venture Interest expense paid (Note 29) 4,292
ZEHR N RERE ENFSEREE29)
Providing maintenance service 512
R A MRS
Management fee income 50
EEEWA
Providing agency service fee 23,378
REREBRBE
Providing integrated energy —
services

RS BRRE
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47 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 47 BRI S (&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Material related party transactions (Continued) () EXREEHRZ ()
2018 2017
ZE-\F et
Name of related company Relationship Nature of transactions HK$'000 HK$'000
2PN & RHME TER FET
CR Power Northeast Power Joint venture Providing agency service fee 172 113
Engineering Co.,Ltd. BERE RUREREE
EHFERILENIRERAA Maintenance expense 148,821 129,950
HEEH
Interest expense paid (Note 29) 370 541
ENFISER(EE29)
Purchase of materials 2,313 —
BEDH
China Resources Wind Power Joint venture Interest expense paid (Note 29) 82 77
Jinzhou Yulong Co.,Ltd. RELE BF 28 A (i 29)
WMNAER N EEERAA]
China Resources Joint venture Interest income (Note 11) 1,040
Power (Ningwu) Co., Ltd. BEL¥ NS ONCIERRD)
EFHEN(ER)BERAA Interest expense paid (Note 29) 53
ERFISER T 29)
China Resources New Joint venture Interest expense paid (Note 29) 158
Energy (Lanxian) Co.,Ltd. BERE ERF S8 29)
ERHER(EZ)BR AR Interest income (Note 11) 1,634
S ONGIERRD
Providing agency service fee —
REHEREREE
China Resouces Power Liuzhi Associate Providing maintenance service —
Co., Ltd. B bE REEERS
EFHENR)BERAA Providing agency service fee —
REREREE
Interest expense paid (Note 28) —
ENFISER (T 28)
Interest income (Note 10) —
MEBA(FIE10)
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47 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 47 BAIETORRZ (w)

EXBB TR 5 (8)

(CONTINUED)
() Material related party transactions (Continued) ()
Name of related company Relationship Nature of transactions
2PN AP RHME
Fujian Hui'an Quanhui Power Joint venture Providing maintenance service
Generation Co., Ltd. BRELE Rt ERY
BERLEREEAREMAT Interest income (Note 11)
S ONCERRD
Funeng Huarun (Huian) Wind Joint venture Providing maintenance service
Power Co., Ltd. BRETE TRt 4 RS
REER(ER)REARAR Providing agency service fee
RERIEREE
Zhejiang Wenzhou Telluride Associate Purchase of fuel
Power Generation Co., Ltd. Bt EEMRE
HDRMNEEREERREMELA
China Resources Power Associate Interest expense paid (Note 28)
Intelligent Energy BeEhE ERMEEA(Fi28)

(Changzhou) Co., Ltd.
ZHEENBERR(EM)
BRAT

Note i: The amounts disclosed are commissions charged to these entities
by the Group for the provision of agency services for bidding/
acquiring electricity supply from the national open market (the
“Market"”). The total trading volume of electricity that the Group
bid/acquired on behalf of these entities over the Market is 3.12
billion kWh in 2018. The power plants operated by the Group
also contributed electricity to the Market through the national
electricity grid of China.

Note ii: These entities ceased to be related parties on 26 December 2018
(Note 45). The transactions shown were up to that date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R RS ER R B 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE_Z— \Ft+-_A=+—HLEE

47 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

(d)

Transactions/balances with other state-controlled
entities

The Group operates in an economic environment
currently predominated by entities directly or indirectly
owned or controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by the Chinese government (“state-
controlled entities”). In addition, the Group itself is part
of a larger group of companies under CRCL, ultimate
holding company of the Company, which is controlled
by the PRC government. Apart from the transactions
with the parent company and its subsidiaries which
have been disclosed in other notes to the consolidated
financial statement, the Group also conducts business
with other state-controlled entities during the ordinary
course of its business.

The Group operates power plants in the PRC and sells
significant volumes of its electricity to the power grid
companies which are state-controlled entities in the
PRC. The Group also purchases/sells significant amounts
of coal from/to certain state-controlled entities.
Furthermore, the Group has certain borrowings and
deposits with certain banks which are state-controlled
entities in its ordinary course of business. The Group
has also entered into various transactions, including
other operating expenses with other state-controlled
entities which individually and collectively were
insignificant during the year.

47 BB R S @)

(d)

LEMBFERERNR S,

A\l

ot
&

W

AEBBAMEAETBEBFE

EREEREEREH - KEE
HEFEEBEATENTR([R

FHEHIEE ) SENKBERER
BE o W REEAE BT
BB AT IE il R B (R A
NANKEER AR B TERX
RAEE—ED - FRRA G
MBEREREMHEMRERSY
REIREMB ARSI -
7N 5% [ 7 B AL BT FR 6 B 68
REABXBHETERELS -

AREEBRNPTEHLLEER - LM
¢I%% A R(RBFESE
)%%Kgﬁﬂ REEIRHE
/ﬁ S TR RS EERE,
HERERRK I AKHE
%E%%ﬁ¢ﬁ”¥ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ
JIEHIERE) S TEERRIT
TR FR > AEENREETT
2R 5 B EAM BT E
HERI MM EMEER
ZE BRI N AR REX o
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48

49

CONTINGENCY

As at 31 December 2018, the Group provided certain
guarantees amounting to HK$2,894,284,000 (2017:
HK$3,849,912,000) to its related parties (Notes 10 and 11).

In addition, there were certain pending litigations and claims
against the Group as of 31 December 2018. After consulting
the legal counsels, the directors are of the view that the
likelihood of any material financial impact to the Group is
remote, therefore, no provisions have been made in light of
such litigations and claims.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

On 15 March 2019, the Group, through a PRC subsidiary,
issued a corporate bond of RMB3,000,000,000 and listed on
Shanghai Stock Exchange, with maturity period of 3 years,
bearing a coupon rate of 3.65%.

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
the Group had no other significant subsequent event.
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BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BItFE

50 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 50 R B EEGBRKHE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY 15 &)
Balance sheet of the Company KAREEEER
2018 2017
TE-\F g s
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FETT
ASSETS =3
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB REE 217,455 214,968
Prepayment for non-current assets RERTE IR 33,324 32,251
Investments in subsidiaries I ESNGIL: o) Fa 27,777,646 28,180,533
Loans to subsidiaries mE AR ER 13,578,093 14,464,894
Investments in associates REEE P EAER 2,591,913 2,347,414
Investments in joint ventures NEEPENER 1,270,108 1,270,108
FVOCI NARBEFERE
FFAHEMARE WS 184,910 —
Available-for-sale investments A EERE — 184,910
45,653,449 46,695,078
Current assets RBEE
Trade receivables, other receivables and JEURBRR - EfbfE Uk
prepayments B R IBREIA 91,735 94,216
Amounts due from associates JrE LU Bt = 1 ZE FRIE 10,507 10,970
Amounts due from subsidiaries and JE UG B B~ B M H A
other related companies EZFENGIE/SLE] 20,365,010 EEVYIXLRYL!
Cash and cash equivalents RERBFAESEZEEY 2,086,739 1,196,781
22,553,991 23,587,891
Total assets wEE WL VGN 70,282,969
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50 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 50 A B EEGBRKGHE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (continuep) 8 ()

Balance sheet of the Company (Continued) KrAREEEBER@

As at 31 December
Rt+t=—RA=+-—H
Note 2018 2017
= —E-N\F —ET—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ERZREE

Equity attributable to owners ~ AATEE AEEER
of the Company

Share capital AR 22,316,710 22,341,736

Other reserves Hfth Note (a) FiizE (a) 82,307 (412,689)

Retained earnings R 88 F)E Note (a) Hi3 (a) 17,080,310 21,107,720
Total equity R 39,479,327 43,036,767
LIABILITIES &
Non-current liabilities ERBEE

Borrowings BE 25,310,052 21,885,769
Current liabilities nEBeE
Trade payables, other payables FERTRRR - E R

and accruals FIBNREFTE R 163,148 197,517
Amounts due to joint ventures & hERE 799 837
Amounts due to other e EL & A A

related companies IR 1,039,198 1,817,428
Current income tax liabilities BT asE 2,996 10,553
Borrowings TE 2,211,920 3,334,098

3,418,061 5,360,433

Total liabilities BmERE 28,728,113 27,246,202
Total equity and liabilities HEZREE 68,207,440 70,282,969
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the BT - AF=A=+=H
Board of Directors on 22 March 2019 and was signed on its BBANREERARELR YA TIE
behalf. ERRBERE -
Director Director
o 5=
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50 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 50 R B EEGBRKHE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (conTinueD)

Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company

154 B)) ()
MisE (a) N A R RE = ED

Other
reserve
Hit e
HK$°000
Tt

Retained
earnings

RE R

HK$000
TERT

At 1 January 2017 R=-ZE—tH—HF—H 14,726,187 (417,823)
Profit for the year FRFE 10,567,181 —
Dividends paid to owners of the Company BEIRNTARFIHEE AKRE

(Note 42) (M47E42) (4,185,648) -
Transfer of share option reserve on BT {50 R AR e T B 4

exercise of share options A e — (50,050)
Vesting of shares under medium to P REE ST E BT &

long-term performance evaluation THRDFE

incentive plan — 55,184
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—tF

+=A=+—8H 21,107,720 (412,689)

At 1 January 2018

R=Z-—N¥—A—H

21,107,720 (412,689)

Profit for the year
Dividends paid to owners of the Company
(Note 42)

FRNE

BN ARTER ARE

(KtsE42)

150,409

(4,177,819) =

Sold shares held for share award scheme &R 12 BT &I i R% 19 — 494,996
At 31 December 2018 R-E-N\F
+=—A=+—H 17,080,310 82,307
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51 SUBSIDIARIES

51

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2018:

Name of subsidiary

WEAREE

China Resources
Power (Haifeng) Co., Ltd.
ZHEN(EE)ERAH

China Resources Power
Investment Co., Ltd.

EHENREBRATA

China Resources Power
(Tangshan Caofeidian)
Co., Ltd.

ZHEN(EILELS)
BRAT

China Resources Power
Dengfeng Co., Ltd.
ZHENEHERLA

China Resources
Power Hubei Co., Ltd.
ZRENBILER LA

Place of
incorporation

and operation

and form of

legal entity
TR O I AR S
URERERER

PRC,

Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise
g
IEBERFE

PRC,

Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise
g
NEBERRE

PRC,

Sino-Foreign Equity
Joint Venture
hE -
PIORIERELR

PRC,

Sino-Foreign Equity
Joint Venture
hE -
POBIERELR

PRC,

Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise
R
NEBELE

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital
and paid-up capital
ERTHERE
dMERRBRES

Registered capital
RMB2,095,000,000
&R
AR#2,095,000,000 7
Paid-up capital
RMB1,589,280,000
BRER
AE#1,589,280,000 7

Registered and
paid-up capital
RMB15,800,000,000
BRIVE VS -EN

AEK#15,800,000,000 7T

Registered capital
RMB3,571,340,000
AMER
AR#3,571,340,000 7
Paid-up capital
RMB2,163,779,800
BREX
AR#2,163,779,800 7

Registered and

paid-up capital
RMB1,760,000,000

A RS RER
AKR%1,760,000,000 7T

Registered and

paid-up capital
RMB2,690,000,000
BRUNE VSN

AR 2,690,000,000 7

WELE

R—E—N\E+-_A=+—HWTE

MEBAREHINT

Percentage of equity
interest held (%)
FrisEHRER 2t (%)
Directly Indirectly

E& B

= 100

100 =

= 100

Principal
activities

FEEHK

Operation of
a power station
2EEW

Investment holding

REZK

Operation of
a power station
LEBI

Operation of
a power station
LEBI

Operation of
a power station
2EEU
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51 SUBSIDIARIES (contiNuED) 51 BT @
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 RZE-N\F+ZA=1+T—HHEE
December 2018: (Continued) MEBAREIIAT : (&)
Place of
incorporation Issued and fully
and operation paid share capital/
and form of registered capital
legal entity and paid-up capital Percentage of equity Principal
Name of subsidiary MRS HE ERTHERE interest held (%)  activities
WEARER UREEERER dMERR MR ES FRENRERDL (%) TEER
Directly Indirectly
B B
China Resources PRC, Registered and = 54.5  Operation of
Power (Tongshan) Co., Ltd. Limited Liability paid-up capital a power station
FILERENERAR Company RMB1,500,000,000 EEEI
g BRSNS RN
BB AR 1,500,000,000 70
China Resources New Energy  PRC, Registered capital = 100  Operation of
(Neihuang)Co., Ltd. Wholly Foreign RMB950,670,000 a power station
ZBHER(AZ)BRAR  Owned Enterprise HMER SEE I
e AE#950,670,0007C
WNEBELE Paid-up capital
RMB534,930,000
BREX
AE#534,930,0007C
China Resources New Energy  PRC, Registered capital = 100  Operation of
(Suixian Tianhekou) Wholly Foreign RMB771,847,400 a power station
Wind Power Limited Owned Enterprise AfEA LB
EEHER(ESEKTN) hE - AR 771,847,400
BERE AR AR WNEBELE Paid-up capital
RMB505,036,191
HBREX
AE#505,036,1917C
China Resources Power PRC, Registered capital 100 —  Operation of
(Jiaozuo) Co., Ltd. Wholly Foreign RMB1,254,000,000 a power station
EHEN(EE)BERAR Owned Enterprise AfER LEE UL
HE AE#1,254,000,000 7T
WNEBELE Paid-up capital
RMB1,074,999,504
BREX

ARH1,074,999,504 7T
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51 SUBSIDIARIES (continueD) 51 WEA AT

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2018: (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEAREE

Place of
incorporation

and operation

and form of

legal entity
TR O I AR S
URERERER

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital
and paid-up capital
ERTHERE
dMERRBRES

R—E—N\E+-_A=+—HWTE

MEBAREHINT

Percentage of equity
interest held (%)
FrisEHRER 2t (%)
Directly Indirectly

E& B

(%)

Principal
activities

FEEHK

China Resources Power PRC, Registered capital 55 —  Operation of
(Wenzhou) Co., Ltd. Sino-Foreign Equity RMB2,000,000,000 a power station
ZHENORMN)BR AR Joint Venture AfEAR HEEI
HE AE#2,000,000,000 7
RONSIERE R R Paid-up capital
RMB1,667,972,355
BRER
AE#1,667,972,355 7T
China Resources Power PRC, Registered and 90 —  Operation of
(Heze) Co., Ltd. Sino-Foreign paid-up capital a power station

EHEN(HE)BERATF

China Resources Power

Equity Joint Venture
g
POSERERR

PRC,

RMB931,250,000
A EE R ER
AE# 931,250,000 7T

Registered capital

— 100

BEEY

Operation of

(Bohaixinqu) Co., Ltd. Wholly Foreign RMB840,000,000 a power station
EBENCDEHE)BRAE Owned Enterprise HMEX EEE I
HE AE#840,000,0007T
INEBELE Paid-up capital
RMB619,605,540
BREXR
AR 619,605,540 7T
Sichuan China Resources PRC, Registered and = 51  Operation of
Yazui River Hydro Power  Sino-Foreign Equity paid-up capital a power station
Development Co., Ltd. Joint Venture RMB473,750,000 LEBI
)11 A K E % g A RS RER
BRAA POBIERELR AR 473,750,000 7T
China Resources Power PRC, Registered and = 100  Operation of

(Panjin) Co., Ltd.

Wholly Foreign

paid-up capital

a power station

ZHEN(BREB)ERLT Owned Enterprise RMB776,000,000 ZBE I
R kAR AR
NEBEERE AER# 776,000,000 70
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Name of subsidiary

WEAREE

China Resources Power
(Changshu) Co., Ltd.
ZHEN(ER)BRAA

China Resources Power
Hunan Co., Ltd.
ZHENHEERAF

China Resources Power Henan

Shouyangshan Co., Ltd.

ARERENEHLBRATF

Jiangsu Nanre Power
Generation Co., Ltd.
IHEREEERELL

Nanjing Chemical Industry
Park Thermoeletricity
Co., Ltd.

ERBIXEATEAR

China Resources Cangzhou
Co-generation Co., Ltd.
ENEBRATERA

Place of
incorporation

and operation

and form of

legal entity

REM AR R AR i B
URiRERER

PRC,

Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise
g
MEBERR

PRC,

Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise
hE
NEBERE

PRC,
Sino-Foreign Equity
Joint Venture

e
PORERERR
PRC,

Limited Liability
Company

-

BRAT]

PRC,

Sino-Foreign Equity
Joint Venture

Al RE
POSHERELR

PRC,

Sino-Foreign Equity
Joint Venture
hE -
PORIERELRE

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital
and paid-up capital
ERTHERE
dMERR MR ES

Registered and
paid-up capital
US$173,520,000
BRSNS RN
%7T.173,520,000

Registered and

paid-up capital
RMB1,361,000,000
BRSNS NN
AR%1,361,000,000 7T

Registered and

paid-up capital
RMB1,237,500,000
BRUNEVE-EN
AE#1,237,500,000 7T

Registered and

paid-up capital
RMB1,030,000,000

A kAR EA
AK#1,030,000,000 7T

Registered and
paid-up capital
US$127,580,252
kSR E R
%7T.127,580,252

Registered and
paid-up capital
RMB550,000,000

A RS R ER

AR 550,000,000 75

Percentage of equity
interest held (%)
B HRER D (%)
Directly Indirectly

E# B

= 100

— 100

= 100

51 SUBSIDIARIES (contiNuED) 51 BT @
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 RZE-N\F+ZA=1+T—HHEE
December 2018: (Continued) B ARESIT - (&)

Principal
activities

FREHR

Operation of
a power station
SEE

Operation of
a power station
HEE

Operation of
a power station
ZEBI

Operation of
a power station
LEBBI

Operation of
a power station
SEE

Operation of
a power station
LEBI
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=1+—ALEFE

51 SUBSIDIARIES (continueD) 51 WEA AT

R-ZE—\&E+—_A=+—HWTE
MEBAREIIAT : (&)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2018: (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEAREE

Guangzhou China Resources

Thermal Co., Ltd.
BMERREER AR

China Resources Wind

Power (Haiyuan) Co., Ltd.

EERE(BR)ERAF

Henan China Resources
Power Gucheng Co., Ltd.
AEERENHBERDA

Xuzhou Huaxin Power
Generation Co., Ltd.

RNERETARAT

China Resources Power
(Xilinguole) Coal Mining
Co., Ltd.

ERE N (HNRDH)EE
ERAA

Place of
incorporation
and operation
and form of
legal entity

LA L R A 3 B

URERERER

PRC,

Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise
g
IEBERFE

PRC,

Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise
i
NEBERE

PRC,

Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise
hE
NEBERE

PRC,

Limited Liability
Company
e
BRAT]

PRC,

Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise
R
NEBERE

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital
and paid-up capital
ERTHERE
dMERRBRES

Registered and

paid-up capital
RMB1,100,000,000
BRSNS RN
AE#1,100,000,000 7T

Registered capital
RMB630,336,600

A MER

AR# 630,336,600 7T
Paid-up capital
RMB544,070,000
BREX

AR 544,070,000 70

Registered and
paid-up capital
RMB740,500,000
RRIIPNE SN
AR 740,500,000 75

Registered and
paid-up capital
RMB480,000,000
BRUNE ST

AR 480,000,000 7T

Registered and
paid-up capital
RMB300,000,000
BRUNE FEE-7

AR 300,000,0007T

Percentage of equity
interest held (%)
PR RER 2L (%)

Directly Indirectly
B B

= 100

— 100

— 100

60 40

Principal
activities

FEEHK

Operation of
a power station
2EEW

Operation of
a power station
LBBIL

Operation of
a power station
LEBI

Operation of
a power station
2EEU

Operation of
a power station
LB
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BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BItFE

51 SUBSIDIARIES (continuep)

51

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2018: (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEAREE

China Resources
Power (Yichang) Co., Ltd.
EZHENER)ERAT

China Resources Power
Tangshan Fengrun Co., Ltd.
ERENEILERERAA

Guizhou Tianrun Mining
Co., Ltd.
BEMNRBBREARAR

China Resources Power
(Xilinguole) Co., Ltd.
EHE N (BN ARLA

Place of
incorporation

and operation

and form of

legal entity

REM AR R AR i B
URiRERER

PRC,

Wholly Foreign
Owned Enterprise
g
MEBERR

PRC,

Sino-Foreign Equity
Joint Venture
hE -
PIORIERELR

PRC,

Limited Liability
company

i
BRAA]

PRC,

Sino-Foreign Equity
Joint Venture
e
PIOBIERELR

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital
and paid-up capital
ERTHERE
dMERR MR ES

Registered and
paid-up capital
RMB769,000,000
BRSNS RN
AE#769,000,0007C

Registered capital
RMB690,135,000
AMER

AKR% 690,135,000
Paid-up capital
RMB674,574,250
BREX

AR¥ 674,574,250 0

Registered and
paid-up capital
RMB100,000,000
BRIIPNE IS
AR 100,000,000 75

Registered capital
RMB2,065,000,000
A EA

AE# 2,065,000,0007C

Paid-up capital
RMB1,909,333,300
HREAR

AEK#1,909,333,300 T

Mt &S m)

R-_ZE—N\E+_A=+—HWHTE
MEBAREIIAT : (&)

Percentage of equity
interest held (%)
B HRER D (%)
Directly Indirectly

E# B

= 100

Principal
activities

FREHR

Operation of
a power station
SEE

Operation of
a power station
LBBI

= 100 Coal mining

PR TR

Operation of
a power station
ZEEU
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE_Z— \Ft+-_A=+—HILLEE

51 SUBSIDIARIES (continueD) 51 BT (i8)

The above table lists the principal subsidiaries of the Group
which in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected/will affect the operation of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of
excessive length.

Some of the subsidiaries’ English names represent
managements’ translation of the Chinese names as they
have not adopted formal English names.

The subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC are all limited
liability companies.

(a) Significant restrictions

As at 31 December 2018, cash and bank deposits of
HK$6,093,098,000 (2017: HK$4,989,465,000) are held
in mainland China and are subject to PRC exchange
control regulations. These exchange control regulations
provide for restrictions on exporting capital from the
country, other than through cash dividend approved
by the shareholders’ meeting in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H AT IR ER R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+—BItFE

52 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 52 EEfls ks (1REE

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION N EMERIEE 622 =5 383
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES RHEE - N (EBRIAS
ORDINANCE (CAP.622), COMPANIES BRIRE)RABIE 622G =

(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT REE
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION

(CAP.622G))
(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments (a) EEREFEHITENSE
The remuneration of each Director and the Chief BHE_ZT-NFT+_A=+—
Executive for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set AILEFE  SESRERHNT
out below: ERMEEHIIAT
Salaries Pension  Share-based
Name Fees and bonus costs compensation Total
% e HERTA  BAKEE Ko e Azt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TiEgn TR TiEn
Li Ru Ge (i) THE()
Hu Min il
Ge Changxin BRH
Wang Xiao Bin M
Ma Chiu-Cheung, Andrew BRE
So Chak Kwong, Jack EK
Leung Qi-sie, Elsie DEE
Ch'ien Kuo Fung, Raymond BRE
Wang Yan (ii) TE()
Chen Ying (ii) R B (i)
1,335 13,782 156 15,273
(i)  On 5 March 2018, Ms. Zhou Junging resigned () R-ZZE—NE=AAA " BF
from her position as an Executive Director and BT EHTESNES
Chairman of the Board of Directors and Mr. Li Ru ST ERERT  MELE
Ge was appointed as a Non-Executive Director and SHEEFEAIENITESR
the new Chairman of the Board of Directors. BESHNEITIE o
(i) Included in the Directors’ emoluments disclosed (i) PREXAERTELENEEE
above, Mr. Chen Ying and Mr. Wang Yan, of the NG &N a2k
Company also received emoluments from the YHWENESEMESR o

related companies.
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B AT #R HR R 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE-Z-\F+-A=1+—ALEFE

52 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 52 EEflis ks (1BREE

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION NEMRBISE 622 = 55383
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES BRE NI (ESNa
ORDINANCE (CAP.622), COMPANIES ERNRE)RBIE 622G E

(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT RE) w0
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION

(CAP.622G)) (conmiNueD)
(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments (a) ESREFHTEME @
(Continued)
During the year, no remuneration has been paid by FR AEEVTERESSH
the Group to the Directors or the five highest paid LR TMATZNME - 1F
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the BIMAARSERIIMALREER
Group or as a compensation for loss of office. BEBNE - SERBERAF(E o
No Directors have waived any remuneration during the FA - WEEERETAHHE -
year.
The remuneration of each Director and the Chief BHE_T—tF+HA=+—
Executive for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set BEFE SESEREFREHNT
out below: BEHMEHTIAT
Salaries Pension  Share-based
Name Fees  and bonus costs  compensation Total
# we FeRiEL  RERAE ki @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FET FET FET FET
Zhou Junging (i) & (i) — 5,472 — — 5,472
Wang Xiao Bin T/ — 5,672 78 - 5,750
Ge Changxin BRH — 6,477 — — 6,477
Hu Min e — 5,331 78 - 5,409
Ma Chiu-Cheung, Andrew jiicped 345 - - - 345
So Chak Kwong, Jack Y= 345 — — - 345
Leung Oi-sie, Elsie REF 345 - — — 345
Ch'ien Kuo Fung, Raymond Y 300 — — — 300
Wang Yan (ii) T 2 (i) — — — — —
Chen Ying (ii) PRI (ii) — — — — —
1,335 22,952 156 — 24,443
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52 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 52 BE Rt RiExS (IREE

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION NEMRBISE 622 = 55383
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES BRRE NI (ESBNa
ORDINANCE (CAP.622), COMPANIES BRNRE)RBIE 622G E

(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT RE) )
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION

(CAP.622G)) (conTiNuED)
(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments (a) ESREFHTEME @

(Continued)

() Ms. Zhou Junging served as an Executive Director (i) BAERBZETETEETSH
and Chairman of the Board of Directors. On 5 TEEFEITE R_ZF
March 2018, Ms. Zhou Junging resigned from —N\F=ARB - BEEH
her position and Mr. Li Ru Ge was appointed as a TTEHITES KT F R
Non-Executive Director and the new Chairman of BRE S MEKERLERE
the Board of Directors. ERERINTEERES

SHEERE -

(i) Included in the Directors’ emoluments disclosed (i) REXERTELEKRES
above, Mr. Chen Ying and Mr. Wang Yan, of the BN AUWELR B2 N B TR
Company also received emoluments from the T EYHWENEENE A
related companies.

During the year, no remuneration has been paid by FR AREBWEREENA

the Group to the Directors or the five highest paid ZESHFMATINMNE @ {E

individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the BINANE BB INANE S

Group or as a compensation for loss of office. BHBNS - SEABERIAEE -

No Directors have waived any remuneration during the FR - WHEESFERETOE -

year.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
HE—Z-N\Ft+-A=+—BIEE

52 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP.622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP.622G)) (conmiNueD)

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year (2017: Nil).

(c) Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Company did not pay consideration to any third parties
for making available directors’ services (2017: Nil).

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors

As at 31 December 2018, there is no loans, quasi-loans
and other dealing arrangements in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors (2017: Nil).

(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year (2017: Nil).
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= CORPORATE INFORMATION

< NEER

Chairman
XE

Non-executive Directors

FHTES

Executive Directors

BITES

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFHTES

Company Secretary
DNAWE

Auditors

B ED

Legal Advisor
EEER

Share Registrar

i BFERE

Registered Office
A EE

Li Ru Ge
FHE
Li Ru Ge
THE
Chen Ying

(R &
Wang Yan

TE

Ge Changxin
BRM

Hu Min

EAER
Wang Xiao Bin

T

Andrew Ma Chiu-Cheung
INY /\\'72[7\%5\1/E

Elsie Leung Qi-sie

Ik =k

RE=aT

Raymond Ch’ien Kuo Fung
Jack So Chak Kwong
#RZ

Wang Xiao Bin

W
PricewaterhouseCoopers
’ERUKE SR EE PR
Clifford Chance

=R ARERNTT

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

BERRBSHELBRAA]
EBEIT

2RKBF1835%

R
171712E1716 F

Rooms 2001-2002, 20th Floor,
China Resources Building,

26 Harbour Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong.

General Line: (852) 2593 7530
Facsimile: (852) 2593 7531
BB

78838 26 97

EBAE

20%# 2001 22002 &

4% : (852) 2593 7530
{55 : (852) 2593 7531
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= INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS

« XEE2ZE8N

SHARE LISTING AND STOCK CODE %D =i R B 5%
The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong AR AKRNAREEE S X ZHER AR
Kong Limited. Our stock code is 836. e R RIRA836 o
FINANCIAL DIARY VE = b
Financial year end 31 December 2018 M F 4 A —ET-)N\F
+ZA=+—8
Announcement of final results 22 March 2019 NG e —ET-NF
=AZ-+=H
Last day to register for final dividend 5 July 2019 B &R R —T-hF
e +AEHA
Book close 20 June 2019 to =PI R {9 —ZT-hF
25 June 2019 A NAZ+R=E
—E-NF
NAZ+HB
Payment of final dividend on or about 26 July 2019 JREERHAR B —T-hF
+AZ+XA%
A&
SHAREHOLDER ENQUIRIES IR EH
For enquires about share transfer and registration, please contact BRERMNBENERLZ2EH @ BHEAR
the Company’s Share Registrar: RIZ IR iB &R
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited BEBRREFHFELBRAA
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, BREETERANER 1835
183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong. ARMARLN17E171221716
Telephone: (852) 2862 8628 E:E ¢ (852) 2862 8628
Facsimile: (852) 2865 0990 {HH& : (852) 2865 0990
For enquires from investors and securities analysts, please contact: & EENMFEHFDITENBEH @ B4
Investor Relations WEEBIR
China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited EHENEREBRAR]
Room 2001-2002, 20th Floor, China Resources Building, 26 & /&(7/5 /&8 265
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. FEBEAE 202001 22002 F
General Line: (852) 2593 7530 HAME S - (852) 2593 7530
IR hotline: (852) 2593 7550 HEEHL  (852) 2593 7550
Facsimile: (852) 2593 7531/2593 7551 HEEHS 1 (852) 2593 7531/2593 7551
E-mail: crp-ir@crc.com.hk BH : crp-ir@crc.com.hk
OUR WEBSITE IN=IE T
WWW.Cr-power.com WWW.Cr-power.com
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FHENEZERBIRAF

China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

Rooms 2001-2002, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
BREFEEE265

B AE2001-2002E

Telephone ZE&% : (852) 2593 7530
http://www.cr-power.com
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